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Chief Albert Luthuli

Municipality
Vision

A transparent, innovative and developmental municipality that improves the
quality of life of its people.

Mission

To provide a transparent and accountable government by rendering affordable
and sustainable services; and encouraging economic and social development
through community participation.

Core Values and Principles

. The municipality is driven by the aspirations of the people; we will
respect and uphold the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa.

. The municipality commits itself to the Code of Conduct for Councillors
and Officials contained in the Municipal Systems Act, 2000.



= The municipality commits itself to the principles of sound financial
management

. The municipality subscribes to the principles of Batho Pele:
Consultation, Service Standards, Access, Courtesy, Information,
Openness and transparency, Redress and Value for Money.

. The municipality subscribes to Cooperative Governance. As a partner in

governance we will promote and constructively participate in Regional,
Provincial and National programmes.
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Abbreviation of funding sources

CFR (RO) — Capital Facilities Reserve (Roll Over)

CRR- Capital Replacement Reserve

CRR (Ad hoc) — Capital Replacement Reserve (Ad hoc)
CRR (RO) —Capital Replacement Reserve (Roll over)

CRR (Services) — Capital Replacement Reserve (Services)
CTC — Cleanest Town Competition

DAC- Department of Art and Culture

EFF — External Financing Fund

EFF (Ad hoc) - External Financing Fund (Ad hoc)

EFF (CF) — External Financing Fund (counter funding)
EFF (Inyanda) — External Financing Fund (Inyanda)

EFF (RO) — External Financing Fund (Roll over)

EPW — Expanded Public Works Programme

FMG — Finance Management Grant

INEP — Integrated National Electricity Program
INSURANCE- Insurance Fund

MIG —Municipal Infrastructure Grant

MSIG — Municipal Systems Improvement Grant

CALM- Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

CALM (Ad hoc) — Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality (Ad Hoc)
ALM (RO) — Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality (Roll over)
NLDTF — National Lottery Distribution Fund

NPAG — New Phased Approached Grant
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PART 1

Report by the Executive Mayor Clr. B.P. Shiba

The Honourable Speaker of Council, Councillor SM Nkosi
Chief Whip of Council, Councillor DP Nkosi
Members of the Mayoral Committee
Chairpersons of Section 79 Committees
Leaders of All Political Parties

Honourable Councillors

Traditional Leaders

Leadership of Pastors Forum

The Municipal Manager, Mr VN Mpila
Directors and Officials

Citizens of Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality
Ladies and Gentlemen

On an occasion such as this, the last budget | am tabling to council as Executive Mayor in this term of
office, | should perhaps, start from the beginning of the journey. So, let me begin!

| still vividly remember the day, | rose to the podium in Carolina Academy, on the occasion of our
inauguration. With my legs shaking, | stood in front of the masses of our people and boldly said:

“l Busisiwe Paulina Shiba, do hereby solemnly affirm to Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality and
undertake before those assembled here to hold my office as Executive Mayor with honour and
dignity; to respect and uphold the Constitution, other laws of the Republic of South Africa, policies
and by-laws of our Municipality; to be a true and faithful councillor, not to divulge directly or
indirectly any matter entrusted to me under secrecy and to perform the duties of my office
consciously and to the best of my ability.”

With my left hand up, | concluded this by saying, So help me God! | made this conclusion not because
it is only required when making an oath, but | was sincerely inviting divine intervention. | deeply
appreciated the fact that the road ahead will not be an easy one, at times | will stumble and at times
| will fall, but the salient act remained that of waking up and soldiering on.



| trust many of you will agree with me when | say, despite the many challenges | had in my term of
office, | lived up to the oath | made in 2011. | bodily say this, because | do not recall an occasion
when any of the Ministers, MECs and the Premier under whom | served, or anybody else in
Government or my party, the ANC, complaining that | was failing my constitutional duties.

Four years later, allow me to confess that it was not an easy journey. Beyond my love for the people
our municipality, | also found strength in the commitment and support of councillors, our
administration, the Premier and his office, my husband and family, most importantly my political
party, the ANC. The support, | received from the above mentioned people and structures made me
believe in the words of President Mbeki, when he said:

“Whatever the  setbacks of the moment, nothing can  stop us now!
Whatever the difficulties, Africa shall be at peace!
However improbable it may sound to the sceptics, Africa will prosper!”

| today, thank all of you for your immeasurable support. We are today at this point, because we
collectively believed that nothing can stop our council from defeating poverty, unemployment and
inequality. Our belief passed the test of time, despite annoying and discouraging sounds from
sceptics, we still believed that Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality will prosper. Thank you once again!

Honourable Speaker, | table this budget to council a few days after our continent and the world
celebrated Africa Day on the 25th of May. | therefore deemed it fit to dedicate our 2015/16 budget,
to the African martyrs that gathered in Addis Ababa, in 1963, to formalise a struggle that will ensure
Africa’s rightful place in the family of nations.

This budget serves as a commitment and a tool to advance the African agenda and ensure that,
Africa’s cause triumphs. | use this budget which aims to improve the living conditions of our people,
which are mainly Africans to honour and advance the relentless struggles waged by amongst others
Josina Mutemba, Anton Lembede, Amilcar Cabral, Franz Fanon, Kwame Nkrumah, Julius Nyerere,
Pixley kaSeme, Thomas Sankara, Robert Mugabe, Kenneth Kaunda, Joyce Banda, Albertina Sisulu,
Sam Nujoma, Patrick Lumumba, Jomo Kenyata, Albert Luthuli and many other African freedom
fighters.

The 2015/16 spending plan must assist us reduce the competition for resources and basic services
amongst the working class, which has recently manifested itself in the most degenerate form, that of
xenophobia. My considered view is that South Africans are not xenophobic and violent, and the
recent regrettable acts of violence against our African brothers and sisters is not xenophobia, but
criminal acts instigated by poverty and scarcity of resources. So | argue that South Africa’s liberal
media uses a euphemism, xenophobia, to characterise and downplay the problem.

The real problem is poverty, unemployment, inequality and underdevelopment. It is therefore
precisely the reason that our total budgeted amount for the 2015/16 is almost R500 million (R492,
824, 664). This almost half a billion budget is aiming at improving service delivery, reversing
underdevelopment and poverty and making it improbable for the competition of resources amongst
Africans to degenerate to the level of xenophobia and violence. We want to reverse these frontiers
of poverty, because we know that, Africa’s cause shall not triumph if majority of our people still live
in underdeveloped areas, without water, electricity, sanitation and many other basic services.
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| think it is important for the benefit of both council and our community that | try summarise our
spending plan:

Total revenue (Excluding capital transfers and contributions) R336, 127, 574.63

Total Expenditure R 382, 938, 214.98

Deficit (46,810,640.3)

Non Cash Item

Depreciation 66,974,587.90
Debt Impairment 30,070,157.59
Surplus excluding non-cash item 50,234,105.14

Honourable Speaker, before | outline how do we plan on spending this almost half a billion, | beg you
to permit me, to give a detailed account of the work we have done. | want to do this, to give
testimony to our people that we are municipality work and they can trust us with their monies. As |
give this detailed account, pictures of some of these projects will be flashing on the overhead
projector. This will serve as further evidence that we are indeed a government at work and
Siyaghubal!

Review of performance:
Like | said earlier, that today | start from the beginning of the journey. So let me begin!

Africa’s cause shall not triumph if our governments and institutions are not accountable. We will
continue to be a troubled continent muzzled by wars, if we are not transparent to our people on how
we spend their monies. Lack of transparency breeds suspicion and mistrust, as result creates
conditions for war and at times over resources that are not there.  As an institution we must at all
times be able to account for how we used public resources and whether we were able to deliver on
agreed development outcomes or not.

In the beginning we all agreed to deal with the following to reverse the frontiers of poverty and
advance the development of our continent:

e To increase the number of households receiving electricity. It is with glee that, | report that
we were able to do following in relation to this developmental goal.
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NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS BENEFITTING FROM ACCESS TO

ELECTRICITY

Ward NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS
BENEFITTED

18 Electrification Programme to Mbhejeka 50

2 Electrification Programme to Esandleni 15

5 Electrification Programme to Dundonald 5

8 Electrification Programme to Bampoen 21

8 Electrification Programme to TV 20

16 Electrification Programme to Emagomini 18

16 Electrification Programme to Lochiel 12

6 Electrification Programme to EGG 6

20 Electrification Programme to Nhlazatshe 4C 11

20 Electrification Programme to Nhlazatshe 7 8

14 Electrification Programme to Nhlazatshe 3CD 47

15 Electrification Programme to Silobela Ext 4 450

Total 663

We continued in succeeding financial years with the following:

WARD | NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER OF
HOUSEHOLDS BENEFITTED

6 Electrification of household 89

7 Electrification of household 119

8 Electrification of household 106

10 Electrification of household 90

11 Electrification of household 68

12 Electrification of household 27

14 Electrification of household 150

15 Electrification of household 30

21 Electrification of household 40

22 Electrification of household 50

23 Electrification of household 17

24 Electrification of household 40

Total 826

WARD | NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER OF
HOUSEHOLDS BENEFITTED

01 Noordin 80

04 Caithness 56

06 S’thobela 89

08 Bampoen 103

10 Armburg 41

11 Glenmore 03

12 Ebutsini 27

14 Nhlazatshe Bantfwabetfu 150

21 Carolina 80
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23

Badplaas

83

24

Nhlazatshe

40

e We committed to assisting the fight against crime by increasing the
number of high mast lights and streets lights. We have indeed

remained true to our commitment and installed the following:

Ward | NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER

13 Tjakastad 1

16 Nhlazatshe 1 1

17&23 Badplaas 1

19 Mooiplaas 1

20 Nhlazatshe 4B 1

15&22 crossroad 1

24 Nhlazatshe. 1

25 Nhlazatshe 1 1

15 Installation of street Lights 25
22 Installation of street Lights 25
24 Installation of street Lights 25
25 Installation of street Lights 25
01 Installation of High mast Lights 2
03 Installation of High mast Lights 2
04 Installation of High mast Lights 2
05 Installation of High mast Lights 2
12 Installation of High mast Lights 2
14 Installation of High mast Lights 2
15 Installation of High mast Lights 2
17 Installation of High mast Lights 2
WARD | NAME OF THE PROJECT

01 Installation of High mast lights 1
02 Installation of High mast lights 2
06 Installation of High mast lights 2
07 Installation of High mast lights 2
08 Installation of High mast lights 2
09 Installation of High mast lights 2
10 Installation of High mast lights 2
11 Installation of High mast lights 1
12 Installation of High mast lights 1
16 Installation of High mast lights 2
18 Installation of High mast lights 2
21 Installation of High mast lights 2
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e We committed to providing clean water to every citizen of Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality.

Even though not at satisfactorily levels we are slowly moving in the correct directions. From

2011 to date we were able to do the following:

Ward | NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER OF
HOUSEHOLDS
BENEFITTED

16 Water reticulation to kaNtshwele — Electrification of Borehole 82

9 Water reticulation to Ntababomvu 17

4 Water reticulation to Caithness — Protection of River Crossing 55

9 Water reticulation to Esandleni — Construction of Tank Stand 256

2 Water reticulation to Fernie 33

3 Water reticulation to Ndonga 80

8 Water reticulation to Bampoen — Electrification of Borehole 36

16 Water reticulation to Nhlazatshe 1- Electrification of Borehole 27

8 Water reticulation in Oshoek, Mashonamini, Hartebeeskop and 995

Smithfield

15 Water reticulation to Silobela Ext 4 40

17&23 | Refurbishment of Badplaas Water Treatment Works 2,224

15&22 | Refurbishment of Carolina Waste Water Treatment Works 5,625

13,18 & 19 Installation of package plant in Avontuur and Mooiplaas Water 4,990

Treatment Works

1,2,3 Installation of package plant in Methula Water Treatment Works | 9,093

15 & 22 Replacement of water reticulation AC pipes at Silobela Ext 1 1,200

15, part of Replacement of Bulk AC Rising Main Pipeline from Carolina Water | 15,949

21 & 22 Treatment Works to Reservoirs in Caropark

15, part of Replacement of Bulk AC Pipes from Caropark Reservoirs to 3,991

21&22 Silobela Township

15, part of Upgrading pumping capacity & retro fitting of Carolina water 15,949

21 & 22 treatment works

10,13,14, Eerstehoek Water Treatment Works: Flow Optimization 14,704

part of

16,18,20,24

& 25

12 Ekulindeni: Upgrading of Bulk Water System 2,364

13,18 & 19 Installation of package plant in Avontuur and Mooiplaas Water | 4 990
Treatment Works
4,5,6,7 &9 Augmentation Of mayflower WTW 11113

15 Provision of Water Reticulation In Silobela Ext 4 560
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10,13,14,18,24,25 | Installation Of package Plant in Eerstehoek (Nkomati Mine): 14 708
CALM/NKOM 3/213
1,2,3 Refurbishment of Bulk and internal Water infrastructure in 5764
Methula: ALMT 10/2012
10,13,14,18,24,25 | Refurbishment of Eersterhoek WTW (DWA Project): 14 708
ALMTO09/2012
4,5,6,7,9 Refurbishment of Bulk and internal Water infrastructure in
Mayflower and Lusushwana: ALMT17/2012
12 Refurbishment of Bulk and internal Water infrastructure in 1998
Ekulindeni: ALMT16/2012
15,22,21° Replacement of AC pipes at Carolina : ALMT 03/2012 A
15,22,21 Replacement of Bulk AC Rising Main Pipeline from Carolina B
Water Treatment Works to Reservoirs in Caropark :
ALMT13/2011Replacement of Bulk AC Rising Main Pipeline
from Carolina Water Treatment Works to Reservoirs in
Caropark : ALMT13/2011
15,22,21 Replacement of AC Pipes from Caropak Reservoirs to Silobela: | C TOTAL=
ALMT 03/2012 A+b& C 6618
8 Refurbishment of Smithfield Booster Pump :CALQ 3/2011 911
3 Provision of Raised Tanks in Ndonga 15
8 Completion of water to Oshoek, Mashonamini, Hartebeesskop | 120
& Smithfields
1,2,3 Fernie Package plant 5769
12 Refurbishment of Bulk and internal water supply at Ekulindeni 1998
15,22,21 Upgrading pumping capacity & retro fitting of Carolina water 6618
treatment works
6,9,21,23 Provision of boreholes in CALM farms 159
3,8,9,13,16,18 Internal Water Supply Infrastructure (boreholes) 6751
10,13,14,18,24,25 | Refurbishment of bulk and internal water supply infrastructure | 1081
in Eerstehoek water supply scheme : phase 5 ALMT 05/2013
4,5,6,7,9,11 Refurbishment of bulk and internal water supply infrastructure | 11113
in Mpuluzi water supply scheme: phase 5. ALMT 03/2013

e Restoring the dignity of our people by giving them decent structures to relieve themselves.

From 2011 to date we have been able to the following:

Ward NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER OF
HOUSEHOLDS
BENEFITTED
2 Provision of VIP toilets in WARD 2 [Fernie phase 2 & 3] 201
3 Completion of provision of VIPs toilet in Ward 3 201
11 Provision of VIPs in Glenmore and Redhill 283
6 Provision of VIPs in Dundonald and Slovo 120
Provision of VIP toilets at Hereford 115
886 Provision of VIP toilets in Aankomst, Smithfield, Oshoek, Teekloof, 269
Houtbos, Sthobela and Hartebeeskop
16 Provision of VIP toilets in Nhlazatshe 1 and surrounding areas [The 67

15




Brook, Milliken, and Phaphama] Phasel to 3
21 Provision of VIPs in ward in ward 21 [including Magudu areas] 201
18 Provision of VIP toilets in Tjakastad 134
19 Provision of VIPs in Ward 19 134
10 Provision of VIPs in Ward 10 201
13 Provision of VIPs in Ward 13 269
1 VIPs in Nordeen and Tinkulungwane 259
20 Provision of VIPs in Ward 20 160
24 Provision of VIPs in Ward 24 200
25 Provision of VIPs in Ward 25 125
7 Construction of Sewer Network at Goba 570
15&22 Construction of Sewer Network at Silobela Ext 2&3 90
15 Construction of Sewer Network at Silobela Ext 4 350
1 Provision of VIP toilet 50
2 Provision of VIP toilet 50
5 Provision of VIP toilet 100
8 Provision of VIP toilet 100
9 Provision of VIP toilet 23
10 Provision of VIP toilet 33
11 Provision of VIP toilet 200
13 Provision of VIP toilet 150
16 Provision of VIP toilet 50
18 Provision of VIP toilet 100
20 Provision of VIP toilet 33
21 Provision of VIP toilet 24
23 Provision of VIP toilet 23
24 Provision of VIP toilet 100
25 Provision of VIP toilet 34
22 Construction of Sewer reticulation in Silobela (GSDM) 60
6,9,21,23 | Provision of VIP toilet in Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality(GSDM) 154
|
22 Provision of 500 vip top structures in Silobela Ext 2 & 3. Additional 750
250 Vip top structure in Silobela Ext 2 & 3( phase 3)

22 Construction of Sewer reticulation in Silobela (GSDM) 190
6,9,21,23 | Provision of VIP toilet in Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality(GSDM) 132

® The improvement of our access roads remains a priority. We were able to pave and improve

the following roads:

WARD NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER OF
KILOMETERS (Km)

12 Design and construction of Paved Road at Ekulindeni 1,500

04 Design and construction of Paved Road at Mayflower 0,700
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14,16 & 25 | Construction of Nhlazatshe road and refurbishment of a bridge. | 1,195
22 Construction of roads in Silobela (GSDM) 0,800
12 Design and construction of Paved Road at Ekulindeni 1

17 & 23 Design and construction of Paved Road in Emanzana 13

4 Design and construction of Paved Road at Mayflower 0.7

o When engaging with our people in every corner of the municipality, they from time to time
demand community assets. From 2011 to date we were able to erect the following:

WARD NAME OF THE PROJECT NUMBER OF HOUSEHOLDS
BENEFITTED
10,13,14, part of | Construction of Elukwatini Landfill Site 14,799

16,18,20,24 & 25

10,13,14, part of | Refurbishment of Elukwatini stadium 14 799
16,18,20,24 & 25
15,21,22 Construction of Disaster management center 6618

This is how far we have gone implementing the manifesto of the ruling party and the demands our
people registered in our IDP. Let me now turn back to the business of the day and table how we will

spend the Rands and cents at our disposal this financial year.

Honourable Speaker, to ensure that all our citizens have access to basic services, to undermine

underdevelopment and alleviate poverty our budget has packaged the following social package:
e Free Basic Water — 6kl per month for every households
e Free Basic Electricity - 50kWh per month for registered indigents
e 50% Discount Sanitation Services for registered indigents
e 50% Discount on Refuse Removal Services for registered indigents

The provision of basic services like water, sanitation and electricity to our people remains a non-
negotiable and we shall fight for it till the end of our term. We will do this because we know very
well the pain of mother’s who have to walk kilometres with a bucket on their back get water or with
wood on their heads to make fire to be able to cook. African cause will only triumph, if we do not

relieve women from these clutches of colonialism and underdevelopment.

Honourable Speaker, | trust that we are all acutely aware that our country is experiencing slow

economic growth, with recent static figures telling us that our economy only grew by 1.3% in the first

17




quarter of 2015. This sluggish growth in the economy presents our fiscus with financial constraints
and leaves us with limited resources to implement our priorities as outlined in the NDP and the
MTSF. In order increase our own revenue and successfully implement the provision of free basic

services, council then proposed the following tariff increases:

e Electricity -12.2%

o Water -6%

e Refuse Removal 6%

e Sanitation 6%

e Property Rates 4%

All other tariffs 6%

These tariff increases are linked to the Consumer Price Index or what we would loosely refer to as

inflation, with the exception of electricity whose price is regulated by NERSA.

Amongst many other cruel legacies of apartheid, lies the deprivation of water. The apartheid regime
forceful removed our people from areas that were suitable for humans to live in and packaged them
like good in areas where it was difficult to make a living in, areas without water and dams nearby. As
if that was not enough, it then deliberately under developed these areas with its nonsensical policy

of separate development and the results of that we still live with today.

It is precisely this reason that the 2015/16 budget priorities water above all other needs of our
communities. The principle of this budget is not only consistent with the Premier Mabuza’s state of
the province address, but also consistent with African Union’s understanding, that access to clean
water is a necessary condition for Africa to develop. Our contribution as Chief Albert Luthuli
Municipality to this project of developing Africa and ensuring that Premier Mabuza’s bold state of

the province address does not only remain a good speech will be as follows:
Upgrading of Empuluzi WWTW for R2 000 000
Upgrading of Emanzana WWTWfor R2 000 000
Upgrading of Carolina WWTW for R6 000 000

Upgrading of Ekulindeni WWTW for R1 886 450
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Upgrading of Elukwatini WWTW for R3 000 000

Replacement of AC Pipelines on the Eerstehoek Water Scheme for R10 000 000

Upgrading pumping capacity and retrofitting of Carolina Water Scheme R14 000 000

Upgrading of Emanzana water scheme R4 000 000

Construction of Bulk Pipeline to and Storage at Mayflower Gate R 2000 000

Construction of Bulk Storage, Pipeline and Raised Tank for Nhlazatshe 2,4,5,6,7 for R5 000 000

Replacement of AC Pipes in Carolina for R10 000 000

Refurbishment of Eerstehoek and Empuluzi Water Treatment Plants for R15 000 000

Refurbishment and Electrification of Boreholes x 40: Syde 2, DeWet, Ndonga, Caithness, Ndonga,
Mafufumbe, Vilakazi Store, Magagula section, Ngwenya store, Robinsdale, Oshoek, Block 6,
Mafufumbe Mngomezulu, Mafufumbe Khanya School, Kalim, Aankomst, Ekuphumuleni, Beeskop,
Ngodini, Hereford, [Mabasal, SunCity, Faith Mission2, Mtshali store, Magic store, ka Mboyi,
Nhlaba, Los Mecherry, Edwaleni, Elukwatini South, Mission, Lochiel Ka Mngcuza, Lochiel next to
primary school, Mbhejeka 2, Avountuur [Mashonamini], Nkaba, Steynsdorp, Lelifontein, Steensdraai,

Moedig, Engelsedraai, Heuningklip, Schoeman, Sebentani for R10 000 000.

Despite the limited resources and the fact that water is our arch priority, we will in the upcoming
financial year build 440 Smartsan toilets, which will benefit wards 1,2,3,4,5,6,8,11 and 12 to the
value of R11 000 000. The multi year project of installing toilet top structures in Silobela will continue

and this year we have budgeted R9 000 000.

Honourable Speaker, when ESKOM was established as a state owned entity in 1923, its sole mandate
was to provide electricity for business and the minority. Its planning never envisaged a free and
democratic South Africa where majority of our citizens have access to electricity and today we all
bear the brunt of that through severe power shortages. So there is no way we can have a complete
budget that does not speak to the issue of electricity shortage. To try respond to that we have
budgeted R5 000000 to upgrade Carolina substation. We have also budgeted an additional R

26 734 000 to electrify houses indifferent areas of our municipality.

Honourable Speaker, a major challenge in our spending plans is the collection of revenue. The truth
is, we cannot spend if we do not collect! To improve our revenue collection, my office will embark on

a massive campaign under the theme “Sihlangabete. Kokhela tintsita mhlali!”. The aim of the
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campaign will be to encourage citizens to pay for services and create an enabling environment for

service delivery.

Ladies and gentlemen, thank you very much for your undivided attention. Let me conclude by
quoting a German philosopher, Karl Marx, when he says, “Men make their own history, but they do
not make it as they please; they do not make it under self-selected circumstances, but under

circumstances existing already, given and transmitted from the past.”

Lets us make history, no matter how improbable it may look and sound. No matter the financial
constraints we have now, poverty will one day be history in our Municipality. No matter the
challenges of capacity we have now, one day all our citizens shall have access to water, sanitation
and electricity. No matter the difficulties we have now, our municipality and Africa in general will

one day prosper.

| thank you!
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It is recommended by the Executive Mayor:

DRAFT RESOLUTION ON THE APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR CAPITAL AND OPERATING
EXPENDITURE FOR THE 2015/2016, 2016/2017 AND 2017/2018 FINANCIAL YEARS

RECOMMENDED TO RESOLVE

1. THAT the multi-year annual budget of capital and operating expenditure for 2015/2016 and the
indicated two outer years of 2016/2017 and 2017/2018 tabled for approval as set out by the
following tables:

1.1. Table Al : Budget summary

1.2. Table A2 : Budgeted financial performance

1.3. Table A3: Budgeted financial performance (municipal vote)

1.4. Table A4 : Budget financial performance by revenue source and expenditure type
1.5. Table A5 : Budgeted capital expenditure by vote

1.6. Table A6 : Budgeted financial position

1.7. Table A7 : Budgeted cash flows

1.8. Table A8 : Cash backed reserves / accumulate surplus reconciliation

1.9. Table A9 : Asset management

1.10 Table A10 : Basic Service Delivery Measurement

2. THAT in terms of Section 75A of the Local Government Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000,
interest be recovered on amounts outstanding for periods longer that thirty (30) days on all
debtor accounts at a rate equal to the prime rate from SARB plus 1% as per the Credit Control
and Debt collection policy from time to time.

3. THAT the proposed electricity budget with tariffs be implemented once approved by NERSA.

4. THAT the adjusted sundry tariffs, Value Added Tax inclusive, as reflected in the comments of
the various Heads of Departments under Schedule 3 be approved for implementation with
effect from 1 July 2015.

5. THAT the reviewed Budget related policies be approved

e Supply Chain management Policy

e Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy

e Overtime Policy
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e Subsistence and Travel Allowance Policy

¢ Rates Policy

THAT the measurable performance objectives for revenue from each source as per Table A4 be
approved for the 2015/2016 budget year.

THAT the tabled budget accordingly be submitted to the Mpumalanga Department of Finance
and National Treasury in the formats as prescribed.
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Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ON THE 2015/16 TO 2017/18 MEDIUM TERM REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
FRAMEWORK (MTREF) TABLE ANNUAL BUDGET

1. Report by the Chief Financial Officer

As outlined by President Zuma in the State of the Nation Address on the 12th of February, Cabinet
has agreed on nine strategic priorities to be pursued in the 2015/16 financial year, in partnership
with the private sector and all stakeholders. They include:

1) Resolving the energy challenge,

2) Revitalising agriculture,

3) Adding value to our mineral wealth,

4) Enhancing the Industrial Policy Action Plan,

)

)

)

)

5) Encouraging private investment,

6) Reducing workplace conflict,

7) Unlocking the potential of small enterprises,
8) Infrastructure investment, and
9) Support for implementation of the National Development Plan through in-depth, results-driven

processes, known as phakisa laboratories.

The Minister of Finance in the budget speech mentioned that projected economic growth for 2015 is
just 2 per cent, down from 2.5 per cent indicated in October last year. We expect growth to rise to 3
per cent by 2017. Consumer price inflation peaked at 6.6 per cent in June last year. It has
subsequently declined to just 4.4 per cent last month, and is expected to average 4.3 per cent in

2015, laying a foundation for economic growth.
Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality priorities:
o Municipal revenues and cash flows are expected to remain under pressure in
2015/16 and the municipality adopted a conservative approach when projecting

their expected revenues and cash receipts.

e The municipality will ensure that billing systems are accurate, send out accounts to

residents and follow up to collect revenues owed by the Credit Control Unit.

e The municipality will ensure that recoverable debtors are paid as soon as possible to

ensure that obligations that are due within 30 days are paid in time.
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e The municipality tariffs should be able to cover the cost to provide such service.
e Facilitates the registration of Indigents to fight poverty and unemployment

e Municipality will focus on Electricity losses such as theft of electricity and meter

tempering and inadequate monitoring of electricity usage.

On the 29 January 2015, NERSA approved and published guidelines on municipal electricity price
increase for the 2015/16 financial year. A guideline increase of 12.20 per cent has been approved

based on the following assumptions:

e Bulk purchases have increased by 14.24 per cent in line with Eskom’s electricity tariff

increase to municipalities;

e A consumer price index (CPl) of 6.3 per cent as indicated in the Medium Term

Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS) 2014;
e Salary and wage increases; and
e Repairs and maintenance, capital charges and other costs have increased by the CPI.

The Salary and Wage Collective Agreement for the period 01 July 2012 to 30 June 2015 has come to
an end. The South African Local Government Association issued a press release on 03 March 2015

indicating that it tabled the following offer for salaries and wages increase:
e 2015/16 Financial Year — 4.4 per cent (inflation linked)

e 2016/17 and 2017/18 Financial Years — inflation related increase plus additional

0.25 per cent

The National Treasury projects GDP growth of 2 per cent in 2015, rising to 3 per cent by 2017.
Average growth over the forecast period is 0.4 percentage points lower than at the time of the 2014
Medium Term Budget Policy Statement. Inadequate electricity supply, however, will impose a

serious constraint on output and exports over the short term.
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2. Part 1- Annual Budget

This annexure contains the A1-10 tables and draft resolutions to be approved by Council with
supporting schedules, inclusive of the following:

= Report of the Executive Mayor
= Schedule 1 : Draft resolution for the 2015/2016, 2016/2017 and 2017/2018 annual
budget
=  Executive Summary
= Annual Budget Tables
o Table Al : Budget summary
Table A2 : Budgeted financial performance by vote
Table A3 : Budgeted financial performance by municipal vote
Table A4 : Budget financial performance by revenue source and expenditure
type
Table A5 : Budgeted capital expenditure by vote
Table A6 : Budgeted financial position
Table A7 : Budgeted cash flows
Table A8 : Cash backed reserves / accumulate surplus reconciliation
Table A9 : Asset management
Table A10 : Basic service delivery measurement

O O O

O O O O O O

Executive Summary

Table Al provides a consolidated budget summary of the proposed annual budget. The
combined expenditure for the MTREF is as follows:

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Operating expenditure 382,938 400,693 418,750
Capital expenditure 109,886 119,129 119,989
Total 492,824 519,822 538,739

Table A2 provides details on the budgeted financial performance by vote, whilst Table A4
and supporting table SA1 and SA2 provides details on the budgeted financial performance by
revenue source and expenditure type.

Table A4 is graphically presented in:
= Chart 1 Revenue by major source

= Chart 2 Other revenue
= Chart 3 Operating expenditure by type

The tabled budget herewith presented provides for total operating revenue of R336,1-
million for 2015/2016 financial year, R354,6-million for the 2016/2017 financial year and
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R373,4-million for the 2017/2018 financial years. This reflects an increase of 12,2% in
operating revenue in 2015/16 financial year. The increases are informed by the inflation rate

in increase in equitable share allocation as per DoRA.

The DORA clearly states that any conditional allocation not spent at the end of a financial
year reverts back to the national revenue fund unless proof to the satisfaction of National
Treasury that unspent allocations is committed to identifiable projects. At this stage it is

envisaged that all conditional grants will be spend by 30 June 2015.

The key operating expenditure allocations in the proposed budget for 2015/2016 financial
year include:

=  R34,4M Council General

= R133,1M Technical Services

= R114,8M Budget & Treasury

=  R38M Public Safety

= R21,4 M Community Services

= R22,3M Corporate Services

= R9,4M Planning & Economic Development
= R9.4M Municipal Manager

The proposed capital expenditure for 2015/2016 amounts to R136,6-million, R152,7-million for the
2016/2017 financial year and an amount of R155,2 -million for the 2017/2018 financial year.

The key capital expenditure in the proposed capital budget for 2015/2016 financial year is:

» R70M Water services
> R5M Electricity services
> R35M Water Waste Management services

Table A6 and supporting table SA3 provides information on the projected budgeted financial
position and table A7 provides details on the projected cash flow.

3. Part 2 - Supporting Documents
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This annexure contains the supporting tables with explanatory notes, inclusive of the following:

= Qverview of the annual budget process.

= QOverview of the alighment of the annual budget with the integrated development
plan.

= Measurable performance objectives and indicators.

= QOverview of budget related policies.

= QOverview of budget assumptions.

=  Qverview of budget funding.

®  Funding requirements for capital expenditure.

= Expenditure on allocations and grant programmes.

=  Allocations or grants made by the municipality.

= Councillors and board member allowances and employee benefits.

=  Monthly targets for revenue, expenditure and cash flow.

=  Contracts having future budgetary implications.

= (Capital expenditure details.

= Legislatory compliance status.

Schedule 2 : Comparison on the imposing of assessment rates and setting of tariffs for
the 2015/2016 financial year.

Schedule 3 : Recommendation on the proposed sundry tariffs for the various services for
the 2015/2016 financial year.

Schedule 4 : Budget Related Policies

4. Part 3 — Draft Annual Budgets and SDBIP’s for internal departments

This annexure disclose the annual budgets and draft service delivery implementations plans for
internal departments with a high level executive summary as follows:

= Report by the Executive Manager on the Draft SDBIP which include the following
annexures:

o Supporting Table SA 25 — Monthly projections of revenue for each source and
expenditure type.
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o Supporting Table SA 27 — Monthly projection of operating revenue and expenditure
by vote.
o Supporting Table SA 29 — Monthly projections of capital expenditure by vote.

=  Executive Summaries for internal departments.

= Departmental annual operating budget.
= Departmental detailed capital expenditure.

PJ NHLABATHI
Chief Financial Officer
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Table A1 - Budget Summary

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A1 Budget Summary

2015/16 Medium Term Revenue &

Description 201112 21213 201314 Current Year 201415 ]
Expenditure Framework
R thousands Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year Pre-audit | Budget Year: Budget Year ; Budget Year
Outcome Outcome Outcome Budget Budget Forecast outcome 201516 +1 2016/17 ¢ +2 201THE
Financial Performance
Propenty raies Fak. il 31,158 28,134 33, 36,335 35,935 36,935 19,348 41,512 43,712
Service charges 25,550 73,443 0,707 40,334 40,776 40,276 40,276 43,289 45§70 48 090
Investment revenue 2,542 E 1,238 1,843 1,843 1,843 1,843 2,345 2475 2,606
Transfers recognised - operafional 250,014 268,343 307 471 196,712 159,504 159,504 199,504 277,965 240,505 253,253
Ofher owm revenus 29,980 30,540 24318 20,535 20,633 20,633 20,631 23,178 24457 75,748
Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers 330,183 351,242 392 565 285,474 289 590 289 580 299,500 135,128 354 615 373,409
and contributions)
Employes ciste B2 Baa 95 oa7 105,908 01,828 8 951 o8 951 ag.951 110,898 116,908 123159
Remunceaiion of councillors 1,402 2,603 13,350 5454 15,454 15,454 15,454 7,043 17,580 18,533
Depreciafion & asset impairment 93,439 94 509 63,238 03,210 103,210 103,210 103,210 56,975 70,658 74,403
Finance charges 255 878 762 - - - - @7 1,031 1,085
Materials and bulk purchasss 58,062 55,452 455970 53,45 53,575 53,575 53575 58,182 1,382 54,63
Transfers and granis - - - - - - - - - -
Other expenditure 127,762 05,935 111,722 111,722 11,722 38,854 132,645 135,485
Total Expenditure 355,990 379,928 382,951 382 951 382951 32,938 400,593 418,750
Surplusd(Deficit) 35,575 {83,455) (83,361) (83,351) {83,351) {45,811) (45,075) (45,341}
Tramsiers recognised - capital - - - - - - - - -
Confribusions recogmised - capital & convibutsd g - - - - - - - - - -
Surplusf(Deficit) after capital transfers & (52,481) (28,803) 35,575 {83,455) (83,381) (83,361) {83,351) {45,811) {45,079) (45,341)
contributions
Share of surplus/ (deficl) of associake - - - - - - - - - -
Surplusi(Deficit) for the year (52,451) (23,803) 35,575 {83,455) (83,361) (83,361) {83,351) {45,811) (45,079) (45,341}
Capital expenditure & funds sources
Capital expenditure 32,673 95,873 130,779 132,237 51,493 51,483 151,483 109,885 119,125 119,989
Transiees recognized - capial 69,016 96,878 130,779 132,237 51,493 51,493 51,493 109,885 119,128 119,989
Public confributions & donafons - - - - - - - - - -
Bomowing - - - - - - - - - -
iemally generaied funds 13,657 - - - - - - - - -
Total sources of capital funds 32,673 95,878 130,779 132,237 51,493 51,482 121,493 09,886 9,129 9,989
Financial position
Total cument assets 61,713 70,453 113,972 76,952 76,9552 76,955 51,688
Total non cument asscts T47 653 741,750 810,522 284,274 284,274 234,274 975,857
Toial current Eabilifes 536,583 85,589 164, 308 30,745 30,743 30,745 25,584
Total non curent BabiliSics 18,914 20,176 27,885 10,506 10,606 10,606 28,559
Community wealh/Equity 733,369 595,449 732,304 919,879 919,879 919,879 972,803
Cash flows
Net cash from {used) operating 63,781 85,687 135,024 105,970 150,158 150,158 150,158 112,447 121,830 122,833
Met cash from (used) invesing (76,421) (87 ,457) (117,227) (106,807} (151,493) {151,493) {151,493 (109,885) (119,129) {119,989)
Met cash from (used) fnancing 3,432 3] {357} - - - - - - -
Cashicash equivalents at the year end 233 1,135 18,635 5,304 17,258 7,255 7,258 4,017 6,718 9,562
Cash backingisurplus reconciliation
Cash and nvesiments awailable 16,609 5 22 085 20,845 15,843 15,843 15,343 7517 10,557
Applicaiion of cash and invesimenis 3,514 05 142,034 [8,354) 2,352 2,352 2,352 4237 3,380
Balance - surplus (shortfall) (21.903) (0,422) {119,548) 29,240 17,481 17,481 17,481 3,280 71.178
Asset management
Aszet regisier summary (WDV) 740,302 870,349 1,205,353 342,955 &9, 712 891,712 1,001,599 120,727 233,716
Depreciafion & asset impairment 93,439 94 509 63,238 103,210 103,210 103,210 66,975 70,658 74,403
Fenewal of Exising Assets - - - - - - - - - -
Repairs and Maintenance 23,823 24,089 11,688 3,355 13,470 13,470 13,400 3,400 4,120 4,869
Free services
Cost of Free Basic Services prowvided - - - 6,195 8,575 8,575 8,063 8,063 8,701 9.1
Rewenue cost of free services provided - - - 3,278 3,278 1278 3278 3,278 3475 3683
Households below minimum service level
Waier: 14 14 - 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
Sanitafion/sewerage; 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Energy: 10 10 10 23 23 23 23 23 23 23
Refuzs: 40 40 40 B8 3 » k3 38 3 »
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Table A2 — Budgeted financial performance by vote

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A2 Budgeted Financial Performance {revenue and expenditure by standard classification)

201516 Medium Term Revenue &

Standard Classification Description Ref: 201112 21213 21314 Current Year 2014113 i
Expenditure Framework
R thousand i Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year | Budget Year ; Budget Year : Budget Year
Outcome : Outcome : Outcome Budget Budget Forecast H5A6 ;1 2M6MT ¢ «2 H01THE
Revenue - Standard
Governance and administration 02823 330,170 344 584 246 369 249,34 249324 283,353 298,938 H4 TR
Execufive and counc - - - - - - - - -
Budget and reasury ofice 30062 17,742 3.3 245,880 248 365 248 585 252 518 258,057 HIEH
Cormporale services 2185 427 208 439 ] It 835 iy a7
Community and public safety 1.610 2057 3,192 1,433 1,396 1,396 2,981 3,143 332
Community and social services - - 128 % 191 19 210 2 24
Sport and recrealion - - - - - - - - -
Pulic sakly 1,810 2,057 30 1,358 1,405 1405 27 2923 3078
Housing - - - - - - - - -
Health - - - - - - - - -
Economic and environmental services - - 14,083 4 245 4384 434 2,300 2426 2353
Planning and development - - 14,083 140 219 29 244 54 .o
Fioad ransport - - - 4105 4105 4105 2,058 2172 2487
Environmental protecion - - - - - - - - -
Trading services 2,550 2443 30,107 40,33 40,433 40433 43,769 43,670 43090
Elecricity 15,931 7017 16,287 23408 23 489 23 489 24 298 %27 27 659
Waker T8 2,892 45905 6,225 6,245 6,245 6,621 6,585 7355
Wasle wakes management 4681 5258 5,008 5,931 5931 5931 8,524 6,083 1.247
Waste management 4150 4 M6 4 507 4770 47 47170 5,47 5,535 5,828
Other 4 - - - 4,070 3911 301 4 205 4 436 461
Total Revenue - Standard 2 330,183 361,670 392,363 296,474 239,350 299,590 336,128 354,613 33409
Expenditure - Standard
Governance and administration 115,43 214 402 234,596 202 881 197,173 197,173 150,84 190,798 200,311
Execufive and counc 114588 133,558 185,459 43 901 184 B39 4772 4179 48837
Budget and reasury ofice 42 487 55,22 9,914 137,78 139,857 139,857 114,816 21,13 127 55
Comporate services 18,384 25,8 19,221 24 19,008 19,088 2,83 348 M7
Community and public safety 20345 39,139 §36 46,526 42 416 42 416 1,490 M 322 37,201
Community and social services 4933 7163 62 1558 6,297 6,297 8,664 9,141 9,625
Sport and recrealion - 4 76l - 4 550 424 424 47T 5033 528
Public sakty 15612 7216 T M 3,855 3,885 38,05 40,148 42 776
Housing - - - - - - - - -
Healh - - - - - - - - -
Economic and environmental services 17,587 4,298 21,012 22,305 19,04 19,03 2252 2,764 2,024
Planning and development 7,084 8,28 8,405 9.2% 8,055 8,056 9,447 9,965 10,485
Road ransport 10,483 - 12607 13,009 10,578 10,576 13,079 13,75 1452
Environmental profecion - - - - - - - - -
Trading services 129,204 47 %08 98,707 99244 111,595 111,595 118933 125,474 13214
Elechicity .87 44 380 33,185 53,184 80,7% 60,7% 65,895 70,575 7445
Waker BT 42063 42 857 32843 35,788 36,78 36,99 19,003 4 070
Wiasie waler management 3,845 - 2655 5,037 6,044 6,044 7,043 T4 184
Wasie management 31,585 4425 - 8,140 755 7,985 8,025 8,457 8915
Other 4 Wi 4,799 7,503 9,002 12,136 12,136 9,138 6.3 3,450
Total Expenditure - Standard ] 302644 391,145 382,656 379 928 3299 35295 352938 400,693 418,750
Surplus/{Deficit) for the year (52.461) (29,375) 9,909 (83,455) (83,361) (&3,361) (46,811) (46,079) (45,341
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Table A2A — Detail budgeted financial performance by vote
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A2 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by standard classification)

o - 201516 Medium Term Revenue &
Standard Classification Description Ref 2011512 201213 2013514 Current Year 2014515 -
Expenditure Framework
B theusand . Audited Addited Audited Original Adjusted Full Wear | Budget Year | Budget ¥ear | Budget Year
Cutcome Cutcome Cutcome Budget Budget Forecast 2015416 +1 201617 +2 2017418
Revenue - Standard
Municipal governance and administration 302,833 30,170 344,584 PR 49,334 249,324 283,353 268,938 394,780
ExecuSive and councs = = = = = = = = =
Mayor and Council
Municipal Mansger
Budgst and ressury offcs SEE AT 2435958 245 880 P E 248,565 262,518 88,057 313,850
Corporase serwcss aFF 1,258 488 FEE 758 &35 a81 Errd
Human Resources
Information Technology
Property Services 4zZ7 785 [T qags F Tse T Tse [T 835 ¥ 81 ¥ =27
Other Admin 2,195 a7z
Community and public safety A0 305 399% iAEE TG i 5EE X 3995 3313
Community and Social Services - - 128 6 191 191 210 22 234
Libraries snd Archives
Museums & Art Galleries etc
Comumunity halls and Facilities
Cemeteries & Crematorivms Tz o5 ¥ 191 & 191 7 210 7 zz2 & 234
Child Care
Aged Care
Other Community
Other Social
Sport and recresson
Publc safety 810 3,064 1358 405 EXeE] 2993 3,078
Police 1,810 733 [ 1,118 7 ' 1 r 2,457 7 2,592 T 2,729
Fire r 35 ¥ il r 14 7 14 T 15
Civil Defence o - o - -
Street Lighting - = r = =
Other - 2,305 [ 205 7 273 ¥ 273 I” 300 7 347 T 33
Houseng
Heaim = = = - = - = = =
Clinies
Ambuiance
Other
Econemic and environmental services = = 14,083 4,245 4,334 4,334 2300 2,436
Planning and dewslopment - = 14,083 40 3 219 241 254
Economic DevelopmentSlanning 14,083 [ 140 7 248 ¥ 219 7 2414 7 254
Town Planning/Building
Licensing & Regulation
Road sransport = - 4905 4705 4905 2058 AT
Rosas - = r 4,408 7 = 4,105 [ 2,059 © 21472 T
Public Buses
Parking Garages
Vehicle Licensing and Testing
Other
Envimonmnental Daots:CSon - - - - - - - - =
Pollution Control
Biodiversity & Lendscape
Other
Trading services 25,550 30,707 40,334 40,435 40,435 43, 289 48, 090
Ebecuricity 15,957 16, EHT 3,406 23,489 24,598 7659
Electricity Distribution 15,831 s 18,287 [~ 23,408 ¥ - z3,488 |7 2q 888 © - 27,658
Electricity Generstion
Water T89S 4,905 6,225 6,246 7,355
VWater Distribution 789 4,505 6,225 5,245 7.355
VWater Storege
Waste water management 5008 5 EFT 5 EFT TR
Sewerage 5,008 5,931 5,931 7,247
Storm Water Mansgement
Public Toilets
Waste management ERE AEGT AT ESr] AT 5547 5 535 X
Solid Waste 4,150 - 4,507 4,770 4. 770 4,770 5,247 5,535 5,828
Other = = = 4,070 3971 3,811 4,205 4,436 467
A Tramsport
Abaticirs:
Tourisnm
Forestry
Marksts 4,070 3,911 3,811 4,205 4,436
Total Rewvenue - Standard = 350,783 EEE AT FEG SEG E5E 550 356,138 FE4ETE
Expenditure - Standard
Municipal governance and administration Ve, A58 97,773 160,851
ExecuSive and councs 114,588 38 818 43,772
Msyor and Council 108,843 30,388 34,414
Municipal Manager 5,745 3,431 9,358
Budgst and ressury offics 43 A48T 138,857 114,818
Corporate serwices 18,384 19,088 33,283
Human Rescurces
Information Technology - 3,978 a,115 4,571
Property Services 2,078 3,850
Other Admin 18,384 158,223 13,042 14,259
Community and public safety 30,545 EiE A3 ATE 54,450
Community and Social Services 4,933 62 6,297 8,664 9,625
Libraries and Archives 1,270 1,825 2,027
Musewms & Art Galleries etc - - — - —
Community halls and Facilities - -
Cemeteries & Cremstoriums 1 1,3 1,399 2,428
Child Care - - -
Aged Care - - -
Other Community 4,333 3,828 4,412
Other Social 4,933 = = =
Sport and recresson = 4,560 4,259 4,770 5,288
Public safsty 15,612 T4 34,407 31,865 38,056 43,376
Police 15, T4 28,287 27,588 33,403 37,108
Fire 6,120 4,275 4,853 5,169
Ciwil Defence
Street Lighting
Other
Houseng
Heaim = = = - = - = = =
Clnics
Ambuiance
Other
Econemic and environmental services i7.5ET 298 1012 23,505 79,031 19,037 3556 23,764 25,024
Planning and dewslopment 7,094 8,405 9,356 5,056 8,447 10,495
Economic DevelopmentPisnning 7,054 8,405 238 8,058 9,447 10,495
Town Planming Building
Licensing & Regulation
Road ranspont 10,493 = 13,607 13,078 10,976 10,976 13,079 3,788 74,528
Rosds 10,453 12,807 13,078 10,576 10,576 13,079 13,798 14,528
Public Buses
Parking Garages
Vehicle Licensing and Testing
Other
Envimonmnental Daots:CSon - - - - - - - - =
Pollution Control
Biodiversity & Landscape
Other
Trading services 129, 204 o8, TOT 99, 214 111,595 118,933 125, 474 132 124
Ebecuricity 50, 857 53,785 53,794 [T &6, 895 T0.575 4315
Electricity Distribution 58,827 53,185 53,154 &0, TS5 .895 70,575 74,315
Electricity Generstion
Water 33,547 42 857 32 843 36,789 36,969 39,003 41,070
VWater Distribution 33,547 42,857 32,843 36,780 35,868 39,003 41,070
VWarter Storage
Waste watsr management 58S p AL 5T G Y BEE FAE
Sewerage 3,845 2,655 5,037 5,044 T, 043 7,431
Storm Water Mansgement
Pubtic Toilets
Wasie management 31585 = Ry FGES FHES - - EAET T
Solid Waste 31,985 = &, 1a0 7,955 7,955 8,025 8,457 8,915
Other 38,871 7,505 9,002 2,136 12,136 ERE &334 3,490
Air Transport
Abasicirs
Tourisnm
Forestry
Marksts 39,871 7,505 2,002 9,138 334 3,450
Total Expenditure - Standard 3 FEF E4d FEI 656 78 878 FHI 558 T O Y 498 750
Surplus/{Deficit) for the year (52,461} 9,909 (53,455) (53,361) (46,811} (46,079} (45,341}
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TabA3 - Budgeted financial performance by municipal vote

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A3 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by municipal vote)

21316 Medium Term Revenue &

Vote Description Ref: 2011M2 21213 2013114 Gurrent Year 201413 i
Expenditure Framework

Audited Audited Audited Original § Adjusted | Full Year |Budget Year : Budget Year | Budget Year
Outcome : Outcome : Outcome Budget Budget Forecast 200546+ 20167 ¢ +2 H01THE

R thousand

Revenue by Vote

Municipal Manager ]| - - - - - - - -

Budget & Treasury 184,58 250,149 Wy 245,830 M3 585 M3 585 282 518 2057 11
Corporaie Services M2 an 1,258 438 759 759 335 2 7
Communily Services 4732 4318 4507 4 885 4 55 4 55 5457 5,757 8,062
Pubdic Sakdy 2047 2304 36 1,359 1,405 1,405 211 55 3078
Technical Serices 126,088 103,078 2,200 43740 43 831 43 831 44108 45742 4810
Vole 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Development 11,717 2 14,083 140 219 219 4 ) .o
Vole & - Execulive Mayor & Council Genersl - 45 - - - - - - -

Vole 9. [NAME OF VOTE 9] - - - - - - - - -
Ve 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 4(] - - - i, N } B} B} a
Ve 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11] - - - i, N } B} B} a
Ve 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 42 - - - - - - - - -
oz 13 - [NAME OF VOTE 1] - - - - - - - - -
Voie 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 4] - - - i, N } B} B} a
otz 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 43] - - - i, B} a
Total Revenue by Vol R TR T AT | TR e TR T e

Expenditure by Vote to be appropriated
Municipal Manager 5,745 85 79435 974 2,431 2,431 9358 9873 10,35
Budget & Treasury 83,445 74412 54,814 137,758 142,578 142,578 114316 121,13 127,351
Corporale Services 19,178 1,357 18,23 1,2 19,088 19,088 nx 7488 W1
Community Services 13,685 25,008 82 20,678 18,110 18,110 2 480 22540 23,840
Public Sakty 18,511 23,563 774 35,53 32103 32103 38,055 4,148 42 778
Technical Sefices 13,743 107,048 3,035 11273% 123,188 123,188 133,125 140,448 147,850
Voie 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Development 9583 10,353 - 9% 8,055 8,055 9447 9% 10,495
Voie § - Execufive Mayor & Councl Genera 122,803 18,075 ] 3,08 3,383 3,383 W4 33,000 3,568

Ve 9 [NAME OF VOTE 9] - - - i, N } B} B} }
Ve 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 4(] - - - - - - - - -
Ve 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11] - - - i, N } B} B} a
Ve 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 12 - - - i, N } B} B} a
Voie 13 - [NAME OF VOTE 43 - - - - - - - - -
Ve 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 44] - - - i, N } B} B} a
Voie 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 13] - - - i, N } B} a
Tatal Expenditure by Vote P 7 T R T T 7/ 1 7 T E R T ]
Surplus/(Defici) for the year 71 (BE1) (A03) 2986 | (3454 (B336N)) (B3N] (4681 (e07) {5340
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Table A4 - Budgeted financial performance by revenue source &

expenditure type

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A4 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure)
- 2015716 Medium Term Revenue &
Description Ref: 2011/2 123 H134 Current Year 2014113 .
Expenditure Framework
R thousand i Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year Pre-audit | Budget Year ; Budget Year | Budget Year
Qutcome | Outcome Outcome Budget Budget Forecast outcome 21316 | A6AT ¢ #2 HATHE

Revenue By Source
Propery raies 2 21,998 M, 158 214 1590 36,935 36935 36,935 10348 4502 43712
Property rales - penalies & colleciion changes
Service changes - eleciicily revenus 2 15,931 1700 16,287 BAR 2333 23330 23330 24858 .57 7558
Service charges - waler revenus 2 788 2802 4 905 6,25 §,245 6,246 6,245 g,621 6,985 7,355
‘Service charges - sanifgion revenue 2 458 5,250 5,008 5,93 5,931 5,931 5,931 524 6,883 7.247
Service changes - refise revenue 2 415 4,28 4507 4770 4770 4770 477 5,247 5535 5,828
Service charges - ofier
Rental of facdifes and equipment 44 a7 785 429 7548 754 7548 835 &1 a7
Interest eamed - exiemal investments 2542 1,758 1,238 1,843 1,643 1,843 1,843 2,346 2475 2506
Inferect eamed - cutsianding deblors 16,043 16,050 18,25 17,690 17,690 17,690 17,690 18,751 19,782 2084
Cividends received T - - - - -
Fines 857 184 455 25 73 273 73 30 H7 k)
Licences and permits 93 1,83 2307 - - - - -
Agency senvices 1,119 1,119 1,118 1,119 2457 2,582 214
Transkers recognised - operafional 250,014 260,43 37,11 199,712 199,904 199,904 199,904 227 %58 240,506 253,253
Other revenue 2 11,687 11,990 1,806 1,083 752 ez 752 ) &80 9zi
Gaing on dizposal of PPE 669

Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers 330,183 361,242 392,365 296,474 23590 23,390 29,590 336128 3613 3408

and contributions)

Expenditure By Type
Emphoyes relaied cosis 2 82044 95,987 105,908 101,828 98 951 98,951 98 951 110,898 115,508 123,19
Remuneralion of councillors 11,402 12,603 13,350 15,484 15,484 15,434 15,484 17,043 17,580 18,933
Debt impairment 3 3,05 M2 29,682 13,5941 28208 2208 28,208 30,070 T 33405
Depreciafion & asset impairment 2 93488 %4308 63238 103,210 103,210 103,210 103,210 66,975 70,658 74,403
Finance charges 25 478 782 s 1,01 1,085
Bulk: purchases 2 M 3,383 8 40,105 40,105 40,105 40,105 44 782 47 245 45,748
Other maierias & 388 24058 11,588 13,355 13,470 13,470 13,470 13,400 14137 14,885
Coniracied services 30,274 7,54 40,450 4,05 27,510 7,510 27,510 30470 32188 31830
Transkers and granis - - - - - - - - - -
Other expendilire 43 76,291 10,126 57,630 68,200 55,003 5,003 56,003 62,324 68,775 69,240
Loss on disposal of PPE

Total Expenditure 382 644 391 045 356,990 379.028 382 951 382951 382 951 382038 400.693 HE.750

Surplusi(Deficit) (32,461) (29,803) 35,973 (83,435) (83,361) (83,361) (83,361) (46,811) (46,079) (43,341)
Transkes recognised - capital
Coniribulions recognised - capial 6 - - - - - - - - - -
Conributed assels

Surplus/{Deficit) after capital transfers & (32,461) (29,803) 35,573 (83,435) (83,361) (83,361) (83,361) (46,811) (46,079) (45,341)

contributions
Taxaion

Surplusi{Deficit) after taxation (32,461) (29,803) 35,973 (83,435) (83,361) (83,361) (83,361) (46,811) (46,079) (43,341)
Amributable fo minorifes

Surplus/(Deficit) attributable to municipality (52,461) (29,803) 35,575 (83,435) (83,361) (83,361) (83,361) (46,811) (46,079) (45,341)
Share of surplus/ (deficil) of associale 7

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (32,461) (29,803) 35,973 (83,435) (83,361) (83,361) (83,361) (46,811) (46,079) (45,341)
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Graphical of Budgeted Income

Other revenue Property rates Electricity revenue
0% 12% 7%

/Water revenue

2%
Sanitation revenue
2%

Refuse revenue
1%

Interest earned -

external investments
1%

Interest earned -

outstanding debtors

6%

Transfers recognised -
operational
68%

Agency services - Fines
1% 0%

Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality is rural in nature it provides all the service in Carolina, Silobela and
Badplaas Town. In all the other areas electricity us supplied by ESKOM. Major source of revenue is
grant income. The grants contributes 68% of the total projected income.
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Graphical of Budgeted Expenditure

Other expenditure
18%

Contracted services
8%
Other materials
4%

Bulk purchases

12%
rindance Lnarges

0%

Employee related
costs
29%

Remuneration of
councillors
4%

Depreciation & asset Debt impairment

impairment

8%

The employee related costs represent 29% of the total operating expenditure excluding
remuneration of Councilors. A provision of R66M for depreciation is made in compliance with GRAP.
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Budgeted capital expenditure by vote

Electricity
4%

Waste water
management
32%

Water

The main focus for Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality on capital investment is access to basic water.

Water contributes 64% of the total capital budget.
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Table A5 - Budgeted capital expenditure by vote

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A5 Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, standard classification and funding

Vote Description

R thousand

Ref

2011012

20213

214

Current Year 201413

201516 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Audited
Qutcome

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Qutcome

Original
Budget

Adjusted
Budget

Full Year
Forecast

Pre-audit
outcome

Budget Year
2013016

Budget Year
+1 21617

Budget Year
+2 21718

Capital expenditure - Vote

Multi-year expenditure to be appropriated
Municipal Manager
Budget & Treasury
Comporate Services
Communily Services
Public Saiety
Technical Serices
‘oie 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Dewvelopment
Wi § - Execusive Mayor & Councll Generdl
Veoie @ - [MAME OF VOTE 9
Voie 10 - [NAME CF VOTE 10]
Voie 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11]
Voie 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Vote 13 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Voie 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Voie 15 - [NAME CF VOTE 15]

Capital multi-year expenditure sub-total

E- RN

Single-year expenditure to be appropriated
Municipal Manager
Budget & Treasury
Comporate Services
Communily Services
Public Safety
Technical Serices
iote 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Develcoment
Vote & - Execulive Mayor & Councd Generd
Voie 9 - [MAME OF VOTE 9
Yotz 10 - [NAME CF VOTE 10]
Veie 11 - [NAME CF VOTE 11]
Voie 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Voie 13 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Wiz 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Vote 15 - [NAME CF VOTE 15]

Capital single-year expenditure sub-total

o

119,129

Total Capital Expenditure - Vote

102,737

Capital Expenditure - Standard
Governance and edministration
Execufive and counc
Budget and reasury ofice
Comorale services
Community and public safety
Community and social services
Sport and recreafion
Public sakty
Housing
Health
Economic and environmental services
Planning and development
Road fransport
Environmental prodecion
Trading services
Eleciicity
Water
Waste waisr management
Waste management
Other

6,235
5235

3150

1510

50,442

26,118

18,337
18,33

14,500
14,500

99,400
15,400
74,000
10,000

9,772

5,450
3,322

21,258

21,258

120,464
11,000
85,454
14,000

9,772
5,450
3322

21,256
21,258
120,464
11,000

a5 454
14,000

9,772
5,450
3,322

21,28
21,258
120,464
11,000

95 484
14,000

109,886
5,000
70,000
34,885

119,989
7,000
73,000
30,969

Total Capital Expenditure - Standard

L

130,779

132,237

151,493

131,493

151,493

109,586

119,989

Funded by:

Nafonal Govemment

Prowvincial Govemment

District Municipality

Oher Fransiers and granis
Transfers recognised - capital
Public contributions & donations
Borrowing
Internally generated funds

[T I Y

5,878

130,779

132,237

143,053

8,440

143,053

2,440

143,053

8,440

108,885

119,989

69,016

13,657

96,678

130,779

132,237

151,493

131,493

151,493

109,586

119,129

119,989

Total Capital Funding

82,673

96,878

130,779

132,237

151,493

151,493

151,493

109,886

119,129

119,969
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Table A6 - Budgeted Financial Position

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table AG Budgeted Financial Position

Description Ref: 2011/12 13 201314 Current Year 2014113

201516 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

R thousand Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year | Pre-audit | Budget Year ; Budget Year ; Budget Year
OQutcome : Outcome : Outcome Budget Budget Forecast outcome 1316 ¢+ 200617 ¢ +2 21THB
ASSETS
Current a3sets
Cash 33 1,195 18534 18,302 7,29 17,248 7,28 4047 6,718 9,52
Call investment deposils i 10,225 1,18 3181 2544 2544 2544 2544 3,500 3850 4235
Conzumer deblors i 18,785 4101 88 508 57143 5113 57143 57,113 51,401 4,12 %418
(Cher deblors 30,208 42354
Current porfon of long-ierm receivables M
Inveniory 2 13 1,715 2,568
Total current assets 61,713 70,463 113912 7958 76,955 76,935 76,933 58,918 1,688 70,235
Naon current assets
Long-ferm receivables
Invesiments 4053 252 m
Invesiment propery 18,45 18,345 19,143 20,180 20,180 20,180 20,180 20,180 20,180 20,180
Invesiment in Associsle
Property, plant and equipment 3 T2 45T TH M5 788,371 822176 dod, 085 854,085 854,085 907,007 955477 ¢ 1,001,083
Agriculura
Bickogica
Iniangible
Ofher non-current assels 2,797 278 273
Total non current a33ets T47 653 41,730 §10.522 §42 953 484 274 384,274 884,274 927,186 975,657 ¢ 1,021,243
TOTAL ASSETS 09,367 12,213 924485 920,914 961,230 961,230 961,230 986,104 § 1,027,343 :  1.091417
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Bank overdral
Bomowing i - - kT - - - - - - -
Conzumer deposiis
Trade and ofer payables 4 56,585 857 19874 30745 30,745 10,745 30745 32,480 25,584 10,354
Provizions - 7,062 9,035
Total current liabilities 56,585 95,589 164,306 0,745 30,745 30,745 30,745 32,480 25,904 10,394
Nan current liabilities
Bomowing 825 Lo 24 - - - - - - -
Provisions 18,288 15,792 27 5% 10,608 10,606 10,605 10,608 1 8% 28,559 1478
Total non current liabilities 15,914 2,176 27,885 10,606 10,606 10,606 10,606 21,656 28,559 2476
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,49 115,764 192191 4,31 4,35 41,31 4,31 60,136 4,542 1810
NET ASSETS 5 133,869 696,449 132,304 879,563 919,879 919,879 $19.879 925,968 972803 ¢ 1,091,607
COMMUNITY WEALTHEQUITY
Accumulaied Surplus/{Deficil) T8 822 672 402 708,257 453 382 893,598 883 658 843 658 901,522 Q4875 ¢ 1,027 561
Feserves 4 24047 M7 047 2,18 181 2,181 2,18 24047 24047 4047
Mimorifes’ inferecis
TOTAL COMMUNITY WEALTH/EQUITY 3 133,869 636,449 132,304 79,563 919,679 99,679 19,679 923,965 972803 ¢ 1,091,607
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Table A7 - Budgeted cash flow

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A7 Budgeted Cash Flows

201516 Medium Term Revenue &

Description Ref: 2H1/M2 1213 201314 Current Year 2014/13 i
Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year : Pre-audit |Budget Year ; Budget Year ; Budget Year
Qutcome : Outcome : Outcome Budget Budget Forecast outcome V6 i+ 200647 ;2 H01THE
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Property rales, penalies & collecfion changes 26,231 955 5330 85,047 43643 43543 43543 25,578 2,583 2843
Service changes 28138 2 585 1,258
Other revenue 5,343 447 4870 487
Govemment - cperaiing 238,412 776, 43 ,3% 158,712 198,742 198,742 198,712 27958 40,505 253,251
Govemment - capia 111,382 02,737 151,483 151,483 151,483 108,836 119,129 119,929
Inferest 18,684 787 19,495 3228 1,843 1843 1843 2,345 2475 2 605
Dividends - - -
Payments
Suppliers and employess (236, 885) (242.551) (227,53) (258,839) (250,687) (250,687);  (250,687) [284.917) (300,587 (316,518)
Finance charges 1256) (878) (430) - - {877 {1,031) (1,085)
Tranckes and Granis 18,575 {5,913 (346) (845) (845) - - -
MET CASH FROM/{USED) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 63,781 85,697 135,04 105,970 150,158 150,158 150,158 112447 14,830 122,833
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Procesds on disposal of PPE (88, 355) (100,279) (115,705) - - -
Decrease (crease) in non-cument debiors - - -
Decrease (ncrease) oher non-cument receivables 176 - - -
Decrease (InCrease) in non-cument investmenis 11,762 128247 (1,522) - - -
Payments
Capital aszeis - {105,807 (151,483) (151,493);  (151,443) {108,838) (119,129 (119,929)
MET CASH FROM/{USED) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (76.421) (87 432) (117,227 (106,807) (131,493) (151.493);  (151,493) (109, 836) (119,129} (119.939)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Short ferm loans - - -
Borowing bong ferm/refinancing - - -
Increase (decrease) in consumer deposits 2,588 88 - - -
Payments
Repayment of bomowing 3 (Z20) (357) - - -
MET CASH FROM/{USED) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1432 619 (347) - - - - - - -
MET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD (7.208) (1,136) 7440 (B37) (1,33%) (1,339) (1,339) 2560 211 2544
Cashicash equivalents 3 e year begin: 2 9,539 23 1,19 19,14 18,634 18,634 18,634 1457 47 6,718
Cashicash equivalents & e year end: 2 2.3 1,195 18,633 18,304 1.1 11,149 11,149 47 6,718 9,362
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Table A8 - Cash back reserves / accumulated surplus reconciliation
MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A8 Cash backed reserves/accumulated surplus reconciliation

201316 Medium Term Revenue &

Description Ref: 2011H2 | A3 | 234 Current Year 201413 .
Expenditure Framewark
R thousand Audited : Audited : Audited | Original | Adjusted : Full Year | Pre-audit |Budget Year: Budget Year | Budget Year
Qutcome : Outcome | Outcome | Budget Budget ; Forecast | outcome | 2M3M6 ; +1 201647 | +2H17THE
Cash and investments available
(-ash/cash equivalents 3 fe year end kil 1,185 18635 18,34 1728 1728 1728 407 6718 8542
Cher cument invesimenis » 90 days 10,25 1,1% 318 1542 2544 2544 ) 3500 3850 4735
Non cument asests - vesiments 4053 52 a1 - - - - - - -
Gash and inveatments available: 16,609 2546 22,186 2,346 19,543 19,543 19,843 157 10,567 13,79
Application of cash and investments
Uinzpent condiiondl tranchers 4119 1,356 478 - - - - - - -
Linspent bomowing - - - - - - - - -
Slahutory requirements 2
(er wiorking capiial requirements 3 #35 61,862 101,242 (8,354 2352 2352 2352 4247 3390 (20 616)
(fer provisions
Long ferm investments commisied 4 - - - - - - - - - -
Resenves i be backed by cash/vestmenis £ 5
Total Application of cash and investments; 0,314 63,068 142,034 (8.394) 2302 2302 2,382 425 3390 (20,616)
Surplus(shortfall) (21903 (0422);  (119,045) A4 1749 1749 1744 3280 1178 M43
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Table A9 - Asset management
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A9 Asset Management

2013/16 Medium Term Revenue &

Description Ref 2011112 201213 201314 Current Year 201413 .
Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year Budget Year : Budget Year ; Budget Year
Outcome Outcome Outcome Budget Budget Forecast 201516 +1 2HE6AT +2 HHTHE
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Total Mew Assets 82,673 96,373 130,779 132,237 151,493 151,493 109,386 119,129 119,989
Infrastructure - Road transport - 23,096 33,150 14,500 21,258 21,258 - - -
Infrastructure - Electricity 4,433 27,619 11,068 15,400 11,000 11,000 5,000 6,000 7,000
Infrastructure - Water 22,040 24,330 80,442 74,000 95,484 95,484 70,000 56,000 73,000
Infrastructure - Sanitation 3,458 9,598 - 10,000 14,000 14,000 34,835 47 128 39,938
Infrastructure - Other 47 203 - 2,118 - - - - - -
Infrastuciure 7184 90,644 130,779 113,900 141,721 141,721 109,826 119,129 119,929
Community - 6,235 - 18,337 8772 8772 - - -
Heritage asscis - - - - - - - - -
Investment properiies - - - - - - - - -
Cfer asssis & 5488 - - - - - - - -
Agriculursl Azsets - - - - - - - - -
Biclogical asssis - - - - - - - - -
Infangibles - - - - - - - - -
Total Renewal of Existing Assets 2 - - - - - - - - -
Infrastructure - Road fransport - - - - - - - - -
Infrastructure - Electricity - - - - - - - - -
Infrastructurs - Water - - - - - - - - -
Infrastructure - Sanitation - - - - - - - - -
Infrastructurs - Other - - - - - - - - -
Infrastructure - - - - - - - - -
Community - - - - - - - - -
Heritage asscis - - - - - - - - -
Investment properiies - - - - - - - - -
Oher asssis L1 - - - - - - - - -
Agriculursl Azsets - - - - - - - - -
Biclogical asssis - - - - - - - - -
Infangibles - - - - - - - - -
Total Capital Expenditure 4
Infrastructure - Road transport - 29,096 33,150 14,500 21,258 21,258 - - -
Infrastructure - Electricity 4,433 27,619 L0568 15,400 11,000 11,000 5,000 \ 7,000
Infrastructure - Water 22,040 24 330 50,442 74,000 a5,484 o5, 484 70,000 000 73,000
Infrastructure - Sanitation 3458 9,558 - 10,000 14,000 14,000 34, 835 47 123 39,989
Infrastructure - Other 47 203 - 2,118 - - - - - -
Infrasiuciure 77,184 90,644 130,770 113,900 141,721 144,721 109,836 119,129 119,989
Community - 6,235 - 18,33 8,772 9772 - - -
Heritage assets - - - - - - - - -
Investment properiies - - - - - - - - -
Oher assstis 5,488 - - - - - - - -
Agriculursl Azsets - - - - - - - - -
Biclogical asseis - - - - - - - - -
Intangibles - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE - Asset class 2 82,673 96,873 130,779 132,237 151,493 151,493 109,386 119,129 119,589
ASSET REGISTER SUMMARY - PPE (WDV) 5
Infrastructure - Road transport 302,951 272 724 231,403 236,724 243,482 243,482 243,482 243,482 243,482
Infrastructure - Electricity 24,369 23,580 35,081 39,080 34,680 34,680 39,680 45,680 45,680
Infrastructure - Water 232 839 224 301 285,400 260,613 31,57 31,57 381,577 447 577 520,577
Infrastructure - Sanitation 42, 550 41,282 51,912 55,912 55,912 90,799 137,927 177,916
Infrastructure - Other 119,698 234,448 225,883 225,883 225,883 225,883 225,883
Infrastructure 722487 728228 593,166 822,776 871,533 871,533 Q81,479 1,100,548 1,213,537
Community
Hertage assels
Invesiment properies 18,345 18,345 19,143 20,180 20,180 20,180 20,180 20,180 20,180
Crer azesis 123,777 584,045
Agmculural Assstz - - - - - - - - -
Biclogical asssis - - - - - - - - -
Iniangibles - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL ASSET REGISTER SUMMARY - PPE (WD% 5 T40,802 870,349 1,206,353 842,955 391,712 391,712 1,001,599 1,120,727 1,233,716
EXPENDITURE OTHER. ITEMS
Depreciation & asset impairment 93,439 94,509 63,238 103,210 103,210 103,210 66,975 70,628 74,403
Repairs and Maintenance by Asset Class 3 23,823 24 058 1,688 3,355 13,470 13,470 13,400 14,120 14,868
Infrastructure - Road transport 2,254 2418 3,842 4713 4713 4713 5158 5,443 5731
Infrastructure - Electricity 15,007 1,873 A73 3,080 4,200 4,200 3,450 3,840 3,833
Infrastructure - Water 2,388 6,900 5303 4,730 3,530 3,530 3,330 3,513 3,600
Infrastructure - Sanitation 3,520 - 170 300 300 300 500 528 555
Infrastructurs - Other - g - 120 15 15 16 - -
Infrastuciure 23,169 12,103 11,289 12,443 12,758 12,758 12,455 13,123 13,819
Community - - - - - - - - -
Heritage asscis - - - - - - - - -
Investment properiies - - - - - - - - -
Other asceis 6,7 a5 1,965 ko] a12 Ti2 712 245 a7 1,050
TOTAL EXPENDITURE OTHER. ITEMS 17,312 118,608 T4 3926 116,565 116,680 116,680 80,375 34778 89,272
Renewsl of Existing Assets as % of total capex 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Renewsl of Existing Assets as % of deprecn™ 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
R&MW a5 & % of PPE 3.3% 3.3% 1.5% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Renewzl and R&M a5 & % of PPE 3.0% 3.0% 1.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Table A10 Basic service delivery measurement

2015116 Medium Term Revenue &

201112 201213 201314 Current Year 2014/15 i
e Expenditure Framework
Description — -
Outcome Outcome Outcome Original Adjusted Full Year Budget Year : Budget Year ;: Budget Year
Budget Budget Forecast 201516 +1 201617 | +2 2178
Household service targets
MWiater:
Piped walker inside dweling 0,605 10,605 10,605 10,805 10,805 10,805 10,805 10,805 10,805
Piped waler mside yard {but not in dweling) 19,772 19,772 19,772 72 705 22 705 2 705 72 705 22 705 2705
Using public iap (at bleast min.service level)
Cher water supply (a3t least min.service level) 2,218 2218 2,218
Minimum Senvice Level and Above sub-fotal 32,585 32,585 32,585 33,510 33,510 33,510 33,510 33,510
Uszing public tap (= min.zervice lewvel) 4 821 4 821 4 821 4821 4,821 4,821 4,821
Cher water supply (= min.service level) [ [ () [ () [ ()
No water supply 8,630 8,890 8,690 8,630 8,690 8,630 8,690
Below Minimum Sendce Level sub-total 14,196 14,155 - 14,195 14,155 14,195 14,195 14,195
Total number of households 46,791 46,791 32,595 47,706 47 706 47,706 47,706 47 706
Sanitafion/sewerage:
Flush fodst {connecied fo sewerags) 7,986 7,585 7,586 9 009 9,009 9,008 9,009 9,008 9,009
Flush todet (with sepdc tank) 458 455 458 T4z 792 T4z 792 T4z 792
Chemical toilst S48 45 S48 45 S48 45
Pit toilet (wenilated) 8,327 6,327 8,327 18,196 18,196 18,196 18,196 18,196 18,196
Oher folet provisions (> min.service bewel) 28, 182 25 182 28, 182 14,600 4 600 14,600 14,600 4,600 14,600
Minimum Senvice Level and Above sub-fotal 42,851 42,851 42,551 43,343 43,543 41,343 43,543 41,343 43,543
Bucket follet 473 473 47 473 473 473 473 473 473
Ofher folet provisions (< min.semvice bewel) 1,213 21 213 213 1,213 213 213 213 213
No fiolet provisions 2,476 2478 2,476 2478 2,476 2478 2476 2478 2478
Below Minimum Senvice Level sub-total 4,162 4,162 4,162 4,162 4,182 4,162 4,182 4,162 4,182
Total number of households 47,113 47,113 47,113 47,703 47,705 47,703 47,705 47,703 47,703
Energy:
Blectricity {at least min. servics bewel) 35,554 35,504 35,554 35,504 35,554 35,504 35,554 35,5064 35,554
Blectricity - prepaid (min. senios kewel)
Minimum Service Level and Above sub-fotal 35,554 35,564 35,564 35,564 35,554 35,564 35,554 35,564 35,584
Blectricity (= min.service level)
Eleciricity - prepaid (< min. service level)
Ofher energy SOURCES 10,472 0472 0,472 23312 23,312 23312 23,312 23,312 23,312
Below Minimum Senvice Level sub-total 10,472 0472 0,472 23,312 23,312 23,312 23,312 23,312 23,312
Total number of households 46,036 46,036 46,036 38,876 38,876 38,976 38,876 38,876 38,876
Refuse:
Remowved at least once a week 6,108 6,108 9,210 9,210 9,210 9,210 9,210 9,210
Minimum Senvice Level and Above sub-fotal 6,108 6,108 9,210 9,210 9,210 9,210 9,210 9,210
Remowved less frequendy han once a week 1,015 1,015 4385 485 4385 485 4385 485
Using communal refuse dump 257 257 264 1,264 264 254 264 254
Using ocwm refuse dumg 27810 27 810 20 7497 20,797 20 7497 20,797 29,797 20,797
Cher rubbish disposal oo 55 5,549 6,549 6,548 6,549 6,548 6,549
Mo rubbish disposal 10,764 10,764
Below Minimum Senvice Level sub-total 39,911 38,911 33,485 38,485 38,485 38,485 38,495 38,485
Total number of households 46,013 46,019 47,703 47,703 47,703 47,705 47,703 47,703
Households receiving Free Basic Service
Waier (& kiloliires per housshold per mond) 47 705 47 705 47 705 47, 705 A7 705 47,705
Sanitafion (e mimimum bevel service)
Electricity/ofher enengy (S0kowh per housshold per mong)
Refuse (removed at least once a week)
Caost of Free Basic Services provided (R4}
Waier (6 kiloliires per housshold per mondh) 1,449 1,517 1,517 1,585 569 1,768
Sanitafion (free canitalion service) J20 1,351 1,351 20 351 1,431
Eleciricity/ofer energy (S0owh per houschobd per moné) 2 200 2,200 2,200 3,908 4123 4329
Refuse (removed oncs a wesk) H 1,345 Ade 1,416 1,480 i} 1,650
Total cost of FBS provided (minimum social phcka - - - 6,196 6,575 6,575 8,093 8,701 9177
Highest level of free service provided
Property rates (R value hireshold)
Waier (kilolifres per household per mondh)
Sanitafion (kilolires per housshold per moné)
Sanitafion (Fand per houssheld per mond)
Blectricity (kwh per houschold per mont)
Refuse (awverage Bres per week)
Revenue cost of free services provided (RYI00)
Property raies (R15 000 freshold rebaie)
Property rates (oher exempions, reducions
and rebales) 3,278 3,278 3278 3,278 3475 3,683
Water
Saniialion
Blectricity/oher enengy
Refuss
Municipal Houging - rental rebates
Housing - top sruciure subsidies [
Other
Total revenue cost of free services provided
(total social package) - - - 3.278 3,276 3,278 3,278 3473 3,683
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PART 2

Overview of the budget process

1. Overview of the budget process

The integrated development plan (IDP) annual revision allow the municipality to expand upon or
refine plans and strategies to included additional issues and to ensure that these plans and strategies
inform institutional and financial planning through the budget process. The Draft IDP was approved
by Council in March 2015 for consultation.

To achieve the above the IDP revision process plan as well as the budget process timetable were
considered and approved by Council in August 2014 which indicate all the key deadlines relating to
the review of the IDP and the preparation of the multi-year budget and review of budget-related
policies.

The budget preparation process for the 2015/2018 financial year was started in August 2014 with
the approval of the budget timetable whilst preliminary consultation and discussions on the draft
budget with senior management was finalised in March 2015.

In terms of S24 of the MFMA the municipal council must at least 30 days before the start of the
budget year consider approval of the annual budget. An annual budget must be approved before the
start of the budget year; is approved by the adoption by the council of a resolution referred to in
section 17 (3) (a) (i); and must be approved together with the adoption of resolutions as may be
necessary imposing any municipal tax for the budget year; setting any municipal tariffs for the
budget year; approving measurable performance objectives for revenue from each source and for
each vote in the budget; approving any changes to the municipality’s integrated development plan;

and approving any changes to the municipality’s budget-related policies.

The tabled budget herewith presented provides for total operating revenue of R 336,1M for
2015/2016 financial year, R354,6M for the 2016/2017 financial year and R373,4M for the 2017/2018
financial years.

The year 2015 is the Year of the Freedom Charter and Unity in Action to Advance Economic
Freedom. It is the year of going the extra mile in building a united, democratic, non-racial, non-sexist

and prosperous South Africa as per the State of Nation Address.
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The NDP contains proposals for tackling the problems of poverty, inequality and unemployment. It is
a roadmap to a South Africa where all will have water, electricity, sanitation, jobs, housing, public
transport, adequate nutrition, education, social protection, quality healthcare, recreation and a clean
environment. Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality will ensure that we objectives to alleviate poverty,

inequality and unemployment is achieved.

Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality will be contributing R110M for infrastructure development which is
funded from MIG,INEP and DWA which is allocated in terms of Division of Revenue Act (DoRA). We
will continue to extend access to basic water supply to our residents within Chief Albert Luthuli

municipality.

The municipality will continue to create jobs through EPWP projects and also to attract investors that
will create jobs through LED programmes

As a result of the community participation through the Integrated Development Plan process plan
that was approved in August 2014, budget timetable and public participation the multi-year budget
is tabled for approval.

The Minister of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (COGTA) introduced the Back to
Basics (B2B) approach at the Presidential Local Government Summit on 18 September 2014.The
Summit mandated a country-wide programme of action to address challenges facing local

government. Subsequently, the President’s Coordinating Council (PCC) endorsed the Back to Basics

Approach and its implementation

Five pillars of Back to Basics

1. Putting people and their concerns first and ensuring constant contact with communities
through effective public participation platforms.

2. Creating conditions for decent living by consistently delivering municipal services to the right
quality and standard. This includes planning for and delivery of infrastructure and amenities,
maintenance and upkeep, including the budgeting to do this. Ensure no failures in services
and where there are, restore with urgency.

3. Being well governed and demonstrating good governance and administration - cutting
wastage, spending public funds prudently, hiring competent staff, ensuring transparency and

accountability.
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4. Ensuring sound financial management and accounting, and prudently managing resources so
as to sustainably deliver services and bring development to communities.
5. Building and maintaining sound institutional and administrative capabilities administered

and managed by dedicated and skilled personnel at all levels.

The challenge for the municipality is to do more within its existing resources by reprioritizing money
from low-priority programmes to high-priority programmes. Municipalities play a critical role in
furthering government objective of providing services to all while facilitating local economic

development.

It is important that the financial position of the municipality remains sustainable over the medium

term facing the current constraints.

To assist our communities to alleviate poverty, inequality and unemployment the following social

packages are included in the budget for households:

e Free Basic Water — 6kl per month for every households
e Free Basic Electricity - 50kWh per month for registered indigents
e 50% Discount Sanitation Services for registered indigents

e 50% Discount on Refuse Removal Services for registered indigents

The tabled budget herewith presented provides for total operating revenue of R336,1-million for
2015/2016 financial year, R354,6-million for the 2016/2017 financial year and R373,4-million for the
2017/2018 financial years. The bulk of the revenue is derived from user charges for services and
property rates of which property rates are the main contributing. 68% of the revenue sources is from
grants.
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The main revenue sources are as follows:-

Property rates R39,448M

R43,289M
Service charges

R2,346M
Interest revenue

R227,968M
Transfers recognised - operational

R23,178M
Other own revenue

R336,128M

The executive summary and supporting documents in the tabled budget document contain more
details regarding the contents of the budgeted provisions.

2. Overview of alignment of annual budget with integrated development plan

Supporting table SA4, SA5 and SA6 provides a breakdown of all revenue, operating expenditure and
capital expenditure aligned to the goals and actions of the IDP on a high level.

The annual budget is linked to the five (5) main strategic goals and objectives, which are:
=  Municipal transformation and institutional development
= Local Economic Development (LED)
= Municipal financial viability
=  Good governance and public participation
=  Basic Service Delivery

Through the IDP process it was reconfirmed that the municipality is committed to the total well-
being of all its citizens through:

= the rendering of affordable, cost effective, accessible, efficient and quality services for
present and future customers.

= the maximizing of infrastructural development through the utilisation of all available
resources.

= improving the quality of life by co-ordinating gender and social development programmes.
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= the implementation of effective management systems and procedures.
= the creation of an enabling environment for LED.

= ensuring effective co-operation with relevant stakeholders.

= to ensure skilled, motivated and committed workforce.

= compliance with the Batho Pele principles.

3. Measurable performance objectives and indicators

Supporting table SA8 provides details on the financial indicators and benchmarks. The tabled budget
was compiled considering the following main key performance indicators as a benchmark:

4. Overview of budget-related policies

The purpose of budget-related and financial policies is to provide a sound environment to manage
the financial affairs of the municipality. The following are key budget relating policies which
municipality has approved and where the policy doesn’t exist the process of development will be
looked at:

= Tariff Policy — the policy prescribes the procedures for calculating tariffs. This policy is
required in terms of Section 74 of the Local Government Municipal Systems Act, Act 22 of
2000.

= Rates Policy — a policy required by the Municipal Property Rates Act, Act 6 of 2004. This
policy provides the framework for the determining of rates. It further ensures certainty and
clarity as to amounts payable in respect of property rates. The policy is submitted with the
budget for review and be approved for public participation.

= Free Basic services policy- this policy aims to enhance the delivery of Free Basic Services to
poor households, and assist municipality in developing innovative, reliable and integrated
billing systems that would allow for improved delivery of services and an effective and
efficient billing system for the debtors/consumers of the municipality. The policy is
submitted with the budget for review and be approved for public participation.

= |ndigent Support Policy — to provide access to and regulate free basic services to all indigent
households. The policy is submitted with the budget for review and be approved for public
participation.

= Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy — to provide for credit and debt collection
procedures and mechanisms to ensure that all consumers pay for the services that are
supplied. The policy is submitted with the budget for review and be approved for public
participation.

= Budget Policy — this policy set out the principles which must be followed in preparing a
medium term revenue and expenditure framework budget. It further ensures that the
budget reflects the strategic outcomes embodied in the IDP and related strategic policies.

= Cash management and Investment Policy — this policy was compiled in accordance with the
Municipal Investment Regulation R308 and ensures that cash resources are managed in the
most efficient and effective manner possible.

= Asset Management Policy — the objective of the policy is to prescribe the accounting and
administrative procedures relating to property, plant and equipment (assets). The asset
management policy it has incorporate the asset disposal processes.

= Capital Investment and Infrastructure Development Policy- the policy is not yet in place but
strategies and programmes are being developed, they will be identified to form part of
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the financial plan to achieve the desired objective of improving financial viability,
sustainability of the municipality, and capital investment on infrastructure. The policy will
give guides on alternative funding models such as donor funding ect.

Borrowing policy- The strong capital market in South Africa (banks and other lending
institutions like DBSA, INCA etc.) provides an additional instrument to access financial
resources. However, it is clear that the municipality cannot borrow to balance its budget and
pay for overspending. The municipality’s credit rating should also looked at. The finance will
develop the policy during the second so that it forms part of public consultation in March
2013.

This Funding and Reserves Policy- will set out the assumptions and methodology for
estimating — projected billings, collections and all direct revenues; the provision for revenue
that will not be collected; the funds the Municipality can expect to receive from investments;
the dividends the Municipality can expect to receive from Municipal entitles; assets; the
Municipality's borrowing requirements; and the funds to be set aside in reserves.

Accounting Policy — the policy prescribes the basis of presentation of the annual financial
statements in accordance with the General Recognised Accounting Practices and Accounting
Standards, the policy will be reviewed during the preparation of annual financial statement.
Supply Chain Management Policy — this policy is developed in terms of Section 111 of the
Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003. The principles of this policy is to give
effect to a fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-effective system for the
procuring of goods and services, disposing of goods and selecting of contractors in the
provision of municipal services. The policy is submitted with the budget for review and be
approved for public participation.

Transport and Subsistence Policy — this policy regulates the reimbursement of travelling and
subsistence cost to officials and councillors undertaking official visits.

Approved Budget Related Policies on the Municipal Website

These policies are available on the official website www.albertluthuli.gov.za

5. Overview of budget assumptions

One of the key issues identified for the sustainability of Chief Albert Luthuli Local Municipality is to
expand its revenue in relations to its costs and its financial viability, whilst implementing its
mandate’. The responsive key objective is ‘effective, efficient, coordinated financial management
and increased revenue that will enable the Council to deliver its mandate’. The plans and strategies
detailed in this chapter contribute to the will of achieving this objective

The selected key assumptions relating to this budget are as follows:

Government grants for years 2015/2016 to 2017/2018 are as per the Division of Revenue
Act.

Increases for the purchase of electricity and water have been estimated at 12.2% and 6%
p.a.

Provision has been made for tariff increases relating to other services at an average rate of
6% p.a.

Property Rates increase by 4%
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6. Overview of budget funding

The budget is funded on the anticipated revenue from trading services such as water and electricity,
though the council is experiencing low payment rate, it is anticipated that in the 2015/ 2016 budget
year, collection rate will be remain at average of 80%. The debt recovery plan will be put in place to
ensure that the set objective is achieved. Proposed tariff adjustments to come into effect on 1 July
2015 are contained in the draft resolution.

A comparison on the imposing of assessment rates and setting of tariffs for the 2015/2016 financial
year is included under Schedule 2 whilst the proposed tariffs for sundry services are included under
Schedule 3.

Supporting table SA10 provides detail on funding measurement and funding supporting indicators.

7. Funding requirement for capital expenditure

It is therefore essential that the proposed capital budget carefully be considered and that the impact
of all future developments on the current bulk infrastructure network strategically be considered.

2015/2016
National Government
Municipal Infrastructure Grant 84,091
Department of Water Affairs 25 000
Department of Energy 5000
Total | 114 091

Supporting table SA17 provides particulars of all existing and any new borrowing proposed to be
raised.

Supporting table SA15 and SA16 provide more detail on investments.

8. Expenditure on allocations and grant programmes

All national allocations to local government are published in the Division of Revenue Act, per
municipality for the next three (3) years, whilst provincial allocations form part of the provincial

budgets.

Supporting tables SA18, SA19 and SA20 provide details of planned expenditure against each
allocation and grant received. The following grants have been allocated to the municipality:

2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018

Equitable Share 219137 000 226 756 000 | 232189 000
(this grant is an unconditional grant and is partially utilised
for the provision of free basic services through Councils
Indigent Support and Free Basic Services Policies)

Financial Management Grant 1 600 000 1625 000 1700 000
Municipal System Improvement Grant 930 000 957 000 1033 000
Expended Public Works 2,059 000
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9. Allocations or grants made by the municipality

No provision is made by the municipality.

10. Councillors allowances, employee benefits and Performance agreement of senior managers

The performance agreement of senior managers are not attached to this documents, the documents
will be signed after the adoption of the final budget after approval by council on 28 May 2015. The
performance agreements will be published in the municipal website.

The listed table reflecting the supporting table SA22, SA23 and SA24 provides the proposed cost to
Council on salaries, allowances and benefits, as well as personnel members for:

= councillors of the municipality

=  municipal manager and senior managers
= other municipal staff

11. Monthly targets for revenue, expenditure and cash flow
Supporting table SA25 and SA27 disclose the monthly targets for operating revenue by source,
operating expenditure by type as well as a consolidated projection of revenue and expenditure by

vote, whilst supporting table SA29 provides monthly projections for capital expenditure by vote.

All these schedules have been included in the draft SDBIP which is included in the tabled budget
document as PART 3.

The SDBIP further includes the detailed capital budget by programme and shows each capital project
associated within the programme and indicates the planning for each project.

Supporting table SA30 provides a consolidated projection of cash flow for the budget setting out
receipts by source and payments by type, both operating and capital broken down per month for the
budget year and also shown in total the following two (2) years.

12. Contracts having future budgetary implications

Multi-year funded projects are contracts having future budgetary implications as there are contracts
which will impose financial obligations beyond three (3) years.

13. Capital expenditure details
Supporting table SA34 discloses capital expenditure by asset class and table SA36 provides a list of

capital programmes and projects aligned to the goals of the integrated development plan. See also
supporting table SA6 for reconciliation with IDP strategic objectives.
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14. Legislatory compliance status

The municipality is fully committed to promote and seek to implement the basic values and

principles of public administration described as per Section 195(1) of the Constitution.

In achieving this commitment the municipality is presently in full compliance with the stipulations of
the following legislation, the principles as per circulars issued in line with the legislation as well as
promulgated regulations to give effect to the stipulations of such legislation, except where a lower

extent of compliance is reflected:

Local Government : Municipal Structures Act, Act 117 of 1998 with all its amendments to
date.

Local Government : Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000 with all its amendments to date in
its entirety together with regulations promulgated and applicable to high capacity
municipalities.

Local Government : Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2004 in its entirety
including regulations promulgated and applicable to high capacity municipalities.

Compliance is also given to circulars by National Treasury in line with the Municipal Systems
Act and the Municipal Finance Management Act in so far stipulations had been approved by
the Council for adoption.

Local Government : Property Rates Act, Act 6 of 2004 and its promulgated regulations in so
far as a new valuation is implemented from 1 July 2009 in full compliance to legislatory
requirement.

Full compliance, where sections and stipulations of sections are applicable to the

municipality:

o Electricity Act of 1987
Labour Relations Act of 1995
The Constitution of South Africa, 1996
Financial and Fiscal Commission Act, 1997
Intergovernmental Fiscal Relations Act, 1997
Water Services Act, 1997
Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998
National Environmental Management Act, 1998
Remuneration of Political Office Bearers Act, 1998
Skills Development Act, 1998
National Land Transport Transition Act, 2000
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000
Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005
Division of Revenue Acts as enacted annually

O 0O O O O O O O 0O O O O O

15. PART 3 - SDBIP

In terms of the budget regulation, National Treasury encourages municipalities to include the draft
municipal service delivery and budget implementation plan (SDBIP) with the tabled budget. This will

promote effective planning and implementation of the annual budget within the municipality.

The draft SDBIP includes the following:
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15.1. Report on the SDBIP.

15.2. Supporting table SA25 — monthly projections of revenue for each source and
expenditure type.

15.3. Supporting table SA27 — monthly projections of operating revenue and expenditure
by vote.

15.4. Supporting table SA29 — monthly projections of capital expenditure by vote.

15.5. Detail projects per capital programme.

16. The following Supporting Tables could not be included in the Tabled Budget due to the
unavailability of information or limitation from the financial system.

¢ SA7 : Measurable Performance Objectives

e SA11 : Property Rates Summary
e SA12 & SA13 : Property Rates by category

PJ NHLABATHI
Chief Financial Officer
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Table SA1 - Supporting detail to budgeted financial performance
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA1 Supportinging detail to *Budgeted Financial Performance’

Z015/16 Medium Term Revenue &

2011512 2012013 2013014 Current Year 2014515
. Expenditure Framework
Description Ref
Addited Aidited Audited ‘Griginal Adjusted Full Wear Prelaudit | | Budget Wear | Budget vear | Budget Year
Cutcome ‘Cutcome Cutcome Budget Budget Forecast outcome 2015016 +1 2016017 -2 201TIE
R thousand
REVENUE ITEMS:
Pro rates &
otal Propemy Rates 21,998 31,158 29,131 37,277 40,213 40,213 47,354
less Rewenue Foregons 3,278 3,278 3,278 3,542
Net Property Rates 21,998 R E] 33,999 36,935 36,935 43,712
Service charges - electricity revenue
Total Service changes - sleckicity revenus 15,931 17.077 16,287 23,409 23,330 23,330 23,330 24, 898 25,267 27,559
j=ss Rewvenus Forsgons
Net Service charges - electricity revenue 15,831 17077 16,287 23,409 23.330 23,330 23,330 24896 26.267 27,659
Service charges - water revenue =
Total Service changes - water rewenue Tas 2892 4.305 6.225 6.245 6.246 6.246 6.621 6,985 7.355
less Rewvenue Forsgons »
Net Service charges - water revenue TEs 2852 4505 6,235 6246 6,248 6,248 621 7.355
Service charges - sanitation revenue
Totml Sensics Changes - SENESTON rewenus 5,256 5,931 5,931 5,931 6,524 6,883 7, 2T
less Rewenue Forsgons
Net Service charges - sanitation revenue 4681 5,258 5,005 5,831 5,837 5,831 5831 6,524 6,883 T 2aT
Service charges - refuse revenue &
Tot=i refuss remonel neusnus 4,150 4,215 4,507 4,770 4,770 4,770 4,770 5,247 5,535 5,828
Totsl LNt rewsnus
j=ss Rewvenus Forsgons
Net Service charges - refuse revenue 4150 4,507 4770 4770 4770 4770 5.247 5.535 5.828
Other Revenue by source
List other revenus by souwce 11,667 11,980 1,806 1 Tez TEz TEz a3a a80 sa7
Total "Other Revenue 1 ATeET ERICN) i 506 ij0aE T3 a3 a3 f=7 = 837
EXPENDITURE ITEMS:
= 62,755 58,745 &3, 74,425 a2.680
12,801 10, 13,380 14,864
s, a, 5,147 5,718
s, 3, 1,923 2,138
Micior Wiehnicle ABCVWENCE 4,495 5,373 5,222 5,045
Celiphons ARCWIENCE — —
Housmg ARCWSNCES 7T 671 720 284 625 594
Cher bensfits and allowances 1.510 4,003 4,555 543 3.024 3.359
Payments n bew of leans 3,598 1.856 1.778 5,763 5,330 o032
Long senvice swiands 3 =
PostreSrement benefit cblgasons a 3,010 1,985 1,358 =
sub-total | S k=S G5 587 05, 505 S8 857 SE. 957 F6. 957 i858 EECE= E3]990
Less: Emplovees costs capitalised to FPE
Total Employee related costs 1 B3 EA G5 587 05, 508 S8 55T SE957 GE957 i E5E EECE =3 33990
GContributions recognised - capital
List contributions by contract
Total Contributions recognised - capital = = s = o = = - = -
Deprecistion & asset impairment
preciaton of Property., Plant & Equipment 93,489 94,508 53,238 103,210 103,210 103,210 103,210 56,975 70.558 74,403
Leasse amorSsaton
Capitad asset impaarnent
preciaSon resuling Fom rewaluston of PPE
Total Depreciation & asset impairment 1 B3 AEE F4 508 63358 T3 F00 T3 F0 68,675 FA 405
Bulk purchases
Elecwricity Bulk Purchases 34,239 31,363 34,282 39,955 39,955 39,955 48,782 49,748
Wister Bullkk Purchasss 150 150
Total bulk purchases 1 FAEE R FAEES ELRTES ELR T HATES ECRES
Transfers and grants
Cash wansfers and grants - - - - - - - - -
Non-casn wansfers and grames - — - — - — — - — -
Total transfers and grants 1 = = = = = = = = = =
Gontracted services
List senvices provided by contract 30,274 27,264 0,450 24,086 27,510 27,510 27,510 =
Waluation Roll 3,200
Cash in Transit
FProfessional Fees
Miater Tankers
Monitoring & Armed Reaction
Stanby Gontractor
Sub-total 1 ST S aEd FrFEty S 096 ¥ 500 30 4T EERFT 33850
Allocations to organs of state:
30,274 FEEL L0 A5 F4056 ST 50 30470 33850
Other Expenditure By Type
CoBecson costs
Consibusons 1o "OMEr provisions
Consultant fees
Audt fe=s 3.134 3.201
General expenses 3 76,291 70,125 57.630 58,299 55,003 55.003 56,003 65,190 56,039
List Other Expenditurs by Tvpe
Total "Other Expenditure 1 FEE T iEE 57630 [z 56,005 6603 56,0075 [ CEFFS 9. 240

Repairs and Maintenance

Empioyee related costs
Owner matsrisls
Conwacisd Serwices
Other Expenditure

Total Repairs and Maintenance Expenditure




Table SA2 - Matrix financial performance - revenue source &
expenditure type

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SAZ Matrix Financial Performance Budgef (revenue sourcelexpenditure type and dept )

Municipal | Budget& : Corporate . Community :Public Safety: Technical @ Vote7- | Voted- : Voted- | VoledD- © Voledl- | VotelZ- : Voledd- | Volefd- : Voleti- Total
Description Refi Manager | Treasury | Senvites | Services Serices  Planning & ; Executive ;| [NAMECOF : [NAMEOF : [NAMEQF : [NAMEOF : [NAMEOF : [NAMEOQF : [NAMEOF
Ecomomic ¢ Mayor& | VOTEY © VOTEQN] | VOTET] | WOTEMZ] | VOTE®Y] i VOTE®4] | VOTE®3]
R thousand Development:  Council
Revenue By Source :
Progeny raies 0.4 30,34
Propery raies - penalfes & colecion charges -
Service charges - elecincly rvenue Py 459
Service charges - waler revenus 682 6,621
Service charges - saniaion revenue 6,54 6,524
Service charges - refise revemus 5u47 .41
Service charges - odet -
Renial of faciifes and equipment 35 3]
Inierest eamed - exiemal mvesiments 234 2346
Inierest eamed - oultanding debioes 16,75 1.7
Dividends received -
Fres 30 00
Licences and pemis -
Agency services 245 245
e revenue: b A0 4 L st}
Tranghrs recognised - operaiond 21,74 6,264 27968
(3ains on disposdl of PPE -
Total Revenue {excluding capital transfers and con - 82518 3] 1457 2m 44306 M - - - - - - - - 336,128
Expenditure By Type
Employes relaied coste 4.5 5,608 13278 15218 1365 364 6112 53 110,898
Remuneraion of counciloes 17,043 17,143
Debt impaiment 14918 18% 335 nIn
Depreciafon & asset impairment 6915 66,973
Finance charges -
Bulk purchages um LN )
Ofer materials pid 141 /] 124 10 13,400
Conbackd services 40 50 - 19,000 5,400 1,200 4
Tranckrs and granis -
(her expendiiure 1% 1254 LAUE] 36m 423 o i 11,95 .30
Loss on disposdl of PPE -
Total Expenditure 927 11468 am i LT N N H 945 Hin - - - - - - - 0293
Surplus/{Deficit) pan 16758 (367 (56 [(aBMl: (MY OHE) (MY - - - - - - - 46.811)
Tranches recognised - capia -
Conbibuions recogrised - capid -
Conbibuied assels -
Surplus/(Deficit) after capital tranafers & pan 1675 367 (546 (ARl (MY OHE (A4 - - - - - - - 46.811)

contributions
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Table SA3 - Supporting detail to budgeted financial position

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA3 Supportinging detail to 'Budgeted Financial Position'

2013416 Medium Term Revenue &

A1z A3 IS Current Year 2014/13 ]
Expenditure Framework
Description Ref
Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year Pre-audit | Budget Year : Budget Year ; Budget Year
Outcome Outcome Outcome Budget Budget Forecast outcome 21516 +1 201617 | 2 W78
R thousand
ASSETS
Call investment deposits
Call deposits < 90 days 10,225 1,199 2910 P 254 254 2544 3,500 3,850 4,235
Ceher current invesimenis > 30 days 1
Total Call investment deposita 2 10,225 1,199 318 2544 2544 2544 2544 3,500 3,350 4235
Cansumer debtors
Consumer deblors 92,548 107,305 I 342 A0 x0T x0T HA.077 5,550 276,535 22,228
Less: Provision for debl impairment {(73,763) (83,205) (249,803) (326,964) (326,964) (326,964) (325,964) (2584, 268) (235,414) (164, 790)
Total Consumer debtora 2 18,785 MM 9,589 57113 57113 57113 57,113 1,401 LIRFI| 56,438
Debt impairment provision
Balance at the beginning of he year
Coniribulions io he provizion
Bad debis wrillen off
Balance at end of year - - - - - - - - - -
Property. plant and equipment (PPE)
PPE &t costivaiuaion {excl. fnance leases) 1,083,370 1,188,328 316,695 1,370,375 A11 654 A11,654 411,554 521,581 1,640,708 1,760 658
Leases recognised as PPE 3
Less: Accumulaied depreciafion 70,913 487 814 523,324 7,58 7 55 H7 5H 7,58 614,574 685,232 759,63
Total Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 2 T3 457 TH 45 T8I 322776 864,095 864,095 864,095 H07,007 955,477 1,001,063
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities - Borrowing
Short igrm boans (ofer than bank overdraf)
Cument porfion of long-erm Babilifes 87
Total Current liabilities - Borrowing - - W7 - - - - - - -
Trade and other payables
Trade and ofer creditors 0,972 87,14 112,748 0,745 0,745 0,745 30,745 2480 25,584 10,384
Unspent condifonal ranskers 4119 1,388 40,752
VAT 1,404 1,334
Total Trade and other payables 2 56,585 88,527 154,874 30,745 30,745 30,745 30,745 32,480 25,984 10,334
Nan current liabilities - Borrowing
Bomowing 4 625 3 pa ]
Finance keases (incuding PPP asset elemen)
Total Non current liabilities - Borrowing 625 -0 el - - - - - - -
Pravisions - non-current
Refrement bencfils 0,606 10,588 11,243 0,505 0,505 0,505 0,606 11,243 11,243 11,243
List other major provision tems
Refuze landill sie rehabdibaion
Oy 7582 8,804 6,413 - 6,413 17,316 18,233
Total Provisions - non-current 13,288 19,792 27 656 10,606 10,606 10,606 10,606 27 636 28,559 20476
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Accumulated Surplus/{Deficit
Accumulated Surplusi{Deficid) - opening balance 672,402 708,257 850,200 893 598 893 598 893,658 583,067 1,081,374 1,189,511
GRAP adusiments
Resiated balance - B6T2402 T8, 257 850,200 893 658 893 658 93, 558 93,067 1,081,374 1,189,511
Surphusi{Defici) {52 461) (29,803) 15,575 (83,455) (83,361) (83,361) {83,361) (45,811) (4,079) (45,341)
Approprialions fo Reserves
Transiers from Reserves
Depreciafion offsets
Cher adustments
Accumulated Surplus/{Deficit) (32 461) 42,600 T43.852 766,745 310,336 310,336 810,336 936,257 1,033,295 1,144,111
Reserves
Housing Dewvelopment Fund
Capital replacement
Seftinsurance
O reserves 24,047 24,047 24,047 %, 18 X%, 18 %, 18 2,18 24,047 24,047 24,047
Revaluaion
Total Reserves 2 M7 M7 M7 26,18 2618 .18 6,18 M7 M7 M7
TOTAL COMMUNITY WEALTH/EQUITY 2 (28.414) 666, 646 T67.879 792 926 836,917 836,917 36,917 960, 305 1,099,342 1,168 1T
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Table SA4 - Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and revenue

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Tahle SA4 Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and budget (revenue)

o Goal 2015/16 Medium Term Revenue &
Strategic Objective Goal M1z 23 314 Current Year 2014113 i
Code - Expenditure Framework
Audited Audited Audited Qriginal Adjusted | Full Year | Budget Year | Budget Year : Budget Year

R thousand Outcome | Outcome : Qutcome Budget Budget Forecast 20316 ¢+ 200647 ¢ +2 210718
Bleckricity Inrasiuchre Service Delivery 25,550 L] 30,707 44458 44540 44540 45,148 47 842 50,377
Development and Service
Defivery
Susiamable and Economical  ; Financial visbiy 06X 38 M5 Wiin 249 850 52475 52475 285,723 302 493 8525
Monetary Management
Local Economic Development ; Economic Growh and - 14,083 140 2149 2149 241 254 X8

Development
Municipal Transiormaton and | Good Comeraive 4004 2485 4450 1,544 355 355 3816 405 4738
Organizafional Development  { Govemance
Good govemnance and public ; Good Comeraiive
paricipation Govemance
Allocations to other priorities 2
Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers and contributions) ¢ 1 330,183 361,243 392 363 296 473 299,590 299,590 336,128 354 613 33,409
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Table SAS5 - Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and operating
expenditure

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA5 Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and budget (operating expenditure)

. . Goal 201316 Medium Term Revenue &
Strategic Objective Goal 201112 201213 201314 Current Year 2014115 .
Code Ref Expenditure Framework

Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year | Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
R thousand Outcome Outcome Outcome Budget Budget Forecast 2015/16 + 26T | +2 HTHE
Elechicity Infrasiucture Service Defivery 139,687 87,904 111,314 112,283 122,570 122,570 132,012 138,272 145,654
Development and Service
Delivery
Sustainable and Economical | Fmancial viability 42 457 55,212 69,914 137,758 138 857 139,857 114,816 121,131 127 55

Monetary Managenent

Local Economic Dewvelopment ;| Economic Growsh and 7,054 8,258 8,405 9,225 8,055 8,055 9,447 9,955 10,485
Dewelopment
Municipal Transformason and { Good Corperaiive T8, 758 105,072 27 583 76,749 73,650 73,650 82 892 84 144 85,424

Organisaional Development  ; Govemance

Good govemance and public Good Corperafive 114,588 133,556 138,793 43,501 38,819 38,819 43,772 45,179 48,627
parficipaion Govemance

Allocations to other priorities

Total Expenditure 1 362 644 3,45 336,950 379,928 362 951 362,901 362 938 400,693 418,750
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Table SA6 - Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and capital

expenditure

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SAG Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and budget (capital expenditure)

Goal

2015116 Medium Term Revenue &

Strategic Objective Goal 2011142 A3 21314 Current Year 201413 .
Code Ref Expenditure Framework
Audited HAudited Audited Original HAdjusted Full Year | Budget Year : Budget Year ;| Budget Year
R thousand Outcome Qutcome Qutcome Budget Budget Forecast 2116 +1 20617 2 211THE
Eleciicity Infrastruciure Service Delivery A 1,470 o0 544 130,779 24400 14,74 184,721 109,885 119128 119,589
Development and Service
Delvery
B
Sustainable and Economical  : Financial visbiity C 200 - - - - - - - -
Menetary Management
D
Lecal Economic Development ;| Economic Growsh and E 40 - - - - - - - -
Development
F
Municipal Transiormasion and : Good Comperafive G 2613 - - - - - - - -
Organisafiondl Development  : Govemance
H
Good govemance and public | Good Corperaive I 2,635 6,23 - 8,337 9,772 9772 - -
paricipaion Govemance
J
K
L
M
N
]
p
Allocations to other priorities 3
Total Capital Expenditure 1 96,959 96,878 130,179 102,737 151,493 151,493 109,586 19,128 119,989
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Table SA8 - Performance indicators and benchmarks
MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA8 Performance indicators and benchmarks

2013/16 Medium Term Revenue &

1112 213 2013114 Current Year 2014115 )
Expenditure Framewark
Description of financial indicator Basis of calculation
Audited Audited Audited Qriginal Adjusted : Full Year | Pre-audit |Budget Year:Budget Year:Budget Year
Qutcome | Outcome ;| Outcome Budget Budget Forecast outcome P56 | +1 2006M7 | 2 2017H3
Borrowing Management
Credit Raiing
Capital Changes o Operafing Expendiure Inerest & Principal Paid /AOperating 07% 0.3% 0.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
Expendiure
Capitdl Charges io Own Revenue Finance charges & Repayment of £.7% 1.2% 1.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.9% 05% 0.5%
borowing /Cwm Revenue
Borowed funding of ‘own' capital expendiur: | Bomowing/Capital expenditune excl. 0.0% 0.10% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
franshers and grants and contribuions
Safety of Capital
Gearing Long Term Bomowing/ Funds & 26% % 1.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Feserves
Liguidity
Cument Rafio Current asseis/cument Babiifes 07 07 23 23 23 23 18 20 6.8
Cumrent Rafio adusied for aged deblors Current asseis bess debioes = 90 07 i} 25 25 25 25 18 20 6.8
days/cument BabiliSes
Ligquidity Rafio Monsiary Assets/Cumrent Lisbilifes 02 00 01 0y i1 [i1:3 0.6 02 04 ]
Revenue Management
Annual Debices Collecion Rae (Payment Last 12 Mihs Receipis/Last 12 Mbs 55.5% 5T% 8.9% 87 5% 83.0% 83.0% 83.0% 85.0% 85.0%
Lewed %) Eilling
Current Debiors Collecton Rae (Cash 55.2% 51.7% 8.5% 87.5% 83.0% 63.0% 83.0% 85.0% 85.0% 85.0%
receipis % of Ratepayer & Ofer revenue)
Cuisianding Debioes o Revenus Teéal Cuistanding Debioes io Annua 14.8% 128.4% 228% 19.3% 9.1% 9.1% 91% 15.3% 15.1%
Revenue
Longstanding Debiors Recovensd Deblors = 12 Mis Recovered/ Totl
Debiors = 12 Months Old
Creditors Management
Creditors Sysiem Eficiency % of Crediiors Paid Within Terms
{within' MFMA' 5 652}
Crediors o Cash and hvesiments 2186.7% T281.5% 805.0% 168.0% 177.7% 177.7% 177.7% 16.8% 108.7%
Other Indicators
Toial Volume Losses (kW)
Total Cost of Losses (Rand '000)
Eleciricity Distribusion Losses (2)
% Violume {units purchased and
genersied less units sokdyiunits
purchased and generated
Todal Volume Losses (ki)
Total Cost of Losses (Rand "000)
Waler Dicinbusion Losses (2)
% Viclume (units purchased and
genergied less unils soldyunis
purchazed and generated
Employes costs Empiloyee costs/{Total Revenue - capital 25.1% 2.6% 70 M 3% 33.0% 33.0% 3.0% 33.0% 33.0% 130
rEvEUE)
Remuneraion Toéal remuneration/{Toid Revenue - 28.1% % 50% B\5% BiA% A% T %% 7% ETl: )
capital revenue)
Repairs & Manienance RE&MTotal Revenue excluding capit 1.7% 5.7% 30% 45% 45% 4.5% 40% 4% 40%
revenus)
Finance charges & Depreciafion FCEDWTotal Revenue - capital revenus) 28.4% 26.4% 5.3% % H5% H5% 5% 0.7% 20.7% 20.7%
IDP regulation financial viability indicators
. Debt coverage {Teial Operaing Revenus - Operafing 44 47 %5 525 52.5 525 425 437 438 451
Grants)/Debt service payments due
wihin financial year)
VS Service Debiors io Revenue Total cuistanding senvice debiors/annual 102.2% 108.7% 147.8% 76.3% 13.8% 138 T3F% 6§1.6% 45.7% .5%
revenue received for senices
. Cost coverage {Available cash + nvesiments)/monthly 01 01 [ik:} 1.0 08 [ik:} 09 0.2 03 04
fixed operafional expenditure
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Table SA9 - Social, economic and demographic statistic assumptions
MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA9 Social, economic and demographic statistics and assumptions

Minz 20113 01314 |Current Year|  2013/16 Medium Term Revenue &
21415 Expenditure Framewark
Description of economic indicator Basis of calculation 2001 Census | 2007 Survey | 2011 Census
Outcome | Outcome | Outcome | Original | Outcome | Outcome ; Ouicome
Ref. Budget
Demographics
Populaion 194 188 18 18 18 185 18 18 18
Females aged 5- 14 a7 ) /) ] /) z ) /) )
Males aged 5- 14 ] ) /) ] /) z ) /) )
Females aged 15- 4 3 3 i 3 ¥ 35 3 ¥ 3
Males aged 15- 34 2 2 2 7] 3 7] 7] 3 7]
Unemployment 16,975 15,975 16 16 16 16 16 16
Manthly household income {no. of households| 12
No income 80219 80219 80,218 80219 80,219 80,218 80219 80,219
R1-R1600 80,075 0,075 8,075 80,075 8,075 80,075 80,075 8,075
R1601 - R3 200 6374 LRILS 6,374 6,374 6374 6,374 6,374 6374
R3 201 - R5 40 428 4208 4208 L] 4128 428 L] 428
Re 401 - R12 800 3,385 3,385 3,385 3,35 3,38 3,38 3,385 3,38
R12 801 - RZ5 00 1,897 1,887 1,897 1,887 1,887 1,867 1,887 1,867
Rz 601 - R31 200 k) k) k) k) k) £ k) 2
Ra2 21 - R102 400 9 8 8 9 9 9 9 8
R102 401 - F204 800 1 ] 109 108 ] (] 108 (1]
204 801 - R409 600 ] ] =] =] =] ] =] ®
R408 601 - RB19 200
> RE1S 20
Poverty profiles {no. of households)
« 2 060 per heusehold per mond 13
Insert descripfon ?
Househald/demagraphics (000}
Number of peopie in municipdl area %4 083 188 185 1% 18 186 18 18 188
Number of poor people in municipal area 80214 82 0,219 80214 8.9 &9 214 80,219
Number of heuseholds in municipal area 450% 47705 47105 47705 47705 & 105 47705 47705 -
Number of poor houssholds in municipal area 51,585 51,585 51,585 51,595 31,595 51,585 51,595 51,585
Dednifon of poor household (R per monf)
Housing statistics 3
Formal 2912 42942 44 548 44043 44 048 44548 44048 44348 44548 44045
Informal 3iH 314 2857 2857 2857 2857 2857 2857 2857 20857
Total number of households 45,0% 450% 47705 47705 47705 47705 47705 47705 47705 47705
Dwelings provided by municipality 4
Dwelings provided by provincals
Dwelings provided by private secor 5
Total new housing dwellings
Economic ]
Infiafon/niation cuiook (CPIY
Inferest raie - bomowing
Inferest raie - investment
Remunerafion increases
Consumplion growh {eleckicily)
Consumplion growh {wisker)
Collection rates 7
Propery t/semvics charges
Rental of faciifes & equipment
Inerest - exiemal invesiments
Inetest - debioes
Revenuz fom agency senices
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Table SA10 - Funding measurement

P30t Albert Luthul Supportng Table SA10 Funding measurement

1

Destription Ref

BE TR RTRE

Current Year 20141

2015/16 Nedium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework
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Table SA14 - Household bills

MP304 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA14 Household bills

201316 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure

1112 M3 34 Current Year 201413
Destripton Framewark
Refi  Audited Audited Audited | Original | Adjusted ;i Full Year |Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year: Budget Year
Outcome | Outcome ; Outcome | Budget Budget | Forecast | 201316 01346 ; #2617 ¢ +2 271G
Rand/cent Y incr.
Manthly Account for Household - 'Middle
Income Range'
Rates and services charges:
Progery rales 1433 2587 240 281 3,078 3,078 3,078 348 3459 3643
Eleckricity: Basic levy
Electricity. Consumplion 138 145 1,357 1,51 1,344 1544 1,544 2075 2188 2 305
Water: Basic levy
Viier, Consumglion g6 241 L] 9 50 52 52 552 2 613
Saitzion 390 48 a7 4 4 4 4 4 54 ol
Refise remova H 351 L1(3 i i keT ¥ a7 45 4
(fner
sub-dotal: | 396234292 : 5,050,038.42 ¢ 4,986,468.08 | 6,194, 409.66 | 6,434 24441 ; 6434 244 41 11.2% | 6,006,334.66 : 7,263 146.37 ; 7,650,199.13
VAT on Services
Total large household bill: 3962 342.92 : 5,050,038.42 : 4,986,468.08 | 6,194, 409.66 | 6,434 24441 ; 6434 244 41 11.2% | 6,006,334.66 : 7,263 146.37 ; 7,650,199.13
% increasel-decrease 5% (1.3%) ¥y 3%% - 70 3.5% 3.5%
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Table SA15 - Investment particulars by type

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table 5A15 Investment particulars by type

Investment type

R thousand

Ref

2Nz

FiFik]

1314

Current Year 201413

201316 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Outcome

Original
Budget

Adjusted
Budget

Full Year
Forecast

Budget Year
i

Budget Year
+ 21617

Budget Year
+2 21718

Parent municipality

Securiies - Nafonal Govemnment

Lizted Comporale Bonds

Depoesits - Bank

Deposits - Public Invesiment Commissioners
Depositz - Corporaton for Public Deposits
Bankers Acceplance Cerficales

Negodable Cerficates of Deposit - Banks
Guaraniced Endowment Policies (sinking)
Repurchase Agreemenis - Banks

Municipal Bonds

Municipality sub-total

Entities
Secuniies - Nafonal Govemment
Listed Corporae Bonds
Depogiz - Bank
Depoesits - Public Investment Commissioners
Deposits - Corporalion for Public Deposits
Bankers Acceptance Cerfcaies
Negodable Cerficates of Deposit - Banks
Guaranized Endowment Policies (sinking)
Fepurchase Agreements - Banks

Entities sub-total

14,778

4:45.

3452

2,54

2,54

2544

3,500

3850

47%

14474

144

jdii

754

754

754

i

i)

i3

Consolidated total:

14,278

140

3452

2,34

2,34

2,34

3,300

3,850

4,833
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Table SA16 - Investment particulars by maturity

P30 AlbertLuthu- Supporting Tabe SATS Investnen paticulas by maturty

Perind of Capitel Guarantes | Variahlor Fved IferestRate | Commission Paid ;- Commiss Ineresttobe | Partl/ Premat
Investments by Waturiy fef e il JTM FOTOEL ¢ TR M umrlmfmmﬂ Expirydaeof | Opening balance Mm “,a e Investment Top Up ; Closing Beance
Ivestment < Typef ivestment (e N inereatrate 3. (Rands) Reciient ‘ ralied | Withorawl {4
mesment
Name of ngttution & imvestment D~ 11 Yralonths
Parent muniipal
Salam o makry dae [ § i
Rond Metchan Bk 5 Mey A2 1% i i)
Senld No mliry G 5 i A
Salm i % L
Muicipalty subofa | 3
Eney
Enies sub-ofdl
TOTAL INVESTUENTS AND INTEREST i 3
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Table SA17 - Borrowing

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA17 Borrowing

Borrowing - Categorised by type

R thousand

Ref

2015416 Medium Term Revenue &

201112 201213 201314 Current Year 2014/15 -
Expenditure Framework
Audited Audited Audited Original Adjuated Full Year Budget Year ;| Budget Year : Budget Year
Qutcome Qutcome Qutcome Budget Budget Forecast 2516 +1 216417 +2 HTM1E

Parent municipali
Long-Term Loans (annuity/reducing balance)
Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)
Local regisiered siock
Instalment Credit
Financial Leases
PPP Eabilifes
Finance Granied By Cap Equipment Supplier
Marketable Bonds
hen-Marketable Bonds
Bankers Acceplances
Financial derfvaives
Other Securiies
Municipality sub-total

Entities
Long-Term Loans (annuity/reducing balance)
Long-Term Loans (non-annuity)
Local regisiered siock
Instalment Credit
Fmancial Leases
PFF kabilies
Fmance Granied By Cap Eguipment Supplier
Marketable Bonds
Non-Marketable Bonds
Bankers Accepiances
Financial derivaives
Ceher Secunifies
Entities sub-total

Total Borrowing

Unspent Borrowing - Categorised by type

Parent municipali
Long-Term Loans (annuify/reducing balance)
Long-Term Loans {non-annuity)
Local regisiensd stock
Instaiment Credit
Financial Leases
PPP EabiliScs
Fmance Granied By Cap Eguipment Supplier
Marketable Bonds
Non-Marketable Bonds
Bankers Acceplances
Financial derivaives
Ofher Securifies
Municipality sub-total

Entities
Long-Term Loans (annuify/reducing balance)
Long-Term Loans {non-annuity)
Local regisiered siock
Instaiment Credit
Financial Leases
PPP EabiliScs
Fmance Granied By Cap Eguipment Supplier
Marketable Bonds
Non-Marketable Bonds
Bankers Acceplances
Financial derivaives
Ofher Securifies
Entities sub-total

Total Unspent Borrowing
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Table SA18 - Transfer and grant receipts

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA18 Transfers and grant receipts

201516 Medium Term Revenue &

Deacription Ref: 2011012 201213 21314 Current Year 2014113 .
Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year |Budget Year ; Budget Year | Budget Year
Qutcome : Outcome Qutcome Budget Budget Forecast 21316 | HHGAT P 2 201THE
RECEIPTS: 1,2
Operating Tranafers and Grants
National Government: 150,284 167 202 181,564 195,642 195,642 195,642 1BTH 219338 234 952
Local Gowemment Equitable Share 144,281 159,110 71,462 188,570 188,570 188,570 219,137 226,155 232,188
Water Services Operafing Subsidy 6,963 1,288 - -
EPWP Inceniive 4684 3,785 4,105 4 105 4105 2059
Finance Management 1,250 1,230 1,550 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,625 1,700
WMunicipal Sysiems Improvement 790 850 890 %7 %67 T 930 957 1,033
Water Services Operafing Subsidy
Cther ransiersioranis [nsent descripion] 187
Provincial Government: - - - - - - - - -
Cther ransiersioranis [nsent descripion]
District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -
[insert description]
Qther grant providers: - - - - - - - - -
[insert dascription]
Total Operating Transfers and Grants 5 150,284 167 202 181,564 195,642 195,642 195,642 T 2433 234 973
Capital Tranafers and Grants
National Government: 87,333 84,019 96,426 106,507 130,807 130,807 114,08 123,504 124 620
Municipal Infrastruciure Grant [MIG) 83,670 1,374 3,666 81,407 105,407 105,407 84,081 87,504 92,620
8,145 12,260 15,000 15,000 15,000 25,000 30,000 25,000
2,500 10,500 10,400 10,400 10,400 5,000 6,000 7,000
Regicnal Bulk Infasiuciure 4045
Cther capital ransiersigrants [nsert desc) 19,618
Provincial Government: - - - - - - - - -
Cther capital ransiersigranis nzer
descripion]
District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -
[insert description]
Other grant providers: - - - - - - - - -
[insert description]
Total Capital Transfers and Grants 5 87,333 84,019 96,426 106,507 130,807 130,807 114,08 123,504 124 620
TOTAL RECEIPTS OF TRANSFERS & GRANTS BT 67 Falredl 277 950 302 449 326,449 326,449 337 817 352,842 339,542
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Table SA19 - Expenditure on transfers and grant programme

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA19 Expenditure on transfers and grant programme

201516 Medium Term Revenue &

Description Ref: 201112 H123 14 Current Year 2014113 i
Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year | Budget Year ;| Budget Year : Budget Year
Qutcome | Outcome | Outcome Budget Budget Forecast 156 | 201647 +2 201718
EXPENDITURE:
Operating expenditure of Tranafers and Grants:

National Government: 150,284 167 202 177 687 195,642 195,642 194,642 223786 358 2an
Local Gowvemment Equitable Share 141,281 139,110 171,462 183,570 183,570 183,970 9137 1%, 756 232,189
Waier Services Operafing Subsidy 6,953 1,288 - - - - - - -
EPWP Incenive - 4654 3,785 4 105 4 105 4 105 2,058 - -
Finance Management 1,250 1,250 1,550 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,625 1,700
Municipal Sysiems Improvement 790 &l 850 LT T %7 930 g57 1,033
Waisr Services Operafing Subsidy - - - - - - - - -

Other ranziersigrants [nsert descrplon]
Provincial Gavernment: - - - - - - - - -
Other ranciersigrants [nsert descrpion]
District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -
[insert description]
Other grant providers: - - - - - - - - _
[insert description]
Total operating expenditure of Transfers and Grant: 130,284 167,202 117 687 193,642 195,642 195,642 23726 pra il 2822
Capital expenditure of Transfers and Grants
National Government: 87,333 #4019 96,426 106,807 130,807 130,807 114,08 123,504 124620
Municipal Infrastruciure Geant (MIG) 63,670 3,374 3,666 81,407 105,407 105,407 84 00 &7 5 92820
- 8,145 12,260 15,000 13,000 13,000 25,000 30,000 25,000
- 2,500 10,500 10,400 10,400 10,400 5,000 6,000 7,000
Regional Bulk: nfastucture 4045 - - - = = = - -
Ofmer capital kansiers/grants [nser desc] 19,618 - - = = - - - -

Provincial Government: - - - - - - - - _
(Cfer capital ranciersigranis [insert
descripion]

District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -

[insert description]
Other grant providers: - - - - - - - - -
[insert description]
Total capital expenditure of Tranafers and Grants 87,333 34019 96,426 106,807 130,807 130,807 114,04 123,504 124 620
TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF TRANSFERS AND GRAN: 231,617 £ 21 14,113 2443 326,443 326,449 37,817 332 B4d 339,342
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Table SA20 - Reconciliation of transfers, grant receipts and unspent

funds

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA20 Reconciliation of transfers, grant receipts and unspent funds

Deacription

R thousand

Ref

212

23

201314

Current Year 2014/13

201516 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Audited
Quicome

Audited
Qutcome

Audited
Qutcome

Original
Budget

Adjusted
Budget

Full Year
Forecast

Budget Year | Budget Year : Budget Year
1316 ¢+ 2016147 ¢ +2 201718

Operating tranafers and grants:
National Government:
Balance unspent af beginning of he year
Current year receipis
Conditions met - tranaferred to revenue
Condifions <fll fo be met - Fansiemed i BabiiSes
Provincial Government:
Balance unspent at beginning of e year
Current year receipls
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Condifions sill fo be met - Fansiemed i Babiies
District Municipality:
Balance unspent af beginning of he year
Current year receipis
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Condifions oill to be met - ranciemed (o BabiiSes
Other grant providers:
Balance unspent af beginning of e year
Current year receipls
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Condifions sill fo be met - Fansiemed i BabiiSes

“eaa

150,284

167,202

177,687

195,642

185,642

185,642

MIB MWIW MW

150,384

167 303

177 67

195 543

185,643

185,643

BRI 6

Total operating transfers and grants revenue

50,364

a5 643

a5 g4

15,543

TR

Total operating tranafers and grants - CTEM

Capital transfers and grants:
Mational Government:
Balance unspent af beginning of e year
Current year receipls
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Condifions sill fo be met - Fansiemed i Rabiies
Pravincial Government:
Balance unspent af beginning of e year
Current year receipls
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Condifions s8ll to be met - ransiemed (o BabiiSes
District Municipality:
Balance unspent af beginning of e yesr
Current year receipls
Conditions met - tranaferred to revenue
Condifions sill fo be met - Fansiemed i BabiiSes
Other grant providers:
Balance unspent at beginning of e year
Current year receipls
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Condifions s8ll to be met - ransiemed (o BabiiSes:

“eas

87,33

4079
105,807

0,792
130,807

80,792
130,807

114,081 12354 1 1480

2,930

147 559

171589

171 589

T ST T

pILE

Total capital transfers and grants revenue

62,920

107,046

57,020

147,599

171,599

171,599

14081 1330 1460

Total capital transfers and grants - CTBM

24413

1,38

40,792

TOTAL TRANSFERS AND GRANTS REVENUE

213,204

74,248

407

343,241

367,241

367,241

WHT B2 390542

TOTAL TRANSFERS AND GRANTS - CTEM

WA

.38

4 73
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Table SA21 - Transfers and grants made

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA21 Transfers and grants made by the municipality

Description

R thousand

Ref

i1z

201213

21314

Current Year 2014/15

2013116 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Audited
Qutcome

Audited
Qutcome

Audited
Qutcome

Original
Budget

Adjusted
Budget

Full Year
Forecast

Pre-audit
outcome

Budget Year
201316

Budget Year
+1 201617

Budget Year
+2 21718

Cash Tranafers to other municipalities
Insert descripfion

Total Cash Transfers To Municipalities:

Cash Tranafers to Entities/Other External Mechanisms
Insert descripfion

Total Cash Tranafers To Entities/Ems’

Cash Tranafers to other Organs of State
Insert descripfion

Total Cash Transfers To Other Organs OF State:

Cash Tranafers to Organisations
Insert descripfion

Total Cash Transfers To Organisations

Cash Transfers to Groups of Individuals
Insert descripfion

wn

Total Cash Transfers To Groups OF Individuals:

TOTAL CASH TRANSFERS AND GRANTS

@

Non-Cash Transfers to other municipalities
Insert descripfion

Total Non-Cash Transfers To Municipalities:

Non-Cash Transfers to Entities/Other External Mechani

Insert descripfion

33

Total Non-Cash Transfers To Entities/Ems"

Non-Cash Transfers to other Organs of State
Insert descripfion

w

Total Non-Cash Transfers To Other Organs Of State:

Non-Cash Grants to Organisations
Insert descripfion

Total Non-Cash Grants To Organisations

Groups of Individuals
Insert descripfion

wn

Total Non-Cash Grants To Groups OF Individuals:

TOTAL NON-CASH TRANSFERS AND GRANTS

TOTAL TRANSFERS AND GRANTS

@
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Table SA22 - Summary councillor and staff benefits
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA22 Summary councillor and staff benefits

Summary of Employee and Councillar
remuneration

R thousand

Ref

201112

oy Pk

2013514

Current Year 20014/15

201316 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Audited
Cutcome

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Outcome

original
Budget

Adjusted
Budget

Full Year
Forecast

Budget Year
21516

Budget Year
+1 201617

Budget Year
+2 201718

Councillors {Political Office Bearers plus Othe

Basic Salaries and Wages

Pension and UIF Congibuions

Medical Aid Conibusons

Micior Vehicle ABowance

Celiphone Allowance

Housing ABDWaNCEs

Omer benefits and allowances
Sub Total - Councillors

% increase

Senior Managers of the Municipality
Basic Salaries and Wages
Pension and UIF Congibuions
Medical Aid Congibuions
Cruerfime
Performance Bonus
Mictor Wehicle Allowance
Celiphone Allowance

Housing Allowances

Odher benefits and allowances

Payments in Beu of leawve

Long service awards

Postrerement benefit obligatons

Sub Total - Senior Managers of Municipality

o increase

Other Municipal Staff
Basic Salaries and Wages
Pension and UIF Confribusons:
Medical Aid Conibusons
Orveriime:
Performance Bonus
Motor Wehicle Allowance
Celiphone Allowance
Housing Allowances
Odher benefits and allowances
Paymenis in Bsu of leave
Long service awards
st-refirement benefit obligaiions:
Sub Total - Other Municipal Staff
W increase

[E ]

@

L L L L

@

5,457

4705

157588
14.5%

4,991
1,288
278

920

5,568

4,291
1,288
278

920

3,381

6,190
(8. 7%)

284
5,543
4,951

302

L a

A
E

=
£

@ L
a
a
=}

3
6,678

[100.0%)

35,050

92,173
(3.0%)

109,432

Total Parent Municipality

115,349

19,540

17,116

114,239

134,256

Board Members of Entities
Basic Galaries and Wages
Pension and UIF Congibuions
Medical Aid Conkibuions
Cryerfinme:
Performence Bonus
Micior Wehicle Allowance
Celiphone Allowance
Housing ABowances
Omer benefits and alowances
Board Fees
Payments in Bbeu of keave
Long serwios awands
strefirement benelit obligaiions
Sub Total - Board Members of Entities
% increase

Senior Managers of Entities
Basic Salaries and Wages
Pension and UIF Congibuions
Medical Aid Conkibuions
Cruerfime
Performance Bonus
Mictor Wehicle Allowance
Celiphone Allowance
Housing Allowances
Odher benefits and allowances
Payments in Beu of leawve
Long servics awards
Postrerement benefit obligatons

Sub Total - Senior Managers of Entities
T INCrease

Other Staff of Entities
Basic Salarics and Wages
Pension and UIF Confribusons:
Medical Aid ContbuSons
Oruerime
Performance Bonus
Motor Wehicle Allowance
Celiphone Allowance
Housing Allowances
Odher benefits and allowances
Paymenis in Bsu of leave
Long service awards
st-refirement benefit obligaiions:
Sub Total - Other Staff of Entities
W increase

[

@

[EE ]

@

(R ]

@

24 3%

83 7%)

499 4%

[25%)

5.5%

Total Municipal Entities

TOTAL SALARY, ALLOWANCES & BENEFITS

92,768

115,349

19,540

117,116

114,239

114,239

127,257

134,256

141,371

W increase

24 3%

(83.1%)

499 4%

[2.5%)

11.4%

3.3%

5.3%

TOTAL MANAGERS AND STAFF

5.7

81,366

102,763

6,190

101,828

98,951

95,951

110,598

116,998

123,199
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Table SA23 - Salaries, allowances and benefits - councillors and

senior managers

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA23 Salaries, allowances & benefits (political office bearers/councillors/senior managers)

5al Contributions: Allow: Perf In-kind Total
Disclosure of Salaries, Allowances & Benefits 1. Ref an gwances reriormance. - fn-n ¢
Bonuses benefits Package
Nao.
Rand per annum 1. 2z
Councillars 3
Speaker 4 354,450 91,938 168,63 615,032
Chief Whip 378,901 48732 147,950 576,583
Execufve Mayor 477,700 100,763 190,325 768, 790
Deputy Execulive Mayor -
Execuiive Commilies 2 668 979 298,115 1,268 213 4 536, 306
Total for all oher councillors 4 906 955 1,750,034 3,204 788 9,881,779
Total Councillors ] - &, 786,996 2,591,583 4,979,920 16,358,439
Senior Managers of the Municipality ]
Municipal Manager (MM) 1,059,659 0,122 144,000 1,273,781
Chief Finance Oficer 758,349 0,122 144 000 973471
List of each offical with packages == senior manager
Direcior Comporaie Services -
Director Public Safety 758,345 0,122 144,000 7347
Direcior Technical Services 758,349 70,122 144,000 97347
Direcior Communily Services 738,349 70,122 144,000 97347
Direcior Planning & Economic Dewelopnent 758,349 70,122 144,000 97347
Manager PMU 758,345 0,122 144,000 7347
Total Senior Managers of the Municipality 810; - 5,615,753 490 354 1,008, 000 - T.114, 607
A Heading for Each Entity 6,7
Li=t each member of board by designalion
Total for municipal entities 810: - - - - - -
TOTAL COST OF COUNCILLOR, DIRECTOR and
: an 0 - | 14402749 1 3082437 5,987,920 - BATINT

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
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Table SA24 - Summary of personnel numbers

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table $A24 Summary of personnel numbers

Summary of Personnel Numbers Ref HA34 Current Year 2014/13 Budget Year 2015/16
Number 12 Positions Permanent | Contract Positions Permanent ;| Contract Positions Permanent | Contract
employees ;| employees employees | employees employees ;| employees
Municipal Council and Boards of Municipal Entities
Councillors {Poliical Ofice Bearers plus Other Councillors) 43 43 43 43 43 43
Board Membsrs of municipal enfies 4 - - -
Municipal employees 5 - - -
Municipal Manages and Senicr Managess 3 7 7 7 7 7 7
Cher Managers 7
Professionals 34 41 3 44 39 3 44 43 3
Finance 7 ) 1 1) 3 1 3 k]
Spatialtown planning 5 5 5 5 5 5
Information Technology 2 2 2 2 2 2
Roads
Electricity
Water
Sanifafion
Refuss
Othar
Technicians 316 316 - 316 316 - 36 316 -
Finance - - - - - -
Spatialtown planning - - - - - -
Information Technology 3 3 3 3 3 3
Roads L) L) a4 a a L)
Electricity 12 12 12 2 2 12
Water & & & & & &
Sanitation 4 4 14 4 4 14
Refuse % % % o] o] o]
Other 130 130 130 130 0 13
Clerks (Clenical and administaiive) 12 12 12 12 2 17
Service and sales workers
Siilled agniculiural and Bshery wiorkers
Craft and rclated rades
Plant and Maching Operalors
Elementary Occupalions
TOTAL PERSONNEL NUMBERS g 428 369 59 428 367 59 438 376 59
% increase - (0.5%) - - 25% -
Total municipal employees headcount 6, 10
Finance personnel headcount & 10
Human Resources personned headoount & 10
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Table SA25 - Budget monthly revenue and expenditure
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table $A25 Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure

Medium Term Revenue and Expenditure

Description Ref Budget Year 2015016
Framework
R thousand July August Sept. October | November | December | January February March April May June Budget Year | Budget Year ; Budget Year
1516 +1 29617 | +2 2017118
Revenue By Source
Property rales 3279 3,279 3,279 3,279 3279 3,279 3279 3279 3,279 3,279 3,279 3279 19,348 41,512 43,712
Propesty rates - penaliies & collecion changes - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Service charges - elecinicity revenue 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 24,858 26,267 27,659
Service charges - waler revenus 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 G621 5,985 7,355
Service charges - Sanitafion revenue 4 4 4 -4 4 M4 44 4 4 4 44 44 G,524 6,883 7,247
Service charges - refuse revenue 7 v 7 v 7 v 437 7 437 7 v 37 5,247 5,535 5,828
Service charges - ofer - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Rental of facilifies and equipment T0 70 T0 70 T0 T0 0 T0 70 T0 70 T0 835 581 827
Inferest eamed - exiemal mvesimenis 195 195 195 195 195 195 195 195 195 195 195 195 2,345 2475 2 605
Inferest camad - cutstanding deblors 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 1,563 18,751 19,782 20,83
Dividends received - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Fines 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 k] "7 134
Licences and permits - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Agency services 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 2457 2,592 2,728
Tramsiers recognised - operaional 91,271 68 243 68,453 - - ) ZFT7 58 240 508 253 253
Odher revenus T0 L2 52 L2 52 52 52 52 52 52 L2 245 234 530 927
(Gains on disposal of PPE - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers and cond 100,285 8,996 8,996 8,996 759 8,996 8.996 8,996 7,443 8,996 8,996 9,188 336,128 3534 615 373,409
Expenditure By Type
Employee related coste 9,242 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 8,047 110,858 116,988 123,199
Remuneraiion of councillors 1420 420 420 420 420 420 420 420 420 420 420 1,420 17,043 17,980 18,933
Debt impairment 2,506 1,432 1,432 1,432 1,432 1,432 1,432 1432 1,432 1,432 1,432 13,245 30,070 3,74 33,405
Deprecialon & asost imparment 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 5,581 66,975 70,658 74,403
Finance charges 21 &1 a1 21 a1 21 a1 21 a1 a1 21 a1 a7 1,031 1,085
Bulk purchazes 3,73 373 3,73 373 373 37X 373 3,73 373 3,73 373 373 44,782 47,245 42,743
Other malerials 1,917 1,117 1,017 1,117 1,917 1117 1,917 1,917 1,117 1,017 1,17 17 13,400 14,137 14,285
Confracied services 2,519 2,539 2,538 2,539 2539 2,510 2539 2,519 2,539 2,538 2,539 2539 30,470 12,145 33,850
Transiers and granis - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Ofher expendiure 5,604 5517 5517 5517 5517 5517 5517 5517 5517 5517 5517 7461 63,3 68,775 69,240
Less on dispesal of PPE - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditure 3,912 30,780 30,780 30,780 30,780 30,780 30,780 30,780 30,780 30,780 30,780 43123 32,938 400,693 418,750
Surplus/{Deficit) 68,373 (21,785) (21,785) (21,785) 46,459 (21,783) (21,785) (21,783) 46, 669 (21,785) (21,785) (34,035) [46.811) (46,079} (45,341)
Transiers recognised - capital - - - -
Contribulicns recognized - capit - - - -
Contibuted asseis - - - -
Surplus/{Deficit) after capital transfers & 683731 (2178 (ei7es) (21785} 464501 (2i7ss) (21785 (2785 466690 (2178s) (21785 (34.035) (46,811) [46,079) [45,341)
contributions
axalion - - - -
Amributable o mincrifes - - - -
Share of surplus/ (deficil) of associate - - - -
Surplus/{Deficit) 1 68,373 (21,785) (21,785) (21,785) 45,459 (21,783) (21,785) (21,783) 46,669 (21,785) (21,785) (34,035) [46.811) [46,079) (45,341)
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Table SA26 - Budget monthly revenue and expenditure (municipal vote)

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table $A26 Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure (municipal vote)

Medium Term Revenue and Expenditure

Description Ref Budget Year 2015116
Framework
R thousand July August Sept. October | Movember | December i January February March April May June Budget Year ; Budget Year Budget Year
201516 +1 201617 +2 2MTHE
Revenue by Vote
Municipal Manager - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Budget & Treasury 91,271 5,038 6,038 5,038 68,453 5,038 5,038 6,038 58,453 6,038 6,038 5,038 282 518 738,057 313,854
Comporaie Services T0 T0 70 T0 0 70 T0 70 T0 0 70 70 835 881 927
Community Services 455 455 455 455 455 455 455 455 455 455 455 455 5457 5,057 5,062
Public Sakety 231 23 231 23 231 231 23 231 23 231 23 23 2,771 2,923 3,078
Technical Senices 3,692 3,652 3,682 3,692 3,692 3,682 3,652 3,682 3,692 3,692 3,682 3,652 44 308 45,742 43,220
oie 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Dewelopment 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 24 24 258
Vole & - Execufive Mayor & Councl General - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Voie 9 - [NAME OF VOTE 9] - - - -
WVoie 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 10] - - - -
Veie 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11] - - - -
Voie 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 12] - - - -
WVoie 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 13] - - - -
Voie 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 14] - - - -
Woie 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15] - - - -
Total Revenue by Vote 93,739 10,305 10,305 10,503 72,921 10,305 10,305 10,305 T2 921 10,505 10,303 10,305 336,128 334,613 33,409
Expenditure by Vote to be appropriated
Municipal Manager T80 525 8§25 7] 825 8§25 525 8§25 7] 825 8§25 33 ] 8,873 10,356
Budgst & Treasury 9 568 9,568 9 558 9 568 9,558 9 568 9,568 9 558 9 568 9,558 9 558 9,568 4 816 121,131 127 551
Comporaie Services 1,855 214 Bl 1,914 914 914 214 Bl 914 914 1,914 1,265 22,263 23,488 24,733
Community Services 1,788 1,786 1,786 1,785 1,785 1,786 1,786 1,786 1,785 1,785 1,786 ] 21,480 22,540 23,540
Public Sakty 317 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3836 38,056 40,149 42 976
Technical Senices 11,084 11,342 11,342 11,342 11,342 1,342 1,342 11,342 11,342 11,342 11,342 B614 3342 40,445 47 550
Voie 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Dewelopment 787 414 &4 414 814 &4 414 &4 414 814 &4 o6 2447 9,956 10,425
Woie 8 - Execufive Mayor & Councl General 2,868 2,763 2,783 2,763 2,763 2,783 2,763 2,783 2,763 2,763 2,783 3916 34444 33,000 31,559
oie 9 - [NAME OF WOTE 9] - - - -
Woie 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 10] - - - -
Voiz 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11] - - - -
Woie 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 12] - - - -
Voie 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 13] - - - -
Voiz 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 14] - - - -
Woie 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15] - - - -
Total Expenditure by Vote 31,912 32,117 32117 32117 32,117 32117 32,117 32117 32117 32,117 32117 29,856 352,938 400,693 418,750
Surplus/[Deficit) before assoc. 63,827 (21.612) (21,612) (21,612) 40,804 (21,612) (21.612) (21,612) 40,504 [21.612) (21,612) (19.350) [46.811) [46.079) [45,341)
Taxalon - - - -
Afinbuiable fo minorifes - - - -
Share of surplus/ (defick) of associale - - - -
Surplus/(Deficit) 1 63,827 (21.612) (21,612) (21,612) 40,804 (21,612) (21.612) (21,612) 40,504 (21.612) (21,612) (19.330) (46.811) (46.079) (45,341)
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Table SA27 - Budget monthly revenue and expenditure by classification
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA27 Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure (standard classification)

Medium Term Revenue and Expenditure

Description Ref Budget Year 2001316
Framework
R thousand July August Sept. October | November | December | January February March April May June Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
2015116 +1 2016017 | +2 201THE
Revenue - Standard
Governance and administration 23,613 23,613 23,613 23,613 23,613 23,613 23,613 23,613 23,613 23613 23613 23,613 283,353 298,938 34781
Execufive and counc - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Budget and reasury office 3,543 3,543 3,543 23,543 23,543 23,543 23,543 23,543 3,543 3,543 3,543 23,543 282,518 238,057 313,854
Comoraie services T0 70 T0 T0 0 70 70 70 T0 T0 T0 T0 835 881 927
Community and public safety 248 243 243 243 243 248 248 248 248 248 248 248 2,581 3.145 3312
Communily and social services 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 210 27 234
Sport and recreafion - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Public sakty 23 23 23 23 31 31 31 31 23 23 23 23 2,771 2,923 3,078
Housing - - - - -
Healh - - - - -
Economic and environmental services 192 192 192 192 192 192 192 192 192 192 192 192 2,300 2,426 2,553
Planning and dewvelopment 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 249 254 258
Road ranspont 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 172 2,058 2172 2,287
Enwvironmenial protecion - - - - -
Trading services 3,607 3.607 3.607 3.607 3.607 3.607 3.607 3.607 3.607 3.607 3,607 3,607 43,289 45,670 43 090
Eleciricity 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 2,075 24,858 26,267 27 659
Waier 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 552 L5z 6,621 6,985 7,355
Waste waler management c44 tid tid tid t4d t44 t44 t44 t44 t44 t44 t44 6,524 6,883 7,247
‘Wasie management 437 437 437 437 437 437 437 437 437 437 437 437 5,247 5,535 5828
Other 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 4. 205 4 436 4671
Total Revenue - Standard 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 28,011 336,128 354,615 373,409
Expenditure - Standard
Governance and administration 15,071 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,070 15,080 180,851 190,798 200,911
Execusive and counci 3,648 3,588 3,558 3,558 3,558 3,588 3,588 3,588 3,588 3,588 3,568 4,247 43,772 45,179 48 627
Budget and reasury ofice 9,558 9,558 9,558 9,558 9,558 9,558 9,558 9 558 9 568 9 558 9 5658 9 558 114 816 121,131 127 551
Comoraie services 1,855 914 914 914 B4 S14 S14 814 814 814 214 1,265 22,263 23,488 24733
Community énd public safety 4.7 4,218 4,218 4,218 4,218 4,218 4,218 4318 4318 4318 4,318 5,017 31,490 34,322 57,201
Communily and social services T2 716 716 716 716 716 716 716 716 716 716 783 3,554 9,141 9,625
Sport and recneafion 355 353 358 358 k] 388 388 388 358 358 358 ¥ 4,770 033 5,298
Public sakty 3171 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,105 3,835 38,056 40,148 42276
Housing - - - - -
Healh - - - - -
Econemic and envirenmenizl services 1,877 1,845 1,845 1.845 1.545 1.845 1.845 1,845 1,845 1,845 1,845 2,196 22,526 23,764 25,024
Planning and development 787 214 214 214 214 a14 a14 214 414 214 214 o6 8,447 9,955 10,485
Read ansport 1,060 ,031 ,031 ,031 031 031 031 031 031 031 031 1,680 13,079 13,788 14,529
Environmental protecion - - - - -
Trading services 9.911 9.699 9.699 9.699 9,699 9,699 9,699 9,699 9,699 9,699 9,699 12,035 118,933 125,474 132,124
Eleciricity 0.575 5,482 5,482 5,452 5452 5,452 5,452 5,452 54582 54582 54582 L] 65,895 70,575 74,315
Water 3,081 3,081 3,081 3,051 3,061 3,081 3,081 3,081 3,081 3,051 3,051 3,081 38,969 38,003 41,070
‘Waste waler management T 528 528 528 528 528 528 528 528 528 528 1,177 7,043 7,431 7824
Wasie management 569 628 628 628 628 628 628 628 528 528 528 AT 8,025 8,457 8,915
Other TE2 65 68 68 T6d T6 T6 T68 T68 T68 T68 TH 9.138 6,334 3.490
Total Expenditure - Standard 3,912 31,600 31,600 31,600 31,600 31,600 31,600 31,600 31,600 31,600 31,600 35,030 352,938 400,693 418,730
Surplus/(Deficit) before assoc. (3.901) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (7.0:19) [46.811) (46.079) [45,341)
Share of surplus/ {deficil) of associale - - - -
Surplus/{Deficit) 1 (3.901) (3.569) (3.569) (3.569) (3.569) (3.589) (3.589) (3.589) (3,569) (3, 569) (3.569) (7.09) (46.811) (46,079) (45,341)
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Table SA28 - Budgeted monthly capital expenditure (municipal vote)

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table 5A28 Budgeted monthly capital expenditure (municipal vote)

Description

R. thousand

Ref

Budget Year 2013/16

Medium Term Revenue and Expenditure
Framework

July

August

Sept.

October

Nawv.

Dec.

January

Feb.

March

April

May

June

Budget Year ; Budget Year : Budget Year
2015116 +1 2011617 | +2 2017118

Multi-year expenditure to be appropriated
Municipal Managsr
Budget & Treasury
Corporaie Services
Community Services
Public Safety
Technical Serices
Voie 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Dewelopnent
Voie & - Execufive Mayor & Councll General
Woie 9 - [NAME OF WOTE 9]
Weie 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 10]
Voie 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11]
Voie 12 - [MAME OF VOTE 1
Voie 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 13]
Woie 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 14]
Woie 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]
Capital multi-year expenditure sub-total

]

Single-year expenditure to be appropriated
Municipal Managsr
Budget & Treasury
Corporaie Services
Community Services
Public Safety
Technical Serices
Voie 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Dewelopnent
Viole & - Execufive Mayor & Councl General
Woie 9 - [NAME OF WOTE 9]
Weie 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 10]
Voie 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11]
Voie 12 - [MAME OF VOTE 1
Woiz 13 - [NAME OF VOTE 13]
Woie 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 14]
Woie 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]
Capital single-year expenditure sub-total

L]

9,157

9157

9,157

9,157

9157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9157

9,157

9,157

Total Capital Expenditure

9,157

9157

9,157

9,157

9157

9157

9,157

9,157

9157

9,157

9,157
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Table SA29 - Budgeted monthly capital expenditure

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table 5A29 Budgeted monthly capital expenditure (standard classification)

Description

R thousand

Ref

Budget Year 201316

Medium Term Revenue and Expenditure

Framework

July

August

Sept.

October

Nov.

Dec.

January

Feb.

March

April

May

June

Budget Year
2015116

Budget Year
+ 201617

Budget Year
+2 H1THE

Capital Expenditure - Standard
Governance and administration

Execulive and counc

Budget and freasury ofice

Corporale services
Community and public safety

Community and social services

Sport and recreafion

Public safkty

Housing

Health

Economic and environmentzl services

Planning and development

Road ransport

Environmenial prodecion
Trading services

Blecticity

Water

Wasle waler management

Waste management
Other

9,157

47
5833
2907

9,157

o7
5,832
2,007

9,157

47
5,832
2,007

9,157

47
5,833
2,907

9,157

H7
5,833
2,907

9,157

a7
5,833
2,907

9,157

a7
5,833
2,907

9,157

47
5833
2907

9,157

497
5833
2907

9,157

447
5833
2907

9,157

447
5833
2907

Total Capital Expenditure - Standard

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

Funded by:

Mafional Govemment

Provincial Govemment

Disirict Municipality

Ofher ranskers and granis
Transfers recognised - capital
Public contributions & donations
Borrowing
Internally generated funds

8,157

8,157

8,157

8,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

Total Capital Funding

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157

9,157
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Table SA30 - Cash Flow Statements
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MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA30 Budgeted monthly cash flow

MONTHLY CASH FLOWS

Budget Year 2015/16

Medium Term Revenue and Expenditure
Framework

R thousand July August Sept. October Movember : December January February March April May June Budget Year | Budget Year ; Budget Year
1316 +1 201617 +2 201718
Cash Receipts By Source 1
Property rafes 1,269 1,921 10,345 1,269 1,269 1,269 1,269 1,269 1,269 1,269 1,269 1,585 25,576 25,983 28,413
Property raies - penales & collecion changes - - -
Service charges - elecinicily revenue 1,345 1,250 1,280 1,250 1,200 1,280 1,280 1,250 1,200 1,280 2,345 fiix] 16,184 17,074 17,579
Service changes - waler revenues 359 359 359 359 359 359 359 359 359 359 358 K 4303 4 540 4781
Service charges - sanilalon revenue o3 353 353 353 o3 353 353 353 o3 353 353 353 4,240 4,474 4711
Service changes - refuse revenue 284 234 284 284 284 284 284 284 284 284 284 284 3,410 3,588 3,788
Service charges - ofer - - -
Fental of facili$es and eguipment 70 0 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 0 83 81 @27
Inierest eamed - extemal nvesimenis 195 185 195 185 195 195 195 185 195 195 185 185 2,345 2475 2 606
Interest eamed - cutstanding deblors - - -
Dinvidends recsived - - -
Fines 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 300 1 i 334
Licences and permits - - -
AgEnCy SErVICES 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 2,457 2,592 2728
Transier receipis - operaional 91,271 58,453 58,243 (0} 227 058 p R 253 253
Oher rewenue T0 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 245 834 880 27
Cash Receipts by Source 95,450 4 T4 13,178 4102 T2, 555 4102 4102 4102 T2, 345 4102 5,158 4 505 258 454 304,319 320,447
Other Cash Flows by Source
Transier receipds - capitsl 45 449 38, 450 21,977 - 100, 885 119,129 119,989
Contribusions recognissd - capital & Confributed asseis -
Procesds on disposal of PPE -
Short term loans -
Bomrowing long fermuinefinancing -
Increase (decrease) in consumer deposils -
Decreass (ncreass) i non-current debiors -
Decreass (Morease) ofer non-curment reseivables -
Decreass (NCAEaSE) I non-cument invesimenis -
Total Cash Receipts by Source 144 393 4. 754 13,178 4 102 111,015 4102 4 102 4 102 94 322 4102 5,158 4 505 358,340 423 447 440 436
Cash Payments by Tyvpe
Employes relsied costs 9,242 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,351 9,361 9,361 9,361 9,351 9,361 8,047 110,858 116,998 123,199
Remuneralion of councillors 1,420 1,420 1,420 420 1,420 1,420 1,420 420 1,420 1,420 1,420 1,420 17,043 17,980 18,933
Finance charges 21 a1 81 81 21 81 81 81 21 81 81 81 orT 1,031 1,085
Baulk purchases - Elecincity 3732 372 3732 3732 3,732 372 3732 3732 3,732 372 3732 3,732 44 782 47 245 48 749
Bulk purchases - Waler & Sewer - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Omher matenials 1,117 1,117 1,117 A7 1,117 1,117 1,117 A7 1,117 1,117 1,117 1,117 13,400 14,137 14,885
Confracted services 2539 2,539 2,539 2,530 2,539 2,539 2,539 2,530 2,539 2,539 2,538 2,538 30,470 32 145 33,850
Transfers and grants - ofer municipalifes - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transiers and granis - ofer - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other expendiure o, 50 4,843 4,843 4,843 4,843 4,843 4,843 4,843 4,843 4,843 4,843 14,205 58,324 TZ,082 73,902
Cash Payments by Type 23.824 23,093 3,093 3,093 23.093 23,093 3,093 3,093 23.093 23,093 3,093 3 A4 285,893 301,618 317,603
Other Cash Flows/Payments by Type
Capital assets 9157 9,157 9,157 9,157 9157 9,157 9,157 9,157 9157 9,157 9,157 9,157 109,885 119,129 119,589
Repayment of bomowing -
Odher Cash Flows/Paymenis -
Total Cash Payments by Type 32,982 32,250 32 250 32,250 32,250 32,250 32 250 32,250 32,250 32,250 32250 A0, 795 395,780 420,746 437,592
MET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD 111,97 (27 .496) [19.072) (28, 148) T8. 763 (28, 148) (8, 148) (28, 148) 62,072 (28, 148) [27.,092) (35, 793) 2,560 2T 2,844
Cashicash equivalents at e monfyoar begm: 1,457 113,374 85877 o, B 38,657 117,423 8 274 el 120 32,978 95, 050 oo, 202 39 810 1,457 407 5,718
Cashicash equivalenis at e mond/year end: 113,374 85,877 &5, 305 LTl 117,423 28,274 61,125 32878 95,050 55, 902 35,810 4017 407 6,718 9,562
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Table SA32— Capital expenditure on new assets by asset class

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table 5A32 List of external mechanisms

. Moneta
) Period of Expiry date of v
External mechanism . . value of
Yral | agreement 1. ) . service delivery
Service provided agreement 2.
Mth3 a0 rﬂﬁment '
Name of organisation Number contract R thousand
Sanlam Guaranieed Capital Fund No makurity dale TG
Fand Merchant Bank RME Money Market 25 May 2002 1495
Stoniib Money Market No maturity date 2,083
Sanlam Listed Inwesiment 813
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Table SA34d - Repairs and Maintenance
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MP3I01 Allbert Luthuli - Supportimng Table SAZ4c Repairs amnd maintemance expenditure by asset class

Dre-scription

R thousand

Ref

1

2011512

201EM13F

2013014

Current Year 2004515

2013016 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

&S udited
Cutcome

Audited
Cutcomee

Sudited
Cutco e

Orriginal
Budget

Adjusted
Budget

Full Wear
Forecast

Budget YWear
2015516

Budget Year
+1 2016517

Budget YWear
+ZF FOATIAS

Repairs and maintenance exp-enditure boa

Sub-—class

Infrastructure

nfraceruciune - Roaed sran-spoet

FRoads, Pavements & Brdges

SrowmT wweather
Infasssucture - Elecoracitys
Sencration
Transmission & Reticolation
Streat Lighting
Infrastuciurs - Water
Dams & Resernsmodirs
Mt er purification
Reficiulation
Infrasueciune - Saniason
Reticwlation
Sewwerage puarification
Infrastruwciune - O@her
Mraste Adanagemaerst
Transportation
Sas
O faer

Community
Parks & gardens
Sportsiolds 5 Stodea
SwEnrnEnG Peo-ols
Crommunity halls
Librarices
Recreasonal facilescs
Firs, safety & ormergency
Security and polcEng
Buses
CEnics
Muscunms & A Salleries
Cermetsnes
Social rental howsng
Caher

Investment properties
HorsEng derwnelopaeent
e

Other assets
Ceereeral wehibches
Speecialiced wehsches
FPlant & aguipaneenit

Compauters - haedheeraene s aopuiipeanmeent
Fumiturne and ofher ofce sguipameent

AUbsmcirs
hAsckosts

Ciwic Land and Buldngs
Cher Buildngs

Csheer s

Surplus Assets - (EesSIeent or nrueensoryr

Ol

Agricultural assets
Lisf sub-clas=s

Eiological assets
List sub-class

Intangibles

Compuiers - Soffurans S PnC-gerSmnnED

Caher (list swub-class)

23, 16D

12, 10

U e

LTSS

15, 405

16, 252

L1

=z, 254
> 25

15, Qa7

LE

2, 388

Z 388

3, 50
3, 520

Z 1S
= 1D

1,873

ErE

3. 8az
=, B

1,873

5, 30
17D
170

12D

LT
71

=
Y

W

ER-0 ]

4,359
a, 350

A, 50

A, 50

a4, 552
a, 5o

a.7as

.8z
saz

LI
a
=,

e

555
S55

Sa1Z

Tz

DT

540

8, 507

ST

1S

Total Repairs and Maintenance Expoc

nditure

=3, 823

11,688

13,355

13,470

13,470

16, 350

17249

18, 163

Specialised wehicles
Refuss
Fi-=
Cronsereancy
Uil

&M as a8 %% of PPE

RE&W as 2% Operating Expenditure

ow
N
&8

W
88
&




Table SA34d - Depreciation by Asset Class
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MPZ01 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SAZ4d Depreciation by asset

class

Drescription

R thousand

Ref

2019512

a1 T e

e T B

Current YWear 2014515

2015516 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Audited
Crutcorme

Audited
Drutcome

Audited
Trutcorme

rriginal
Budget

Adjusted
Budget

Full Wear
Forecast

Budget YWear
2015716

Budget YWear
=1 2016517

Budget Year
+ZF TS

Depreciation by Asset ClassiSub-class
Infrastructure

Infrassuciurs - Foad ranspesort
Road=s, Pavements & Brdges
Stormr waler

Infractruciurs - Elscarscity
SoReration
Transmission & Reticilstion
Str=et Lighting

Infrastuwcture - Wisier
Dams & Reservoirs
Watrer purification
Reticulation

Infrastnueciurns - SaniEsSon
Reticulation
Sewerage purification

Infrassnuciuns - Ofeer
WMaste Adanagerment
Transouort ation
Sas
Other

Cormurmyurn ity
Parks & garden=
Sporisields & siadia
S Peoeois
Chomimunity halls
Libraries
Faecreasonal ocilieces
Fir=, safcty & smeerngency
Secwurity and pollcang
Buses
TN o=
Mussums & At Galleries
Cenmmeieries
Soecial rental housing
Odver

Heritane assets
Buildogs:
Odver

Inwvestment properties
Howsing dewelopamesnt
Oxver

Other assets
Se=meeral wehickes
Speecialised wehickes
Plant & Squipnment
Conmputsrs - handhnrsrsSssguipanne=ni
Fumiture and oher ofics aguipnment
Ahasonrs
Maric=is
Ciwic: Land and Builkdengs
Osher Bulldengs
Oxdher Land
Swurplus Acssis - (Inwestment or Inceeniory )
Odher

Sgricultural assets
List sub-class

Biological assets
List sub-class

Intangibles
Compuiers - Sofhvrars & pec-granminiroy
Osner (st sub-class)

83,684

S S0

D5, 388

@5, 388

95 388

5.4 555

57, 556

TE, ST
T, &0

L=y

S

Lo v ]

D, D23

o
LIl 's]

a0, TES
a0, TES

(=2

[ s ]

12, a0

12,904

[=r:0
S8

45,548
45,5

Q

(L]
]
\l.'l ¥

56

5,014
75,014

A3, 8D

13,820

2,807
2, 80T

LD

i
i

3,016

1,973

75,014
75,014

A3, 820

13,820

=, B0T
2, S0T

el 3

]

5,004
75,004

=W b

]

1,973

32, 58
32, 58

TIA

T4

14,545

14,849

2,97
2,978

197

]

15,455

i

i )

, 140
140

ST

]
[
=
[

2, 01

2,323

2,08

2,775

A

ik
[- il
&

TS

3,493

3,493

3,493

7831

5]

[

[

&, 251

Total Depreciation

D3, 430

63, 235

103, 210

103, 210

103, 210

66,975

T 65D

T4, 403

IJL




Table SA35 - Future Financial Implication on capital budget
MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table SA35 Future financial implications of the capital budget

Vote Description

R thousand

Ref

2015016 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Forecasts

Budget Year
21516

Budget Year
+1 21617

Budget Year
+2 HATHE

Forecast
21819

Forecast
HHYH

Forecast
220721

Present
value

Capital expenditure
Municipal Manager
Budget & Treasury
Corporale Services
Community Services
Public Saiety
Technical Serices
Voie 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Development
Voie § - Execulive Mayor & Councll General
Vole 9 - [NAME OF VOTE 9]
otz 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 10]
Vole 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11]
Vote 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Voie 13 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Volz 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Vole 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]
Lizt entity summary if applicable
Total Capital Expenditure

L8

o

Future operational costs by vote
Municipal Manager
Budget & Treasury
Corporale Services
Community Services
Public Saely
Technical Serices
Vole 7 - Planning & Ecomomic Developnment
Voie § - Execulive Mayor & Councll General
Vole 9 - [NAME OF VOTE 9]
Voie 10 - [NAME OF VOTE 10]
Vole 11 - [NAME OF VOTE 11]
Vole 12 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Voie 13 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Vodz 14 - [NAME OF VOTE 1
Vole 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15]
List entify summary if applicable
Total future operational costs

L JEC_ R BTN

Future revenue by source
Property rales
Propesty rales - penalies & collecion changes
Service charges - elechicily revenue
Service charges - walsr revenue
Service changes - sanitafion revenue
Service charges - refuss revenue
Service charges - ofer
Fental of faciliSes and equipment
List ather revenues sowrces if applicable
Lizt entity summary if applicable

Total future revenue

[}

f09, 586

119,129

§19, 589

Net Financial Implications

109,586

119,129

119,989
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Table SA36 - Detailed Capital expenditure

MP301 Albert Luthuli - Supporting Table $A36 Detailed capital budget

2015118 Medium Term Revenue &

Municipal Vote/Gapital project Indivituzlly Approved Rsset Class Asset Sub-Class GPS co-rdinates Priot year outcomes ) Project information
1P (o Expenditure Framework
Program/Project description Pt God Tol Pt Current Year
number | cofe Esinae . Audes 20415 | Budget Year ; Budget Year : Budget Year New or
R thousand 1 § 3 3 } Qutcome BllYer | @6 | HAEN | 22 VWard location -
A
Forecast
Parent municipality;
List all capita projects grouped by Municipal Vate
Upgrauing of Water Schemes Yes Inirastructurs - Water Dams & Resenvoirs 60,442 18,000 14,000 18,000 (15,1741, 22623
placement of AG Fipalines Water Scheme Yes Infrastructuss - Wter Reficulation 7,00 200 30,000 (10,13,14,15,16,18, 20, 1 2224825
Water Services Operating Subsidy Yes Infrastructurs - Water Dams & Reservoirs 15,000 300 25,000 (4367910111314 180,24 § 2
Upgrading of WWTW Yes nrastructurs - Sanitation Sewerage puriication %118 85 a8 30500 457901314 1516,17.18.202,
ing of Silobela Substation/Addtion fo short F Yes Irastructurs - Electrcty Transmission & Refizulation 1 5000 6,000 T |52 ;
Electrificafion of Boreholes Yes Infrastructure - Other Transmission & Refizulation 10,000 13436,789.10,11,12
119
Parent Capital expenditure 0988 1918 119989
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APPROVED TARIFFS FOR 2015/2016

2015-16

Approved Tariffs

TARIFFS INC. VAT

CORPORATE SERVICES

TOWN HALL OFFICES & BUILDINGS

EKULINDENI, MOOIPLAAS, ELUKWATINI, CAROLINA, SILOBELA

STEYNSDORP EEEMANZANA AND TJAKASTAD

RESIDENTS RESIDING WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL AREA

RENTAL

Dance, Wedding, Reception, Film shows 320.40
Public meetings - Political 320.40
Public meetings - Community 213.60
Public meetings - Business 442.46
Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 442.46
Concerts and drama shows - amateur 175.46
Music - vocals 175.46
Music - intsruments 442.46
Registered welfare organistations -
Non-registered welfare organisations 175.46
Community awareness - government FREE
Community awareness - non-government organisations 175.46
Week-end camps - churches 320.40
Week-end camps - other 534.01
Creches,nursery schools &grade R 190.72
PEOPLE/INSTITUTIONS OUTSIDE THE MUNICIPAL AREA -
RENTAL -
Dance, Wedding, Reception, Film shows 534.01




Public meetings - Political 534.01

Public meetings - Comminity 442.46
Public meetings - Business 709.47
Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 709.47
Concerts and drama shows - amateur 320.40
Music - vocals 320.40
Music - intsruments 701.84
Registered welfare organistations 350.92
Non-registered welfare organisations 175.46
Community awareness - government FREE

Community awareness - non-government organisations 373.80
Week-end camps - churches 442.46
Week-end camps - other 701.84
Creches,nursery schools &grade R 317.35

TOWN HALL OFFICES & BUILDINGS -

MAYFLOWER, FERNIE-A&B, GLENMORE, SWALLOWSNEST, DIEPDALE -

RESIDENTS RESIDING WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL AREA -

RENTAL -
Dance, Wedding, Reception, Film shows 345.38
Public meetings - Political 345.38
Public meetings - Comminity 230.25
Public meetings - Business 476.95
Public meetings : Political, Community, Business FREE

Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 476.95




Concerts and drama shows - amateur 189.14
Music - vocals 189.14
Music - intsruments 476.95
Registered welfare organistations 189.14
Non-registered welfare organisations 139.80
Community awareness - government FREE
Community awareness - non-government organisations 189.14
Week-end camps - churches 345.38
Week-end camps - other 575.63
Creches,nursery schools &grade R 205.58
PEOPLE/INSTITUTIONS OUTSIDE THE MUNICIPAL AREA -
RENTAL -
Dance, Wedding, Reception, Film shows 575.63
Public meetings - Political 575.63
Public meetings - Comminity 476.95
Public meetings - Business 764.76
Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 764.76
Concerts and drama shows - amateur 345.38
Music - vocals 345.38
Music - intsruments 756.54
Registered welfare organistations 378.27
Non-registered welfare organisations 189.14
Community awareness - government FREE
Community awareness - non-government organisations 402.94
Week-end camps - churches 476.95




Week-end camps - other 756.54
Creches,nursery schools &grade R 342.09
STADIUM -
ELUKWATINI -
RESIDENTS RESIDING WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL AREA -
RENTAL -

Public meetings - Political 2,222.57
Public meetings - Community 1,662.93
Public meetings - Business 1,918.76
Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 367.76
Concerts and drama shows - amateur 279.82
Music - vocals 1,391.10
Music - intsruments 1,662.93
Music: promotions and marketing - instruments 1,392.33
Music: promotions and marketing - vocals 647.58
Registered welfare organistations 464.93
Non-registered welfare organisations 464.93
Community awareness - government FREE
Community awareness - non-government organisations 183.88
Churches 1,199.23
Soccer : Proffessional 1,662.93
Soccer : Amateur 559.64
Soccer : Schools 330.99




PEOPLE/INSTITUTIONS OUTSIDE THE MUNICIPAL AREA

RENTAL -

Public meetings - Political 4,437.14
Public meetings - Community 3,325.85
Public meetings - Business 2,774.21
Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 463.70
Concerts and drama shows - amateur 367.76
Music - vocals 1,662.93
Music - intsruments 2,222.57
Music: promotions and marketing - instruments 1,854.80
Music: promotions and marketing - vocals 1,111.28
Registered welfare organistations 1,391.10
Non-registered welfare organisations 1,391.10
Community awareness - government FREE
Community awareness - non-government organisations 279.82
Churches 1,391.10
Soccer : Proffessional 3,325.85
Soccer : Amateur 1,111.28
Soccer : Schools 647.58
STADIUM -
MAYFLOWER EKULINDENI AND SILOBELA -
RESIDENTS RESIDING WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL AREA -
RENTAL -

Public meetings - Political 2,222.57




Public meetings - Community 1,662.93
Public meetings - Business 1,854.80
Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 367.76
Concerts and drama shows - amateur 279.82
Music - vocals 1,391.10
Music - intsruments 1,662.93
Music: promotions and marketing - instruments 1,391.10
Music: promotions and marketing - vocals 647.58
Registered welfare organistations 463.70
Non-registered welfare organisations 463.70
Community awareness - government -
Community awareness - non-government organisations 183.88
Churches 1,207.22
Soccer : Proffessional 1,662.93
Soccer : Amateur 559.64
Soccer : Schools 335.78
PEOPLE/INSTITUTIONS OUTSIDE THE MUNICIPAL AREA -
RENTAL -

Public meetings - Political 4,437.14
Public meetings - Community 3,325.85
Public meetings - Business 2,774.21
Concerts and drama shows - Proffessional 463.70
Concerts and drama shows - amateur 367.76

Music - vocals




1,662.93

Music - intsruments 2,222.57
Music: promotions and marketing - instruments 1,854.80
Music: promotions and marketing - vocals 1,119.28
Registered welfare organistations 1,391.10
Non-registered welfare organisations 1,391.10
Community awareness - government FREE
Community awareness - non-government organisations 279.82
Churches 1,391.10
Soccer : Proffessional 3,325.85
Soccer : Amateur 1,111.28
Soccer : Schools 647.58
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT -
BUILDING PLAN FEES -
Approval of building plans per square meter or part thereoff-Residential 11.34
Approval of building plans per square meter or part thereoff-Business 17.01
Approval of building plans per square meter or part thereoff-usage not

included above 9.64
REZONING OR SUBDIVISION -
Residential per application 1,498.37
Commercial per application 2,247.55
Industrial per application 2,749.07
Farm per application 2,378.81




Per application not included above 2,749.07
SPECIAL CONSENT -

Per application 1,783.18
Approval of building plans:construction of cellphone masts 2,378.81
RELAXATION OF BUILDING LINE -

Per application 1,213.55
CHANGE/ADDITION OF LAND -
Residential to include tuckshop/tavern per application 3,269.16
Other changes/additions per application 3,023.98
Consolidation application 2,427.11
Inspection fees 288.54
Sewer 108.20
Electricity 288.54
Fencing 288.54
Building alterations 288.54
Occupation certificate 288.54
COPIES FOR PLANS -

A0 Black and White 72.14
A0 Colour 144.27
A2 Black and White 36.07
A2 Colour 72.14
Al Black and White 54.10
Al Colour 108.20




FINANCE

ASSESMENT RATES

MARKET VALUE(cents in the rand)

Residential and Churches 0.016054873
Sectional Scheme unit used for residential 0.016054873
Smallholding used for residental purposes 0.016054873

Business zoned properties used for residential purpose only and occupied by
owner

0.016054873

Business 0.032109746
Industrial 0.032109746
Mining 0.032109746

Government with a 20% rebate

0.032109746

Farm land used for residential

0.004013718

Farm land used for business & commercial

0.004013718

Farm land used for agricultural

0.004013718

Farm land used for township

0.004013718

Farm land used for other purposes

0.004013718

Public service infrastructure with a 30% reduction on market value

0.016054873

Private infrastructure used for residential purpose

0.012041155

Private infrastructure used for business and other purpose

0.024082309

Properties not included above

0.032109746

PROPERTY RATE REBATES

PENSIONERS AND DISABILITY PENSIONERS

Up to R13,000.00 income per annum

0.515923200

From R13,000.01 to R14,000.00 income per annum

0.343948800




From R14,000.01 to R15,000.00 income per annum

0.286624000

UP TO R49,290.00 COMBINED INCOME PER ANNUM

0.229299200

RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY WITH MARKET VALUE LESS THAN R.60,000.00

THAT ARE OF AN R.D.P. STANDARDS AS PER THE APPLICABLE

MARKET TRENDS

Registered in the name of a natural person

1.031846400

Government Properties

0.229299200

REBATES ON NEWLY RATEABLE PROPERTY

2014-15FINANCIAL YEAR

NEWLY PRIVATE INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

FIRST 85% OF RATEABLE VALUATION FOR A MAXIMUM PERIOD

OF 2 YEARS SUBJECT THAT ALL CONDITIONS ARE MET IN TERMS

OF CLAUSE 10.3.13 OF THE RATES POLICY OF COUNCIL

RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY USED FOR

RESIDENTIAL PURPOSES

FIRST R15,000 OF THE MARKET VALUE OF SUCH A PROPERTY

Service charges (flat rate)

(where there is no metered services)

Household, Churches 55.00
Business/Industry, Government 500.00
Properties not included above 55.00

DEPOSITS - WATER




Owners -New households & Defaulters 360.70
Tenants -New households & Defaulters 360.70
New Business/Industrial and defaulters 903.91
New Registered Indigents-Household Income R0.00 -R1100.00 -
DEPOSITS - ELECTRICITY -
Owners -New households & Defaulters 1,572.42
Tenants -New households & Defaulters 1,572.42
New Small Business/Industrial and defaulters 1,572.42
New bulk users Business/Industrial and defaulters based on average

consumption -

New Other Business/Industrial and defaulters not included above 2,341.89
New pre-payment users and defaulters 776.17
New Registered Indigents-Household Income R0.00 -R1100.00 -
CERTIFICATES -
Clearance Memorandum Fee 78.12
Clearance Certificate Fee 2.65
Valuation Certificate Fee 6.50
FEES PAYABLE IN TERMS OF THE ACCES TO INFORMATION -

ACT -

(a) In respect of the search of any index to any account not in a service register | 4.71

(b) In respect of the search of any index to an account in a service register 3.14

(water, sanitation, sewerage, miscellancous debts, etc.)

(c) For the inspection of any deed, document or diagram or any details




4.71

relaing thereto.

(d) In respect of any search for information where a fee for such search has

not been prescribed by (a), (b), or (c) above:-

for every hour or portion thereof and

per page 1.36
(e) Electronic Info - per hour or portion thereof -
(f) Pinting of Proof of residence 1.20
E-Mail / Stiffy - Valuation Roll or Consolidate Balance Report 140.00ph
DEMAND NOTICES -
Administration fee 34.91
FEES PAYABLE IN TERMS OF SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT -
REGISTRATION ON SUPPLIER"S DATA BASE -
(a) category 1-professional service provider"s 342.81
(b)category 2-non emerging suppliers data base(objective above R100,000.00 342.81
© category 3-emerging contractor data base (objectives between R0.00 TO
R100,000.00 -
TENDER DOCUMENTS -
Payment of Bid documents for tender amount up to 2m 517.68
Payments for Bid documents from > 2m 601.13

COMMUNITY SERVICES

PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION




Registration of Food Premises 493.16
Inspection of re-registration of food premises 246.70
Hawkers licence per year 80.55
PUBLIC HEALTH : SANITATION -
Garden refuse per load 252.47
REFUSE REMOVAL(ALL AREAS) -

Bin removal - household and churhes 63.47
Bin removal - Business 317.36
Bins removal twice a week_government institutions 317.36
Bin Removal -Properties not included above 317.36
Garden refuse and rubbles per load 238.18
Special waste removal per load 200.00
Special removal or request(bulk containers) per km(additional to container

fee) 11.51
Special removal or request(Pets Carcasses) 265.00
Refuse removal outside working area:per kg or part thereoff 10.24
LIBRARIES -
FEES -

Fines for late material (per item/week) 44,93
Photocopiers : -

A4 (per copy) 1.24

A3 (per copy)




2.60

Membership fees renewable after three years:per adult 55.59
Membership fees renewable after three years:children( first two,rest free) 43.82
Printing -
Black and white documents without graphics per page 1.73
Black and white documents with graphics per page 2.31
Colour documents without graphics per page 2.31
Colour documents with graphics per page 3.61
Internet: Searching for 15 minutes or part thereoff 37.39
E-mail -
Sending of mail per page 8.42
Receiving per 15 minutes or part thereoff 18.57
CEMETRY -
HIGH LEVEL OF SERVICE:CAROLINA AND EMANZANA -
People living inside Municipla Area -
Single grave : Adult 519.37
Children 389.53
Special grave 714.14
Single grave 8ft. deep 596.32
Re-opening 207.75

People living outside Municipal Area




Single grave : Adult 1,103.67
Children 519.37

Special grave 1,103.67

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICE:SILOBELA -

People living Inside Municipal Area -

Single grave : Adult 180.34
Children 120.23

People living outside Municipal area -

Single grave : Adult 480.90
Children 300.56

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICE:ELUKWATINI/EKULINDENI -

People living Inside Municipal Area -

Single grave : Adult 180.34
Children 120.23

People living outside Municipal area -

Single grave : Adult 204.38
Children 144.27

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICE:EMPULUZI

People living Inside Municipal Area

Single grave : Adult




180.34

Children 120.23
People living outside Municipal area -
Single grave : Adult 204.38

Children 144.27
Exhume and rebury -
EEMANZANA 601.13
Carolina 601.13
Silobela 300.56
Empuluzi 300.56
Ekulindeni 300.56
Elukwatini 300.56
SUNDRY TARIFFS -
Erection of tompstone 60.11
Payment of services on pauper burial (expenditure) 1,442.70

TECHNICAL SERVICES

ELECTRICITY SERVICES

Connections

In town : Conventional meters

Actual+18%+vat

Prepaid meters

Actual+18%+vat

Rural areas

Actual+18%+vat

Re-connection Fees




During office hours 287.69

After Hours 578.30
Defaulters 578.30

Meter test fee 1,031.01

Test reading 247.84

Meter Test Fee

In Town

Single fase 619.60

Three Fase 826.15

Rural areas Actual+18%+vat

ELECTRICITY AVAILABILITY FEE :

VACANT ERF OR PROPERTY

ALL AREAS

PER MONTH

Household, Churches 246.73

Business& Government 495.60

Industry and bulk commercial users 1,132.75

Properties not included above 495.60

ELECTRICITY AVAILABILITY FEE IMPROVED PROPERTY

EXCLUDING VAT

ALL AREAS

PER MONTH

UNIT TARIFF CONVENTIONAL METERS

ALL AREAS

Domestic Tariffs

Indigent - Block 1 (0-50) Free
c/kwh

Non Indigent Block 1 (0 - 50 kwh) 79.76

Block 2 (51 - 350kwh)




104.16

Block 3 (351 - 600kwh) 136.13
Block 4 ( 600+ kwh) 160.70
Prepaid & Conventional c/kwh
Block 1 (0 - 50 kwh) 84.77

Block 2 (51 - 350kwh) 107.98
Block 3 (351 - 600kwh) 140.70
Block 4 ( 600+ kwh) 165.76

Industrial Tariffs

Basic Charge in Rand Value 1,151.32
Demand Charge per kVA 192.60
Energy Charge c/kwh 74.11

All high voltage consumers per kva(bulk supply)

Commercial Tariffs

Commercial Conventional : 60A

Basic Charge in Rand Value 494.55

Energy Charge c/kwh 123.75

Commercial Prepaid :60A

Energy charge c/kWh 169.00

PRE-PAYMENT TARIFF

Household, Churches 1.53

Fines for tampering with meters 5,506.23

TECHNICAL SERVICE : SEWERAGE




CONNECTION FEES

for 110mm where there is a connection point 2,293.10
for 110 mm where there is no connection point 3,439.65
for connection larger than 110 mm 4,127.58
SEWERAGE SERVICE FEES

ALL AREAS (per month)

House, Churches and Church halls 179.15
Basic for businesses,industry & government 179.15
Business per toilet 52.38

All residential erven with market value less than R60,000.00 registered in name

of 53.20

a natural person 66.45

All areas basic where property not included above-Baisic Charge 179.15
All areas basic where property not included above-per toilet add charge 52.38
Night Soil 30.49
HoneySucker,septic tank (rate per load),rate by distancechargesshall be

applicable 561.80
WATER SUPPLY AND SERVICES -
CONNECTION FEE : -

15 mm 2,761.54
19mm 2,761.54
25mm including labour, price increace and tar repairs 2,761.54

Larger connections




WATER RE-CONNECTION FEE

During office hours 181.69
After Hours 363.37
Defaulters 363.37
Meter test fee 401.68
Test reading 155.73
FINES AND OTHER FEES -
Fines for tampering with meters 4,994.10
Enquiry on prepaid meter 32.22
WATER UNIT TARIFFS
PER UNIT CONSUMPTION
Households and churhes : 1-6 ki FREE
7-15 ki 4.87
16-20 kI 5.86
21-40 KL 7.22
above 41 ki 8.17
Business,industry & 1-6 ki 4.87
Government 7-15 kl 4.87
16-20 ki 5.86
21-40 KL 7.22
above 41 kl 8.17
Departmental per ki 4.87

Properties not listed above: tariffs as per business, industry& government




Water delivery by road tanker (per kl) 6.11
Charge for water supplied 7.29
Delivery charge At Cost
Minimum prepayment (i.e special events) 769.94
WATER AVAILABILITY CHARGE(BASIC CHARGE) -
VACANT ERF OR PROPERTY(ALL AREAS) -

PER MONTH 80.63
Household, churches 78.94
Business, Industry & Government 78.94
Properties not included above -
IMPROVED STANDS OR PROPERTY -

ALL AREAS -

PER MONTH -
Housholds using 6 kl or less water per month 77.06
Household, churches 78.94
Business, Industry & Government 77.58
All erven with landvalue more than R4000.00 not connected and according to

Council 77.15
can be connected 78.94

Properties not included above

PUBLIC SAFETY

FIRE BRIGADE SERVICE




Within Municipal area

170.24

Call out fee -
Equipment/appliances per hour/part thereof 61.47
Portable equipment 64.85
Appliances 103.52
Service vehicle 207.03
Fire engine 224.50
Personnel per hour/part thereof: 260.35
Chief fire/Traffic Officer 231.98
Station Officer/Superintendent 154.65
Fireman/Traffic Officer 103.52
Other officers 83.56
Media used 3.72
Water per kl. 3.62
Fire fighting foam per 25 liters 1,568.17
DCP Fire extinghuisher per 9kg 385.38
CO2 Fire extinghuisher per 7kg 497.63
Road marking paint 25 liters 765.28
Outside Municipal Area 350.73
Call out fee 336.74
Equipment/appliances per hour/part thereof 102.52
Portable equipment 64.85
Appliances 103.52
Service vehicle 207.03
Fire engine 224.50

Personnel per hour/part thereof:




536.26

Chief fire/Traffic Officer 510.73
Station Officer/Superintendent 337.24
Fireman/Traffic Officer 224.40
Other officers 181.59
ADVERTISING SIGNS (ALL AREAS) -
Application fees: -
Sign types 2 (ground signs), 3(wall signs), 4 (roof signs) and 5 (veranda signs,
balcony, 204.08
canopy and under awning sings) 198.13
Sign type 1 (billbaords) and all non-localicty bound sings in excess of 12 square
meters 603.92
Sign type 6 (posters, banners and flags) 70.09
Approval fee: -
Sign types 1,2,3,4 and 5 per square meter of advertising, display or part
thereof with a 52.53
Sign types 6 (posters, banners and flags): -
For non-profit bodies only -
For religious, sporting, social, cultural, political and other events -
For commercial purposes -

FEES FOR LAND USE APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF
THE PROPOSED MUNICIPAL SPATIAL PLANNING AND LAND USE

BY-LAW, 2015 FOR THE 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR
FEE
TYPE OF APPLICATION INCL VAT
R

CATEGORY 1 LAND DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS




1. Establishment of a township 12,525.00
2. Extension of the boundaries of a township: 12,525.00
3. Amendment of a township establishment application:

(a) If already approved by the Municipality 12,525.00
(b) If not already approved by the Municipality 3,800.00
4. Division of township 12,525.00
5. Phasing/cancellation of approved layout plan 1,593.00
6. Rezoning:

(@ One erf 5,092.00
(b) Every erf Additional to the First Erf Per Erf 553.00
7. _ Removal', amendment, _suspen_sion of a restrictive or obsolete 620.00
condition, servitude or reservation against the title of the land

8. Amendment or cancellation of a general plan of a township 1,755.00
9. Division of farm land 3,800.00
10. Subdivision of land:

(@) For first five erven 521.00
(b) Every erf additional to the first five erven Per erf 69.00
11. Consolidation of land 521.00
12. Subdivision and consolidation of land 521.00
13. Permanent closure of a public place Per closure 531.00
14. Development on communal land 5,092.00
15. Material amendments to original application prior to | 50% of original
approval/refusal application fee

CATEGORY 2 LAND USE APPLICATIONS

1. Subdivision of land provided for in land use scheme or town

. 521
planning scheme
2. Consolidation of land 521
3.  Subdivision and consolidation of land 521
4, Consent use 1,290.00
5. The removal, amendment or suspension of a restrictive title 620
condition relating to the density of residential development
6. Temporary use: prospecting rights 1,290
7. Temporary use: other rights 770

8. Material amendments to

approval/refusal

original application prior to

50% of original
application fee

MISCELLANEOQOUS FEES

1. Erection of a second dwelling

1,185.00




2. Relaxation of height restriction 1,211.00
3. Relaxation of building line 1,192.00
4. Consideration of site development plan 1,192.00
5. Extension of validity period of approval 1,185.00
6. Certificates:
(a) Zoning certificate Per certificate 144.00
(b) Any other certificate Per certificate 144.00
7.  Public hearing and inspection 3,481.00
8. Reason for decision of municipal planning tribunal, land 1.769.00
development officer or appeal authority e
9. Re-issuing of any notice of approval of any application 257.00
10. Deed search and copy of the title deed 163.00
11. Public Notice:
(a) Public Notice and advertisements in the legal section of the paper 1,593.00
(b) Public Notice and advertisements in the body of the paper 2,868.00
12. Way leave application (application to determine where the
Council’s services are located or a specific area where new services are 2,509.00
to be installed)
13. Any other application not provided for elsewhere in this
schedule of fees 3,481.00
COPIES
1. Spatial development framework:
(a) Hard copy Per region 174.00
(b) In electronic format Per region 82.00
2. Copy of Land Use Scheme or Town Planning Scheme
(Scheme Book) 401.00
3. Scheme Regulations Per set 667.00
4. Search fees Per erf 27.00
5. Diagrammes Per diagramme 27.00
Servitudes.
Rate levy (Cent in
Rate ratio the Rand)
Servitudes.
1:0,25 R0O.0021




Schedule 5 - Budget Related Policies

Tariff Policy
1. Preamble
1.1. The Chief Albert Luthuli Local Municipality, in terms of Section 75(1) of the Local Government

Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000, has to adopt a Tariff Policy which is regarded a budget-
related policy in terms of the Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of
2003.

1.2. The Tariff Policy annually has to undergo revision and be tabled with the Multi-Year Annual
Tabled Budget to the Council of the municipality for consideration and approval for public scrutiny
and comments annually before 31 March.

1.3. Comments received by the municipality on the contents and stipulations of the Policy have to be
considered by the Council for possible amendment/inclusion to the draft policy for a final draft to
be approved by the Council annually before 31 May.

1.4. The adopted Tariff Policy applies to the Multi-Year Annual Budget of a related year during which
the income is based on the principles contained in the Tariff Policy.

1.5.  Should any of the principles contained in the Tariff Policy by resolution of the Council be changed,
an Adjustment Budget has to be prepared to reflect the consequent effect.

Definitions
In this tariff policy, unless inconsistence with the context, a word or expressions to which a

meaning in the Act has been attached means:-

“agricultural consumers” include but are not limit to farms, smallholdings and agricultural show

grounds;

“break even” occurs where the volume sales are equal to the fix and variable cost associated with the

provision of the service;

“business and commercial consumers” include but are not limit to business undertakings, shops,

offices, liquor stores, supermarkets, public garages, gathering places, nurseries, places of
entertainment, service stations, hairdressings salons, banks, hotels, guesthouses, boarding
houses and doctor-and dentist consulting rooms;



“councillor for financial matters” the councillor of the municipal council responsible for financial
matters;

“domestic consumers” include but are not limit to residence, group housing, town houses, semi-
detached houses, and flats;

“indigent households” are households that are registered under the municipality ‘s Indigent Policy;

“industrial consumers” include but are not limit to industrial undertakings, factories, warehouses,
workshop, scrap yards, stores, wine cellars, abattoir, dairy processing plants and fish markets;

“in season” refers to the period from the 1st December of a year up to 31 January of the following
year and from the Monday before the Easter weekend up to and including Easter Monday;

“lifeline tariffs’ a unit charge calculated by dividing the total cost associated with the service by the
volume consumed (units);

“resident “ a person who is ordinary resident in the municipal area;

“special agreements” are special tariff agreements entered into with consumers making significant
economic contribution to the community and create job opportunities;

“sport and recreation facilities” include but are not limit to properties used exclusively for sport and
recreation purposes including school sport fields which are metered separately for water and
electricity consumption and caravan parks;

“the Act: the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000);

Legal Requirements

3.1. In developing its Tariff Policy, the Municipality has noted the applicability of the following
legislation —
3.1.1. Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996
3.1.2. Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000)
3.1.3.  Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act, 2007 (Act No. 12 of 2007)
3.1.4. Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003)
3.1.5. Water Services Act, 1997 (Act No. 108 of 1997)
3.1.6. Electricity Regulation Act, 2006 (Act No. 4 of 2006)
3.1.7. Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004)
3.1.8. Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998)

3.2. This policy complies with sections 74 of the Municipal Systems Act in so far as it —
3.2.1. establishes a tariff policy on the levying of fees for municipal services provided by the
municipality;
3.2.2. reflects the required principles; and
3.2.3. differentiates between different categories of users, debtors, service providers. services,
service standards and geographical areas as long as such differentiation does not amount
to unfair discrimination.



3.3. Section 75 of the Municipal Systems Act requires the council to adopt by-laws to give effect to the
implementation and enforcement of this tariff policy.

4, Tariff Principles

4.1. The Tariff Policy of the Municipality is in accordance with the principles as set out in section 74
(2) of the Municipal Systems Act as follows —

4.1.1.
4.1.2.

4.1.3.

users of municipal services should be treated equitably in the application of tariffs;

the amount individual users pay for services should generally be in proportion to their use
of that service;

poor households must have access to at least basic services through —

4.1.3.1. tariffs that cover only operating and maintenance costs,
4.1.3.2. special tariffs or life line tariffs for low levels of use or consumption of services or for

basic levels of service; or

4.1.3.3. any other direct or indirect method of subsidization of tariffs for

4.1.4.

4.1.5.

4.1.6.

4.1.7.

4.1.8.

4.1.9.

poor households;
tariffs must reflect the costs reasonably associated with rendering the service, including
capital, operating, maintenance, administration and replacement costs, and interest
charges;
tariffs must be set at levels that facilitate the financial sustainability of the service, taking
into account subsidization from sources other than the service concerned;
provision may be made in appropriate circumstances for a surcharge on the tariff for a
service;
provision may be made for the promotion of local economic development through special
tariffs for categories of commercial and industrial users;
the economical, efficient and effective use of resources, the recycling of waste, and other
appropriate environmental objectives must be encouraged;
the extent of subsidization of tariffs for poor households and other categories of users
should be fully disclosed.

4.2. In addition, the Municipality recognizes the principles set out in the 1998 White Paper on Local
Government on user charges as follows —

4.2.1.

4.2.2.

4.2.3.

4.2.4.
4.2.5.

4.2.6.

4.2.7.

4.2.8.

Payment in proportion to the amount consumed — as far as it is practically possible,
consumers should pay in proportion to the amount of services consumed.

Full payment of service costs — all households, with the exception of the indigent, should
pay the full cost of services consumed.

Ability to pay — municipalities should develop a system of targeted subsidies to
ensure that poor households have at least a minimum level of basic services.
Fairness — tariff policies should be fair in that all people should be treated equitably.
Transparency - the tariff policy should be transparent to all consumers and any subsidies
and concessions must be visible and understood by all consumers.

Local determination of tariff levels - municipalities have the flexibility to develop their own
tariffs in accordance with the principles contained.

Consistent tariff enforcement — a consistent policy for dealing with non-payment of tariffs
needs to be developed. This must be targeted and enforced with sensitivity to local
conditions.

Ensure local economies are competitive - local tariffs must not unduly burden local business
through higher tariffs, as these costs affect the sustainability and competitiveness of such
businesses and firms.



4.3. The tariffs asset out in this policy shall, as far as is practical, encourage and promote the objects
and programmes contained in the municipality’s Integrated Development Plan.

5. Objectives of this Policy

5.1. The Municipality wishes to achieve the following objectives by adopting this tariff policy —
5.1.1. to comply with the provisions of section 74 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act,
2000 (Act 32 of 2000);
5.1.2. to prescribe procedures for calculating tariffs where the municipality wishes to appoint
service providers in terms of section 76(b) of the Act; and
5.1.3. to give guidance to the Councillor responsible for finance regarding tariff proposals that
must be submitted to Council annually during the budget process.

5.2. In addition, the Municipality seeks to ensure that —
5.2.1. the tariffs of the Municipality conform to acceptable policy principles;
5.2.2. municipal services are financially sustainable;
5.2.3. thereis certainty in the Council of how the tariffs will be determined;
5.2.4. tariffs of the Municipality comply with the applicable legislation; and
5.2.5. tariffs should take into consideration relief to the indigent.

5.3. Tariffs will be set at a level that facilitates the sustainability of services, which will be achieved by
ensuring that —
5.3.1. cash inflows cover cash outflows and that sufficient provision for working capital and bad
debts will be made; and
5.3.2. access to the capital market is maintained, to be achieved through the provision for the
repayment of capital, maintaining sufficient liquidity levels and making profits on trading
services.

5.4. Where practical, efficient and effective use of resources will be encouraged by providing for
penalties to discourage unnecessary or exorbitant usage.

6. Tariff Strategy

6.1 Minimum basic services must be free
This will be set out in the Free Basic Services Policy of the Municipality, and in order to ensure

affordable services, the Council will introduce a stepped tariff structure in which consumers that
use more of a service, will pay progressively more for higher consumption that those who
consume less of a service.

6.2 Keeping tariffs affordable
In order to ensure that tariffs remain affordable, the Council will strive to ensure that —

e Services are delivered at an appropriate level;



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

e Efficiency improvements are actively pursued across the Municipality’s operations;

e A performance management system is introduced to ensure that plans that are devised are
actually implemented on its own resources are obtained as economically as possible and that
appropriate service delivery mechanisms are used;

e An investigation is conducted with the objective of phasing out as soon as is practically
possible the non-core functions that the municipality currently performs without depriving
the community of any services that really contribute to the quality of life of people in its area;

e Any service that is provided for which there is little demand, is priced under the actual cost of
providing it and which requires the Municipality to maintain significant infrastructure and
other facilities, are phased out, except where the Council is by law required to provide such a
service; and

e The equitable share of revenue raised nationally will be used to maintain an adequate level of
basic services for indigents.

Achieve price parity for services and property rates (uniform tariffs)
The Council will strive to achieve price parity within the Municipality within five financial years

starting with the 2003/4 financial year.

Fully exploiting the potential income base
In order to ensure that tariffs remain current, and to ensure that all revenue is maximized, the

Council will =

e Review tariffs for services at least once during every financial year.

e Ensure that tariff increases are in line with increases in the price of personnel costs, goods,
material and other resources acquired and used by the Municipality to perform its functions;
and

e Ensure that the tariff for a particular service will be calculated in such a way that all relevant
costs are covered. This means that a tariff for a service must include at least the capital
expenditure required and interest thereon, the cost of managing and operating the service
and the cost of maintaining, repairing and replacing the physical assets used in its provision.

The “Consumer must pay Principle”
The Council believes that consumers of services must pay for the amount of services that they

use. Where it is possible to measure the consumption of services, the Council intends to install
metering systems and to take into account the free service element.

In this regard the Council will develop a programme to install meters in appropriate cases.

In the striving for better service delivery to the consumers, a user friendly format of accounts will
be developed and implemented.

Redistribution / Cross-subsidisation
Some members of the community are better able to afford to pay for the services that they use

and benefit from, than others. The budget of the Municipality is an important device in ensuring
redistribution within the community. Those that pay higher property rates bases on the value of
their properties, in fact subsidise those who pay less tax.



6.7

Also, the Council uses the trading surplus it realizes on the trading account to bring relief with
regard to property tax rates.

Likewise, the Council will ensure that the cross-susidisation occurs between and within services
to further contribute to its redistribution objectives.

Ensuring financial sustainability of service delivery
Financial sustainability of an enterprise will be achieved when it is financed in a manner that

insures that its financing is sufficient.

The tariff for a service must, therefore, be sufficient to cover the cost of the initial capital
expenditure required and interest thereon, managing and operating the service and maintaining,
repairing and replacing the physical assets used in its provision.

The Council will adopt and apply a Credit Control and Debt Collecting policy to ensure that service
charges are recovered.

Where a trading (water & electricity) and economic service (sanitation & sewerage) is available to
a property, an availability levy or charge will be imposed if the occupier of the property does not
use the service concerned or if the property is vacant. The availability levy, if possible, will be
adequate to cover the pro rata cost of the initial capital expenditure and interest thereon and the
maintenance of the infrastructure associated with service delivery.

7. Tariff determination process

7.1.

7.2.

Except in special circumstances, such as significant increases in the wholesale price of goods and
services that the Council purchases during a year to provide services, the Council will review its
tariffs during the preparation of the annual budget in accordance with the policy stated above.
Proposed tariffs will be presented to the community during the Council’s consultation about the
budget.

After the Council has adopted its rates, tariffs, fees, charges and surcharges the Municipal
Manager shall, without delay —

7.2.1. conspicuously display a copy of the resolution adopting such fees, charges or tariffs for a
period of at least 21 days at the main administrative office of the municipality and at such
other places within the municipality to which the public has access as the Municipal
Manager may determine;

7.2.2. publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the municipality a notice stating —

7.2.2.1. that a resolution as contemplated above has been passed by the Council;

7.2.2.2. that a copy of the resolution is available for public inspection during office hours at
the main administrative office of the municipality and at the other places specified in
the notice;

7.2.2.3. the date on which the determination will come into operation;

7.2.2.4. that any person who desires to object to such determination or amendment must do
so in writing within 14 days after the date on which the notice was displayed; and

7.2.2.5. that any person who cannot write may come during office hours to a place where a
staff member of the municipality named in the notice, will assist that person to
transcribe his/her objection.



8.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.2.3. seek to convey the information referred to in paragraph 3.8.2 to the local community by
means of radio broadcasts covering the area of the municipality.

7.2.4. The Municipal Manager must forthwith send a copy of the notice referred to in
subparagraph 7.2.2 to the MEC for Housing and Local Government and other institutions
regulated by another law or directive applicable from time to time.

If no objection is lodged within the period stated in the notice, the determination or amendment
will come into operation on the date determined by the Council.

Where an objection is lodged, the Municipality will consider every objection.

The Council may, after it has consider all objections, confirm, amend, or withdraw the
determination or amendment and may determine another, on the date on which the
determination or amendment will come into operation.

After the Council has considered the objections it will again give notice of the determination,
amendment or date as determined above and will also publish it as determined by the Council.

The municipal must adopt by-laws to give effect to the implementation and enforcement of this
tariff policy.

Categories of Customers

8.1

8.2.

Separate tariffs structure may be raised for the following categories of customers —
8.1.1. domestic;
8.1.2. indigent households;
8.1.3. business and commercial;
8.1.4. industrial;
8.1.5. agricultural
8.1.6. rural;
8.1.7. public benefit organisation;
8.1.8. institutional;
8.1.9. commercial and industrial with special agreements;
8.1.10. government; and
8.1.11. the municipality.

The Municipality, in line with section 75 of the Act, determine that differentiated tariffs for the
different consumers in certain geographical areas are necessary where there is a substantial
difference between the infrastructure used in each geographical are to provide the service. These
geographical areas are —

8.2.1. <unknown>.



8.3.

The differentiation contemplated in paragraph 8.2 above will be based on one or more of the
following elements —

8.3.1. infrastructure costs;

8.3.2. volume usage;

8.3.3. availability; or

8.3.4. service standards.

9. Service Classification

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

In the following classification, trading and economic services must be financially ring-fenced and
financed from service charges while community and subsidized services will be financed from
rates and related income.

In order to isolate the costs associated with a service, the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial
Officer and Executive Mayoral Committee of the Council, shall, subject to the guidelines provided
by the National Treasury, provide for the classification of services into the categories as set out in
paragraphs 9.3 to 9.6 below.

Trading services
Water and electricity provisions are trading services. Typically the consumption of a trading

service is measurable and can be apportioned to an individual consumer. These services are
managed like businesses. The tariffs for these services are determined in such a way that a net
trading surplus is realized. The trading surplus is used to subsidise the tariffs of non-trading
services, in other words to relieve property rates.

9.3.1. Water
9.3.2. Electricity

Economic services
Sewage and domestic household removal are economic services. The consumption of an economic

service can be measured or determined with reasonable accuracy and apportioned to an individual
consumer. Whilst they are also managed like businesses, the tariffs for these services are normally
determined in such a way that user charges cover the cost of providing the service.

9.4.1. Refuse removal
9.4.2. Sewerage
9.4.3. Markets



9.4.4. Abattoir fees

9.4.5. Holiday resorts

9.4.6. Recreation resorts

9.4.7. Caravan and Camping facilities

9.5. Community services
Community services are those services the consumption of which cannot be determined nor

apportioned to individual consumers. These services are typically financed through finance rates.
Examples are the establishment, operation and maintenance of parks and recreation facilities,
provision and maintenance of roads and storm water drainage systems, the establishment,
management and maintenance of cemeteries and traffic reqgulation.

9.5.1. Abattoirs

9.5.2. Cleansing

9.5.3. Control of public nuisances

9.5.4. Environmental and waste management

9.5.5. Facilities for accommodation, care and burial of animals

9.5.6. Fencing and fences

9.5.7. Interest rates charged

9.5.8. Local amenities

9.5.9. Markets

9.5.10. Municipal parks and recreation

9.5.11. Municipal roads

9.5.12. Museums

9.5.13. Nature reserves

9.5.14. Noise pollution

9.5.15. Public places

9.5.16. Road signs

9.5.17. Sports grounds

9.5.18. Street lighting

9.5.19. Storm-water management

9.5.20. Trade licenses

9.5.21. Traffic control

9.5.22. Municipal public works (only in respect of the needs of the municipality in the discharge of
its responsibilities and to administer functions specially assigned to it under the Constitution
or any other law)

9.6. Subsidised services
Subsidised services include fire fighting, approving building plans and the construction of

buildings, leasing of municipal facilities, selling of burial sites and certain town planning functions.
Subsidised services are those services the consumption of which can be determined reasonably
accurately and apportioned to individuals and consumers. However, if the tariffs for using this
service were based on its real cost, nobody would be able to afford it. In most cases not only
would the consumer benefit from using the service, but also other persons. A user charge is
payable for using the service, but the tariff is much lower than the real cost of providing the
service

9.6.1. Angling permits



9.6.2.
9.6.3.
9.6.4.
9.6.5.
9.6.6.
9.6.7.
9.6.8.
9.6.9.
9.6.10.
9.6.11.
9.6.12.
9.6.13.
9.6.14.
9.6.15.
9.6.16.
9.6.17.
9.6.18.
9.6.19.
9.6.20.
9.6.21.
9.6.22.
9.6.23.
9.6.24.
9.6.25.

Billboards

Burials and cemeteries

Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public
Distribution of hand-bills

Dog licensing

Fire fighting services

Health and ambulance services

Holiday resorts

Interest rates charged

Letting of Municipal facilities

Leasing of Municipal properties

Libraries

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the public
Licensing of motor vehicles and transport permits
Local tourism promotion

Parking

Photocopies

Pound fees

Recreation resorts

Reference and information fees

Rezoning

Tender deposits

Town planning

Training Courses

9.7. The Municipality also provides services in support of the above-mentioned services. These are
called staff functions and include committee services, records and archives, financial management
accounting and stores, occupational health and human resources management. These services
are financed through property rates.

Approved Tariffs

10. Expenditure Classification

10.1. Expenditure will be classified into the categories as set out in paragraphs 10.2 and 10.3 below.

10.2. Subjective classification:

10.2.1.
10.2.2.
10.2.3.
10.2.4.
10.2.5.
10.2.6.
10.2.7.

Salaries, wages and allowances

Bulk purchases

General expenditure

Repairs and maintenance

Capital charges (interest and redemption) / depreciation
Contribution to fixed assets

Contribution to funds —

10.2.7.1. Bad debts;
10.2.7.2. Working capital; and
10.2.7.3. Statutory funds.

10.2.8.

Contribution to reserves;



10.2.9. Gross expenditure;
10.2.10. Less charge-out;
10.2.11. Net expenditure;
10.2.12. Income; and
10.2.13. Surplus/Deficit.

10.3. Objective classification:
10.3.1. Licensing of motor vehicles and transport permits
10.3.2. Cost centres will be created to which the costs associated with providing the service can be
allocated —
10.3.2.1. Department
10.3.2.2. Section/service
10.3.2.3. Division/service
10.3.3. The subjective classification of expenditure each with a unique vote will be applied to all
cost centres.

11. Cost Elements

The following cost elements to be used to calculate the tariffs for the different services —

11.1. Fixed costs which consist of the capital costs (interest and redemption) on external loans as well
as internal advances and or depreciation whichever are applicable to the service and any other
costs of a permanent nature as determined by the Council from time to time.

11.2. Variable costs which include all other variable costs that have reference to the service.

11.3. Total cost consisting of the fixed cost and variable cost.

12. Tariff Types

In determining the type of tariff applicable to the type of service the municipality shall make use of the
following eight options or a combination of the same.

12.1. Single tariff: this tariff shall consist of a cost per unit consumed. All costs will be recovered
through unit charges at the level where income and expenditure breaks even. Subject to a
recommendation by the Chief Financial Officer the council may decide to approve profits on
trading services during the budget meeting. Such profits will be added to the fixed and variable
cost of the service for the purpose of calculating the tariffs.

12.2. Cost related two to four part tariff: this tariff shall consist of two to four parts. Management,
capital, maintenance and operating costs will be recovered by grouping certain components
together. Management-, capital- and maintenance costs may be grouped together and be
recovered by a fixed charge, independent of consumption for all classes of consumers, while the
variable costs may be recovered by a unit charge per unit consumed. Three and four part tariffs
will be used to calculate the tariff for electricity and to provide for maximum demand and usage
during limited demand periods.



13.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

12.6.

12.7.

12.8.

Inclining block tariff: this tariff is based on consumption levels being categorised into blocks, the
tariff being determined and increased as consumption levels increase. This tariff will only be used
to subsidised free basic services and prohibit the exorbitant use of a commodity. The first step in
the tariffs will be calculated at break-even point. Subsequent steps will be calculated to yield
profits and to discourage excessive use of the commodity.

Declining block tariff: this tariff is the opposite of the inclining block tariff and decreases as
consumption levels increase. The first step will be calculated by dividing the fix and variable cost
and profit determined by council form time to time by the volume consumed. This tariff will only
be used for special agreements.

Regulating tariff: this tariff is only of a regulatory nature and the municipality may recover the
full or a portion of the cost associated with rendering the service.

Sliding scale: This tariff is based on consumption levels being categorised into blocks, the tariff
being determined and increased as consumption levels increase. This tariff will only be used to
prohibit the exorbitant use of a commodity. The first step of this tariff will be free of charge to
provide access to the basic services to Indigent Households. The second step in the tariffs will be
calculated at break-even point. Subsequent steps will be calculated to yield profits and to
discourage excessive use of the commodity.

Avadilability charges: Payable in respect of erven not connected to Council's infrastructure. Once
Council provided a connection, normal tariffs as per respective service are payable.

Recoverable work: These tariffs shall apply to consumers who are making use, on application, of
certain recoverable services. The tariff will be calculated at actual cost plus a surcharge as
determined with the actual tariffs.

Deposits



13.1. Deposits are required where levies are made in arrears.

13.2. Deposits are payable with application for relevant service —
13.2.1. Electricity: Two times the average monthly consumption of the past 2 months with a
minimum of R 1000;
13.2.2. Water: Two times the average monthly consumption of the past 2 months with a minimum
of R 500;
13.2.3. Rental: Equal to the monthly rental; and
13.2.4. Other services: <unknown>

13.3. Deposit to be doubled in case of non-payment of account.

13.4. Indigent households are not required to pay a deposit.

13.5. A bank guarantee can be accepted in cases where a deposit of R2 500 or more is required

13.6. No deposit required for pre-paid meters.

14. Unit of Measurements

The following cost elements to be used to calculate the tariffs for the different services —

14.1. Electricity
14.1.1. Unit of measurement —
14.1.1.1.  Maximum demand (kVa) plus fixed tariff plus kWh consumed;
14.1.1.2.  Fixed tariff plus kWh consumed; or
14.1.1.3.  Unit tariff (KWh consumed) (for pre-payment meters).
14.1.2. Method of calculation —
14.1.2.1. The guidelines issued by the National Electricity Regulator from time to time will
form the basis of calculating tariffs.
14.1.2.2.  To recover the capital cost of supplying electricity through a fixed charge will make
electricity unaffordable to many low consumption users. Cross subsidisation
between and within categories of consumers will be allowed based on the load
factors of the categories and consumers within the category. Portions of the fixed



costs will be recovered through an energy or time-of-use charge. To apply the

abovementioned principle the cost allocation basis,

cost groupings, tariff

components and tariff types reflected in the following tables will be used

Seasonal
Active ime-of- Capacit Reactive
Fixed charge p Time-of-use hp Y
ner: charge ener
Tariff t Rands / " v Energy R 5 / b v
ari es charge ands charge
yp customer/ g charge Peak g
cents / Standard kVvA / cents /
Month
kWh month kWh
Off-peak
One part X
Block 1 X
One part block
Block 2 X
Two part X X
Three part X X X
Three part Peak X X X
time-of-use Standard X X X
high season Off-peak X X X
Three part Peak X X X
time-of-use Standard X X X
low season Off-peak X X X




Four part Peak X X X X

time-of-use Standard X X X X

high season Off-peak X X X X

Four part Peak X X X X

time-of-use Standard X X X X

low season Off-peak X X X X
14.1.2.3.  For the one-part single energy rate tariff, all costs are expressed in a single

14.1.2.4.

14.1.2.5.

14.1.2.6.

14.1.2.7.

cents/kWh charge. The recommended methodology for allocating costs into this

tariff is as follows:

e The rands / kVa / month cost must be allocated into a cents / kWh charge
through consideration of the average load factor of the types of customer who
are likely to use the one-part single energy rate tariff.

e The rands / customer / month fixed cost should also be allocated into the
cents/kWh charge and allocated to the kWh purchase costs in such a way as to
ensure that at a level of monthly consumption of 400 kWh, the full amount of
the fixed costs would have been recovered through the cents/kWh charge.

The two-part tariff:

e The rands / kVa / month charge must be allocated into a cents/kWh charge
through consideration of the average load factor of the types of customer who
are likely to choose the two-part tariff. This reallocated charge must them be
added to the kWh purchase charge.

e The rands / customer / month charge is not reallocated into other tariff
elements.

e The tariff then consists of a fixed monthly charge plus a variable charge related
to metered kWh consumption.

The two-part time-of-use tariff:

e The rands / kVa / month charge must be reallocated into different time-of-use
cents / kWh charges through consideration of the load curve of the customer in
relation to the load curve of the supplier. Such reallocated charges must then be
added to the kWh purchase charges, as appropriate.

e The rands / customer / month charge is not reallocated.

The three-part tariff:

e The rands / kVa charge recovers the capital cost elements. Some of this cost
must be reallocated into different tariff elements.

e The cents / kWh charge therefore recovers the full variable costs as well as a
portion of the reallocated rands / kVa costs.

e The rands / customer / month charge is not reallocated.

The three-part time-of-use tariff:

e As with the standard three-part tariff, a portion of the rands / kVa / month
charge needs to be reallocated into the various time-of-use cents / kWh
charges. Again, the amount of the reallocation should be with regard to the
customer’s load factor. However, it is also necessary to consider the time-
variation of the capacity costs in the reallocation of the rands / kVa charge into
the various time-of-use cents / kWh charges.



e The cents / kWh charge therefore recovers the full variable costs as well as a
portion of the reallocated rands / kVa charges.
e The rands / customer / month charge is not reallocated.
14.1.3. Where council decides to make a profit on the service the profit will be added to the fixed
and variable cost before tariffs are calculated.
14.1.4. Where a property is not connected to the electricity reticulation system but can reasonably
be so connected, an availability tariff will be payable. The tariff will be calculated by adding
a surcharge of 50% to the fixed costs applicable to connected consumers per category.
14.1.5. Electricity meters will be read and levied on a monthly basis unless the service is rendered
through a pre-payment device and is recoverable for the past 2 years with issuing of
clearance certificates.
14.1.6. The following charges can be levied in addition to the standard monthly charges —

Connections, Reconnections and changes to meters

Amperage change

To change from higher to
ge f 9 Fixed cost per change of scale
lower scale

Electricity connections Additional meter

Single phase connection:
Conventional meter: 1 x 20 Fixed cost per connection
Amp

Single phase connection:
Conventional meter: Above Fixed cost per connection
20 Amp

Single phase connection:
Conventional meter: Fixed cost per connection

Single phase connection: Pre- . .
. Fixed cost per connection
paid meter: 1 x 20 Amp

Single phase connection: Pre- . .
; Fixed cost per connection
paid mete: Above 20 Amp

Single phase connection: Pre- . .
. . Fixed cost per connection
paid meter: Additional meter

Three phase connection Estimated cost

After temporary Fixed .
Reconnection of electricity disconnection Ixed cost per reconnection
supply

Because of non-payment Fixed cost per reconnection

Tampering with electricity meter | Reconnection but supply only

Fixed cost per tampering




(conventional) to be restored after:
Payment of R889.02 + R88.02 | Fixed cost per supply
Payment of illegally energy .
Fixed cost per supply
consumed
Presenting a new-certificate .
. Fixed cost per supply
of compliance
from conventional to pre-paid
meter — single phase:
. Free
voluntary change — single
phase
from conventional to pre-paid
Meter changes meter — single phase: non- Free
payers
from conventional to pre-paid .
Estimated cost
meter — three phase
from pre-paid to conventional | _.
. Fixed cost per change
meter — single phase
To serve a reminder by
Non-payment of accounts hand/mail i.r.o. a non- Fixed cost to serve a reminder
payment of account
An amount calculated at a
. rate of 10% of such an
First late payment .
account subject to a
Surcharge i.r.o. late payment of maximum of R5 000.00
account
Any further late payment An amount calculated at a
within 12 months of the rate of 10% of such an
original late payment amount
Miscellaneous services
Testing of electricity

. Fixed cost per testing
conventional meter

Meter Testing

Testing of electricity pre-paid . .
Fixed cost per testing
meter

Call out pre-paid consumers Fixed cost per call-out




At consumer’s request Fixed cost per meter reading

Special meter readings If the consumers contests the

. Fixed cost per meter reading
meter reading

At consumer’s request (call

Investigation i.r.o. power failure | out due to consumer’s Fixed cost per investigation
default)

Change of current limiter From higher to lower scale Fixed cost per change
Urban Fixed cost per testing
Re-inspection test: urban Fixed cost per re-inspection

Testing of installation Fixed cost per testing plus

Rural
transport

. . Fixed cost per re-inspection
Re-inspection test: rural
plus transport

Generator (per occasion) Fixed cost per generator
Renting out equipment

Transformer (100 KVA) Fixed cost per transformer

Municipal services

Roads Fixed cost per light
Streetlights

Telephone booths & signs Fixed cost per light

Streetlights Fixed cost cent per unit (kWh)
Municipal Electricity Tariffs Demand Charges HT Fixed cost cent per unit (kWh)

Demand Charges LT Fixed cost cent per unit (kWh)

14.2. Water

14.2.1. Unit of measurement —
14.2.1.1.  Kiloliters used; and/or
14.2.1.2.  Size of connection.
14.2.2. Method of calculation —
14.2.2.1. A basic charge based on the size of the water connection will be payable by all
consumers. Provision will be made for the following meter connections —

e 15mm
e 20mm
e 25mm

e 40mm



14.2.2.2.

14.2.2.3.
14.2.2.4.

14.2.2.5.

14.2.2.6.
14.2.2.7.

14.2.2.8.
14.2.2.9.

e 50mm
e 75mm and

o >75mm

Stepped tariffs in respect of Domestic Consumers will be calculated for the follow
usages —

e 0-6kl

o 7-10kl

o 11-30kl

e 31-55ki

e 56-80kl

e >80kl

Consumption less than 6 kl of water per month will be supplied free of charge.
Consumption between 7 — 10 kl of water per month will be supplied break even
costs.

The following surcharges will apply to all other categories —

e 11-30kl=20%

o 31-55kl=30%

e 55-80kl=35%

o >80kl=40%

Kiloliters used; and

Consumers that can but are not connected to the water service will pay an
availability tariff. The tariff will be calculated by dividing the fixed and maintenance
cost of the service by the number of properties and average size of the properties in
the following categories —

e 1m?-2000m?

e 2001m?-5000m?

e 5001m?- 10 000m?

e >10000m?

Kiloliters used; and

Break even will be calculated by dividing the total cost by the total volume
consumed.

14.2.3. Water meters will be read and levied on a monthly basis and is recoverable for the past 2
years with issuing of clearance certificates.
14.2.4. When consumption is not measured a flat rate will be applicable.
14.2.5. In the time of scarcity of water, Council may declare water restrictions and may charge
higher tariffs with a sliding scale as determined by Council.
14.2.6. The following charges can be levied in addition to the standard monthly charges —
e Charges for connections to the main supply;
e Charges for connection of water supply;
e Charges for reconnections;
e Testing of meters;
e Special readings;
e Filling of swimming pools; and
e Any other services.



14.3. Refuse Removal
14.3.1. Unit of measurement —

14.3.1.1.
14.3.1.2.
14.3.1.3.

A fixed rate per month for the removal of refuse once per week;
A fixed rate per month for the removal of refuse three times per week;
A fixed rate per month for the removal of refuse five times per week;

14.3.2. Method of calculation —

14.3.2.1.

14.3.2.2.

14.3.2.3.

The mass refuse disposed by the various category consumers will be used to
apportion the total cost of the service between the various categories consumers.
The costs per unit of measurement will be determined by the total costs of the
service by the total mass of refuse disposed of during the year. The total cost of the
service includes the removal cost plus the operating cost associated with the
management of the refuse site.

The cost associated with the removal of bulk containers will be determined by
calculating the actual disposal and removal cost (labour, material and transport)
(iv) The minimum cost for a container service will be equal to one removal per
week. (v) Opportunity costs for once-off removals will be the actual costs as
described in section (3)(b)(iii) plus 20% surcharge.

14.3.3. The monthly levy is payable by the registered owner and is recoverable with issuing of
clearance certificates.

14.4. Sewerage

14.4.1. Unit of measurement —

14.4.1.1.
14.4.1.2.
14.4.1.3.

Size of the erf; and/or
Number of cisterns or urinals; and/or
Formula driven waterborne tariff.

14.4.2. Method of calculation —

14.4.2.1.

14.4.2.2.

14.4.2.3.

14.4.2.4.

14.4.2.5.

14.4.2.6.

All owners of undeveloped stands will pay an availability charge based on the
average size of an erf (currently calculated between 1 501m? - 3 000m?) and fixed
cost associated with the service.

All owners of developed stands will pay a basic charge based on the cost associated
with the service and the weighted average of the number of consumers and
average size of the stands in a range of stand sizes, as follows —

e 1m?-1500m?

e 1501m?-3000m?

e 3001m?- 10 000m?

e 10001m?-25000m?

e 25001m?- 100 000m?

e 100 000m?- 300 000m?

e >300000m?

Waterborne tariffs will be based on the variable cost of the service per category
user and the number of cisterns or urinals.

The cost of emptying conservancy tanks will be based on the volume disposed and
the cost associated therewith. An average tariff per user will be calculated.

The cost associated with bucket removals will be based on the volume removed. An
average tariff per bucket will be calculated.

Any person or business that allows sewerage other than domestic sewerage into
the foal sewer system shall pay over and above a fixed tariff based on the size of
the erf a waterborne tariff based on the following formula —

e C=Vt/100 (R + T (CODt/1000))



e (C=Rands

Vt = Kiloliters of effluent (excluding domestic volume)

R = Cost of conveying of 1 Kiloliter effluent

e T =_Cost or treating of 1kg COD

e CODt = Average chemical oxygen demand per mg per litre of effluent.

14.4.2.7. A fixed minimum tariff will be calculated for the following services —

14.4.3.

14.4.4.

e Buckets (removal)
e  Septic tanks (removal)
e (Cost of incineration (mass).

The levy is payable by the registered owner and recoverable with issuing of clearance
certificate.
The following charges can be levied by Council in addition to the standard monthly charges

Sealing of openings and re-opening of sealed connections;

Opening of blockages and alterations to gullies;

Connections to the sewerage system;

Vacuum tank services;

The removal of dead animals;

The removal of specific type of refuses i.e. medical waste, building refuse, garden
refuse, redundant vehicles, collection and destruction of foodstuff, unlawful dumped
refuse;

Cleaning premises of long grass, weeds, shrubs and accumulation of refuse;

Dumping of refuse on a municipal dumping site;

Sale of plastic bags and refuse bins if available;

Rental of mass containers; and

Any other related services.

14.5. Other Municipal Services
The following charges can be levied by Council n relation to services provide —

14.5.1.

Abattoirs;

Aerial photos;

Air pollution control;

Angling permits;

Billboards

Building plans;

Burials and cemeteries;

Caravan and Camping facilities

Cleansing;

Control of public nuisances;

Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public
Distribution of hand-bills;

Dog licensing;

Environmental and waste management;

Facilities for accommodation, care and burial of animals;
Fencing and fences;

Fire fighting services;

Health and ambulance services;

Holiday resorts;

Interest rates charged;



Letting of Municipal facilities;
Leasing of Municipal properties;
Libraries;

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the public;
Licensing of motor vehicles and transport permits;

Local amenities;

Local tourism promotion;
Markets;

Municipal parks and recreation;
Municipal roads;

Museums

Nature reserves;

Noise pollution ;

Parking;

Photocopies;

Pound fees;

Public places;

Recreation resorts;
Reference and information fees;
Rezoning;

Road signs;

Sports grounds;

Street lighting;
Storm-water management;
Tender deposits;

Town planning;

Trade License;

Traffic Control;

Training Courses; and
Miscellaneous Tariffs.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

RATES POLICY

1. PREAMBLE

1.1 The municipality derives its power to levy rates from Section 229(1) of the

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa.

1.2 The obligation on a Council of a municipality to adopt and implement a rates policy on the levying

of rates on rateable property is derived from the following legislation:

a) Section 3(1) of the Municipal Property Rates Act, Act 6 of 2004 (MPRA).

b) Section 62(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA).



1.3

1.4

15

The policy of the Albert Luthuli Municipality for levying rates on rateable property is set out in this
document. The Council adheres to all requirements of the Municipal Property Rates Act (MPRA)
and Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) including any regulations promulgated in terms of
these Acts.

The Rates Policy only rules the rating of valued property which are valued according to the
Municipal Property Rates Act, Act 6 of 2004 and its regulations as published under Government
Notice 1856 of 2005 in Government Gazette 28113 dated 13 October 2005 and does not rule or
guide the processes of property valuation and approval of the valuation roll.

As part of each annual operating budget the Council is obliged to impose a rate in the rand on the
market value of all rateable properties as recorded in the municipality’s valuation roll or
supplementary valuation roll(s). Rateable property shall include any rights registered against such
property, with the exception of a mortgage bond. Generally, all land within the Albert Luthuli
Municipal area of jurisdiction is rateable unless it is specifically exempted as set out in Section 15 of
the MPRA and includes:

cemeteries
sport grounds for exercising amateur sport
properties owned by welfare organizations

The Rates Policy sets out the broad policy framework within which the municipality rates its area as
per Section 3 of the MPRA, and gets annually reviewed and, when necessary, amends the
municipality’s rates for assessment as per Section 5 of the MPRA.

2. Definitions

In this policy, unless the context indicates otherwise, in addition to the definitions contained in both the

MPRA and the MFMA, the following meanings are assumed:

“Agricultural purposes” in relation to the use of a property, excludes the use of a property for the purpose

of eco-tourism or for the trading in or hunting of game.

“business” means the activity of buying, selling or trade in goods or services and includes any office or

other accommodation on the same erf, the use of which is incidental to such business, with the exclusion of

mining, agriculture, farming, or inter alia, any other business consisting of cultivation or soil, the gathering

in of crops or the rearing of livestock or consisting of the propagation and harvesting of fish or other

aquatic organisms.

“Government” means owned and exclusively used by an organ of the

state, excluding non-urban properties used for residential or agricultural

purposes or not in use.



“lllegal use” means any use that is inconsistent with or in contravention of

the permitted use of the property.

“Improvement” means any building or structure on or under a property, including:

_ a structure constructed solely for the purpose of rendering the property suitable for the erection of any
immovable structure thereon; and

_ Buildings, structures and equipment or machinery referred to in Section 46(3) of the MPRA.

“Indigent” means debtors who are poor private residential households as defined by the municipality’s
policy on Free Basic Services and Indigent Support.

“Industrial” means branch of trade or manufacturing, production, assembling or processing of finished or
partially finished products from raw materials or fabricated parts, on so large scale that capital and labour
are significantly involved. This includes factories as defined in the

Machinery and Building Work Act, Act 22 of 1941, as amended and
includes any office or other accommaodation on the same erf, the use of
which is incidental to the use of such factory.

“Mining” means any operation or activity for the purpose of extracting any
mineral on, in or under the earth, water or any residue deposit, whether by
underground or open working or otherwise and includes any operation or
activity incidental thereto.

“Municipal” means owned and exclusively used by the municipality.
“Multiple use” means a property that cannot be assigned to a single
category due to the different uses of the property.

“new private infrastructure developments” means single properties divided (through subdivision or
township establishment) into 10 or more full title units and all services, inclusive of water, sewerage,
electricity and roads are installed by the developer at his own cost.

“Non-urban land” means land which is not situated in an approved township and used for residential or
agricultural purposes or not in use.

“Public benefits organization” means an organization conducting specified public benefit activities as
defined in the Act and registered in terms of the Income Tax Act for tax reductions because of those
activities.



“Protected area” means an area that is or has to be listed in the register referred to in section 10 of the
National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, 2003.

“Public service infrastructure” means publicly controlled infrastructure of the following kinds:

(a) national, provincial or other public roads on which goods, services or labour move across a
municipal boundary;

(b) water or sewer pipes, ducts or other conduits, dams and water supply reservoirs, water treatment
plants or water pumps forming part of a water or sewer scheme serving the public;

(c) power stations, power substations or power lines forming part of an electricity scheme serving the
public;
(d) gas or liquid fuel plants or refineries or pipelines for gas or liquid fuels, forming part of a scheme

for transporting such fuels;

(e) railway lines forming part of a national railway system;

(f) communication towers, masts, exchanges or lines forming part of a communications system serving
the public;

(g) runways or aprons at national or provincial airports;

(h) any other publicly controlled as may be prescribed; or

(i) right of way, easements or servitudes in connection with infrastructure mentioned in paragraphs
(a) to (h).

“public worship” means a property registered in the name of and used primarily as a place of public
worship by a religious community, including an official residence registered in the name of that community
which is occupied by an office-bearer of that community who officiates at services at that place of worship.

“Residential” means a suite of rooms which form a living unit that is exclusively used for human habitation
purposes, or a multiple number of such units on a property, excluding a hotel, commune, boarding and
lodging undertaking, hostel and place of instruction.

“Tax base” means the values as reflected in the officially approved valuation roll of the municipality.
“Urban land” means land which is situated within a proclaimed township.

“Vacant land” means land within a registered township where no immovable improvements have been
erected; or Unless it is situated in areas such as business or industrial etc will be categorized as Residential.

“Agent”, in relation to the owner of a property, means a person appointed by the owner of the property to

(a) receive rental or other payments in respect of the property on behalf of the owner; or



(b) make payments in respect of the property on behalf of the owner.

3. STRATEGIC FOCUS
3.1 POLICY OBJECTIVES
3.1.1 To ensure certainty and clarity as to amounts payable in respect

of property rates; identify all rateable property that is not rated, to take into account the effect of
rates on organizations conducting public benefit.

3.1.2 To spread the rates burden impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias, and determine or provide
criteria for the determination of -

(a) categories of properties for the purpose of levying different rates, and
(b) categories of owners of properties for categories of properties, for the purpose of the

granting of exemptions, rebates and reductions;

3.1.3 To determine how the Municipality’s power must be exercised in relation to multi-purpose
properties;

3.1.4 To ensure the efficient, economic and effective use of resources and to contribute towards the
financial sustainability of the municipality;

(b) 3.1.5 Determine measures to promote local economic and social development and
endeavor to attract investment for job creation;

(d) 3.1.6 to create an opportunity for public participation in policy making and contribute
towards the accountability and transparency of the municipality;

(e)

(f) 3.1.7 To take into account the effect of rates on the poor and to protect citizens against
exploitation by the municipality.

(g)

(h) 3.2 PRINCIPLES OF TAXATION

(i)

1] An autonomous tax that the determination and levying of the tax will be in the discretion of the
Council of the municipality with regard to rebates and exemptions.

(k)

(n 3.3 DETERMINING THE RATE ON PROPERTY, EXEMPTIONS, REBATES AND REDUCTIONS

(m)

(n) 3.3.1. The Council shall as part of each annual operating budget component impose a rate in a
rand on the market value of all rateable property as recorded in the municipality’s valuation
roll and supplementary valuation roll. Rateable property shall include any rights registered
against such property, with the exemption of a mortgage bond.

(o)

(p) 3.3.2. The Council of the municipality will annually consider the impact of rates on the

communit; the impact of rates on businesses; the current economic climate, the Integrated



(a)
(r)

(s)
(t)

(u)
(v)

(x)
(v)
(z)
(aa)
(bb)

Development Plan (IDP) of the municipality; the Town Development Strategy and the Financial
Plan of the municipality.

3.3.3. Mitigating major shocks to ratepayers when moving from a site rating to the total market
value (land and buildings) of a property and development.

3.34 The Council shall further, in imposing rates for each financial year, strive to ensure
that the aggregate budgeted revenues from property rates, less revenue foregone and less any
contribution to the provision for bad or doubtful debts, not to exceed 35% of the municipality’s
aggregated budgeted net revenues for the financial year concerned.

4. OTHER KEY POLICY PRINCIPLES

4.1 EQUITY

4.1.1. All persons liable for property will be treated equitable and reasonable.

4.1.2. The fundamental principle is that taxpayers in similar circumstances to pay similar levels

of tax and taxpayers with greater ability to pay larger amounts of tax, however, in local
government the value of a ratepayer’s property is the proxy or surrogate for the ability to pay.

4.1.3 The circumstances for an individual ratepayer are only taken into account in respect to any

4.1.4

4.1.4

exemptions, rebates or reduction that may be granted. Rates are levied on an ad valorem (by value)

basis that is pro-rata to the value of the property.

In the local government context the application of the equity principle would suggest that the tax

(the rate in the rand) would be the same for all ratepayers in a municipal area, unless some

compelling application of other taxation principles changes in the incidence of the tax. The main

reasons why one ratepayer may

pay a different rate than another ratepayer are:

(a)
(b)
()
(d)

Different rates levied on different categories;
Exemptions;
Rebates; and

Reductions.

Although these mechanisms were created by the MPRA, the application thereof should be justified.

The main reason is to retain the historical level of contribution of the various categories of

properties to the income from assessment rates and thereof minimize the impact on ratepayers.



4.2

4.2.1

4.2.3

4.3

43.1

4.3.2

4.4

44.1

442

AFFORDABILITY

In considering affordability, the total municipal account, and not only the rates account will be
considered. The Council of the municipality will endeavour to limit the annual increase in the
revenue from property rates to a threshold in the framework of the yearly macro directives issued
by the national treasury or other relevant regulations issued on a year to year basis at the time of
tabling the annual operating budget, except when the approved Integrated Development Plan of
the municipality demand for a greater increase.

POVERTY ALIVIATION

The effect of rates on the poor has been taken into account in terms of the municipality’s Free
Basic Services and Indigent Policy. The first R15 000,00 of the value of all residential property
according to the approved valuation roll will be exempted from the payment of assessment rates
plus a further 100% discount for registered and approved indigents. Additional alleviations can be
considered by Council in the tabling of the yearly operating budget of which will be reflected in the
indigent policy.

LIMITATION OF RATES INCREASES

The transformation from a site rating system to a system where the total value (land and buildings)
will be rated will cause major shifts in the rates burden on the owners of certain properties.

As guideline the implementation of the Municipal Property Rates Act should not lead to an increase
in the income from assessment rates, and it should not result in major deviation from previous tax
structures or shocks to ratepayers. To give effect to these guidelines it is necessary to set
limitations to the increase of rates for the four financial years for which the first valuation roll
compiled in terms of the MPRA is implemented.

AMOUNTS DUE FOR RATES

The Council of the municipality shall as part of each annual operating budget determine a rate in
the rand for every category of ratepayer. The determination of such rate shall concur with the
limits as per Section 16(1) of the MPRA on property that would materially and unreasonably
prejudice:

a) national economic policies;
b) economic activities across the municipal boundaries;
c) the national mobility of goods, services, capital and labour.

Therefore, in terms of Section 17(1) of the MPRA specified impermissible rates are excluded from
the rating structure and are reflected as exemptions under paragraph 10.3 of the Policy.



5.1

5.2

53

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

LIABILITY FOR THE RATES

A rate levied by the municipality on a property must be paid by the owner of the property as
regulated by Section 24 of the MPRA.

When transfer of property takes place, the incidence of property rates falls as a charge on the new
owner from date of registration by the Registrar of Deeds.

Rates are levied on an annual basis at the start of the financial year as per Section 12(1) of the
MPRA, but for the convenience for ratepayers raised monthly on combined consumer accounts and
payable within seven (7) working days of the following month according to the payment cut-off
date stipulated on the specific monthly account.

Annually levied property tax and tariffs may not be changed during a financial year except for the
purpose of a financial recovery plan as per Section 28(6) of the MFMA.

Arrear payment on property rates at the monthly or annually due dates, are subject to interest as
stipulated by Section 97(1)(e) of the Municipal Systems Act at a rate equal to the prime plus 1%
overdraft rate as from time to time determined by the banker keeping the municipality’s primary
bank account.

When rates are levied in respect of a full financial year, the responsibility vests on the first day of
that financial year.

When rates are levied in respect of a valuation in a supplementary valuation roll, and the rates on
that valuation are levied for the first time, the liability to pay the rates vests on the first day of the
month following the completion of the public inspection period required by Section 50 of the
MPRA.

The final day for payment of annually levied and payable rates is 30 September of the specific
financial year.

Any decision on the deferment of payment of a rate is subject to the stipulations of the
municipality’s Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy.

The municipality may recover arrear rates from tenants or occupiers of rated property, or from
agents of the owner of such property equal to the value of unpaid rental in terms of Section 28 and
29 of the MPRA.

If an amount due for rates levied in respect of a property is unpaid by the owner of the property
after the date determined for payment by the municipality, the municipality may recover the
amount in whole or in part from a tenant or occupier of the property or agnent, despite any
contractual obligation to the contrary on the tenant or occupier. The municipality may recover an
amount onlyu after it has served a written notice on such tenant of occupier.



5.12

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.1.1

7.2

The amount that the municipality may recover from the tenant or occupier or agent is limited to
the amount of the rent or other money due or payable, but not yet paid, by such tenant or occupier
to the owner of the property.

VALUATION OF RATEABLE PROPERTIES

A general valuation of all rateable properties will be undertaken and a valuation roll compiled
every four (4) years.

Supplementary valuations will be undertaken on an ongoing basis and in terms of section 78 of the
MPRA.

Supplementary valuation rolls will be compiled once a year.

Amendments to the valuation roll to reflect changes to the owner, address or other prescribed
particulars as contemplated by Section 79 of the MPRA will be done annually and only the
electronic copy of the valuation roll will be updated.

LEVYING OF RATES
Property not subject to rates

Rates will not be levied on the transportation corridors of public service infrastructure owned by
the municipality and state, such as :

a) roads and streets

b) railway lines

c) pipelines

d) cabling or overhead conductor

Categories for rating purposes



7.2.1

In relation to property a category relates to properties determined in terms of Section 8 of the

MPRA and in relation to owners of properties it means category of owners as determined in terms
of Section 15(2) of the MPRA.

The

category will be determined by the actual use of the property and if the property is not in use,

the zoning will determine same.

The

Municipal Valuer will be responsible for the categorizing of properties and the maintenance

thereof as any change in use of a property may result in a change to the category.

The

vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)

x)

xi)
xii)
xiii)
xiv

XV)
XVi

categories that are determined in line with Section 8(1) of the MPRA, are:
Residential
Business
Industrial
Mining
Municipal property which will be as per definition

Municipal property leased
Municipal Business
Municipal Residential
Municipal Agriculture
Municipal PSI and other PSI
Municipal other

Public Service Infrastructure

Protected areas

Farm used for agricultural purposes

Farm used for eco-tourism

Farm used for trading in or hunting of game

Farms with townships (farms with unregistered township)
Farms used for business and commercial

Farms used for residential

Farms used for other purposes

Farms used for residential (it may be rated as business)
Small holding used for residential/agricultural purpose

O O O O O

Small holding used for business and commercial
Small holdings with the other use
Government Business

Government Residential
Government Schools and government other



7.2.2

7.2.3

8.1

8.1.1

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.3

8.3.1

8.4

Xvi) State trust land
xvii) Public worship

xviii)  Multiple use property

Xix) Protected areas

XX) Sectional Schemes residential

XXi) Sectional Schemes Business

xxii)  Sectional Schemes other

xxiii)  New private infrastructure developments residential, business and others

All agricultural properties regardless of their usage or category shall be levied by the Municipality at
the same rate as determined by the Municipality in its approved yearly budget.

Units under sectional title will separately be assessed.

RATES FOR BUSINESS FROM RESIDENTIAL DWELLING

The tariff for “home business”, as defined in Council’s policy on businesses conducted from
residential premises shall be determined as the aggregate tariff for the residential and business
category. This will exclude Guest Rooms which will be rated as business, but includes residential
properties with second dwellings and duets not subject to a sectional title scheme. The normal
residential tariff applies where parents occupy these units in terms of Council Policy.

Rates for Mining Activities

“Based on the level of services (roads, sewerage, electricity, water, refuse removal) provided by the
municipality a tariff equal the business tariff shall be applicable for the category “mining” or the
rate determined in the framework of the yearly macro directives issued by the national treasury or
other relevant regulations issued on a year to year basis at the time of tabling the annual operating
budget.

An approved Social Labour Programs and Programs of social upliftment of society as approved by
the Department of Minerals and Energy should be submitted to the Municipality with the
application for rebates.

Municipal

Properties in the “Municipal” category are exempted unless a lease agreement for such a property
(or part thereof) exists.

Public Service Infrastructure



8.4.1

8.5

8.5.1

8.6

8.6.1

8.7

8.7.1

9.1

9.1.1

9.1.2

9.1.3

Public services infrastructure as per definition, relate to essential services and shall therefore be
exempted from property rates.

Agricultural Farms

Based in general on:

a) extent of municipal services provided (roads, sewerage, electricity, water, refuse removal).
b) contribution of agriculture to the local economy.
c) extent to which agriculture assists in meeting service delivery and development obligations

of the municipality and contribution to the social and economic welfare of farm workers.

Eco-Tourism and Game Farms
The rates levied on agricultural farms shall be levied on the eco-tourism and game farms.
Residential or Agriculture Small Holdings

Residential or Agricultural Small Holdings shall be rated equal to “residential” tariff based on the
level of services provided by the municipality and its non-urban location. Within the urban area

III

such small holdings will be rated as “residential” properties.
RELIEF MECHANISMS

The Council of the municipality may grant exemptions, rebates and reductions in recognition of
Section 15(2) of the MPRA:

Rebates

When a specific category of owners of properties or the owners of a specific category of properties
qualify for more than one rebate at a given time, each rebate will be calculated on the total levy
amount.

Indigent rebate
As determined by the municipality’s Free Basic Services and Indigent Policy.
Rebates on newly rateable property

As stipulated by Section 21 of the MPRA newly rateable property must be phased in as follows:



9.2

9.2.1

9.3

9.3.1

9.3.2

9.3.3

9.34

9.3.5

9.3.6

9.3.7

(a) in the 2012/13 financial year a rebate of 75%;

(b) in the 2013/14 financial year a rebate of 50% of the rate;

(c) in the 2014/15 financial year 25% of the reate will be granted; and
(d) in the 2015/16 financial year the rate will be payable without any rebate
REDUCTIONS

Non-urban reduction

The rate applicable to developed non-urban land or vacant non-urban land will be applied to:
(a) 100% of the pro-rata value of the property on the first 5 hectares thereof;

(b) 75% of the pro-rata value on the property on the next 5 hectares thereof;

(c) 50% of the pro-rata value of the property on the next 5 hectares thereof;

(d) 25% of the pro-rata value of the property on the next 25 hectares thereof;

(e) 1% of the pro-rata value of the remainder thereof in excess of 40 hectares.

Exemptions

rateable property registered in the name of a welfare organization registered in terms of the
National Welfare Act, 1978 (Act 100 of 1978).

rateable property registered in the name of an institution or organization which, in the opinion of
the Council of the municipality performs charitable work.

hospitals, clinics and institutions for mentally ill persons which are not operated with the intention
to make profit;

rateable property registered in the name of a public benefit organization performing specified
public benefit activities;

cemeteries and crematoriums which are registered in the names of private persons and which are
used exclusively for burials and cremations of human remains, as the case may be;

museums, art galleries, libraries and botanical gardens which are registered in the names of private
persons and which are open to public,

whether admission is charged or not;

national monuments including ancillary business activities at national monuments;



9.3.8

9.3.9

9.3.10

9.3.11

9.3.12

9.3.13

9.3.14

rateable property registered in the name of a trustee or trustees or any organization which is being
maintained for the welfare of war veterans

as defined in Section 1 of the Social Aid Act (House of Assembly), 1989, Act 37 of 1989, and their
families;

sport grounds used for the purposes of amateur sport and any social activities which are
connected with such sport;

rateable property registered in the name of the

Boy Scouts, Girl Guides, Sea Scouts, Voortrekkers or any organization which is in the opinion of the
municipality similar or any rateable property let by the municipality to any such organization;

rateable property registered in the name of a declared institution as defined in Section 1 of the
Cultural Institutions Act, 1969, Act 29 of 1969, or

the Cultural Institutions Act (House of Assembly), 1989, Act 66 of 1989.

In addition to the first R15 000, 00 of exemption as per paragraph 5.3 of the policy a further 50% te
remaining value for old age or disabled pensioners solely dependant from their pension, subjected
to the following conditions:

a) the combined income of the landowner and his spouse does not exceed R46 500,00 per
annum or determined by Council from time to time;

b) the property is occupied by the owner; and

c) only owners over the age of 60 years or being the breadwinner and totally dependent on a
social disability pension or any other pension comparable to social disability pension,
should come into consideration.

The first 85% of the rateable valuation of property of new private infrastructure developments
where a single property becomes divided through either subdivision or township establishment
into 10 or more full title units and all services inclusive of water, sewerage and electricity and roads
are installed by the developer at his own cost for a period of two (2) years from the date of
registration of the subdivision or the proclamation of the township or for a shorter period until the
newly created units are sold off or improved before expiry of two (2) year period.

All properties as specified by Section 17(1) of the MPRA as follows:

a) on the first 30% of the market value of public service infrastructure, except for power
stations;
b) on those parts of a special nature reserve, national park or nature reserve within the

meaning of the Protected Areas Act, or of a national botanical garden within the meaning
of the National Environmental Management Biodiversity Act, 2004, which are not
developed or used for commercial business, or residential agricultural purposes;



10.

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

(a)
(b)

c) on mineral rights within the meaning of paragraph (b) of the definition of “property” in
Section 1 of the MPRA;

d) on a property belonging to a land reform beneficiary or his or her heirs, provided that this
exclusion lapses ten years from the date on which such beneficiary’s title was registered in
the office of the Registrar of Deeds;

e) on the first R15 000,00 of the market value of a property assigned in the valuation roll or
supplementary valuation roll of a municipality to a category determined by the

municipality-
(i) for residential purposes;
(ii) for properties used for multiple purposes, provided one or more components of

the property and which forms the major part of the property, are
used for residential purposes; or

_on a property registered in the name of and used primarily as a place of public
worship by a religious community, including an official residence registered in the
name of that community which is occupied by an office bearer of that community
who officiates at services at that place of worship. The exemptions as contained
under subparagraphs 10.3.1 to 10.3.13 above may only be granted upon formal
written applications submitted by the owners for consideration in terms of Section

15(2) of the MPRA.

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTIONS, REBATES AND REDUCTIONS

All application for exemptions, rebates and reductions shall be made to the Municipality through its
income section in the prescribed form approved by the Chief Albert Luthuli Municipal Council.

The discretion to grant such an application shall solely lye with the Municipality and shall be no
appeal to such a decision.

A rate rebate may be granted to social pensioners or the receiver of a state disability grant and is
determined by the Council from time to time. To qualify for the concession, the following criteria

will apply:
The application must be made each year and reach the chief financial officer on or before 30 June.

The applicant must be the registered owner of the property and should not sublet any portion of
the property.
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12.1.2

12.1.3

The applicant shall not own any other property.

The property must be readily accessible to municipal officials for the purpose of carrying out of
inspections and reading of meters.

Reporting of all exemptions, rebates and reductions

The Municipal Manager must annually within two months from the end of a financial year table in
Council according to Section 15(3) and (4) of the MPRA with relation to that financial year the
following:

(i) such exemptions, rebates and reductions;
(ii) exclusions referred to in Section 17(1)(a), (e), (g), (h) and (i) of the MPRA; and
(iii) the phasing-in discount granted in terms of Section 21 of the MPRA.

All exemptions, rebates and reductions projected for a financial year must be reflected in the
municipality’s annual budget for that year as:

(a) income on the Revenue side; and

(b) expenditure on the Expenditure side.

Frequency of Valuation
The municipality shall prepare a new valuation roll at least every 4 (four) years.

In accordance with the Act the municipality, under exceptional circumstances, may decide to
extend the validity of the valuation roll to 5 (five) years by applying for approval to the MEC for
Local Government in the province.

Supplementary valuations may be done on a continual basis but at least on an annual basis.
Community Participation

Before the municipality adopts the rates policy, the municipal manager will follow the process of
community participation envisaged in chapter 4 of the Municipal Systems Act and comply with the
following requirements:

Conspicuously display the draft rates policy for a period of at least 30 days (municipality to include
period decided on) at the municipality’s head and satellite offices, libraries and on the website.

Advertise in the media a notice stating that the draft rates policy has been prepared for submission
to council and that such policy is available at the various municipal offices and on the website for
public inspection.

Property owners and interested persons may obtain a copy of the draft policy from the municipal
offices during office hours at a fee as determined by the council as part of its annual tariffs.



Property owners and interested persons are invited to submit written comments or
representations to the municipality within the specified period in the notice.

12.1.4 Council will consider all comments and/or representations received when considering the
finalization of the rates policy.

13. Inspection of and Objections to an entry in the Valuation Roll

13.1  Once the Council has given notice that the valuation roll is open for public inspection, any person
may within the inspection period, inspect the roll and may lodge an objection with the municipal
manager against any matter reflected in the roll or omitted from the roll;

13.2  Should any property owner not receive notification of the value of the property within 21 days
after the valuation roll is handed to the municipality by the valuator the property owner shall
contact and/or make a request for details of the property to the municipality;

(1) Objections must be in relation to a specific property.
(2) Lodging of an objection shall not defer liability for the payment of rates; and
(3) All objections received shall be dealt with in accordance with the MPRA.

14. Special Rating Areas

14.1  the council may, on receipt of an application, create a special rating area or areas in terms of
section 22 of the Act, No 6 of 2004.

14.2  Should the municipality receive such an application the community will be consulted on -

(2) the establishment of a committee representing the community;
(2) Determination of boundaries of such an area;
(3) how the area is to be improved by funds derived from additional rates levies;

(4) What the additional rate levies will be; and

(5) Establishing of a separate accounting and recordkeeping system



15.

15.1

16.

16.1.

16.2

By-Laws to give effect to the Rates Policy

The municipality shall adopt By-laws to give effect to the implementation of the Rates Policy and
such By-laws may differentiate between different categories of properties and different categories
of owners of properties liable for the payment of rates.

ANNUAL ADOPTION OF THE POLICY

The Rates Policy will be reviewed annually in compliance with Section 5(1) of the MPRA and
according to the budget timetable tabled by the Executive Mayor in accordance with Section
21(1)(b)(ii)(bb) of the MFMA with the tabling of the Annual Budget as per Section 16(2) of the
MFMA.

Community participation will take place in accordance with Chapter 4 of the Local Government :
Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000 and by following the processes as per Sections 21A and 21B
of the Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000 (as contained under Section 5 of the Municipal
Systems Act Amendment Act, Act 44 of 2003) as follows:

a) as a document made public (Section 21A):
b) displayed at the head and satellite offices and libraries of the Municipality.
) displayed on the municipality’s official website (as per prescriptions contained under

Section 21B).

e) notified to the local community of the place, including website address, where detailed
particulars can be obtained.

f) inviting the local community to submit written comments or representations to the
municipality in respect of the published document.



17. Disclaimer

17.1. Any rate to be levied on rateable property in terms of this policy or any section of applicable
legislation and by way of oversight or any other error not levied, cannot be challenged on the basis
of non-compliance with this policy, and must be paid in accordance with the required payment
provision.

17.1. Where a ratepayer believes that the Council has failed to properly apply this policy he/she should
raise the matter with the Municipal Manager.

18. Enforcement/Implementation and Enquiries

18.1  This policy was approved by the municipal council in terms of resolution no. ..... dated 28 May 2015
and takes effect on 1 July 2015, being the effective date of the valuation roll.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

CREDIT CONTROL
AND DEBT COLLECTION POLICY

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS it is an object of Local Government under the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996
(Act No 108 of 1996), to ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner;

AND WHEREAS every municipal Council must, under section 98(1) of the Local Government:
Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000), adopt policies to give effect to the Municipality’s
credit control and debt collection, its implementation and enforcement;

Explanatory Note: This Policy is applicable to Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality (hereinafter referred
to as “the Municipality”) only. In terms of Section 80 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems
Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000); the Municipality may enter into service delivery agreements with
service providers to provide municipal services to customers. In such instances the internal Credit
Control and Debt Collection Policies of those entities may differ from this Policy, but shall be subject
to the promulgated Credit Control and Debt Collection By-laws.)

NOW THEREFORE the following is adopted as the “Draft Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy”:

1. Objectives



(1)

The objectives of these policies are to:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)
(e)
(f)

)

Provide a framework within which the municipal council can exercise its executive
and legislative authority with regard to credit control and debt collection;

Ensure that all monies due and payable to the municipality are collected and used to
deliver municipal services in the best interest of the community, residents and
ratepayers and in a financially sustainable manner;

Outline the procedures that will ensure that the members of the local community are
afforded the opportunity to contribute in the decision-making processes of the
municipality and that they are informed of the decisions and affairs of the
municipality;

Set realistic targets for debt collection;
Outline credit control and debt collection policy procedures and mechanisms;

Recognize the municipality’s constitutional obligations to develop the local economy
and to provide affordable and acceptable services to all its residents, consumers of
services and ratepayers;

Acknowledges the fact that it cannot fulfil these constitutional obligations unless it
exacts payment for the services which it provides and for the assessment rates
which it legitimately levies complete and in full from those residents who can afford
to pay, and in accordance with its indigence relief measures for those who qualify as
indigents in terms of the council’'s approved and adopted indigence management
policy; and

(h) Describe credit control measures and sequence of events.

(i) provide for matters relating to the unauthorised consumption of services, theft and

damages

Definitions

In this Policy, unless the context indicates otherwise:

“Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000);

“Charges” means surcharges on fees, penalties, property rates, taxes, levies and duties;

“Council” means —

€) the Municipal Council of Albert Luthuli Local Municipality established by Provincial Notice No
299 dated 1 October 2000, as amended, or its successor in title and any committee or person
to which or to whom an instruction has been given or any power has been delegated in terms
of, or as contemplated in, Section 59 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000
(Act No 32 of 2000), or



(b) a service provider in respect of any power, function or duty of the Council as contemplated in
paragraph (a), assigned by it for the purposes of this Policy to that service provider in terms of
Section 81(2) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000) .

“Customer” means the owner of any premises upon which charges are levied as well as a person to
whom a service provider supplies services, and the occupier thereof, where applicable;

“Day” means a calendar day and a period of days are calculated by excluding the first day of the
period and including the last day, unless the last day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in
which event the period is calculated with the exclusion of the first day and also of the Saturday,
Sunday or public holiday;

“Debtor” means a person owing an amount of money to the Municipality for a reason other than
through the provision of municipal services;

“Employer” means an employer as defined in Paragraph 1 of the Seventh Schedule of the Income
Tax Act, 1962 (Act No 58 of 1962);

“Implementing authority” means the Municipal Manager of the Council or any other Official
delegated by the Municipal Manager to implement and enforce the Council’s Credit Control and Debt
Collection Policy;

“Municipal account” means any municipal service charge, tax or other fees, interest and charges
due in terms of a contract or approved tariff or rate, which is outstanding after the due date, normally
appearing on the consolidated account, or overdue in terms of the contract or any other due date
that has passed;

“Municipality” means the Albert Luthuli Local Municipality;
“Occupier” includes any person in actual occupation of premises without regard to the title under
which they occupy, if any;

“‘Owner” in relation to premises means:

€) a person who from time to time is registered as such in a deeds registry as defined in the
Deeds Registries Act, 1937 (Act No 47 of 1937); or

(b) where the person is insolvent or dead, or is under any form of legal disability whatsoever, the
person in whom the administration of their property is vested as curator, trustee, executor,
administrator, judicial manager, liquidator or other legal representative; or

(c) where a Sectional Title Register has been opened under Section 8 of the Titles Act, 1971
(Act No 66 of 1971), the body corporate as defined in that Act, and includes any person
receiving rent for the premises whether for their own account or as agent for a person
entitled to it.

“Person” means any natural person, local government body or similar authority, a company or close
corporation incorporated under any law, a body of persons whether incorporated or not, a statutory
body, public utility body, voluntary association or trust;

“Premises” means any piece of land which is situated in the area of jurisdiction of the Council, the
external surface boundaries of which are delineated on:



@)

(b)

A General Plan or Diagram registered under the Land Survey Act, 1927 (Act No 9 of 1927),
or under the Deeds Registries Act, 194(3)7 (Act No 47 of 1937); or

A Sectional Title Register opened under Section 8 of the Sectional Titles Act, 1971 (Act No
66 of 1971).

“Service” means any service rendered by or on behalf of the Council, in respect of which an account
may be rendered, excluding any service rendered by the Council as an agent for another principal,
and “services” has a corresponding meaning;

“Standard rate of interest” means the interest rate as determined by the Minister of Finance from
time to time under Section 89 of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act No 58 of 1962) and published in the
Gazette; interest rate i.t.0. the budget is prime rate plus 1%.

“Supervisory authority” means the Municipality’s Mayoral Committee

1)

2

®)

4

®)

(6)

)

8)

9)

(10)

(11)

Principles

The administrative integrity of the Municipality must be maintained at all costs. The
democratically elected officials (councillors) are responsible for policy-making, while it is the
responsibility of the Municipal Manager or any other Official delegated by the Municipal
Manager to execute these policies.

Prospective consumers must complete an official municipal application form formally
requesting the Municipality to provide them with electricity and water.

Copy of the official municipal application form, conditions of services and applicable extracts
from the adopted Council’'s Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy and By-laws must be
handed to every consumer on request.

Monthly Billing of municipal accounts is to be accurate, timeous and understandable.
The Consumer is entitled to have access to all municipal cashier or pay points and to a
variety of reliable payment methods, including third party payments i.e. the South African

Post Office (SAPO).

The Consumer is entitled to an efficient, effective and reasonable response to appeals, and
should suffer no disadvantage during the processing er of such a reasonable appeal.

Enforcement of payment must be prompt, consistent and effective at all time and applicable
to all ratepayers or consumers of services rendered by the municipality.

Fraud and/or criminal offences can lead to the loss of rights and heavy penalties and/or
public prosecution could be instituted by the municipality on the perpetrator if he or she

should be found guilty.

Payment Incentives and disincentives may be used in collection procedures and during the
collection process.

The collection process must at all times be cost-effective and within the approved budget of
the Municipality/Council.

Debt Collection “Best Practices” will be pursued at all time during the execution of the policy.



(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

17)

(18)

Depending on payment patterns, the Municipal Manager or delegated official may provide
reduced levels of service to manage the debt growth.

Debt Collection and Credit Control Results will be regularly monitored and efficiently reported
to the Municipal Manager or any other Official delegated by the Municipal Manager as well
as the Municipal Council.

Although customer care and debt collection are inter-related issues, they should be
performed by two separate divisions of the Income Section of the Department Finance.

There must be legal cause between the Municipality and its consumers/debtors and
consumer/debtor debt must arise out of a legal framework and must be legally collectable.

Indigent households will be identified and supported as required by legislation. Welfare is to
be separated from tariff and debt collection and credit control issues and will be supported by
appropriate, affordable and adopted policies and practices.

Indigent support will be introduced within the Council’s financial ability and in accordance
with the applicable legislation.

Performance Targets for customer care, debt collection and credit control will be set and
pursued at all times and remedies will be implemented for non-performance.

Indigent Subsidy

(1)

)

3)

(4)

The source of funding of the indigent subsidy is that portion of the equitable share
contribution to the Municipality made from the national government’s fiscus and as provided
for in the Annual approved Budget of the Municipality. In exceptional circumstances this can
be supplemented from other revenues if Council approval to that effect is obtained.

The subsidy amount is to be crudely calculated by dividing the portion of the equitable share
as budgeted by the estimated number of qualifying households per area and tariff type.
These figures are the approximate average subsidy per household.

The Municipal Council shall annually, as part of its budgetary process, determine the
municipal services and levels thereof that will be subsidised in respect of indigent customers
in accordance wit national policy, subject to the principles of sustainability and affordability.

The Municipal Council shall, in the determination of municipal services that will be
subsidised for indigents, follow the Free Basic Services Policy of the Municipality.
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(6)

(7)

(8)
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(14)

@)

Where electricity is to be subsidised under the Free Basic Services Policy of the
Municipality, such households may be required to convert to prepaid electricity meters when
implemented, the cost of which can be met either by:

(a) the equitable share fund, if sufficient;
(b) a surcharge on the electricity coupon cost; or
(c) cash payment by the indigent household.

If an indigent customer’'s consumption or use of a municipal service is less than the
subsidised service, the unused portion may not be accrued by the indigent customer and will
not entitle the customer to cash or a rebate in respect of the unused portion.

If an indigent customer’s consumption or use of a municipal service is in excess of the
subsidised service, the indigent customer will be obliged to pay for such excess
consumption at the applicable rate.

The Council may cause inspectors to visit indigent households to audit the veracity of the
data in the application form and to record any changes in circumstances and make
recommendations on the continuation, variation or discontinuation of the subsidy.

Indigent households subsidised under the Free Basic Services Policy whose consumption
has exceeded the limits set out in that policy, and who are in arrears on payment for these
services, may be restricted in respect of electricity and/or water.

The disqualification process asset out in the Indigent policy should be followed if —
€)) the application was filled in dishonestly;
(b) audits indicate improvements in the financial circumstances of the indigent
household above the qualifying income.
Arrears accumulated in respect of the municipal accounts of customers prior to their first
registration as indigent customers, will be suspended and interest shall not accumulate on

such arrears for the period that a customer remains registered as an indigent customer.

Arrears suspended in terms of Section 5(11) shall become due and payable by the customer
on de-registration as an indigent customer.

In special individual cases, a report may be submitted to the Mayoral Committee to decide if
Section 5(12) should be implemented or not.

Consumers found tampered with Electricity Pre-paid Meters will be disqualified from
receiving free basic services

Customer Care and Management

Communication and Feedback

(@) The Municipality will communicate and give feedback to communities, ratepayers
and residents in accordance with its Policy on Public Participation.



(b)

)
(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

@

The Council will establish:

0] A separate, centrally controlled, telephone, with a logged call registers
facility, available to receive all unresolved customer complaints and to
receive feedback regarding the quality of services provided by the Council.

(ii) A system to monitor response times and time taken for corrective action
shall be installed. Copies of all logged complaints and feedback received
will be submitted to the Municipal Manager at the end of each day for the
necessary action and attention.

(i) Appropriate training for officials dealing with the public to enhance
communications and effective service delivery; and

(iv) A communication mechanism to give the Council feedback on the
implementation of this Policy and other issues of concern

Service Application and Agreements

All consumers of services will be required to sign an application and agreement form
for new consumer services governing the supply, and cost of municipal services.
Owners may allow a tenant to sign a separate agreement with the Municipality,
which the Municipality may accept, provided that the written consent of the owner is
provided. On default by a tenant, the owner is die debtor of last resort, except in
respect of the Council’s own property.

Prior to signing these agreements, owners and/or tenants will, on request, be
entitled to receive the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy Document of the
Council.

On the signing of the agreement, owners and/or tenants will receive a copy thereof.

Within a specified period (in the agreement) of change of ownership, meters will be
read and the relevant municipal accounts will be rendered.

In the agreement, customers/consumers/ratepayers will acknowledge liability for
costs of collection, interest and charges, in the event of a delayed payment or
payments.

Financial and other special incentives for both employers and employees may be
considered where employers enter into an agreement with the Council, with the
consent of the employee, where the employee is the customer, for the deduction of
any outstanding amounts due by the customer to the Council, or any regular
monthly amounts as may be agreed, from the salary or wage of the customer.

“Good payer” status, for example, may be awarded to such customers with specific
benefits attached thereto, such as special queues for faster service.

Customers who are employed whether as an employee or Councillor are not
permitted to arrange to pay off their debt, unless they sign a stop order that
provides for deductions from salary of arrears as well as the current account over
the agreed period.



3)

Customer Screening and Securities

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

All applicants for municipal services must produce a green bar-coded ID book or
passport and the official will make a copy.

Security deposits either in cash or any other security acceptable to the Municipality
will be taken and may vary according to the risk. A minimum deposit as per the Tariff
Policy will be charged for new connections.

Deposits will be increased by the Municipality as per the Tariff Policy.

Deposits can vary according to the credit worthiness or legal category of the
applicant subject to paragraph 4(3)(a).

The Municipality will not pay interest on security deposits held by the Municipality in
terms of paragraph 4(3)(b).

On the termination of the agreement, the amount of the deposit less any outstanding
amount due to the Municipality will be refunded to the customer/consumer/ratepayer.

Accounts and Billing

)

()

3)

(4)

Customers will receive an understandable and accurate bill from the Municipality on a
monthly basis. All accounts will contain at least the following particulars, where possible and

applicable:

€) The name of the Council/Municipality.

(b) The name of the customer/consumer/ratepayer.

(© The account number.

(d) The service levies or assessment rates in question.

(e) The period allowed for the payment of services and assessment rates.

()] The property or stand number in respect of which the payment is required.

(9) The date before which payment must be made (due date).

(h) Business hours of the Municipality.

0] The method(s) and place(s) of possible payment

0] Any discount for early or prompt payment.

(k) Interest on late payment.

0] Consequences of non-payment.

(m) Amount brought forward.

(n) Consumption for the current month reflecting units consumed, cost per unit and cost
per service.

(0) Total amount payable

Accounts will be produced in accordance with the meter reading cycle and due dates will be
as determined by the Council from time to time.

Accounts will be rendered monthly in cycles of approximately 30 (thirty) days at the address
last recorded with the Municipality or its authorised agent.

It is the customer’s responsibility to ensure timeous payment in the event of accounts not
received.



(5)

Where an account is not settled in full, any lesser amount tendered and accepted shall not
be deemed to be in final settlement of such an account, even when a dispute exists.

(6) Where any payment made to the Municipality or its authorised agent by negotiable
instrument is later dishonoured by the bank, the Municipality or its authorised agent:
(a) May recover the average bank charges incurred relating to dishonoured negotiable

instruments against the account of the customer;

(b) Shall regard such an event as default on payment.

(c) May refuse to accept cheques or may refer to the Credit Bureau.

@) The Municipality or its authorised agent must, if administratively possible, issue a duplicate
account to a customer on request.

Metering

(1) The Municipality will endeavour, within practical and financial limits, to provide meters to
every paying customer for all meterable services.

(2) All meters will be read monthly, if at all possible. If the meter is not read monthly, the Council
will average the consumption for preceding periods of 3 (three) months.

3 Customers are entitled to request verification of meter readings and accuracy within reason,
but may be held liable for the cost thereof.

4) Customers will be informed of meter replacement, in writing.

(5) If a service is metered but it cannot be read due to financial and human resource constraints

or circumstances out of the control of the Municipality or its authorised agent, the customer is
charged for an average consumption.

Right of Access to Premises

(1)

()
3)

The owner and/or occupier of premises is obliged to give an authorised representative of the
Municipality access at all reasonable hours to the premises in order to read, inspect, install,
repair or replace any meter or service connection for reticulation or to disconnect, stop or
restrict, or reconnect the provision of any service.

The owner accepts the cost of relocating a meter if satisfactory access is not possible.
If a person contravenes 4(6)(a), the Municipality or its authorised agent may:

(a) by written notice require such person to restore access at his/her own expense
within a specified period;

(b) if it is the opinion that the situation is a matter of urgency, without prior notice restore
access and recover the cost from such a person

Payment Facilities and Methods

@)

The Municipality will operate and maintain suitable banking and cash facilities and facilities
will be accessible to all consumers and ratepayers.



@)

The Municipality will, at its discretion, allocate a payment between service debts - a debtor
who has overdue debt may not specify that the payment is for a specific portion of the
account.

3) The Municipality may, with the consent of a customer, approach an employer to secure a
debt or stop order arrangement on his or her salary.

(4) The customer will acknowledge in the customer agreements that the use of customer agents
in the transmission of payments to the Municipality is at the risk of the customer - also for the
transfer time of the payment in respect of the due date of the municipal account.

10. Enquiries, Appeals and Service Complaints

D) If a customer is convinced that his/her account is inaccurate, he/she can lodge a written
appeal with the Municipality addressed to the Municipal Manager for the recalculation of the
said account.

(2) In the interim period the customer must pay an average based on previous consumption
where history of the account is available. Where no such history is available, the customer is
to pay, without prejudice of rights, an estimate provided by the Municipality before the
payment due date until the matter is resolved.

3 The relevant Department will investigate and inform the customer within a reasonable period
of time.

(4) Failure to make such agreed interim payment or payments would make the customer liable
for disconnection of services.

(5) A customer has the right to appeal against the finding of the Municipality or its authorised
agent in terms of 4(8(a).

(6) An appeal and request in terms of 4(8)(e) must be made and lodged with the Municipality
and addressed to the Municipal Manager within 21 (twenty-one) days after the customer
became aware of the finding referred to in 4(8)(c) and must:
€) Set out the reasons for the appeal;

(b) Be accompanied by any security determined for the testing of a measuring device if
applicable.
11. Businesses who Tender with the Municipality
(2) When inviting tenders and quotations for the provision of services or delivery of goods,

potential contractors may submit tenders or quotations subject to a condition that
consideration and evaluation thereof will necessitate that the tenderer obtain from the
Municipality a certificate stating that all relevant municipal accounts owing by the tenderer or
its members, directors, owners or partners have been paid in full or that suitable
arrangements (which include the right to set off in the event of non-compliance) have been
made for payment of any arrears.

(2) Tender conditions must contain a condition allowing the Municipality to deduct
monies owing for not more than three months to the Municipality from contract
payments in terms of a reasonable arrangement with the tenderer.



12. Customer Assistance Programmes

(1) Water Leakages

@)

If the leakage is on the side of the meter of the customer, the customer is
responsible for the payment of the full account.

(b) The customer has the responsibility to control and monitor his/her consumption.

(2) Investment Principles

(a)

(b)

Properties may qualify for a rate rebate determined annually as per the Rates Policy
approved by Council.

A rate rebate may be granted to social pensioners or the receiver of a state disability
grant as determined by the Council from time to time. To qualify for the concession,

the following criteria will apply:

0] The application must be made each year and reach the chief financial
officer on or before 30 June.

(i) The applicant must be the registered owner of the property and should not
sublet any portion of the property.

(iii) The applicant should not own any other property.

(iv) The property must be readily accessible to Municipal Officials for the
purpose of carrying out of inspections and reading of meters.

(3) Unauthorised consumption of services

Unauthorised consumption, connection and reconnection, the tampering with or
theft of meters, service supply equipment and the reticulation network and any
fraudulent activity in connection with the provision of municipal services will lead
to disconnections, penalties, loss of rights and criminal prosecutions

The Municipal Manager will immediately terminate the supply of services to a
consumer should such conduct as outlined above, be detected

(4) STAFF AND COUNCILLORS IN ARREARS

4.1 a. Item10 of Schedule 2 to the Act states that: - “A staff member of the
Municipality may not be in arrears to the municipality for rates and service charges
for a period longer than three (3) months and a municipality may deduct any
outstanding amounts from a staff members salary after this period.”

b. The Municipality shall liaise with the relevant staff on repayment of their arrears.

c. The staff member must sign a credit authority in accordance with this Policy.



13.

©)

d. No special treatment shall be afforded to staff in arrears.

4.2 a. Iltem 12A of Schedule 1 to the Act states that: - “A Councillor may not be in
arrears to the municipality for rates and service charges for a period longer than
three months.”

b. The Municipal Manager shall liaise with the Mayor and issue the necessary salary
deduction instruction where appropriate.

4.3 Where the staff or Councillors arrears have arisen due to any other reason, such

arrear must be paid within 3 months with interest.

Arrangements for Settlements

(a)

(b)

(©
(d)

If a customer cannot pay his or her account with the Municipality, then the
Municipality may enter into an extended term of payment with the customer. The
customer must:

0) sign an acknowledgement of debt;

(i) sign consent to judgement;

(iii) provide a garnishee order / emolument order / stop order (if he/she is
employed);

(iv) acknowledge that interest will be charged at the prescribed rate, being the
prime lending rate of the Municipality’s banker plus 1% as amended by the
South African Reserve Bank from time to time; pay the current portion of the
account in cash; and

(v) sign an acknowledgement that if the arrangements being negotiated are
later defaulted on, no further arrangements will be possible and that
disconnection of services and blockage of pre-payment meters will
immediately follow, as will legal proceedings

Customers with electricity arrears may be requested to agree to the conversion to a
prepaid meter after all arrears and the cost of the pre-payment meter has been paid
in full and a written agreement to this effect has been entered into.

The Council reserves the right to raise the deposit / security requirement in
accordance with Paragraph 4(3) of debtors who seek arrangements

Customers on prepaid electricity Council may add the debt as a surcharge to the
prepaid electricity cost, and be repaid with each purchase of electricity until the debt
is liquidated on 80:20 .

Indigent Subsidy




(1)

(2)

®3)

(4)
()

(6)

(7)

(8)
(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

Qualifying households. A household with no income and/or a total income equal to the social
state pension grant qualifies as an indigent household and for a Council subsidy.

The applicant must occupy the premises, receive a municipal account, may not own any
other property, either inside or outside the Municipality’s area of jurisdiction and must comply
with any other terms or conditions determined and adopted by the Council from time to time.

Funding of subsidy. The source of funding of the indigent subsidy is that portion of the
equitable share contribution to the Municipality made from the national government’s fiscus
and as provided for in the Annual approved Budget of the Municipality. In exceptional
circumstances this can be supplemented from other revenues if Council approval to that
effect is obtained.

The subsidy amount is to be crudely calculated by dividing the portion of the equitable share
as budgeted by the estimated number of qualifying households per area and tariff type.
These figures are the approximate average subsidy per household.

Subsidised services are to be sewerage, water and refuse removal.

Electricity will be subsidised and households for indigent support may be required to convert
to pre-payment electricity meters when implemented, the cost of which can be met either by:

(a) The equitable share fund, if sufficient;
(b) A surcharge on the electricity coupon cost; or
(©) Cash payment by the household

Indigent households which exceed free basic services and are in arrears may be restricted in
respect of electricity and/or water.

Households become eligible by application on a specific application form of the Council,
after which screening and ongoing auditing are possible. This form will require data on the
inhabitants of the household, their occupations, income and property ownership and
business ownership.

A qualifying household must be in possession of a letter of approval from the Municipality.

The Council may cause inspectors to visit indigent households to audit the veracity of the
data in the application form and to record any changes in circumstances and make
recommendations on the continuation or discontinuation of the subsidy.

Indigent households may apply or reapply for indigent support at any time during the
financial year on the prescribed application form of the Council.

Households will be excluded from the scheme if:

(@) The application was filled in dishonestly;
(b) Audits indicate improvements in the financial circumstances of the household
beyond the qualifying income.

If a customer’s consumption or use of a municipal service is less than the subsidised service,
the unused portion may not be accrued by the customer and will not entitle the customer to
cash or a rebate in respect of the unused portion.



(13) If a customer’s consumption or use of a municipal service is in excess of the subsidised
service, the customer will be obliged to pay for such excess consumption at the applicable
rate.

(14)  Anindigent customer must immediately requests de-registration by the Municipality or its
authorised agent if his/her circumstances have changed to the extent that he/she no longer
meets the qualification set out in 5(1).

(15)  Anindigent customer may at any time request de-registration.

(16) Subsidies that have been received unrightfully will be reversed and recovered from the
customer by the Municipality.

Debt Collection

(1) Enforcement Mechanisms
€) Interruption of Service
0] Customers who are in arrears with their municipal account and who have

made no arrangements with the Municipality will have their supply of
electricity and water and other municipal services suspended or
disconnected and/or restricted.

(ii) The disconnection of services will be implemented when the municipal
account is 1 (one) day overdue, municipality will issue final notice to
consumer which is payable within seven days .

(iii) The right to deny or restrict the sale of electricity or water to customers, who
are in arrears with their rates or other municipal charges, is reserved.

(iv) Upon the liquidation or arrears, or the conclusion of arrangements for term
payment, services will be reconnected as soon as conveniently possible.

(v) The cost of the restriction or disconnection and the reconnection will be
determined by tariff agreed by the Council and will be payable by the
customer.

(b) Interest and Charges

Interest and penalties will be raised as a charge on all accounts not paid by the due
date in accordance with applicable legislation.

(©) Personal / Telephonic / Agent Contact

0] The Municipal Manager will endeavour, within the constraints of affordability,
to correspond personally, by telephone or by letter contact with all arrear
debtors to encourage their payment and to inform them of their arrears state
and their rights (if any) to conclude arrangements or to apply for indigent
subsidies and other related matters, and will provide information on how and
where to access such arrangements or subsidies.

(i) The Municipality shall maintain a schedule of debtors with large amounts
outstanding (the cut-off amount will be agreed by the Municipal Manager)
and will maintain intensive contact with these debtors as in 6(1)(c)(i).



(d)

(i)

Such contact is not a right for debtors that debtors enjoy - disconnection of
services and other collection proceedings will continue in the absence of
such contact for whatever reason.

Legal Process / Use of Attorneys / Use of Credit Bureaus

@

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

(Vi)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

The Municipal Manager will, when a debtor is above 120 days in arrears,
commence legal process against that debtor, which process could involve
summonses, court trials, judgements, emolument attachment orders and, as
a measure of last resort, sales in execution of property. Indigent households
are exempted from this action for as long as:

. the household is classified as an indigent case;

= the repayment agreement with the Council is adhered to.
The Municipal Manager will exercise strict control over this process to
ensure consistent accuracy and legality within it and will require regular
reports on progress from staff charged with the responsibility or outside
parties, be they attorneys of any other collection agents appointed by the
Council.
The Municipal Manager will establish procedures and codes of conduct with
these outside parties.
Emolument attachment orders in the case of employed customers are
preferred to sales in execution, but both are part of the Municipality’s system
of debt collection procedures.
All steps in the credit control procedure will be recorded for municipal
records and for the information of the debtor.
All costs of this process are for the account of the debtor.
Individual debtor accounts are protected and are not the subject of public
information, except for officials and councillors. However, the Municipality
may release debtor information to credit bureaus. This release will be in
writing and this situation will be included in the Municipality’s agreement with
its customers.
The Municipal Manager may consider the cost effectiveness of this process
and will receive reports on all relevant matters and report to the Mayoral
Committee.
On a recommendation by the Municipal Manager, the Council may consider
the use of agents and innovative debt collection methods and products.
Cost effectiveness, the willingness of agents to work under appropriate
codes of conduct and the success of such agents and products will be part
of the agreement the Council might conclude with such agents or product
vendors.
Customers will be informed of the powers and duties of such agents and
their responsibilities, including their responsibility to observe agreed codes
of conduct.
Any agreement concluded with an agent or product vendor shall include a
clause whereby breaches of the code of conduct by the agent or vendor will
see the contract terminated. The Municipal Manager will determine
appropriate measures to be installed within the broad parameters described
in Paragraph 6 and consult with the Mayoral Committee on these measures.
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(2)

3)

(4)

Cost of Collection

All costs of legal processes, charges, service discontinuation costs as associated with credit
control and debt collection, are for the account of the customer and should reflect at least
the cost of the particular action

Abandonment

(@) The Municipal Manager must ensure that all avenues are utilised to collect the
Municipality’s outstanding debts.

(b) There are some circumstances that allow for the valid termination of debt collection
procedures:
() The insolvency of the debtor whose estate has insufficient funds:
(ii) A balance owing too small to recover for economic reasons considering the

cost of recovery.

(©) The Municipality will maintain audit trials in such an instance and document the
reasons for the abandonment of the outstanding debt.

Rates Clearance
On the sale of any property in the municipal jurisdiction, the Council will withhold the transfer

until all rates, services and sundry charges related to the property are paid by withholding a
rates clearance certificate, except where otherwise provided in legislation.

Performance Evaluation

1)

Income Collection Targets

Council shall create targets that include:

(2)

. Reduction in present monthly increase in debtors in line with performance
agreements determined by the Council

Customer Service Targets

Council shall create targets that will include:

®3)

€) Response time to customer queries.

(b) Date of first account delivery to new customers.
(©) Reconnection time lapse.

(d) Meter reading cycle.

(e) Reduction in customer complaints.

Administrative Performance.

Council shall create targets that will include:

€) Cost efficiency of debt collection.
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17.

18.

19.

(4)

(b) Query rates.
(c) Enforcement mechanism ratios.

The Council will create a mechanism wherein these targets are assessed; the Council
performance is evaluated and remedial steps taken.

Reporting to Council

1)

)
®)

The Chief Financial Officer shall report monthly to the Municipal Manager in a suitable format
to enable the Municipal Manager to report to the Mayoral Committee. This report shall report
on:

@) Cash flow information for the capital and operating accounts and combined situation,
showing the Council’s actual performance against its cash flow budgets.
(b) Cash collection statistics, showing high-level debt recovery information (humbers of

customers; enquiries; default arrangements; growth or reduction of arrear debtors
ideally divided into wards, business [commerce and industry], and domestic, state,
institutional and other divisions).

(©) Performance of all areas against targets agreed to in Paragraph 6 of this Policy.

(d) The Council’'s ongoing income and expenditure statements, comparing both billed
income and cash receipt income, against ongoing expenditure in both the capital and
operating accounts.

The Mayoral Committee shall quarterly report to the Council as contemplated in Section
99(c) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000).

If in the opinion of the Chief Financial Officer the Council will not achieve cash receipt
income equivalent to the income projected in the annual budget as approved by the Council,
the Chief Financial Officer will report this with motivation to the Municipal Manager, who will,
if he/she agrees with the Chief Financial Officer, immediately move for a revision of the
budget according to realistically realisable income levels.

Structures of Department of Finance

The Council shall regularly receive a report from the Chief Financial Officer, if necessary after
consultation with suitable consultants, on the manpower and systems requirements of Finance,
which requirements take into account the Council’s agreed targets of customer care and
management, and debt collection, and, after considering this report, the Council will, within reason,
vote such resources as are necessary to ensure that Finance has the staffing and structures to meet
the Council’s targets in this regard or to outsource the service.

Short Title

This policy is called the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy of Albert Luthuli Municipality.

Procedures



Within 30 days after the approval of this policy, the Municipal Manager shall approve procedures
related to this policy.

Legal Requirements

It is essential for the protection of the municipality’s interests that the provisions of particularly the
Municipal Systems Act 2000 and the Property Rates Act 2004, in so far as they provide additional
debt collection mechanisms for municipalities, be diligently enforced. At the same time, both the
council and the administration of the Municipality must note the obligations which the municipality
has towards the community in respect of customer care and relations.

For ease of reference a paraphrase of the relevant extracts from the Municipal Systems Act,
specifically Sections 95 to 103 and Section 118 are therefore appended to this policy, as are
Sections 28 and 29 of the Property Rates Act. The immediately relevant extracts from the Water
Services Act 1997 and the Municipal Finance Management Act are also included in the annexure.

Section |: Water Services Act No. 108 Of 1997

Section 21: By-Laws

The Act requires a municipality, in its capacity as water services authority, to make by-laws which
contain conditions for the provision of water services and which provide for the following (inter-alia):

. the standard of the services;

. the technical conditions of supply, including quality standards, units or standards of
measurement, the verification of meters, acceptable limits of error and procedures for the
arbitration of disputes relating to the measurement of water services provided;

o the determination and structure of tariffs;

o the payment and collection of moneys due for the water services consumed,;

. the circumstances under which water services may be limited or discontinued and the
procedure for such limitation or discontinuation; and

o the prevention of unlawful connexions to water services works and the unlawful or wasteful

use of water.



Section |Il: Local Government: Municipal System Act No. 32 of 2000

Section 95: Customer Care and Management

A municipality must, in relation to the levying of rates and other taxes, and the charging of fees for
municipal services, within its financial and administrative capacity, do the following:

. establish a sound customer management system which aims to create a positive and
reciprocal relationship between persons liable for these payments and the municipality itself
or (where applicable) a service provider;

. establish mechanisms for users of services and ratepayers to give feedback to the
municipality or other service provider with regard to the quality of the services and the
performance of the service provider;

. take reasonable steps to ensure that users of services are informed of the costs involved in
service provision, the reasons for the payment of service fees, and the manner in which
moneys raised from the service are utilised;

) where the consumption of services is measured, take reasonable steps to ensure that the
consumption by individual consumers of services is measured through accurate and
verifiable metering services;

. ensure that persons liable for payments receive regular and accurate accounts which
indicate the basis for calculating the amounts due;
. provide accessible mechanisms for those persons to query or verify accounts and metered

consumption, as well as appeal procedures which allow such persons to receive prompt
redress for inaccurate accounts;

. provide accessible mechanisms for dealing with complaints from such persons, together with
prompt replies and corrective action by the municipality;

. provide mechanisms to monitor the response time and efficiency in complying with the
aforementioned requirements; and

. provide accessible pay points and other mechanisms for settling accounts or for making

prepayments for services.

Section lll: Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003

Section 64: Revenue Management

The accounting officer of the municipality is responsible for the management of the municipality’s
revenues, and must, for this purpose, take all reasonable steps to ensure:

o that the municipality has effective revenue collection systems consistent with Section 95 of the
Municipal Systems Act 2000 and the municipality’s credit control and debt collection policies;

. that revenues due to the municipality are calculated on a monthly basis;

) that accounts for municipal taxes and charges for municipal services are prepared on a
monthly basis, or less often as may be prescribed where monthly accounts are uneconomical,

. that all moneys received are promptly deposited in accordance with the requirements of the
present Act, into the municipality’s primary and other bank accounts;

. that the municipality has and maintains a management, accounting and information system

which recognises revenues when they are due, accounts for debtors, and accounts for
receipts of revenues;

. that the municipality has and maintains a system of internal control in respect of debtors and
revenues, as may be prescribed,;



o that the municipality charges interest on arrears, accept where the council has granted
exemptions in accordance with its budget related policies and within a prescribed framework;
and

o that all revenues received by the municipality, including revenues received by any collecting
agent on its behalf, is reconciled at least on a weekly basis.

The accounting officer must immediately inform the national treasury of any payments due by an
organ of state to the municipality in respect of municipal taxes or for municipal services, if such
payments are regularly in arrears for periods of more than 30 days.

Note: Section 164: Forbidden Activities

Section 164(1)(c) lists as a forbidden activity the making by a municipality of loans to councillors or
officials of a municipality, directors or officials of any municipal entity, and members of the public. It
has been assumed for purposes of compiling the credit control and debt collection policy that
allowing any party to pay off arrears of rates and municipal service charges is not tantamount to the
making of a loan in terms of Section 164.)

Section 1V: Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act NO. 6 of 2004

Section 28: Recovery of Rates in Arrears from Tenants and Occupiers

If the rates owed by a property owner are unpaid by due date, the municipality may recover such
rates, either in whole or in part, from any tenant or occupier of the property concerned.

However, the tenant or occupier of the property must first be given written notice of the municipality’s

intentions, and the amount which the municipality may recover is limited to the amount of rent and
other moneys due and unpaid by the tenant or occupier to the property owner concerned.

Section 29: Recovery of Rates from Agents

If it is more convenient for the municipality to do so, it may recover the rates due on a property, either
in whole or in part, from the agent of the property owner concerned.

However, the agent must first be given written notice of the municipality’s intention, and the amount
the municipality may recover is limited to the amount of any rent and other moneys received by the

agent on behalf of such property owner, less any commission due to the agent.

The following examples of Administrative Forms are also attached for discussion and consideration
for amendment of the current forms and eventual inclusion in the revised policy.

15. Enforcement/Implementation and Enquiries

This policy has been approved by the Municipal Council in terms of resolution no. ... dated 28 May 2015 and
takes effect on 1 July 2015, which is the effective date of the valuation roll.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

Cash Management and Investment Policy



1. Introduction

1.1. As trustees of public funds, Councillors and officials have an obligation to ensure that cash
resources are managed as effectively, efficiently and economically as possible. The Council of the
Municipality has the responsibility to invest public funds carefully and has to the community in
this regard. A comprehensive set of cash management and investment policies is needed to
accomplish this commitment. Proper policies and procedures will also improve internal
operations that may reduce the Municipality’s cash management risks.

2. Objectives

2.1. The objectives of these policies are.
2.1.1. To ensure the effective, efficient and economical use of cash resources;
2.1.2. To emphasize a culture of accountability over the Municipality’s cash;
2.1.3. To speed up inflow and slow down outflow of cash and keep cash secure at all times;
2.1.4. To gain the highest possible return, without unnecessary risk, during periods when excess
funds are not being used; and
2.1.5. To safeguard the Municipalities cost resources against theft or any fraudulent activities

3. Scope of Application

3.1. These policies are established to guide officials on cash flow management. It should be applied in
the treatment of all cash and cash equivalents that belong to the Chief Albert Luthuli
Municipality.

4. Accountability

4.1. As Trustees of public funds, Councillors and officials have an obligation to ensure that cash
resources are managed in the most efficient and cost effective manner possible.

4.2. Officials serving on the Investment Committee have a responsibility and are accountable to the
community to exercise due care when investing public funds

5. Legislative Framework

5.1. Interms of Section 13 of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003) a Municipality
may, subject to such framework as the Minister may determine by notice in the Gazette, from
time to time, invest in the follow instruments or investments.

5.1.1. Deposits in Registered banks.
5.1.2. Security issued by national government.



5.1.3.
5.1.4.
5.1.5.
5.1.6.

5.1.7.

5.1.8.

5.1.9.
5.1.10.

Public investment commissioners.

Corporations for public deposits.

A municipality’s own stock or similar type of debt.

Internal Funds of a municipality which have been established in terms of a law to pool
money available to the municipality and to employ such money for the granting of loans or
advances to departments within a Municipality to finance capital expenditure.

Banker’s acceptance certificates or negotiable certificates of deposit banks.

Long-term securities offered by insurance companies to meet redemption fund
requirements.

Other investments as the Minister may determine by notice in the Gazette.

Any other instruments of investments in which a municipality was under a law permitted to
invest before the commencement of the Local Government Transition Act Second
Amendment Act, 1996, provided that such instruments shall not extend beyond the date of
maturity or redemption thereof

5.2. A municipality must, within 30 days after an investment with a period of 12 months or longer has
been made, publish in a local newspaper in circulation its area of jurisdiction full details of any
investment so made.

6. Core Focus of Cash Management Programme

Adequate and effective cash management is one of the main functions of the Chief Financial Officer and

delegates.

The core focus of the Council’'s Cash Management Program shall be as follows:

6.1. Budgeting

6.1.1.
6.1.2.

6.1.3.

The Municipality shall keep a formal budgeting policy, approved by the Council;

Budgets shall be maintained in a manner prescribed by Chapter 4 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act; and

Cash flow forecasts shall be credible and consistent with the integrated Development Plan
and the annual budget.

6.2. Receivables

6.2.1.

6.2.2.

Sound cash management requires that certain policies and procedures be in place so as to
minimize the cost of receivables. The cost includes the cost of carrying the receivables and
the risk of failure to collect outstanding balances.

The Municipality shall keep an effective system to achieve the following:



6.2.1.1. Keep an accurate updated record of receivables that can be monitored daily;
6.2.1.2. Controlling revenue; and
6.2.1.3. Collecting receivable timeously.

6.2.3. The Chief Financial Officer or delegate shall review the debt collection performance on a
regular basis and ensure that the Municipality adheres to its Performance Management
System.

6.3. Cash Collection

6.3.1. The Municipality shall maintain an effective system to ensure the following practices:

6.3.1.1. All monies due to Council must be collected as early as possible and banked daily
where possible.

6.3.1.2. Special deposits should be made for large receipts to ensure that they are banked on
the date of receipt thereof.

6.3.1.3. It is essential for:

e all amounts owned to Council to be raised by way of a debit in the
appropriate debtor system; and

o effective banking control systems to be introduced to ensure that moneys
received by the Council are deposited timeously.

6.3.1.4. In addition to any other statutory analysis requirements, monthly reviews of debt
collections must be performed by comparing current debt due to the Council in
relation of total income , as compared to the position in previous month in order to
ascertain whether the debt collection process is improving or deteriorating;

6.3.1.5. Any deterioration in the debt collection ratio must be dealt with in accordance with the
Credit Control Policy of the Council and the required remedial action to rectify the
position must be taken by the Council.

6.3.1.6. Cash are safeguarded and fraud prevented;

6.3.1.7. The Municipality has at least one bank account in its name;

6.3.1.8. New bank account are only open if required;

6.3.1.9. All bank accounts held by the Municipality are accounted for in its accounting system;

6.3.1.10. All payments received by the Municipality are paid into its bank account or accounts,
and this is done promptly as prescribed by legislation; and

6.3.1.11. The accounting records are monitored on a daily basis and can be reconciled to the
accounting system at least on a monthly basis.

6.4. Payment of Creditors



6.4.1. Sound cash management requires that certain policies and procedures will manage the
trade credit to ensure that the Municipality can maximize its cash balances at relatively no

cost.

6.4.2. As creditors have an impact on working capital, the following matters must be borne in
mind with regard to the adequate control over and the timing of payment of creditor
accounts:

6.4.6.1.

6.4.6.2.

6.4.6.3.

6.4.6.4.

6.4.6.5.

6.4.6.6.

6.4.6.7.
6.4.6.8.

6.4.6.9.

Cost factors are to be investigated in so far as it concerns the medium of payment, be
it electronically or by cheque;

Adequate steps must be taken to avoid excessive bank charges and payments are to be
limited to one payment per month per creditor as far as possible.

In the case of electronic transfers strict control measurements must be implemented
to safeguard Council from any losses that may be incurred as a result of the use of this
medium of payment;

When considering when to pay a creditor, consideration must be given to the terms of
credit offered. When cash discount are offered on early settlement, the discount given
and the time scale involved, would in most cases outweigh any investment benefit that
could be obtained by the temporary placement of funds in an investment.

In order to reduce bank charges, salaries and allowances should be paid whenever
possible on a single date in a month and preferably electronically.

Creditors shall be paid in line with budget, cash flow forecasts and limits in terms of
the delegation of authority.

Payment shall only be made for services and goods once delivery has taken place.
When Creditors are paid, the payment voucher must be clearly endorsed to this effect
in order to avoid a duplicate payment.

Credit terms shall not just be accepted, but negotiated with suppliers on an ongoing
basis, provided it is in terms of Section 65(2)(e) and section 99(2)(b) of the Municipal
Financial Management Act, 2003; and

6.4.6.10. The Chief Financial Officer or delegate shall first approve a new supplier’s terms or

changes to current suppliers’ credit terms

6.5. Inventory Management

6.5.1. Sound cash management requires that the Municipality should avoid over-capitalizing,
while still ensuring efficient service delivery.

6.5.2. Cash Flow can be enhanced through an adequate system of inventory management.

6.5.3. The following practices shall apply with regard to inventory management:

6.5.3.1.
6.5.3.2.

6.5.3.3.

6.5.3.4.

6.5.3.5.

Stock levels held in a stores system must be constantly reviewed;

Only essential levels of stock are to be maintained where supplies are readily available
against annual supplies contracts from local suppliers;

Cognizance must be taken of the fact that stock held for any length of time is dead
capital which has an appropriate cost associated with it;

Cognizance must be taken of the fact that stocks held in excess of requirements for
long periods of time may become obsolete.

Obsolete stock must be disposed of annually to derive additional revenue;



6.5.3.6. Where possible, the Council ownership of stock must be clearly marked on such stock;
and
6.5.3.7. Adequate control and documentation must be maintained over stock issues

6.5.4. The Chief Financial Officer must on a yearly basis report to the Council on:

6.5.4.1. The turnover of the 20 highest value stock items accompanied by recommendations on
how to improve the turnover rate of such stock items;

6.5.4.2. All surpluses and shortfalls in stock levels as well as reasons for such surpluses and
shortfalls.

6.6. Cash Flow

6.6.1. Council, prior to effecting an investment, must ascertain whether surplus funds exist and
the period for which funds may be invested.

6.6.2. A cash flow forecast is essential to determine the availability of potential investment funds.

6.6.3. In developing cash flow forecasts, Council must be aware of the expected cash inflows and
when they are likely to occur, as well as the timing of the outflows in terms of the operating
and capital estimates.

6.6.4. The Chief Financial Officer shall at least once in every six months report to the Council on
the anticipated cash flow of the Council for the ensuing six months and any plans to finance
any shortfall.

6.7. Assets Management

6.7.1. Assets shall only be acquired in conformity with proper budgeting practice, as mentioned
under ‘budgeting’ in this document.

6.7.2. The Chief Financial Officer or delegate shall identify under-utilised assets and consider
disposing them, subject to Section 14 of the Municipal Financial Management Act, 2003

6.8. Debt

The Municipality may only incur debt in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003,
chapter 6 and with the approval of the Council.



Short-term debt

The Municipality shall incur short-term debt only when necessary to bridge:

Unavoidable shortfalls within a financial year during which the debt is incurred, in
expectation of specific and realistic anticipated income to be received within that financial
year, and

Capital needs within a financial year, to be repaid from specific funds to be received from
enforceable allocations or long-term debt commitment, provided that; the short-term
debt is clearly indicated in the cash flow estimates.

The Municipality shall pay off short-term debt within a financial year and shall not refinance its
short-term debt.

Long-term debt

The Municipality shall incur long-term debt only for the purpose of capital investment in property,
plant or equipment, as approved in the Integrated Development Plan and annual budget and shall
be used for the purpose of achieving the objects of the Municipality.

7. Investments

7.1. Investments Ethics

The following ethical principles shall apply when dealing with financial institutions and other

interested parties:

7.1.1.

7.1.2.
7.1.3.
7.1.4.
7.1.5.

The MM and CFO will be responsible for the investment of funds, and they have to steer
clear of outside interference, regardless of whether such interference comes from
individual Councillors, agents or any other institution;

Under no circumstances may inducements to invest be accepted;

Speculation with public funds shall not be allowed;

Interest rates quoted by one institution must not be disclosed to another institution; and
The business ethics of any controlling body of which the relevant financial institution is a
member must be observed by such institution or body at all times.

7.2. Investments Principles

The following guiding principles are to be adhered to in order to facilitate the Administration of
Council’s investment portfolio. A risk management plan will give guidance

7.2.1.

Limit Exposure to a single Institution



7.2.1.1. Investment of funds, where this involves large amounts, should be distributed over
more than one institution in order to limit Council’s risk exposure.

7.2.1.2. The Municipality shall plan the distribution of its investments to cover different types
of investments.

7.2.2. Risk and Return.

7.2.1.3. As a general principle, it must be accepted that the greater the return the greater the
risk.

7.2.1.4. The CFO or delegates are responsible for ensuring that the risk is the proposed
investment is rated realistically.

7.2.3. Borrowings for Re-Investment

6.4.1.1. The Municipality shall only borrow money for reinvestment in exceptional cases.
6.4.1.2. Council should refrain from borrowing for the purpose of re-investment as this is
tantamount to speculation with public funds.

7.2.4. Nominee Accounts

All moneys shall be invested directly with the relevant institutions. On no account may moneys be
placed in a nominee account.

7.2.5. Registered Financial Institutions
The CFO or delegates shall ensure that a proposed financial institution is approved:

e In terms of the Banks Act;

e By the Reserve Bank;

e Inthe latest list of approved financial institutions obtained from the Provincial
Government; and

e By a Council resolution

7.2.6. Growth-Related Investment

When making investments, he CFO or delegates shall guarantee that at least the capital
amount invested is safe, and shall exercise due diligence in this regard.

General Investment Practice

8.1. General



Should it be ascertained that surplus funds are available for investment, and then written quotations
including faxed quotations should be obtained from financial institutions for various forms of
investment terms and rates of interest.

The investment shall be placed with an institution offering the most favourable rate provided such
investment is in accordance with the terms and condition of this policy.

Institutions should be advised that, in submitting quotations, they must offer their best rates of interest
and that no further negotiation of discussion will be entered into with them after they have submitted
their quotation.

8.2. Payment of Commission

The Auditor General requires the financial institution, where the investment is made, to issue a
certificate for each investment made. This certificate shall state that no commission has, nor will, be
paid to any agent or third party, or to any person nominated by the agent or third party.

The CFO or delegate shall ensure that any financial institution that held an investment for the
Municipality at any time during a financial year, shall:

e Within 30 days after the end of that financial year, notify the Auditor-General, in writing, of
that investment, including the opening and closing balances of that investment in that
financial year; and

e Promptly disclose information regarding the investment when so requested by the National
Treasury or the Auditor-General.

8.3. Cash at Bank

Where money is kept in current accounts, the Municipality shall, where possible, bargain for more
beneficial rates with regards to deposits, for instances call deposits. Fixed term deposits can increase
these rates.

8.4. Credit Worthiness

Prior to investing in smaller registered financial institutions, the Investment Committee must ensure
that the Council is not over-exposed and should satisfy itself as to the credit-worthiness and previous
track record of the institution before placing funds.



10.

In order to reduce the risk in this regard, investments must only be made with financial Institutions
registered in terms of relevant legislation with an office within the council’s area of jurisdiction.

Establishment of Investment Committee

The Council will establish an Investment Committee which, inter alia, will be responsible to advise the
Council quarterly on the status of existing investments and provide proposals on new investments
which are to be made.

The Committee will comprise the following:

e The Municipal Manager or his/her delegated nominee.
e The Chief Financial Officer or his/her delegated nominee.
e Sectional Head: expenditure.

Any two members of the Committee shall form a quorum and the Committee will have authority to
make decisions within the powers granted to the Committee by the Council.

Control Over Investments

10.1. An investment register shall be kept of all investments made. The following facts shall be
indicated:

10.1.1. Name of institution;
10.1.2. Capital investment;
10.1.3. Date invested;
10.1.4. Interest rate; and
10.1.5. Maturation date

10.2. The Sectional Head: Asset Management and Budget Control must retain all quotations
received for record and audit purposes.

10.3. All investment certificates are to be kept in a securities file which shall be safeguarded in a fire
proof safe.

10.4. In respect of grant funds, a separate file must be kept of the letter of grant and other pertinent
information. Regular reports must be submitted to all grant agencies.

10.5. The Sectional Head: Asset Management and Budget Control must complete and will be
responsible for the maintenance of an Investment Register complying with audit requirements.



11. Delegation of Authority

The Council may, in terms of Section of 59 of the Municipal Systems Act 2000, delegate any of its
functions and responsibilities in respect of this policy to a

Committee of the Council, the Investment Committee, the Municipal Manager and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Council provided that such delegation will not absolve the person to whom such a
function or responsibility has been delegated from complying with any statutory reporting requirement
of such reporting requirement as may be contained in this policy.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

Funding and Reserves Policy



1. Introduction

1.1. This policy of the Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality has been developed to comply with —
1.1.1. the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations, 2008 as published by National Treasury as
Notice 393 in the Government Gazette No. 32141 on 17 April 2009;
1.1.2. the MFMA Funding Compliance Guideline as published by National Treasury on 10 March
2008; and
1.1.3. the MFMA Circular No. 42 as issued by National Treasury on 30 March 2007.

1.2. This Funding and Reserves Policy will set out the assumptions and methodology for estimating —
1.2.1. projected billings, collections and all direct revenues;
1.2.2. the provision for revenue that will not be collected;
1.2.3. the funds the municipality can expect to receive from investments;
1.2.4. the dividends the municipality can expect to receive from municipal entitles;
1.2.5. the proceeds the municipality can expect to receive from the transfer or disposal of assets;
1.2.6. the municipality's borrowing requirements; and
1.2.7. the funds to be set aside in reserves.

1.3.  When developing or amending this policy, the municipal manager must ensure that the policy -

1.3.1. is consistent with the most recent actual billings and collection trends;

1.3.2. takes into account the credit rating of the municipality, if available, the financial position of
the municipality, the cost of borrowing and the capacity to repay debt;

1.3.3. takes into account all the budget-related policies of the municipality, particularly recent
amendments to any of those policies;

1.3.4. takes account of any statutory requirements to set aside funds in reserves; and

1.3.5. takes account of the transfer and disposal of assets.

2. General Principles

2.1. The Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality reaffirms its adherence to the MFMA.

2.2.  The Municipality will ensure that its annual budget will only be funded from —
2.2.1. realistically anticipated revenues to be collected;
2.2.2. cash-backed accumulated funds from previous years’ surpluses not committed for other
purposes; and
2.2.3. borrowed funds, but only for the capital budget referred to in section 17(2) of the MFMA.

2.3.  The Municipality will ensure that its revenue projections will be realistic taking into account —
2.3.1. projected revenue for the current year based on collection levels to date; and
2.3.2. actual revenue collected in previous financial years.

2.4.  The Municipality will only spend money on a capital project only if the sources of funding have
been considered, are available and have not been committed for other purposes.



3. Measurement and Reporting

3.1.

3.2

The Chief Financial Officer shall undertake the funding compliance review as contemplated in
the MFMA Funding Compliance Guideline, and shall attach the duly completed Table A10 of the
Guideline to the budget for presentation to the Council.

The budget presented to Council shall include the certification that, “in the opinion of the Chief
Financial Officer, this budget meets the prescriptions of sections 18 and 19 of the MFMA" .

4. Projected Billings, Collections and all Direct Revenues

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

The budget presented to Council shall reflect the full amounts that the municipality is
anticipated to bill, accrue or otherwise levy and also to include any other revenue directly
received (e.g. bus fares and recreation facility admission fees) for the three-year MTEF budget
period.

The amounts reflected in section 4.1 above shall not include any provisions for doubtful and bad
debts (i.e. amounts billed that are not expected to be collected).

A statement to the effect that “the number of consumer accounts has been reconciled with
property records and metering information” should be included in the budget presented to
Council.

5. Provision for Revenue that will not be collected

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

The budget presented to Council shall reflect the revenue that the municipality expects to
collect, which must include an estimate of the monies to be collected from the current year and
a forecast of monies to be collected from the revenues of previous years (e.g. collections from
debtors in arrears based on historical performance), for each year of the three-year MTEF
budget period.

The monies identified in section 5.1 above shall not include revenue from debtors that are not
realistically likely to be collected, regardless of whether an adequate bad debt provision has
been included under expenses.

If the budget anticipates an improvement in the collection rate, this must be supported by
changes in policies and/or practices, and any such improved collection rate may only be
budgeted for in the year after such change is first implemented.

Prior to the adoption of the budget, Council must have reviewed (within the previous six
months) its policy for impairment of outstanding debtor accounts, and the Audit Committee
must confirm that this policy has been implemented with regard to this budget.



6. Funds the Municipality can expect to receive from Investments

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

The budget presented to Council shall reflect the full value of the municipality’s investments
recorded in terms of section 17(3)(f) of the MFMA, together with any income expected to be
derived from such investments.

This data presented in terms of section 6.1 above should include audited actuals for the previous
year, estimates for the current year, as well as projections for the three-year MTEF budget
period.

Should the projections vary significantly from the actuals or estimates, detailed reasons must be
provided to motivate such variances.

7. Dividends the Municipality can expect to receive from municipal entitles

Should, at any stage, the Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality enter into a contract with a municipal entity,
it shall declare all dividends anticipated to be received from that entity for the three-year MTEF budget
period.

Proceeds the Municipality can expect to receive from the Transfer or Disposal of Assets

8.1.

8.2.

The budget presented to Council shall reflect the full value of any assets that the municipality
intends to transfer or sell during the MTEF period of the budget, together with the income that is
anticipated from their transfer or sale.

Unless specifically motivated otherwise in the budget, all such proceeds shall be credited to the
Capital Development Fund of the municipality.



9. Municipality's Borrowing Requirements

9.1. The Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality does not envisage borrowing in the near future. Should
circumstances change, the Council must adopt appropriate policies to regulate such borrowings
before negotiations with respect to such borrowings are initiated.

10. Funds to be set aside in Reserves

10.1. With the exception of the Capital Development Fund, no Reserve may be established unless it
required to reduce a defined risk which has been specifically identified under the municipality’s
Risk Management program.

10.2. A minimum of 5% of the municipality’s combined capital and operational budgets shall be
budgeted for transfer to the Capital Development Fund annually.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

Long-term Financial Planning Policy



1. General Policy Considerations

2.

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

A Long-term Financial Plan is required to cover a minimum 15-year timeline in order to
contextualise the municipality’s medium-term budget.

The first step in the formulation of the Long-tem Financial Plan is the preparation of a set of
nation-wide planning indicators which should include, at least, the following —

1.2.1.
1.2.2.
1.2.3.
1.2.4.

1.2.5.

changes in the national and global economic climate — to the extent that it impacts upon
the municipality;

the role of national and provincial governments within the developmental state paradigm;
current and anticipated levels of inflation, exchange rates and debt (governmental);
changes in the size, nature and conditionality of national grants both for operating and
capital expenditure;

developments in financial planning (including the MFMA, GRAP and National Treasury
procedural enhancements);

The second step in the formulation of the Long-tem Financial Plan is the preparation of a set of
municipal planning indicators which should include, at least, the following —

1.3.1.
1.3.2.

1.3.3.

1.3.4.

1.3.5.
1.3.6.

demographic trends such as age structure and the nature of the labour force;

economic development within the municipality and interactions with neighbouring
municipalities as well as at the national and international levels;

reprioritisation in policy as the municipality develops, both with regard to the nature of
services to be provided (e.g. broadband infrastructure) as well as the levels of service
delivery expected as ever higher quality becomes the norm;

changes in payment levels that permit a sustainable budget and hence greater access to
external resources (e.g. borrowing, etc);

changes to the staff structure as well as skills balance within the municipality; and

any other material trends or projections that can be ascertained.

The third step in the formulation of the Long-tem Financial Plan is the compilation of a planning
framework which should provide the following —

1.4.1.
1.4.2.
1.4.3.
1.4.4.

an outline of anticipated municipal policy and priorities as they change over time;

a realistic annual revenue projection based upon such outline;

a realistic annual expenditure projection based upon such outline; and

a proposed strategy to address any imbalances between anticipated revenue and
expenditure;

Implementation at the Municipality

2.1

The process of developing such a Long-term Financial Plan is complex and time-consuming and
requires a range of specialist skills.



2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Given the limited capacity of the Chief Albert Luthuli Local Municipality, the municipality will
seek to co-operate with the Gert Sibande District Municipality in the development of both
nation-wide and municipal (district) planning indicators (as set out in sections 1.2 and 1.3
above).

The Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality will then develop a planning framework that will meet the
needs of its Long-term Financial Plan in line with section 1.4 above.

The Council should adopt this Long-term Financial Plan annually when the mayor tables the IDP
process plan as well as the budget timetable before 31 August — i.e. 10 months before the start
of the financial year.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

Indigent Policy



1. Introduction

1.1. The Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality reaffirms its commitment to the national principles that
should underpin indigent policy —

1.1.1. Everyone has inherent dignity and the right to have their dignity respected and protected.
All process that involves the provision of services to citizens must be done in such a manner
as to respect the entrenched rights and dignity of those citizens.

1.1.2. Municipalities must provide basic services to its indigent in a sustainable manner. It is not
expected that a municipality will provide Free Basic Services beyond its financial and other
capacities.

1.1.3. Indigents must be afforded access to more than just the Free Basic Services package. It is
widely acknowledge that the Free Basic Services package on its own will not see indigent
communities standards of living improve. It is imperative that linkages be made between
the Free Basic Services package and the broader package of social services.

1.1.4. In providing Free Basic Services to indigents, municipalities must provide these services at
the recognised and approved minimum basic levels. Municipalities are not dissuaded from
providing a higher level of a service if they can afford to do so, and can sustain this higher
level.

1.1.5. Free Basic Services are targeted at the indigent. Therefore a municipally can use any
approach it chooses to provide Free Basic Services as long as it can ensure and demonstrate
that the indigent are benefiting from Free Basic Services.

1.1.6. The municipal indigent policy is not a stand alone policy which is independent from
municipalities’ IDP’s, its debt and credit control procedures, its municipal by laws etc.
Municipalities’ indigent policies need to be developed to integrate with these strategic
management plans and procedures so as to ensure that the municipalities will be able to
sustain their Free Basic Services programme.

1.1.7. Municipalities need to start planning realistic exit strategies for their indigent populations
to exit from the indigent registers and subsidies. This will entail that the living
circumstance of the indigent has improved significantly so that the indigent can afford to
pay for their service. What this implies is that municipalities should integrate their Free
Basic Services delivery with structured poverty alleviation programmes.

1.1.8. Due to the varying circumstance and conditions within municipalities it is recognised that
municipalities should exercise their right to apply the national indigent framework and
these guidelines according to their own circumstances.

1.2. This Indigent Policy will —

1.2.1. allow the municipality to target the delivery of essential services to citizens who experience
a lower quality of life;

1.2.2. identify how the indigent will be accessed;

1.2.3. establish the process that will be used to manage the indigent;

1.2.4. identify the process for tracking and assessing the service received by the indigent, as well
as the real benefit that has resulted from the subsidies;

1.2.5. provide policy direction to the municipality’s IDP’s and financial planning instruments;

1.2.6. establish the process to set targets (milestones) for the rollout of free basic services to the
entire indigent population within the municipal area; and

1.2.7. identify the linkages between the various poverty alleviation programmes that will result in
the indigent moving away from the poverty trap.

2. Legislative Framework




2.1. This policy has been prepared in line with the Guidelines for the Implementation of the National
Indigent Policy by Municipalities issued in 2005.

2.2. Legislation that directly impacts upon this policy include —
2.2.1.Constitution of the Republic of South Africa
2.2.2.Local Government Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004)
2.2.3.Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998)
2.2.4.Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000)
2.2.5.Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No 56 of 2003)

2.3. National policies and guidelines that directly impact upon this policy include —
2.3.1.Guidelines for the Implementation of the National Indigent Policy
2.3.2.Framework for a Municipal Indigent Policy
2.3.3.Communications Handbook on Free Basic Services
2.3.4. Study to determine progress with and challenges faced by municipalities in the provision of
Free Basic Services & supporting those municipalities struggling with implementation

Free Basic Services

3.1. Only qualifying indigent households that have been registered by the Municipality in terms of
this Indigent Policy may receive benefits under the Free Basic Services Policy.

3.2. The funding and financial management of this Indigent Policy and the Free Basic Services Policy
is covered under the Credit and Debit Control Policy of the municipality

Qualification

4.1. In order to qualify as an indigent household of Chief Albert Luthuli, a household must meet all of
the following requirements in order to be registered —

4.1.1. have a total income less than or equal to the social state pension grant or R2 300 per
month;

4.1.2. must occupy a dwelling that receives Municipal services;

4.1.3. neither the applicant or any other member of the household may not own fixed property
other than the one in which they reside and for which application has been lodged,
whether inside or outside the Municipality’s area of jurisdiction; and

4.1.4. must comply with any other terms or conditions determined by the Council from time to
time.

4.2.  Where a household that does not have a municipal account is in a remote rural community, these
households may still apply and be registered as an indigent household, although benefits will be
limited to access to free basic water delivered in water tankers.



4.3.

4.4.

Council reserves the right to review and revise the scheme conditions, criteria and benefits, as it
deems necessary.

Notwithstanding anything else set out in this policy, Council reserves the right to reject
applications or to deregister an indigent household, when such actions are taken by resolution.

Registration

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

Qualifying households may apply to register as indigent at any time during the financial year on
the prescribed application form of the Council.

The person applying on behalf of a household must —

5.2.1. be a South African citizen;
5.2.2. not be younger than twenty one years of age, except if the child is appointed executorship

by a court of law;

5.2.3. must reside and be a full-time occupant at that property except in the case of a child

headed household; and

5.2.4. must be the owner or tenant who receives Municipal services and is registered as an

account holder on the Municipal financial system.

In the case of a deceased estate, the surviving spouse or dependants of the deceased, who
occupy the property may apply if they meet the all the above criteria except paragraph 5.2.4.

The Board of Trustees / Managing Agent / Chairperson of a Body Corporate of bodies corporate
or retirement centres that accommodate households that would otherwise qualify as indigent,
may apply to the Chief Financial Officer for registration in order to receive a pro-rata subsidy on
Free Basic Services, although it is at the sole discretion of the municipality as to whether such
application is approved.

An application must be accompanied by —

5.5.1. documentary proof of income such as a letter from the applicant’s employer, salary advice,

pension card, unemployment fund card, or an affidavit declaring unemployment or
household income;

5.5.2. details of any other grants or subsidies received by the applicant or any other member of

the household must be supplied, although these will not be considered as income in terms
of paragraph 4.1;

5.5.3. the applicant’s latest municipal account;
5.5.4. a certified copy of the applicant’s identity document; and
5.5.5. the names and identity numbers of all occupants over the age of 18 years who are resident

at the property.

As part of the application, the applicant must be willing to give consent for external scans and
credit bureau checks.



5.7.  As part of the application, the applicant must consent to receiving the service and agree to the
terms and conditions specified by the municipality.

5.8. An indigent household must re-apply annually before the end of April for the next financial year
for registration as an indigent household, failing which any benefits will be withdrawn
automatically from 1 July of the new financial year.

5.9. Avreapplication must follow the same process and procedure set out above.

5.10. The Municipality does not guarantee the re-registration of indigent households.

5.11. A registered indigent household must be in possession of a letter of registration from the
Municipality.

5.12. The Council may cause inspectors to visit indigent households to audit the veracity of the data in
the application form and to record any changes in circumstances and make recommendations on
the continuation or discontinuation of the registration or any subsidy.

6. Deregistration

6.1. A registered indigent household must immediately request de-registration by the Municipality if
the circumstances of the household have changed to the extent that the household no longer
meets the qualification set out in paragraph 4.

7. Disqualification

7.1. An applicant who provides false information in an application form and/or any other
documentation with the application —

7.1.1. shall automatically, without notice, have their household de-registered as an indigent
household from the date on which the Municipality became aware that such information is
false;

7.1.2. shall be held liable for the payment of all services received in addition to any other legal
actions the Municipality may take against such a customer;

7.1.3. shall never in future be allowed to lodge an application for an indigent household,
whatever the circumstances he/she may have to endure in future.

7.2.  Households will be disqualified from the scheme if -
7.2.1. the application was filled in dishonestly;
7.2.2. any audit indicates changes in the financial circumstances of the household that may
impact upon their meeting the qualifying criteria.

8. Management



8.1. The Council and Municipal Manager must establish strategies that tackle each of the following
four key issues —

8.1.1. actively encouraging all qualifying persons to register as indigents under this policy;

8.1.2. ensuring that all registered indigent households have physical access to the services (i.e. the
infrastructure required must be in place);

8.1.3. ensuring that free basic services are provided in a reliable, appropriate and sustainable
manner, and that the service is having the desired impact in improving the lives of the
indigent;

8.1.4. ensuring that the subsidies offered are properly targeted towards the indigent and that
those who can afford to pay do not get subsidised.

8.2. The Municipality must ensure that its IDP prioritises the provision of free basic services to all
indigent households

8.3. The Municipal Manager and senior managers must align their poverty alleviation programmes to
meet the needs of indigent households, and support these households in their struggle to escape
from the poverty trap in which they find themselves.

9. Communications

9.1. The municipality should develop its communication strategy for the Indigent Programme in line
with the Communications Handbook on Free Basic Services as issued by the DPLG in 2005.

9.2. The Municipal Manager is responsible for communicating with all the residents of the
municipality —
9.2.1. What is the municipality trying to achieve with regards to the indigent policy;
9.2.2. How will the municipality be going about implementing the indigent policy;
9.2.3. What is the value for indigent and non indigent households;
9.2.4. Who qualifies for the service and how the municipality has determined this; and
9.2.5. How should qualifying household access the services.

10. Monitoring and Evaluation

10.1. The municipal manager shall report on a monthly basis to the mayor or executive committee, as
the case may be, for the month concerned and by municipal ward —
10.1.1. the number of households registered as indigents and a brief explanation of any
movements in such numbers;
10.1.2. the monetary value of the actual subsidies and rebates granted;
10.1.3. the budgeted value of the subsidies and rebates concerned; and the above information
cumulatively for the financial year to date.



10.2. The mayor or executive committee, as the case may be, shall submit the above reports on a
quarterly basis to the council and to the municipality’s ward committees, or monthly frequently
to any ward committees if so requested.

10.3. As far as To the extent resources permit, the municipality should develop a strategy that
ascertains whether —

10.3.1.

10.3.2.
10.3.3.
10.3.4.
10.3.5.

the service is being offered at the appropriate service level, in view of the environment,
financial aspects and the social habits of the community;

the service is operating adequately;

the community is making appropriate use of the service;

the community requires any form of training to make better use of the service;

the service is meeting the required needs of the community; and the service is beneficially
impacting on poverty or the quality of life of the beneficiaries.
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1. Introduction

(1)

Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality reaffirms its commitment to the national principles that
should underpin the Indigent Policy —

() Everyone has inherent dignity and the right to have their dignity respected and
protected. All process that involves the provision of services to citizens must be
done in such a manner as to respect the entrenched rights and dignity of those
citizens.

(i) Municipalities must provide basic services to its indigent in a sustainable manner. It
is not expected that a municipality will provide Free Basic Services beyond its
financial and other capacities.

(iii) Indigents must be afforded access to more than just the Free Basic Services
package. It is widely acknowledge that the Free Basic Services package on its own
will not see indigent communities standards of living improve. It is imperative that
linkages be made between the Free Basic Services package and the broader
package of social services.

(iv) In providing Free Basic Services to indigents, Municipalities must provide these
services at the recognised and approved minimum basic levels. Municipalities are
not dissuaded from providing a higher level of a service if they can afford to do so,
and can sustain this higher level.

(v) Free Basic Services are targeted at the indigent. Therefore a Municipally can use
any approach it chooses to provide Free Basic Services as long as it can ensure
and demonstrate that the indigent are benefiting from Free Basic Services.

(vi) The Municipal Indigent Policy is not a stand-alone policy which is independent from
the Municipalities’ IDP’s, its debt and credit control procedures, its Municipal by-
laws etc. Municipalities’ indigent policies need to be developed to integrate with
these strategic management plans and procedures so as to ensure that the
Municipalities will be able to sustain their Free Basic Services programme.

(vii) Municipalities need to start planning realistic exit strategies for their indigent
populations to exit from the indigent registers and subsidies. This will entail that the
living circumstance of the indigent has improved significantly so that the indigent can
afford to pay for their service. What this implies is that municipalities should
integrate their Free Basic Services delivery with structured poverty alleviation
programmes.
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(@)

(viii) Due to the varying circumstance and conditions within Municipalities it is recognised
that Municipalities should exercise their right to apply the national indigent
framework and these guidelines according to their own circumstances.

This Free Basic Services Policy will —

0] align to the Municipality’s poverty alleviation programme;

(ii) allow the Municipality to target the delivery of essential services to citizens who
experience a lower quality of life;

(iii) define the services will be delivered;
(iv) define the level of each particular service will be provided to beneficiaries;
(v) assist in establishing the resources allocated by a municipality to enable their

Indigent Policy.

Legislative Framework

1)

(@)

Legislation that directly impacts upon this policy include —

() The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa

(i) Local Government Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No 6 of 2004)

(i) Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No 117 of 1998)

(iv) Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000)

(v) Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No 56 of 2003)
(vi) Water Services Act, 1997 (Act No 108 of 1997).

National policies and guidelines that directly impact upon this policy include —

0] Free Basic Water guidelines for local authorities

(i) Free Basic Water Implementation Strategy

(iii) Communications Handbook on Free Basic Services

(iv) Electricity Basic Services and Support Tariff (Free Basic Electricity) Policy

(v) Study to determine progress with and challenges faced by Municipalities in the

provision of Free Basic Services & supporting those Municipalities struggling with
implementation.

Free Basic Services

1)

)

Only qualifying indigent households that have been registered by the Municipality in terms of
its Indigent Policy may receive benefits under the Free Basic Services Policy.

The provision of free basic services is based on the expected Equitable Share to be paid to
the Council by National Treasury annually. The annual adjustment to these benefits is
subjected to the increase in the Equitable Share.



3)

(4)

()

The Municipal Council will annually, as part of its budgetary process, determine the
Municipal services and levels thereof that will be subsidised in respect of indigent customers
in accordance with national policy, subject to the principles of sustainability and affordability.
This may necessitate a review of the free basic services outlined in this policy

The Municipal Council shall, in the determination of Municipal services that will be
subsidised for indigents, give preference to subsidising at least the following services:

0] water supply;

(ii) electricity supply;

(iii) water and electricity basic charges;
(iv) sanitation services;

(v) refuse removal services;

(vi) assessment rates;

(vii) services to customers billed with a “flat rate” where consumption is not metered; and
(viii)  suspension of arrears payments.

When resources permit, the Municipal Council should give consideration to the provision of
additional benefits, including —

0] child-headed households to be linked to social, economic and educational services;
and
(i) burial or cremation benefits.

Electricity Supply

1)

)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

The Municipality will supply 50 (fifty) kWh per month per household to registered indigents
will be provided free of charge.

Should an indigent household use less than the allowance as set out in Section 4.1 above,
the balance cannot be carried forward to a following month, nor will any refund be made.

Electricity usage in excess of the allowance as set out in Section 4.1 above must be
purchased at the applicable electricity tariff.

Indigent households which exceed free basic services and are in arrears for the payment
thereof, may be restricted in respect of electricity.

The electricity supply may be limited by the Municipality to a maximum of 20 amperes and
the prepaid dispensers at each home will be set accordingly.

The necessary activating number to the value of 50 kWh will be obtained from a Municipal
pay-point on monthly basis.

Upon the discovery and confirmation of any tampering to electricity supply equipment or
electricity theft, the indigent household will be deregistered as per the Indigent Policy.

Water Supply

(1)

The Municipality will supply free 6 (six) kilolitres of water per month per household.
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(2) Should an indigent household use less than the allowance as set out in Section 5.1 above,
the balance cannot be carried forward to a following month, nor will any refund be made.

3) Water usage in excess of the allowance as set out in Section 5.1 above must be purchased
at the applicable water tariff.

(4) Indigent households which exceed free basic services and are in arrears for the payment
thereof, may be restricted in respect of water.

(5) The water supply may be restricted by the Municipality. Where practical, a restriction of 15
kilolitres per month shall be applicable to registered indigents. Where a restriction of 15
kilolitres per month is exceeded repeatedly for a period exceeding three consecutive months
in a calendar year a restricted metered service be installed to limit water consumption to
more affordable levels.

(6) Upon the discovery and confirmation of any tampering to water supply equipment or water
theft, the indigent household will be deregistered as per the Indigent Policy.

Sanitation Services

(1) The Municipality will offer a 50% rebate for registered indigents on the cost of Sanitation
Services as per the approved tariff of Council from time to time.

Refuse Removal Services

(1) The Municipality will offer a 50% rebate for registered indigents on the cost of Refuse
Removal Services per month as per the approved tariffs of Council from time to time.

Assessment Rates

(1) The Municipality will offer a 100% rebate for registered indigents on the assessed rates with
a maximum property value threshold the Council will determine as part of the budgetary
process annually.

Services to Customers billed with a “flat rate” where consumption is not metered

Q) The Municipality will charge a “flat rate” where consumption is not metered.

Suspension of Arrears Payments

(2) Arrears accumulated in respect of the Municipal accounts of customers prior to their first
registration as indigent customers, will be suspended and interest shall not accumulate on
such arrears for the period that a customer remains registered as an indigent customer.

(2) Arrears suspended in terms of Section 11.1 shall become due and payable by the customer
by de-registration in terms of the Indigent Policy.

In special individual cases, a report can be submitted to the Mayoral Committee to decide if
Section 11.2 should be implemented or not.
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Supply Chain Management Policy

MUNICIPAL SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT POLICY

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT, 2003 (ACT NO 56 OF 2003)

Date of Adoption: 1 July 2007
Date of Review: 28 May 2015 (Council Resolution No )

Council resolved in terms of section 111 of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No
56 of 2003), to adopt the following proposal as the supply chain management policy of Chief Albert Luthuli
Municipality.

1.

Definitions

In this policy, unless the context otherwise indicates, a word or expression to which a meaning has been
assigned in the Act has the same meaning as in the Act, and;

“competitive bidding process” means a competitive bidding process referred to in section 12(1)(d) of this
policy;

“competitive bid” means a bid in terms of a competitive bidding process;
“designated supply chain management official” means the supply chain manager.

“final award”, in relation to bids or quotations submitted for a contract, means the final decision on which
bid or quote to accept;

“formal written price quotation” means quotations referred to in section 12(1)(c) of this policy;

“in the service of the state” means —

(a) a member of —

(i) any municipal council;
(ii) any provincial legislature; or
(iii) the National Assembly or the National Council of Provinces;

(b) a member of the board of directors of any municipal entity;

(c) an official of any municipality or municipal entity;

(d) an employee of any national or provincial department, national or provincial public entity or
constitutional institution within the meaning of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No
1 of 1999);

(e) a member of the accounting authority of any national or provincial public entity; or

(f) an employee of parliament or a provincial legislature;

“long term contract” means a contract with a duration period exceeding one year;

“list of accredited prospective providers” means the list of accredited prospective providers which the
municipality shall keep in terms of section 14 of this policy;

“municipality” means Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality or an entity directly linked to the municipality.



“other applicable legislation” means any other legislation applicable to municipal supply chain management,
including —

(a) the Preferential Procurement policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No 5 of 2000);

(b) The Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No 53 of 2003);
(c) The Construction Industry Development Board Act, 2000 (Act No 38 of 2000); and
(d) The Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 1999 (Act No of 1999)

“treasury guidelines” means any guidelines on supply chain management issued by the minister in terms of
section 168 of the Act;

“the Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No 56 of 2003);

“the Regulations” means the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003, Municipal Supply
Chain Management Regulations published by Government Notice 868 of 2005;

“written quotations” means quotations referred to in section 12(1)(b) of this policy.

CHAPTER 1
IMPLEMENTATION OF SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT POLICY

Supply chain management policy

(1) All officials and other role players in the supply chain management system of the municipality shall
implement this policy in a way that —

(a) gives effect to —
(i) Section 217 of the Constitution; and
(ii) Part 1 of Chapter 11 and other applicable provisions of the Act;
(b) is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective;
(c) complies with —
(i) the Regulations; and
(ii) any minimum norms and standards that may be prescribed in terms of section 168
of the Act;
(d) is consistent with other applicable legislation;
(e) does not undermine the objective for uniformity in supply chain management systems

between organs of state in all spheres; and

() is consistent with national economic policy concerning the promotion of investments and
doing business with the public sector.

(2) This policy applies when the municipality -
(a) procures goods or services;
(b) disposes goods no longer needed;
(c) selects contractors to provide assistance in the provision of municipal services otherwise

than in circumstances where Chapter 8 of the Municipal Systems Act applies; or



(3)

(d) selects external mechanisms referred to in section 80(1)(b) of the Municipal Systems Act for
the provision of municipal services in circumstances contemplated in section 83 of that Act.

This policy, except where provided otherwise, does not apply in respect of the procurement of
goods and services contemplated in section 110(2) of the Act, including —

(a) water from the Department of Water Affairs or a public entity, another municipality or a
municipal entity; and

(b) electricity from Eskom or another public entity, another municipality or a municipal entity;

(c) goods and services in respect of servicing of fleet at the dealership. eg Toyota, Nissan, Audi,
BMW etc.

(d) accommodation in hotel/lodge where one has to attend a course/workshop/event, or from

nearest available (not more than 3 star) hotel/lodge if fully booked.

Amendment of the supply chain management policy

(1)

The accounting officer shall —
(a) at least annually review the implementation of this policy; and

(b) when the accounting officer considers it necessary, submit proposals for the amendment
of this policy to the council;

if the accounting officer submits proposals/amendments to the council that differs from the model
policy issued by the national treasury, the accounting officer shall —

(a) ensure that such proposed amendments comply with the regulations; and

(b) report any deviation from the model policy to the national treasury and the relevant
provincial treasury;

when amending this policy the need for uniformity in supply chain practices, procedures and forms
between organs of state in all spheres, particularly to promote accessibility of supply chain
management systems for small businesses shall be taken into account.

Delegation of supply chain management powers and duties

(1)

The council hereby delegates all powers and duties to the accounting officer which are necessary to
enable the accounting officer —

(a) to discharge the supply chain management responsibilities conferred on accounting officers
in terms of —
(i) Chapter 8 or 10 of the Act; and
(ii) this policy;
(b) to maximise administrative and operational efficiency in the implementation of this policy;
(c) to enforce reasonable cost-effective measures for the prevention of fraud, corruption,

favouritism and unfair and irregular practices in the implementation of this policy; and



()

(d) to comply with his or her responsibilities in terms of section 115 and other applicable
provisions of the Act.

Sections 79 and 106 of the Act apply to the sub-delegation of powers and duties delegated to an
accounting officer in terms of subsection (1).

The accounting officer may not sub-delegate any supply chain management powers or duties to a
person who is not an official of the municipality or to a committee that is not exclusively composed
of officials of the municipality;

This section may not be read as permitting an official to whom the power to make final awards has
been delegated, to make a final award in a competitive bidding process otherwise than through the
committee system provided for in section 26 of this policy.

Sub-delegations

(1)

()

(4)

The accounting officer may in terms of section 79 or 106 of the Act sub delegate any supply chain
management powers and duties, including those delegated to the accounting officer in terms of this
policy, but any such sub delegation must be consistent with subparagraph (2) of this paragraph and
paragraph 4 of this policy.

The power to make a final award —
(a) Above R10 million (VAT included) may not be sub-delegated by the accounting officer;

(b) Above R2 million (VAT included), but not exceeding R10 million (VAT included), may be sub-
delegated but only to —

(i) The chief financial officer;
(ii) A senior manager; or
(iii) A bid adjudication committee of which the chief financial officer or a senior

manager is a member; or

(c) Not exceeding R 2 million (VAT included) may be sub-delegated but only to —
(i) the chief financial officer;
(ii) a senior manager;
(iii) a manager directly accountable to the chief financial officer or a senior manager;
or
(iv) a bid adjudication committee.

An official or bid adjudication committee to which the power to make final awards has been sub-
delegated in accordance with subparagraph (2) must within five days of the end of each month
submit to the official referred to in subparagraph (4) a written report containing particulars of each
final award made by such official or committee during that month, including—

(a) the amount of the award;
(b) the name of the person to whom the award was made; and
(c) the reason why the award was made to that person.

A written report referred to in subparagraph (3) must be submitted —
(a) to the accounting officer, in the case of an award by —

(i) the chief financial officer;



(ii) a senior manager; or
(iii) a bid adjudication committee of which the chief financial officer or a senior
manager is a member; or

(b) to the chief financial officer or the senior manager responsible for the relevant bid, in the
case of an award by —

(i) a manager referred to in subparagraph (2) (c) (iii); or

(ii) a bid adjudication committee of which the chief financial officer or a senior
manager is not a member.

Subsections (3) and (4) of this policy do not apply to procurements out of petty cash.

This paragraph may not be interpreted as permitting an official to whom the power to make
final awards has been sub-delegated, to make a final award in a competitive bidding process

otherwise than through the committee system provided for in paragraph 26 of this policy.

No supply chain management decision-making powers may be delegated to an advisor or
consultant.

Oversight role of council

(1) The council reserves its right to maintain oversight over the implementation of this policy.
(2) For the purposes of such oversight the accounting officer shall -
(a) within 30 days of the end of each financial year, submit a report on the implementation of

this policy and the supply chain management policy of any municipal entity under the sole
or shared control of the municipality, to the council of the municipality; and

(b) whenever there are serious and material problems in the implementation of this policy,
immediately submit a report to the council.

(3) The accounting officer shall, within 10 days of the end of each quarter, submit a report on the
implementation of the supply chain management policy to the executive mayor.

(4) The reports must be made public in accordance with section 21A of the Municipal Systems Act.

Supply chain management unit

(2) A supply chain management unit is hereby established to implement this policy.

(2) The supply chain management unit shall operate under the direct supervision of the chief financial
officer through the supply chain manager to whom this duty has been delegated in terms of section
82 of the Act.

Training of supply chain management officials

The training of officials involved in implementing this policy shall be in accordance with any treasury
guidelines on supply chain management training.



CHAPTER 2
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

9. Format of supply chain management system

This policy provides systems for —

(i) demand management;
(ii) acquisition management;
(iii) logistics management;
(iv) disposal management;
(v) risk management; and
(vi) performance management.
Part 1: Demand management
10. System of demand management
(1) The accounting officer shall establish and implement an appropriate demand management system

in order to ensure that the resources required by the municipality support its operational
commitments and its strategic goals outlined in its Integrated Development Plan.

(2) The demand management system shall —

(a) include timely planning and management processes to ensure that all goods and services
required by the municipality are quantified, budgeted for and timely and effectively
delivered at the right locations and at the critical delivery dates, and are of the
appropriate quality and quantity at a fair cost;

(b) take into account any benefits of economies of scale that may be derived in the case of
acquisitions of a repetitive nature; and

(c) provide for the compilation of the required specifications to ensure that its needs are
met.
(3) To undertake appropriate industry analysis and research to ensure that innovations and

technological benefits are maximized.
Part 2: Acquisition management
11. System of acquisition management

(2) The accounting officer shall implement the system of acquisition management set out in this part in
order to ensure —

(a) that goods and services are procured by the municipality in accordance with authorised
processes only;

(b) that expenditure on goods and services is incurred in terms of an approved budget in terms
of section 15 of the Act;

(c) that the threshold values for the different procurement processes are complied with;

(d) that bid documentation, evaluation and adjudication criteria, and general conditions of a
contract, are in accordance with any applicable legislation; and
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13.

()

(e) that any treasury guidelines on acquisition management are properly taken into account.
When procuring goods or services contemplated in section 110(2) of the Act, the accounting officer
shall make public the fact that such goods or services are procured otherwise than through the
municipality’s supply chain management system, including —

(a) the kind of goods or services; and

(b) the name of the supplier.

Range of procurement processes

(1)

The procurement of goods and services through this policy is provided by way of —
(a) Petty cash purchases shall be incurred up to a value of R500 (VAT included);

(b) At least one written quotations for procurements of a transaction up to value of R2 000
(VAT included);

(c) Three written quotations for procurements of a transaction value over R2 000 up to R10 000
(VAT included);

(d) Formal written price quotations for procurements of a transaction value over R10 000 up to
R200 000 (VAT included); and

(e) a competitive bidding process for—

(i) procurements above a transaction value of R200 000 (VAT included); and
(ii) the procurement of long term contracts.

The accounting officer may, in writing-

(a) lower, but not increase, the different threshold values specified in subsection (1); or
(b) direct that —
(i) at least one written quotation be obtained for any specific procurement of a
transaction value lower than R2 000;
(ii) three formal written price quotations be obtained for any specific procurement of a

transaction value lower than R10 000; or
(iii) a competitive bidding process be followed for any specific procurement of a
transaction value lower than R200 000.

Goods or services may not deliberately be split into parts or items of a lesser value merely to avoid
complying with the requirements of the policy. When determining transaction values, a requirement
for goods or services consisting of different parts or items shall as far as possible be treated and
dealt with as a single transaction.

General preconditions for consideration of written quotations or bids

A written quotation or bid may not be considered unless the provider who submitted the quotation or bid —

(a)

has furnished that provider’s —

(i) Full name;
(ii) Identification number or company or other registration number; and
(iii) Tax reference number and VAT registration number, if any;



(c)

(d)

(iv) Proof of payment of municipal rates;

(v) Proof of residential address;

(vi) Bidders who are in arrears of Municipal Accounts shall also be considered on condition that
after appointment the service provider shall authorise the municipality to deduct the
outstanding amounts from their payment or as per arrangement;

has authorised the municipality to obtain a tax clearance from the South African Revenue Services
that the provider’s tax matters are in order; and

has indicated —

(i) whether he or she is in the service of the state, or has been in the service of the state in the
previous twelve months;
(ii) if the provider is not a natural person, whether any of its directors, managers, principal

shareholders or stakeholder is in the service of the state, or has been in the service of the
state in the previous twelve months; or

(iii) whether a spouse, child or parent of the provider or of a director, manager, shareholder or
stakeholder referred to in subsection (ii) is in the service of the state, or has been in the
service of the state in the previous twelve months.

The submitted quotation or bid shall be properly signed and shall at least be valid for the period of 0
to 90 days; otherwise such bid shall amount to disqualification.

14. Lists of accredited prospective providers

(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)

The accounting officer shall —

(a) keep a list of accredited prospective providers of goods and services that shall be used for
the procurement requirements through written quotations and formal written price
quotations; and

(b) at least once a year through newspapers commonly circulating locally, the website and
any other appropriate ways, invite prospective providers of goods or services to apply for
evaluation and listing as accredited prospective providers;

(c) specify the listing criteria for accredited prospective providers;

(d) disallow the listing of any prospective provider whose name appears on the National
Treasury’s database as a person prohibited from doing business with the public sector.

(e) disallow the listing of any prospective provider who previously defaulted with contract
with the provision of goods or services in the municipality for the past 5 years; irrespective
of the value of the contract or service.

The list shall be updated at least quarterly to include any additional prospective providers and any

new commodities or types of services. Prospective providers shall be allowed to submit applications

for listing at any time.

The list shall be compiled per commodity and per type of service.

There shall be three (3) categories of the prospective suppliers -

(a) Professional service providers - that shall at least pay an amount as per the approved
tariffs to be listed in the system upon completing a supplier database form;

(b) Non-emerging service providers - that shall at least pay an amount as per the approved
tariffs to be listed in the system upon completing a supplier database form;
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16.

(5)

(c) Emerging service providers - that shall at least pay an amount of RO (free) to be listed in
the system upon completing a supplier database form.

The supplier database shall only be kept and managed by the supply chain management section, and
shall be used on rotational bases to give contractors equal opportunity.

(a) Petty cash purchases (RO to R500)

(Note: this portion is not applicable to salary and wage payouts made from petty cash through the Salaries

Office)

The conditions for the procurement of goods by means of petty cash purchases referred to in section 12(1)(a)
of this policy are as follows -

(1)

The chief financial officer shall authorise all petty cash purchases up to a maximum of R500 per
month, per Directorate/Department.

The following expenditure may only be incurred from petty cash in cases of urgency -
(a) Any item that is a stores stock item.

A monthly reconciliation report from each directorate shall be provide to the chief financial officer,
including-

(a) the total amount of petty cash purchases for that month; and

(b) receipts and appropriate documents for each purpose.

(b)Written quotations (up to R2 000)

The conditions for the procurement of goods or services through written quotations are as follows:

(1)

(2)

A written quotation shall be obtained from at least one service provider for the procurement of
goods and services of a transaction value lower than R2 000 (VAT included);

If a quotation was submitted written, the order may be placed only against written confirmation by
the selected provider.

Weritten quotations (up to R30 000)

The conditions for the procurement of goods or services through written quotations are as follows:

(1)

Written quotations up to R30 000 (VAT included) shall be obtained from at least three different
providers preferably from, but not limited to, providers whose names appear on the list of
accredited prospective providers of the municipality provided that if quotations are obtained from
providers who are not listed, such providers shall meet the listing criteria set out in section 14(1)(b)
and (c) of this policy.

To the extent feasible, providers shall be requested to submit such quotations in writing.

If it is not possible to obtain at least three quotations, the reasons shall be recorded and reported
quarterly to the accounting officer or another official designated by the accounting officer.

The accounting officer shall record the names of the potential providers requested to provide such
guotations with their quoted prices.



(5)

If a quotation was submitted written, the order may be placed only against written confirmation by
the selected provider.

17. Formal written price quotations

(1)

()

The conditions for the procurement of goods or services through formal written price quotations are
as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Quotations shall be obtained in writing from at least three different providers whose names
appear on the list of accredited prospective providers of the municipality.

Quotations may be obtained from providers who are not listed, provided that such
providers meet the listing criteria set out in section (14)(1)(b) and (c) of this policy.

If it is not possible to obtain at least three quotations, the reasons shall be recorded and
approved by the chief financial officer or an official designated by the chief financial officer.

The accounting officer shall record the names of the potential providers and their written
quotations.

A designated official referred to in subsection (1)(c) shall within three days of the end of each month
report to the chief financial officer on any approvals given during that month by that official in terms
of that subsection.

18. Procedure for procuring goods or services through written quotations and formal written price quotations

(1)

The procedure for the procurement of goods or services through written quotations or formal
written price quotations is as follows:

(a)

(c)

When using the list of accredited prospective providers the accounting officer shall promote
ongoing competition amongst providers by inviting providers to submit quotations on a
rotation basis.

All requirements in excess of R30 000 (VAT included) that are to be procured by means of
formal written price quotations shall, except in a case where section 18(a) is utilised, in
addition to the requirements of section 17, be advertised for at least 7 (seven( days on the
website and an official notice board of the municipality.

Offers received shall be evaluated on a comparative basis taking into account unconditional
discounts.

The accounting officer or chief financial officer shall on a monthly basis be notified in writing
of all written quotations and formal written price quotations accepted by an official acting
in terms of a subdelegation.

Offers below R30 000 (VAT included) shall be awarded based on compliance to
specifications and conditions of contract, ability and capability to deliver the goods and
services, and lowest price.

Acceptable offers, which are subject to the preference points system (PPPFA and associated
regulations), shall be awarded to the bidder who scores the highest points.

Minutes of evaluation of quotations and the criteria used to evaluate the quotations shall
be properly recorded and signed by the evaluator of such quotations duly appointed by the
accounting officer, the supply chain manager and the chief financial officer.
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(h) Any bid or quotation between RO to R200 000 may be evaluated only by the supply chain
management section, wherein recommendations shall be made by the end-user
department, the chief financial officer and shall be approved by the accounting officer.

Competitive bids

(1) Goods or services above a transaction value of R200 000 (VAT included) and long term contracts may
only be procured through a competitive bidding process, subject to section 11(2) of this policy.

(2) No procurement of goods or services above an estimated transaction value of R200 000 (VAT
included) may deliberately be split into parts or items of lesser value merely for the sake of procuring

the goods or services otherwise than through a competitive bidding process.

Process for competitive bidding

(1) The procedures for the following stages of a competitive bidding process are as follows:

(a) Compilation of bidding documentation as detailed in section 22;

(b) Public invitation for bids as detailed in section 23;

(c) Site meetings or briefing sessions as detailed in section 23;

(d) Handling of bids submitted in response to public invitation as detailed in section 24;

(e) Evaluation of bids as detailed in section 28;

(f) Award of contracts as detailed in section 29;

(g) Administration of contracts -

(h) After approval of a bid, the accounting officer and the bidder shall enter into a written
agreement.

(i) Proper record keeping -
(i) Original / legal copies of written contract agreements shall be kept in a secure

place for reference purposes.

Bid documentation for competitive bids

(1) The criteria to which bid documentation for a competitive bidding process shall comply shall -
(a) take into account -
(i) the general conditions of contract and any special conditions of contract, if
specified;
(ii) any treasury guidelines on bid documentation; and
(iii) the requirements of the Construction Industry Development Board, in the case of a
bid relating to construction, upgrading or refurbishment of buildings or
infrastructure;
(b) include the preference points system to be used, goals as contemplated in the Preferential

Procurement Regulations and evaluation and adjudication criteria, including any criteria
required by other applicable legislation;
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(c) compel bidders to declare any conflict of interest they may have in the transaction for which
the bid is submitted;

(d) if the value of the transaction is expected to exceed R10 million (VAT included, require
bidders to furnish -

(i) if the bidder is required by laws to prepare annual financial statements for auditing,

their audited annual financial statements:
- for the past three years; or
- since their establishment if established during the past three years;

(ii) a certificate signed by the bidder certifying that the bidder has no undisputed
commitments for municipal services towards a municipality or other service
provider in respect of which payment is overdue for more than 30 days;

(iii) particulars of any contracts awarded to the bidder by an organ of state during the
past five years, including particulars of any material non-compliance or dispute
concerning the execution of such contract;

(iv) a statement indicating whether any portion of the goods or services are expected
to be sourced from outside the Republic, and, if so, what portion and whether any
portion of payment from the municipality or municipal entity is expected to be
transferred out of the Republic; and

(e) stipulate that disputes shall be settled by means of mutual consultation, mediation (with or
without legal representation or, when unsuccessful, in a South African court of law.

Public invitation for competitive bids

(1)

()

(3)
(4)

The procedure for the invitation competitive bids is as follows:

(a) Any invitation to prospective bidders to submit bids shall be by means of a public
advertisement in newspapers commonly circulating locally, the website of the municipality
or any other appropriate ways (which may include an advertisement in the Government
Tender Bulletin); and

(b) The information contained in a public advertisement shall include -

(i) the closure date for the submission of bids, which may not be less than 30 days in
the case of transactions over R10 million (VAT included), or which are for a long
term nature, or 14 daysany other case, from the date on which the advertisement
is placed in a newspaper, subject to subsection (2) of this policy;

(ii) a statement that bids may only be submitted on the bid documentation provided
by the municipality; and

(iii) the date, time and venue of any proposed site meetings or briefing sessions.
The accounting officer may determine a closure date for the submission of bids which is less than the
30 or 14 days requirement, but only if such shorter period can be justified on the grounds of urgency
or emergency or any exceptional case where it is impractical or impossible to follow the official
procurement process.

Bids submitted shall be sealed.

Where bids are requested in electronic format, such bids shall be supplemented by sealed hard
copies.



23. Procedure for handling, opening and recording of bids

(1)

The procedures for the handling, opening and recording of bids are as follows:

(a) Bids -
(i) shall be opened only in public;
(ii) shall be opened at the same time and as soon as possible after the period for the
submission of bids has expired; and
(iii) received after the closing time shall not be considered and returned unopened
immediately.
(b) Any bidder or member of the public has the right to request that the names of the bidders

who submitted bids in time shall be read out and, if practical, also each bidder’s total
bidding price;

(c) No information, except the provisions in subsection (b), relating to the bid shall be disclosed
to bidders or other persons until the successful bidder is notified of the award.

(d) The accounting officer shall -
(i) record in a register all bids received in time;
(ii) make the register available for public inspection; and
(iii) publish the entries in the register and the bid results on the website.
24. Negotiations with preferred bidders

(1)

(2)

The accounting officer may negotiate the final terms of a contract with bidders identified through a
competitive bidding process as preferred bidders, provided that such negotiation -

(a) does not allow any preferred bidder a second or unfair opportunity;
(b) is not to the detriment of any other bidder; and
(c) does not lead to a higher price than the bid as submitted.

Minutes of such negotiations shall be kept for record purposes.

25. Two-stage bidding process

(1)

(2)

(3)

A two-stage bidding process is allowed for -

(a) large complex projects;

(b) projects where it may be undesirable to prepare complete detailed technical specifications;
or

(c) long term projects with a duration period exceeding three years.

In the first stage technical proposals on conceptual design or performance specifications shall be
invited, subject to technical as well as commercial clarifications and adjustments.

In the record stage final technical proposals and priced bids shall be invited.
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Committee system for competitive bids

(1)

()

A committee system for competitive bids is hereby established, consisting of the following
committees for each procurement or cluster of procurements as the accounting officer may
determine:

(a) a bid specification committee;
(b) a bid evaluation committee; and
(c) a id adjudication committee.

The accounting officer appoints the members of each committee, taking into account section 117 of
the Act.

A neutral or independent observer, appointed by the accounting officer, shall attend or oversee a
committee when this is appropriate for;

Neither a member of a bid evaluation committee, nor an advisor or person assisting the evaluation
committee, may be a member of a bid adjudication committee.

(a) If the bid adjudication committee decided to award a bid other than the one recommended
by the bid evaluation committee, the bid adjudication committee shall prior to awarding the
bid -

(i) check in respect of the preferred bidder whether that bidder’s municipal rates and
taxes and municipal service charges are not in arrears, and
(ii) notify the accounting officer.

(b) The accounting officer may -

(i) after due consideration of the reasons for the deviation, ratify or reject the decision
of the bid adjudication committee referred to in section (a); and
(ii) if the decision of the bid adjudication committee is rejected, refer the decision of the

adjudication committee back to that committee for reconsideration.
The accounting officer may at any stage of the bidding process, refer any recommendation made by
the evaluation committee or the adjudication committee back to that committee for reconsideration
of the recommendation.
The accounting officer shall comply with section 114 of the Act within 10 working days.

The bid evaluation of adjudication committee may -

(a) after consulting with the accounting officer, appoint an interim or a liquid chairperson in an
event whereby the chairperson appointed by the accounting officer is absent.

Bid Specification Committee

(1)

(2)

A bid specification committee must compile the specifications for procurement of goods or services
by the Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality.

Specifications —

(a) Must be drafted in an unbiased manner to allow all potential suppliers to offer their goods
or services;
(b) must take account of any accepted standards such as those issued by Standards South

Africa, the International Standards Organisation, or an authority accredited or recognised
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(3)

(4)

by the South African National Accreditation System with which the equipment or material
or workmanship should comply;

(c) Must, where possible, be described in terms of performance required rather than in terms
of descriptive characteristics for design;
(d) may not create trade barriers in contract requirements in the forms of specifications, plans,

drawings, designs, testing and test methods, packaging, marking or labeling of conformity
certification;

(e) may not make reference to any particular trade mark, name, patent, design, type, specific
origin or producer unless there is no other sufficiently precise or intelligible way of
describing the characteristics of the work, in which case such reference must be
accompanied by the word “equivalent”;

() must indicate each specific goal for which points may be awarded in terms of the points
system set out in the Preferential Procurement Regulations 2001; as amended in 2011 (for
contract value of more than R 1 000 000, the 90/10 point system be used, and for contract
value of less than R 1 000 000, the 80/20 point system be used, where 90&80 are for price
and 10&20 are for BBBEE); and

(g) Must be approved by the Accounting Officer prior to publication of the invitation for bids in
terms of paragraph 22 of this Policy.

A bid specification committee must be composed of one or more officials of the Chief Albert Luthuli
Municipality preferably the manager responsible for the function involved, and may, when
appropriate, include external specialist advisors.

No person, advisor or corporate entity involved with the bid specification committee, or director of
such a corporate entity, may bid for any resulting contracts.

Bid evaluation committees

(1)

(2)

A bid evaluation committee must —

(a) Evaluate bids in accordance with —
(i) the specifications for a specific procurement; and
(ii) The points system set out in terms of paragraph 27(2)(f).
(b) Evaluate each bidder’s ability to execute the contract;
(c) Check in respect of the recommended bidder whether municipal rates and taxes and
municipal service charges are not in arrears, and meet the requirements of the tender; and
(d) Submit to the adjudication committee a report and recommendations regarding the award

of the bid or any other related matter.

A bid evaluation committee must as far as possible be composed of-

(a) Officials from departments requiring the goods or services; and
(b) At least one supply chain management practitioner of the Chief Albert Luthuli
Municipality.

Bid adjudication committees

(1)

(2)

A bid adjudication committee must —

(a) Consider the report and recommendations of the bid evaluation committee; and
(b) Either —
(i) Depending on its delegations, make a final award or a recommendation to the
Accounting Officer to make the final award; or
(ii) Make another recommendation to the Accounting Officer how to proceed with the

relevant procurement.

A bid adjudication committee must consist of at least four senior Managers of the Chief Albert
Luthuli Municipality which must include —
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(a) The Chief Financial Officer or, if the Chief Financial Officer is not available, another manager
in the Finance Department reporting directly to the Chief Financial Officer and designated
by the Chief Financial Officer; and

(b) At least one senior Supply Chain Management practitioner who is an official of the Chief
Albert Luthuli Municipality; and
(c) A technical expert in the relevant field who is an official, if such an expert exists.

The Accounting Officer must appoint the chairperson of the committee. If the chairperson is absent
from a meeting, the members of the committee who are present must elect one of them to preside
at the meeting.

Neither a member of a bid evaluation committee, nor an advisor or person assisting the evaluation
committee, may be a member of a bid adjudication committee.

(a) if the bid adjudication committee decides to award a bid other than the one recommended
by the bid evaluation committee, the bid adjudication committee must prior to awarding
the bid —

(i) check in respect of the preferred bidder whether that bidder’s municipal rates and
taxes and municipal service charges are not in arrears, and;
(ii) Notify the Accounting Officer.

(b) The Accounting Officer may —

(i) After due consideration of the reasons for the deviation, ratify or reject the
decision of the bid adjudication committee referred to in paragraph (a); and
(ii) If the decision of the bid adjudication committee is rejected, refer the decision of

the adjudication committee back to that committee for reconsideration.

The Accounting Officer may at any stage of a bidding process, refer any recommendation made by
the evaluation committee or the adjudication committee back to that committee for reconsideration
of the recommendation.

The Accounting Officer must comply with section 114 of the Act within 10 working days
The bid evaluation or adjudication committee may —

After consulting with the Accounting Officer, appoint an interim or a liquid chairperson in an event
whereby the chairperson appointed by the Accounting Officer is absent.

Procurement of banking services

(1)

()

(3)

A contract for banking services -

(a) shall be procured through competitive bids;
(b) shall be consistent with section 7 of 85 of the Act; and
(c) shall not be for a period of more than five years at a time.

The process for procuring a contract for banking services shall commence at least nine months
before the end of an existing contract.

The closure date for the submission of bids may not be less than 60 days from the date on which the
advertisement is placed in a newspaper in terms of section 22(1). Bids shall be restricted to banks
registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 (Act No 94 of 1990).
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Procurement of IT related goods or services

(1)

The accounting officer may request the State Information Technology Agency (SITA) to assist with
the acquisition of IT related goods or services through a competitive bidding process.

Both parties shall enter into a written agreement to regulate the services rendered by, and the
payments to be made to SITA.

The accounting officer shall notify SITA together with a motivation of the IT needs if -

(a) the transaction value of IT related goods or services required in any financial year shall
exceed R50 million (VAT included); or

(b) the transaction value of a contract to be procured whether for one or more years exceeds
R50 million (VAT included).

If SITA comments on the submission and the municipality disagrees with such comments, the
comments and the reasons for rejecting or not following such comments shall be submitted to the
council, the national treasury, the relevant provincial treasury and the Auditor-general.

Procurement of goods and services under contracts secured by other organs of state

(1)

The accounting officer may procure goods or services under a contract secured by another organ of
state, but only if -

(a) the contract has been secured by that other organ of state by means of a competitive
bidding process applicable to that organ of state;

(b) there is no reason to believe that such contract was not validly procured;
(c) there are demonstrable discounts or benefits to do so; and
(d) that other organ of state and the provider have consented to such procurement in writing.

Procurement of goods necessitating special safety arrangements

(1)

()

The acquisition and storage of goods in bulk (other than water) which necessitates special safety
arrangements, including gasses and fuel, shall be avoided wherever possible.

Where the storage of goods in bulk is justified, such justification shall based on sound reasons,
including the total cost of ownership, cost advantages and environmental impact and shall be
approved by the accounting officer.

Proudly SA Campaign and EPWP Initiative

(1)

The municipality supports the Proudly SA Campaign to the extent that, all things being equal,
preference is given to procuring local goods and services

Contract management

(1)

A contract or agreement procured through the supply chain management system shall be in writing,
and shall stipulate the terms and conditions of the contract or agreement, which shall include
provisions which allow for:

(a) the termination of the contract or agreement in the case of non- or under-performance;

(b) dispute resolution mechanisms to settle disputes between the parties; and
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()

(c) a periodic review of the contract or agreement once every 3 years in the case of a contract
or agreement for longer than 3 years.

The accounting officer shall:

(a) take all reasonable steps to ensure that a contract or agreement procured through the
supply chain management supply is properly enforced;

(b) monitor on a monthly basis the performance of the contractor under the contract or
agreement;
(c) establish capacity in the administration to assist the accounting officer in carrying out the

foregoing responsibilities, and in overseeing the day-to-day management of contractors and
agreements; and

(d) regularly report to the council as the use may be on the management of the contract or
agreement and the performance of the contractor.

A contract or agreement procured through the supply chain management policy may be amended by
the parties, but only after the reasons for the proposed amendment have been tabled in the council
of the municipality, or, in the case of a municipal entity, in the council of its parent municipality.

Appointment of consultants

(1)

(2)

The accounting officer may procure consulting services provided that any treasury, ECSA and DWAF
guidelines in respect of consulting services are taken into account when such procurements are
made.

Consultancy services shall be procured through competitive bids if -

(a) the value of the contract exceeds R200 000.00 (VAT included); or

(b) the duration period of the contract exceeds one year.

In addition to any requirements prescribed by this policy for competitive bids, bidders shall furnish
particulars of -

(a) all consultancy services provided to an organ of state in the last five years; and
(b) any similar consultancy service provided to an organ of state in the last five years.
The accounting officer shall ensure that copyright in any document produced, and the patent rights

or ownership in any plant, machinery, thing, system or process designed or devised by a consultant
in the course of the consultancy service is vested in the municipality.

Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, procurement processes

(1)

The accounting officer may -

(a) dispense with the official procurement processes established by this policy and to procure
any required goods or services through any convenient process, which may include direct
negotiations, but only -

(i) in an emergency;
(ii) if such goods or services are produced or available from a single provider only;
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(4)

(iii) for the acquisition of special works of art or historical objects where specifications
are difficult to compile;

(v) in any other exceptional case where it is impractical or impossible to follow the
official procurement processes; and

ratify any minor breaches of the procurement processes by an official or committee acting in terms
of delegated powers or duties which are purely of a technical nature.

Deviations on contracts may be by not more than 20% for construction related goods, services
and/or infrastructure projects and 15% for all other goods and/or services of the original value of the

contract; and if it is more than that it shall be approved by council.

all deviations must be reported to council.

Unsolicited bids

(1)

(5)

(6)

In accordance with section 113 of the Act there is no obligation to consider unsolicited bids received
outside a normal bidding process.

The accounting officer may decide in terms of section 113(2) of the Act to consider an unsolicited
bid, only if -

(a) the product or service offered in terms of the bid is a demonstrably or proven unique
innovative concept;

(b) the product or service offered in terms of the bid is a demonstrably or proven unique
innovative concept;

(c) the person who made the bid is the sole provider of the product or serve; and

(d) the reasons for not going through the normal bidding processes are found to be sound by
the accounting officer.

If the accounting officer decides to consider an unsolicited bid that complies with subsection (2) of
this policy, the decision shall be made public in accordance with section 21A of the Municipal
Systems Act together with -

(a) reasons why the bid shall not be open to other competitors;
(b) and explanation of the potential benefits if the unsolicited bid were accepted; and
(c) an invitation to the public or other potential suppliers to submit their comments within 30

days of the notice.
The accounting officer shall submit all written comments received pursuant to subsection (3),
including any responses from the unsolicited bidder, to the National Treasury and the relevant

provincial treasury for comment.

The adjudication committee shall consider the unsolicited bid and may award the bid or make a
recommendation to the accounting officer, depending on its delegations.

A meeting of the adjudication committee to consider an unsolicited bid shall be open to the public.
When considering the matter, the adjudication committee shall take into account -

(a) any comments submitted by the public; and
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(b)

any written comments and recommendations of the National Treasury or the relevant
provincial treasury.

(8) If any recommendations of the National Treasury or provincial treasury are rejected or not followed,
the accounting officer shall submit to the Auditor-General, the relevant provincial treasury and
National Treasury the reasons for rejecting or not following those recommendations.

(9) Such submission shall be made within seven days after the decision on the award of the unsolicited
bid is taken, but no contract committing the municipality to the bid may be entered into or signed
within 30 days of the submission.

Combating of abuse of supply chain management system

(1) The accounting officer shall -

(a)
(b)

(e)

take all reasonable steps to prevent abuse of the supply chain management system;

investigate any allegations against an official or other role player of fraud, corruption,
favouritism, unfair or irregular practices or failure to comply with this policy, and when
justified -

(i) take appropriate steps against such official or other role player; or
(ii) report any alleged criminal conduct to the South African Police Service;

check the National Treasury’s database prior to awarding any contract to ensure that no
recommended bidder, or any of its directors, is listed as a person prohibited from doing
business with the public sector;

reject any bid from a bidder -

(i) if any municipal rates and taxes or municipal service charges owed by that bidder
or any of its directors to the municipality, or to any other municipality or municipal
entity, are in arrears for more than three months; or

(ii) who during the last five years has failed to perform satisfactorily on a previous
contract with the municipality or any other organ of state after written notice was
given to that bidder that performance was unsatisfactory;

reject a recommendation for the award of a contract if the recommended bidder, or any of
its directors, has committed a corrupt or fraudulent act in competing for the particular

contract;

cancel a contract awarded to a person if -

(i) the person committed any corrupt or fraudulent act during the bidding process or
the execution of the contract; or
(ii) an official or other role player committed any corrupt or fraudulent act during the

bidding process or the execution of the contract that benefited that person; and

reject the bid or any bidder if that bidder or any of its directors -

(i) has abused the supply chain management system of the municipality or has
committed any improper conduct in relation to such system;

(ii) has been convicted for fraud or corruption during the past five years;

(iii) has wilfully neglected, reneged on or failed to comply with any government,
municipal or other public sector contract during the past five years; or

(iv) has been listed in the Register for Tender Defaulters in terms of section 29 of the

Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004 (Act No 12 of 2004).



(2) The accounting officer shall inform the National Treasury and relevant provincial treasury in writing
of any actions taken in terms of subsections (1)(b)(ii), (e) or (f) of this policy.

Part 3: Logistics, Disposal, Risk and Performance Management

40. Logistics management

(1) The accounting officer shall establish and implement an effective system of logistics management,
which shall include -

(a)

(b)

(c)

the monitoring of spending patterns on types or classes of goods and services incorporating,
where practical, the coding of items to ensure that each item has a unique number;

the setting of inventory levels that includes minimum and maximum levels and lead times
wherever goods are placed in stock;

the placing of manual or electronic orders for all acquisitions other than those from petty
cash;

before payment is approved, certification by the responsible officer that the goods and
services are received or rendered on time and is in accordance with the order, the general
conditions of contract and specifications where applicable and that the price charged is as
quoted in terms of a contract;

appropriate standards of internal control and warehouse management to ensure that goods
placed in stores are secure and only used for the purpose for which they were purchased;

regular checking to ensure that all assets including official vehicles are properly managed,
appropriately maintained and only used for official purposes; and

monitoring and review of the supply vendor performance to ensure compliance with
specifications and contract conditions for particular goods or services.

41. Disposal management

(1) The criteria for the disposal or letting of assets, including unserviceable, redundant or obsolete
assets, subject to sections 14 and 90 of the Act are as follows:

(a)
(b)

Assets may be disposed of by way of auction.

Assets may be disposed of by -

(i) transferring the asset to another organ of state in terms of a provision of the Act
enabling the transfer of assets;
(ii) transferring the asset to another organ of state at market related value or, when
appropriate, free of charge;
(iii) selling the asset and through auctioning; or
(iv) destroying the asset.
(2) The accounting officer shall ensure that -

(a)

(b)

immovable property is sold only at market related prices except when the public interest or
the plight of the poor demands otherwise;

movable assets are sold either by way of written price quotations, a competitive bidding
process, auction or at market related prices, whichever is the most advantageous;
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(c) firearms are not sold or donated to any person or institution within or outside the Republic
unless approved by the National Conventional Arms Control Committee;

(d) immovable property is let at market related rates except when the public interest or the
plight of the poor demands otherwise;

(e) all fees, charges, rates, tariffs, scales of fees or other charges relating to the letting of
immovable property are annually reviewed;

(f) where assets are traded in for other assets, the highest possible trade-in price is negotiated;
(g) in the case of the free disposal of computer equipment, the provincial department of

education is first approached to indicate within 30 days where any of the local schools are
interested in the equipment.

Disposal of capital assets

(1)

()

A municipality may not transfer ownership as a result of a sale or other transaction or otherwise
permanently dispose of a capital asset needed to provide the minimum level of basic municipal
services.

A municipality may transfer ownership or otherwise dispose of a capital asset other than one
contemplated in subsection (1), but only after the municipal council, in a meeting open to the public

(a) has decided on reasonable grounds that the asset is not needed to provide the minimum
level of basic municipal services; and

(b) has considered the fair market value of the asset and the economic and community value to
be received in exchange for the asset.

A decision by a municipal council that a specific capital asset is not needed to provide the minimum
level of basic municipal services, may not be reversed by the municipality after that asset has been
sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of.

A municipal council may delegate to the accounting officer of the municipality its power to make the
determinations referred to in subsection (2)(a) and (b) in respect of moveable capital assets below a
value determined by the council.

Any transfer of ownership of a capital asset in terms of subsection (2) or (4) shall be fair, equitable,
transparent, competitive and consistent with the supply chain management policy which the
municipality shall have and maintain in terms of section 111.

Risk management

(1)

(2)

The criteria for the identification, consideration and avoidance of potential risks in the supply chain
management system are as follows:

(a) By appointing a qualified risk assessor on contract basis or as a consultant or permanently if
possible.

Risk management shall include -
(a) the identification of risks on a case-by-case basis;

(b) the allocation of risks to the party best suited to manage such risks;
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(c) acceptance of the cost of the risk where the cost of transferring the risk is greater than that
of retaining it;

(d) the management of risks in a pro-active manner and the provision of adequate cover for
residual risks; and

(e) the assignment of relative risks to the contracting parties through clear and unambiguous
contract documentation.

Performance management
The accounting officer shall establish and implement an internal monitoring system in order to determine, on
the basis of a retrospective analysis, whether the authorised supply chain management processes where
followed and whether the objectives of this policy were achieved.

Part 4: Other matters

Prohibition on awards to persons whose tax matters are not in order

(1) No award above R15 000 may be made in terms of this policy to a person whose tax matters have
not been declared by the South African Revenue Service to be in order.

(2) Before making an award to a person the accounting officer shall first check with SARS whether that
person’s tax matters are in order.

(3) If SARS does not respond within 7 days such person’s tax matters may for purposes of subsection (1)
be presumed to be out of order. It is therefore a responsibility of the prospective bidder to ensure
that such tax matters are in order an d shall remain his or her responsibility to provide supporting
documentation required by the municipality.

Prohibition on awards to person in the service of the state

(2) Irrespective of the procurement process followed, no award may be made to a person in terms of
this policy -
(a) who is in the service of the state;
(b) if that person is not a natural person, of which any director, manager, principal shareholder
or stakeholder is a person in the service of the state; or
(c) a person who is an advisor or consultant contracted with the municipality.

Awards to close family members of persons in the service of the state

(1) The accounting officer shall ensure that the notes to the annual financial statements disclose
particulars of any award of more than R2 000 to a person who is a spouse, child or parent of a
person in the service of the state, or has been in the service of the state in the previous 12 months,

including -

(a) the name of that person;

(b) the capacity in which that person is in the service of the state; and
(c) the amount of the award.

Ethical standards
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(1)

A code of ethical standards as set out in the “National Treasury’s code of conduct for supply chain
management practitioners and other role players involved in supply chain management” is hereby
established for officials and other role players in the supply chain management system of the
municipality in order to promote -

(a) mutual trust and respect; and

(b) an environment where business can be conducted with integrity and in a fair and
reasonable manner.

A breach of the code of ethics shall be dealt with as follows -

(a) in the case of an employee, in terms of the disciplinary procedures of the municipality
envisaged in section 67(1)(h) of the Municipal Systems Act;

(b) in the case of a role player who is not an employee, through other appropriate means in
recognition of the severity of the breach.

(c) In all cases, financial misconduct shall be dealt with in terms of chapter 15 of the Act.

Inducements, rewards, gifts and favours to municipalities, officials and other role players

(1)

(2)

(3)

No person who is a provider or prospective provider or goods or services, or a recipient or
prospective recipient of goods disposed or to be disposed of may either directly or through
representative or intermediary promise offer or grant -

(a) by inducement or reward to the municipality for or in connection with the award of a
contract; or

(b) any reward, gift, favour or hospitality to -
(i) any official; or
(ii) any other role player involved in the implementation of this policy.

The accounting officer shall promptly report any alleged contravention of subsection (1) to the
national treasury for considering whether the offending person, and any representative or
intermediary through which such person is alleged to have acted, would be listed in the national
treasury’s database of persons prohibited from doing business with the public sector.

Subsection (1) does not apply to gifts less than R100 in value.

Sponsorship

(1)

The accounting officer shall promptly disclose to the national treasury and the relevant provincial
treasury and sponsorship promised, offered or granted, whether directly or through a representative
or intermediary, by any person whois -

(a) a provider or prospective provider of goods or services; or

(b) a recipient or prospective recipient of goods disposed or to be disposed.

Objections and complaints

Persons aggrieved by decisions or actions taken in the implementation of this supply chain management
system, may lodge within 14 days of the decision or action, a written objection or complaint against the
decision or action.
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Resolution of disputes, objections, complaints and queries

(1)

(4)

(6)

The accounting officer shall appoint an independent and impartial person, not directly involved in
the supply chain management processes -

(a) to assist in the resolution of disputes between the municipality and other persons
regarding -

(i) any decisions or actions taken in the implementation of the supply chain
management system; or
(ii) any matter arising from a contract awarded in the course of the supply chain

management system; or

(b) to deal with objections, complaints or queries regarding any such decisions or actions or any
matters arising from such contract.

The accounting officer, or another official designated by the accounting officer, is responsible for
assisting the appointed person to perform his or her functions efficiently.

The person appointed shall -
(a) strive to resolve promptly all disputes, objections, complaints or queries received; and

(b) submit monthly reports to the accounting officer on all disputes, objections, complaints or
queries received, attended to or resolved.

A dispute, objection, complaint or query may be referred to the relevant provincial treasury if -
(a) the dispute, objection, complaint or query is not resolved within 60 days; or
(b) no response is forthcoming within 60 days.

If the provincial treasury does not or cannot resolve the matter, the dispute, objection, complaint or
query may referred to the National Treasury for resolution.

This section shall not be read as affecting a person’s rights to approach a court at any time.

Contracts providing for compensation base on turnover

(1)

If a service provider acts on behalf of a municipality to provide any service or act as a collector of
fees, service charges or taxes and the compensation payable to the service provider is fixed as an
agreed percentage of turnover for the service or the amount collected, the contract between the
service provider and the municipality shall stipulate -

(a) a cap on the compensation payable to the service provider; and

(b) that such compensation shall be performance based.

Bidders commitments

(1)

All prospective bidders of the municipality shall -

(a) declare abide to the mission and vision of the municipality and shall assist the municipality
to realise and meet its objectives;

(b) after an award of any contract for more than R200 000 the service provider shall commit
himself or herself to a 1% social responsibility programme;



(c) ensure and promote good relations with all structures established in terms of the municipal
processes, the Municipal Systems Act, and the Municipal Structures Act;

(d) promote the employment of local people, reimburse their services taking into consideration
the minimums standards set by the Department of labour through the Sectoral
Determination Act.

(e) Bid committees shall sit and appoint service providers within 14 days after the tender has
closed.
55. Checking the list of restricted suppliers
(1) The accounting officer shall verify the status of the recommended bidder with the National Treasury

prior to awarding a contract.

(2) A response shall be provided within one working day confirming whether the name provided has
been listed as a person of company prohibited from doing business with the public sector.

(a) Such request shall be forwarded by e-mail to restrictions@treasury.gov.za

(b) Under no circumstances shall a contract be awarded to a provider whose name appears on
the Treasury defaulters register.


mailto:restrictions@treasury.gov.za

56. Register for tender defaulters

(1) The accounting officer shall keep a register of providers that have defaulted with the municipality in
the past, stating reasons for defaulting in terms of the Prevention and Combating of Corrupt
Activities Act, 2004 (Act No 12 of 2004).

(a) The accounting officer shall reject any bid if that bidder or any of its directors has been
listed in the Register for Tender Defaulters of treasury.

(b) The register determines the period, which may not be less than five years or more than 10
years, for which the convicted provider shall be prohibited from doing business with the
public sector;

(i) if the period determined by the register has expired, the convicted provider would
be prohibited from doing business with the public sector.

57. Commencement

This policy took effect on 1 July 2007 and has been reviewed in 2008; 2009; 2010; 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

MUNICIPAL MANAGER EXECUTIVE MAYOR

whr/es
june 2012



ANNEXURE 1

Code of Conduct for Supply Chain Management Practitioners and other Role Players

The purpose of this code of conduct is to promote mutual trust and respect and an environment where
business can be conducted with integrity and in fair and reasonable manner.

(1) The municipality commits itself to a policy of fair dealing and integrity in the conducting of its business. Officials and other role
players involved in supply chain management (supply chain management) are in a position of trust, implying a duty to act in
the public interest. Officials and other role players shall not perform their duties to unlawfully gain any form of compensation,
payment or gratuities from any person, or provider/contractor for themselves, their family or their friends.

(2) Officials and other role players involved in supply chain management shall ensure that they perform their duties efficiently,
effectively and with integrity, in accordance with the relevant legislation, policies, and guidelines. They shall ensure that public
resources are administered responsibly.

(3) Officials and other role players involved in supply chain management shall be fair and impartial in the performance of their
functions. They shall at no time afford any undue preferential treatment to any group or individual or unfairly discriminate
against any group or individual. They shall not abuse the power and authority vested in them.

Conflict of interest

(1) An official or other role player involved with supply chain management —

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)
Accountability

shall treat all providers and potential providers equitably;
may not use his/her position for private gain or to improperly benefit another person;

may not accept any reward, gift, favour, hospitality or other benefit directly or indirectly, including to any close
family member, partner or associate of that person, of a value more than R350;

shall declare to the accounting officer details of any reward, gift, favour, hospitality or other benefit promised,
offered or granted to that person or to any close family member, partner or associate of that person;

shall declare to the accounting officer details of any private business interest which that person, or any close family
member, partner or associate, may have in any proposed procurement or disposal process, or in any reward of a
contract by the municipality;

shall immediately withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in a procurement or disposal process or
in the award of a contract in which that person, or any close family member, partner or associate, has any private

or business interest;

shall declare any business, commercial and financial interest or activities undertaken for financial gain that may
raise a possible conflict of interest;

shall not place him/herself under any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organizations that might
seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties; and

shall not take improper advantage of their previous office after leaving their official position.

(1) Practitioners are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public.
(2) Practitioners shall use public property scrupulously.
(3) Only accounting officers or their delegates have the authority to commit the municipality to any transaction for the

procurement of goods and/or services.

(4) All transactions conducted by a practitioner shall be recorded and accounted for in an appropriate accounting system.
Practitioners shall not make any false or misleading entries into such a system for any reason whatsoever.

(5) Practitioners shall assist the accounting officer in combating fraud, corruption, favouritism and unfair and irregular practices in
the supply chain management system.

(6) Practitioners shall report to the officer any alleged irregular conduct in the supply chain management system which that
person may become aware of, including —

(a)

any alleged fraud, corruption, favouritism or unfair conduct;



(b) any alleged contravention of the policy on inducements, rewards, gifts and favours to municipalities, officials or
other role players;

(c) any alleged breach of this code of conduct.

(7) Any declarations made shall be recorded in a register which the accounting officer shall keep for this purpose. Any
declarations made by the accounting officer shall be made to the mayor who shall ensure that such declaration is recorded in
the register.

Openness

(1) Practitioners shall be as open as possible about all the decisions and actions that they take. They shall give reasons for their
decisions and restrict information only if it is in the public interest to do so.

Confidentiality

(1) Any information that is the property of the municipality or its providers shall be protected at all times. No information
regarding any bid/contract contractor may be revealed if such an action shall infringe on the relevant bidder’s/contractor’s
personal rights.

(2) Matters of confidential nature in the possession of officials and other role players involved in supply chain management shall
be kept confidential unless legislation, the performance of duty or the provisions of law requires otherwise. Such restrictions
also apply to officials and other role players involved in supply chain management after separation from service.

Bid Specification / Evaluation / Adjudication Committees

(1) Bid specification, evaluation and adjudication committees shall implement supply chain management on behalf of the
municipality in an honest, fair, impartial, transparent, cost-effective and accountable manner.

(2) Bid evaluation/adjudication committees shall be familiar with and adhere to the prescribed legislation, directives and
procedures in respect of supply chain management in order to perform effectively and efficiently.

(3) All members of bid adjudication committees shall be cleared by the accounting officer at the level of “CONFIDENTIAL” and
shall be required to declare their financial interest annually.

(4) No person shall —
(a) interfere with the supply chain management system of the municipality; or
(b) amend or tamper with any price quotation/bid after its submission.

Combative Practices

(1) Combative practices are unethical and illegal and shall be avoided at all cost. They include but are not limited to:
(a) suggestions to fictitious quotations;
(b) reference to non-existent competition;
(c) exploiting errors in price quotations/bids;
(d) soliciting price quotations/bids from bidders/contractors whose names appear on the Register of Tender

Defaulters.



ANNEXURE 2

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE MANUAL

PART 1 DOCUMENTS USED

Requisition form— this document is used to convey to the supply chain unit, that goods and services
are required. It can be initiated in any department and sent to the Supply chain management unit,

Tender Register — this document is used to register all tenders received

Stores requisition — this document is used to request items from the stores in contact with the end
user department.

Requisition book— this document is used to request items that are not in the Stores (warehouse)
from the buying unit in contact with the end user department.

Order —which are completed by the buying department, record the detail and price of the goods to
be purchased and is addressed to the supplier. It should be signed by the Buyer (if above R30 000,
by the Manager)

Supplier Delivery Note — this document is made out by the supplier and details the goods which are
being supplied. It will be cross referenced to the Order and on delivery of the goods and services
will be signed by the stores to acknowledge the receipt of the goods and services.

Goods Receive Note (book) — this document is completed by the stores when goods are delivered
by the supplier. It is cross referenced to the supplier’s delivery note

Invoice — this document is sent by the supplier to the Supply Chain Management Unit to inform of
the goods and services for which it is being charged, the price, any discounts and VAT.

Procurement Checklist — this document is used to ensure that all the above relevant documents are
attached accordingly as required.

Deviation form — this document is used to request for approval for deviating from the SCM Policy

Tender Documents — these documents are used during the bidding process
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PART 2 MANAGEMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS

All requests for the procurement of goods and services shall be submitted by the heads of departments

concerned to Supply Chain Management Section. All requests shall be in writing(signed memorandum and

requisition form), shall clearly specify the nature and, where applicable, quantity or duration, as the case

may be, of the goods and services required, and shall be signed by the head of department concerned or by

a senior official in the department designated by the head of department for this purpose. Each department

should have a procurement coordinator that will deal directly with SCM on procurement issues (i.e.

Administrators, Secretary of the department)

2.1

Quotations (RO — R200 000)

SCM will see if requested items can be found in the stores or not, if not then will outsource that
service, taking into account the SCM procurement levels as stipulated in paragraph 12 of the SCM

Policy.

The supply chain management section shall manage procurement requisitions for amounts
estimated not to exceed R200 000 excluding VAT by calling for quotations taking into account
procurement levels stipulated in paragraph 12 of the SCM Policy.

The request for such quotations shall be prepared by the supply chain section, and shall be
prominently displayed on the municipality’s website, notice boards in all municipal offices and on
the notice board provided for the purpose of displaying quotations and tenders in the supply chain
section.

Notices calling for quotations shall indicate the closing date and time for the submission of
guotations, and such closing date shall be at least 7 (seven) days after the date on which the

request for quotations is first displayed.

For a quotation to be considered, it must be in writing, be signed by a person with the necessary
authority to act on behalf of the prospective supplier, substantially comply with the specification set
out in the notice calling for quotations, be received by the supply chain section on or before due
date and time, and be accompanied by a recent municipal rates and service charges account, a valid

tax clearance certificate issued by the South African Revenue Service, B-BBEE Certificate issued by



2.2

2.3

an accredited institution and the completed municipal bid forms, as prescribed by the accounting

officer.

Tenders (R200 000 and above)

The supply chain management section shall manage procurement requisitions for amounts
estimated to be in excess of R200 000 excluding VAT by calling for tenders. The request for such
tenders shall be prepared by the supply chain management section, shall be prominently displayed
on the municipality’s website, all the notice boards, referred to under part 2.1 above, and shall
additionally be advertised in one local newspaper of repute (if there is a local newspaper) and one
national newspaper of repute or in both such newspapers if the estimated value of the tender
exceeds R1 000 000 (one million rand). Notices calling for tenders shall comply with all the
requirements indicated for quotations under part 2.1 above, except that the closing date shall be at
least 14 (fourteen) days after the date on which the call for tenders is first displayed or advertised,

whichever date is the later.

For a tender to be considered it must comply with all the requirements indicated for quotations
under part 2.1 above, except that a tender must be placed in the tender box provided for this

purpose, the location of which shall be clearly specified in the relevant notice calling for tenders.

The chief financial officer shall ensure that such tender boxes are sealed until the date and time of

their official opening, and that they are properly secured at the time.
Where the relevant notice specifies that prospective tenderers must complete certain
documentation which must be obtained from the municipality, failure to complete such

documentation shall render the tender invalid.

The relevant notice may also specify that a non refundable fee, as determined from time to time by

the council, is payable in order to obtain such documentation

Quotations and Tenders Not to Specification

Notwithstanding the above-stipulated requirements for consideration, tenders which are not to

specification may be considered, but only if no tenders are received which substantially comply with



2.4

the specification upon recommendation by the bid committees and approval by the accounting
officer. For quotations, consideration as per above can be given upon recommendation and

approval by parties as per the SCM Policy.

Use of Database of Suppliers

The supply chain management section shall at least annually, by notice and advertisement as for
tenders under part 2.2 above, request prospective suppliers, either generally or for specified ranges
of goods and services, to submit their names and other relevant details to the procurement section
for inclusion in a database of suppliers. The database should be updated at least quarterly. Such

details shall include an indication of the goods and services normally provided.

The procurement section shall then, in addition to the communication processes specified under
parts 2.1 and 2.2 above, forward — either electronically or by facsimile — copies of any notices of
guotations and tenders to the relevant suppliers. However, failure by the procurement section to
forward such notices or the non-receipt of such notices by any supplier shall not invalidate the
procurement process. The onus remains on the prospective suppliers to apprise themselves of the
municipality’s requirements as indicated in the prescribed communication processes set out under
parts 2.1 and 2.2 above, and the additional notification by virtue of the supplier’s being included in

the database of suppliers shall be viewed simply as a courtesy on the part of the municipality.

The inclusion of any supplier in the database of suppliers by no means obviates the need for such
supplier to respond in the prescribed manner to notices of the municipality’s procurement

requirements.

PART 3 ADJUDICATION OF QUOTATIONS AND TENDERS

Notwithstanding any of the requirements set out below, the municipality shall not be obliged to accept any

guotation or tender received.

3.1

Quotations

After all the requisitions have been processed and quotations have been received, will then

evaluate the quotations as per paragraph 18(f) of the SCM Policy.



3.2

All quotations to the value of R30 000 shall be evaluated and adjudicated by the supply chain
section. The lowest quotation substantially to specification shall be accepted, taking into account
the municipality’s preferential procurement requirements as set out, provided the municipality is

satisfied that it offers acceptable value for money for the municipality.

If no quotation is substantially to specification, the lowest quotation which is closest to specification
shall be accepted, provided the municipality is satisfied that it offers acceptable value for money for
the municipality, and provided further — if the goods or services concerned are being procured for a
specific department or departments — that the head(s) of such department(s) concur(s) with such

acceptance.

The supply chain management shall fill the requisition for order form and forward it for approval by
the head of department concerned, chief financial officer and accounting officer depending on the

amount charged for the service.

Quotations of value above R30000 to R200000 shall be evaluated by the supply chain
management, recommended by the end user department, adjudicated by the chief financial officer

and approved by the accounting officer, as per paragraph 18 of the SCM Policy

Tenders

All tenders with an estimated value exceeding R200 000 excluding VAT, shall be adjudicated by the
tender committee, as established in terms of part 4 below, and approved by the municipal

manager, acting on the written reports and recommendations of the tender committee.

The lowest tender substantially to specification shall be accepted, taking into account the
municipality’s preferential procurement requirements as set out in part 5 below, provided the

adjudicating authority is satisfied that it offers acceptable value for money for the municipality.

If no tender is substantially to specification, the adjudicating authority may recommend acceptance
of the lowest tender which is closest to specification, provided the adjudicating authority is satisfied

that it offers acceptable value for money for the municipality as stated in paragraph 2.4 above.






PART 4 TENDER COMMITTEE

The municipal manager shall establish a tender committee in accordance to paragraph 26 — 29 of the SCM

Policy, to undertake the adjudicating functions set out in part 3.2 above.

PART 5 PRINCIPLES OF ADJUDICATION

For all tenders with an estimated value above R1 million (one million rand) excluding VAT, preference points

will be allocated as follows:

POINTS
Lowest price substantially to specification 90
B-BBEE status level 10
Total 100

For all tenders and quotations with an estimated value below R1 million (one million rand) excluding VAT,

preference points will be allocated as follows:

POINTS
Lowest price substantially to specification 80
B-BBEE status level 20
Total 100
B-BBEE Status Level of | Number of Points Number of Points
Contributor > R 1 million < R 1 million
1 10 20
2 9 18
3 8 16
4 5 12
5 4 8
6 3 6
7 2 5
8 1 2
Non-Compliant Contributor 0 0




Where purely local goods are tendered or quoted for, compliance with the requirements of the South
African Bureau of Standards shall be a prerequisite for the consideration of the quotation or tender

concerned.

“To specification “ in the case of services to be provided to or works to be undertaken for the municipality

shall include the furnishing of satisfactory proof of the skills and resources required to execute the bid.

PART 6 PRE-QUALIFICATION PROCEDURES

From time to time, invitations for forthcoming tenders or quotations may specify initial attendance by
prospective suppliers at briefing meetings or site inspections or may require only an initial expression of
interest from prospective suppliers indicating their expertise and/or other credentials in respect of the
provision of the required goods or services. In such instances, the municipality reserves the right to limit
subsequent invitations for the actual tenders or quotations to suppliers who have attended such meetings

or inspections or who have provided reasonable evidence of the expertise or credentials required.

PART 7 GUARANTEES AND RETENTIONS

In the case of tenders for the undertaking of works on behalf of the municipality and with a value equal to
or exceeding R1 000 000 (one million rand), the successful tenderer may lodge with the chief financial
officer a guarantee, issued by an acceptable registered institution , for a sum equal to 60% of the agreed or
estimated tender price. Such guarantee shall be lodged within one calendar month from the date on which
the tender is awarded, and shall thereafter be managed in terms of the contract entered into between the

municipality and the successful tenderer.

In the case of tenders where a performance guarantee as envisaged above is not required, the chief
financial officer shall withhold payment of an amount equal to 10% (ten per centum) of the value of the
actual goods or service supplied by the appointed contractor until the chief financial officer is satisfied that
the contract has been satisfactorily executed, but provided that such final payment shall not be withheld for

a period exceeding 6 (six) calendar months from the date on which final payment was due to the contractor.



PART 8 EMERGENCIES

An emergency shall be considered as an unforeseeable and sudden event, with materially harmful or
potentially materially harmful consequences for the municipality, and which requires urgent action to

address.

In cases where the municipal manager determines that an emergency has arisen, the municipal manager
may direct that the periods for advertising quotations or tenders, as stipulated in parts 2.1 and 2.2 above,
be curtailed to the extent that the municipal manager deems appropriate. Where the estimated value of
the goods or services to be supplied to cater for such emergency exceeds R1 million (one million rand)
excluding VAT, the municipal manager may approve such tender on behalf of the council, but provided the
executive mayor or the chairperson of the executive committee, as the case may be, concurs with the view

of the municipal manager that the tender must be approved to address an emergency.

PART 9 PROHIBITED ACTIONS

No head of department in placing a requisition for goods or services to be procured by quotation or tender
shall knowingly understate the requirements or the estimated value of the requirements with the intention

of avoiding the more stringent process prescribed for requirements of a higher value.

The municipal manager shall promptly institute disciplinary action against any head of department

suspected of infringing this requirement.

No councillor or official shall engage in any contact with a prospective supplier in respect of any quotation
or tender which such supplier intends to submit with the purpose of influencing any aspect of such

guotation or tender.

PART 10 SALES OF GOODS

In seeking to dispose of any fixed assets, the chief financial officer shall adhere to the requirements of the

municipality’s policy of disposal on the management of and accounting for fixed assets, including the legal

prescription annexed to that policy.



The chief financial officer shall determine in each instance having regard to the nature and estimated resale
value of the assets whether it is more advantageous for the municipality to dispose of the assets in question
by means of the invitation of tenders or quotations or by public auction. Notification of such intended sales
shall follow the communication process prescribed for tenders in part 2.2 above, with the various notices
and advertisements stating the date and time on which tenders will close for acceptance or the date, time
and venue of the auction, as the case may be, as well as the date(s) and venue(s) where prospective

tenderers may view the assets.

All tenders for sales of fixed assets shall be adjudicated by the tender committee under chairpersonship of
the municipal manager, and shall be approved by the council on the recommendation of such committee.
The highest tender substantially to specification shall be accepted, except if the adjudicating authority

believes that no tender is satisfactory in terms of value for money offered.

In seeking to dispose of any stores or other items other than fixed assets, the chief financial officer shall
adhere to the communication requirements prescribed for quotations. The chief financial officer shall
further determine whether it is more advantageous for the municipality to dispose of the items by means of
tenders or quotations or public auction, and shall in either case publish the notification of such sales in
terms of the communication process prescribed in part 2.1 above. If the chief financial officer considers it

necessary, such notification may also be made by means of advertisements in the local and national press.

Where stores or other items other than fixed assets are sold by means of tenders or quotations, the chief
financial officer shall adjudicate and approve the quotations received. The highest quotation substantially
to specification shall be approved, except if the chief financial officer believes that no quotation is

satisfactory in terms of value for money offered.

PART 11 REPORTING

All approved quotations shall be listed on the municipality’s website and on the notice boards referred to in
parts 2.1 and 2.2 above. Quotations approved during any particular calendar week shall be listed from the

beginning of the following calendar week, and shall be displayed for the duration of that week.

All approved tenders shall be listed as for quotations, but shall be listed for 2 (two) calendar weeks.






PART 12 APPEALS

Suppliers who are dissatisfied with the decision of the municipality in regard to any quotation or tender may

appeal in writing to the municipal manager, provided such appeal is lodged with the municipal manager as

follows:

. for quotations, within 7 (seven) calendar days of the date on which the approved quotation is first
listed in terms of part 11 above

. for tenders, within 14 (fourteen) calendar days of the date on which the approved tender is first

listed in terms of part 11 above.

The municipal manager shall provide written acknowledgement of the receipt of such appeals to the
appellant concerned, and shall endeavour to finalise such appeals within 7 (seven) calendar days of their
receipt. Where this is not possible, the municipal manager shall promptly advise the appellant in writing of

the reasons for the delay.

If the appeal is based on a technically complex matter, the municipal manager may engage an impartial
consultant to provide an opinion on the appeal, provided that sufficient budget provision exists for the
expenditure to be incurred, and provided further that the municipal manager shall not be bound by any

such opinion provided.

The municipal manager shall immediately after a ruling on an appeal has been made, advise the appellant in

writing of such ruling.

If the appellant is dissatisfied with the municipal manager’s ruling on an appeal in regard to a tender the
appellant may request the municipal manager to refer such appeal and ruling to the ensuing council
meeting for a decision. Such request must be lodged in writing with the municipal manager within 14

(fourteen) calendar days of the date on which the ruling was made.

The municipal manager shall decide whether the lodging of an appeal constitutes sufficient grounds for the
municipality to delay, where possible, the procurement of the relevant goods or services in terms of the
approved quotation or tender against which the appeal is lodged. If such delay is decided upon, the

municipal manager shall immediately advise the approved supplier, in writing, of such delay.



PART 13 PAYMENTS AND INVOICING

All invoices for goods and services should be received by the stores and shall be submitted for payment

within 5 days of receipt to the expenditure section.

All invoices pertaining to contracts managed by departments other than the finance department, shall be
certified as in order for payment by the head of department concerned before being submitted to the
procurement section.

PART 14 STORES (MATERIALS) MANAGEMENT

All goods procured by the municipality shall be delivered to and receipted by the stores, except if the chief
financial officer, with the concurrence of the head of department concerned, directs that such goods shall

be delivered to a specified site or to the sub-store maintained by the department concerned.

The procedures and charges for requisitioning goods from stores shall be determined from time to time by

the chief financial officer, and shall be notified to all departments by means of departmental circulars.

Stock levels shall be determined by the chief financial officer, in compliance with the municipality’s banking

and investment policy, and where applicable in consultation with the head of department concerned.

PART 15 ASSET MANAGEMENT

Maintenance of Fixed Assets:

A Fixed Assets Register must be maintained, by keeping a record of all assets categorized as follows:

e Property, Plant and Equipment;

e Inventory;

e |nvestment Property.

The following details must appear on the Fixed Assets Register:



e Description

e Date of acquisition;

e Location of the asset;

o Department which will be using the asset;
e Title deed number (if fixed property);

e Stand number (if fixed property);

e Asset identification number;

e Original price;

e Laterevalued date

e Revalued value

e Name of the person who did the last revaluation;
e Accumulated depreciation;

e Depreciation charge for the year;

e (Carrying value;

e Impairment losses;

e Funding source;

e Insurance arrangement;

e Must asset perform basic municipal services;
e Has debt been secured with the asset;

e Date of disposal;

e Price of Disposal;

e Date of retirement.

When fixed assets are sold, disposed of, transferred or purchased on approval by the Council

e The fixed asset register must be up-dated; and

e The journal entries to record the sale, disposal, transfer or purchase must be processed.

Fixed Assets may also be disposed of by public auction or tender.

Transfers of Assets:



With respect to transfer of assets, a list must be produced indicating the relevant details as per asset

register.

The list must be approved by the transferring Department.

The receiving Department should confirm the list of assets being transferred.

Acquisition of Inmoveable Property:

The Council may acquire by purchase, or by hire, immovable property within or outside the Municipality.

Prior to finally resolving whether to purchase or hire immovable property, the Council shall advertise its

intentions to do so.

After consideration of the objections, if any, lodged in accordance with the advertisement contemplated by

3.2 above, the Council:

e Shall in the case of immovable property contemplated by 3.4, comply with the provisions of that
subsection; and
e May in the case of any other immovable property finally resolve whether or not to purchase or hire

such immovable property.

The Municipality shall not without the prior approval of the Council proceed
with the purchase or hire of any

immovable property:

e  Which is to be purchased at a price in excess of the market value thereof as assessed by an appraiser;
e Which is to be hired at a rental.

o Where objections have been lodged in accordance with the advertisement contemplated by 3.2 above.

The Council may accept a gift or conveyance of immovable property either absolutely for the Municipality

or in trust for charitable or other public purposes connected with public worship, and



hold the same, in such trust or for such purposes as may be declared by the donors, and may administer,

utilise and improve such property.

The trustees of any immovable property held in trust for any township village or settlement which has since

become a Municipality or part of a Municipality under the Ordinance, may transfer such property to the

Council, subject to any special trusts in their deeds of title and upon conditions not at variance therewith.

Acquisition of Moveable Property:

The Municipal Manager is responsible for the implementation of the procurement policy in relation to

assets.

All asset acquisitions are to occur in terms of the budgetary provisions.

The fixed assets register should be updated for all acquisitions of moveable and immoveable property.

The assets register should be reconciled with the total assets per the general ledger.

Insurance:

Ensure that all assets are adequately insured annually with the Council’s brokers. Follow up all insurance

claims in respect of fixed assets by:

e Submitting the claim;

e By recording claims on the insurance register; and

e  Review of outstanding claims.

Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment in the Financial Statements:

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) should be recognised as an asset when:

e It is probable that future economic benefits or potential service delivery associated with the asset will

flow to the Municipality over a period extending beyond one financial year.



o The cost or fair value of the asset to the Municipality can be measured reliably.

An item of PPE that qualifies for recognition as an asset should initially be recognised at its cost or fair value.

The cost of PPE comprises:

Purchase price;

e |mport duties;

e Non-refundable purchase taxes; and

e Directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, such as the
cost of site preparation, initial delivery, handling costs, installation costs, and professional fees such as

architects and engineers fees.

When payment for an item of PPE is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price
equivalent. The difference between this amount and the total payments is recognised as an interest

expense over the period of credit.

Administration and general overhead costs are not a component of the asset’s cost unless they can be

directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset or bringing the asset to its working condition.

When an item of PPE is acquired by exchange or part exchange of a dissimilar item of PPE or other asset, the
cost of such item is measured at the fair value of the asset received, which is equivalent to the fair value of

the asset given up adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.

Subsequent Expenditure:

e Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of PPE that has already been capitalised, should be added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits or potential
service delivery, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the Municipality; and

o All other subsequent expenditure should be recognised as an expense in the period in which it is

incurred.



Revaluations:

e When an item of PPE is revalued, the entire class of property to which that asset belongs, should be
revalued;

e When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of the revaluation, the increase should be
credited directly to the non-distributable reserves of the Municipality; and

e When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of devaluation, the decrease should be
recognised as an expense in the annual financial statements except in so far as the decrease may be

debited in the first instance to any existing revaluation reserve.

Retirements and disposals:

e An item of PPE should be eliminated from the statement of position on disposal, or when the asset is
permanently withdrawn from use and disposal; and no future economic benefit or potential service

delivery is expected from it.

e Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of PPE should be determined as the
difference between the actual or estimated net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

assets, and should be recognised as revenue or expenses in the statement of performance.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

Budget Policy



1. INTRODUCTION

Section 16 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, requires a municipality to approve an annual budget
for the Municipality before the commencement of each Financial Year.

This Policy has been developed in line with this legislative background.
The Budget plays a critical role in an attempt to realize diverse community needs.

Central to this, the formulation of a Municipality Budget must take into account the national government’s
macro-economic, fiscal policies within its policy framework.

2. DEFINITIONS

“allocation”, means —

(a) a municipality's share of the local government's equitable share referred to in section 214(l) (a) of the
Constitution;

(b) an allocation of money to a municipality in terms of section 214(1) (c) of the Constitution;
(c) an allocation of money to a municipality in terms of a provincial budget; or

(d) any other allocation of money to a municipality by an organ of state, including by another
municipality, otherwise than in compliance with a commercial or other business transaction;

“Annual Division of Revenue Act” means the Act of Parliament, which must be enacted annually in terms of
section 214 (1) of the Constitution;

“approved budget,” means an annual budget —
(a) approved by a municipal council, and

(b) includes such an annual budget as revised by an adjustments budget in terms of section 28 of the
MEMA,;

“basic municipal service” means a municipal service that is necessary to ensure an acceptable and
reasonable quality of life and which, if not provided, would endanger public health or safety or the
environment;

“budget-related policy” means a policy of a municipality affecting or affected by the annual budget of the
municipality, including —

e Tariffs Policy
e Rates Policy
e Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy



e Cash Management and Investment Policy
e Borrowing Policy
e Funding and Reserves Policy
e Supply Chain Management Policy
e Indigents Policy
as well as

e Indigents Policy
e policy(ies) related to Long-term Financial Planning
e policy(ies) dealing with the management and disposal of assets
policy(ies) dealing with infrastructure investment and capital projects
policy(ies) related to the provision of free basic services
policy(ies) related to budget implementation and monitoring
e policy(ies) related to managing electricity and water
e policy(ies) relating to personnel
e policy(ies) dealing with municipal entities
“budget transfer” means transfer of funding within a function / vote;

“budget year” means the financial year of the municipality for which an annual budget is to be approved in
terms of section 16(1) of the MFMA,;

“Chief Financial Officer” means a person designated in terms of section 80(2) (a) of the MFMA;
“councillor” means a member of a municipal council;

“creditor”, means a person to whom money is owed by the municipality;

“current year” means the financial year, which has already commenced, but not yet ended;

“delegation”, in relation to a duty, includes an instruction or request to perform or to assist in performing
the duty;

“financial recovery plan” means a plan prepared in terms of section 141 of the MFMA,;
“financial statements”, means statements consisting of at least —
(a) a statement of financial position;
(b) a statement of financial performance;
(c) a cash-flow statement;
(d) any other statements that may be prescribed; and
(e) any notes to these statements;
“financial year” means a twelve months period commencing on 1 July and ending on 30 June each year;

“fruitless and wasteful expenditure” means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been
avoided had reasonable care been exercised;



“irregular expenditure”, means —

(a) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in
accordance with, a requirement of the MFMA Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of
section 170 of the MFMA;

(b) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in
accordance with, a requirement of the Municipal Systems Act, and which has not been condoned in
terms of that Act;

(c) expenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a
requirement of the Public Office-Bearers Act, 1998 (Act No. 20 of 1998); or

(d) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in
accordance with, a requirement of the supply chain management policy of the municipality or entity
or any of the municipality's by-laws giving effect to such policy, and which has not been condoned in
terms of such policy or by-law, but excludes expenditure by a municipality which falls within the
definition of “unauthorised expenditure”;

“Investment”, in relation to funds of a municipality, means —
(a) The placing on deposit of funds of a municipality with a financial institution; or

(b) The acquisition of assets with funds of a municipality not immediately required, with the primary aim
of preserving those funds;

“Local community” has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the Municipal Systems Act;

“Executive Mayor” means the councillor elected as the executive mayor of the municipality in terms of
section 55 of the Municipal Structures Act;

“Municipal council” or “Council” means the council of a municipality referred to in section 18 of the
Municipal Structures Act;

“Municipal entity” has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the Municipal Systems Act (refer to the
MSA for definition);

“Municipal Finance Management Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 2004 (Act
No. 56 of 2004);

“Municipal Manager” means the Accounting Officer as appointed in terms of section 82(l) (a) or (b) of the
Municipal Structures Act;

“Municipal Structures Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of
1998);

“Municipal Systems Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000);

“Municipality” —



(a) when referred to as a corporate body, means a municipality as described in section 2 of the Municipal
Systems Act; or

(b) when referred to as a geographic area, means a municipal area determined in terms of the Local
Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998);

“Municipal service” has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the Municipal Systems Act (refer to the
MSA for definition);

“Municipal tax” means property rates or other taxes, levies or duties that a municipality may impose;

“National Treasury” means the National Treasury established by section 5 of the Public Finance
Management Act;

“Official”, means —
(a) an employee of a municipality or municipal entity;

(b) a person seconded to a municipality or municipal entity to work as a member of the staff of the
municipality or municipal entity; or

(c) a person contracted by a municipality or municipal entity to work as a member of the staff of the
municipality or municipal entity otherwise than as an employee;

“Overspending” —

(a) means causing the operational or capital expenditure incurred by the municipality during a financial
year to exceed the total amount appropriated in that year's budget for its operational or capital
expenditure, as the case may be;

(b) in relation to a vote, means causing expenditure under the vote to exceed the amount appropriated
for that vote; or

(c) in relation to expenditure under section 26 of the MFMA, means causing expenditure under that
section to exceed the limits allowed in subsection (5) of this section;

“Past financial year” means the financial year preceding the current year;
“Quarter” means any of the following periods in a financial year:

(a) 1 July to 30 September;

(b) 1 October to 31 December;

(c) 1 January to 31 March; or

(d) 1 April to 30 June;



“Service delivery and budget implementation plan” means a detailed plan approved by the executive
mayor of a municipality in terms of section 53(l)(c)(ii) of the MFMA for implementing the municipality's
delivery of municipal services and its annual budget, and which must indicate

(a) Projections for each month of —
(i) Revenue to be collected, by source; and
(ii) Operational and capital expenditure, by vote;
(b) Service delivery targets and performance indicators for each quarter; and

(c) Any other matters that may be prescribed, and includes any revisions of such plan by the executive
mayor in terms of section 54(1) (c) of the MFMA,;

“Unauthorised expenditure”, means any expenditure incurred by a municipality otherwise than in
accordance with section 15 or 11(3) of the MFMA, and includes —

(a) Overspending of the total amount appropriated in the municipality's approved budget;

(b) Overspending of the total amount appropriated for a vote in the approved budget;

(c) Expenditure from a vote unrelated to the department or functional area covered by the vote;

(d) Expenditure of money appropriated for a specific purpose, otherwise than for that specific purpose;

(e) Spending of an allocation referred to in paragraph (b), (c) or (d) of the definition of “allocation”
otherwise than in accordance with any conditions of the allocation; or

(f) a grant by the municipality otherwise than in accordance with the MFMA,;

“Virement” means transfer of funds between functions / votes; and

“Vote” means —

(a) One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is divided for the appropriation of
money for the different departments or functional areas of the municipality; or

(b) Which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the purposes of the department or
functional area concerned.

3. ABBREVIATIONS USED

CPIX = Consumer Price Index excluding interest rates on mortgage bonds

CDF = Capital Development Fund



IDP = Integrated Development Plan

MFMA =  Municipal Management Finance Act

MIG = Municipal Infrastructure Grant

MSIG = Municipal Systems Improvement Grant

MTREF = Medium-Term Revenue and Expenditure Framework
SDBIP = Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan

4. OBIJECTIVE

The objective of the budget policy is to set out —

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

The principles which the Municipality will follow in preparing each Medium Term Revenue and
Expenditure Framework budget.

The responsibilities of the Executive Mayor, the Accounting Officer, the Chief Financial Officer
and other Senior Managers in compiling the Budget.

To establish and maintain procedures to ensure adherence to the Municipality’s IDP Review and
Budget Process.

To ensure that the budget reflects the strategic outcomes embodied in the IDP and related
strategic policies.

The policy shall apply to all the relevant parties within the Municipality that are involved
throughout the budget process.

5. BUDGETING PRINCIPLES

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

The municipality shall not budget for a deficit and should also ensure that revenue projections in
the budget are realistic taking into account actual collection levels.

The Municipality shall prepare three-year Budget (medium term revenue and expenditure
framework) which shall be reviewed annually and approved by the Council.

The MTREF Budget must at all times be within the framework of the Municipal Integrated
Development Plan, and the Budget and IDP review process should run concurrently.

Expenses may only be incurred in terms of the approved Annual Budget (or Adjustment Budget)
and within the limits of the amounts appropriated for each vote in the approved Budget.

The Annual Budget will only be funded from realistic anticipated revenues to be collected, cash-
backed accumulated funds not committed for other purposes and borrowed funds.



6. BUDGET PREPARATION PROCESS

6.1.

Formulation of the budget

6.1.1.

6.1.2.

The Accounting Officer with the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer and the Director of
the Department of Planning and Economic Development shall draft the IDP process plan as
well as the budget timetable for the municipality including municipal entities for the
ensuing financial year.

The Executive Mayor shall table the IDP process plan as well as the budget timetable to
Council by 31 August each year for approval (10 months before the start of the next budget
year). The budget timetable shall contain deadlines for —

6.1.2.1.  a) the annual review of the IDP

6.1.2.2. b) the review of budget related policies

6.1.2.3. c)the preparation, tabling and approval of the annual budget
6.1.2.4. d) the consultative processes forming part of the budget process.

6.1.3.

6.1.4.

6.1.5.

6.1.6.

IDP process plan as well as the budget timetable shall indicate the key deadlines for the
review of the IDP as well as the preparation of the medium term revenue and expenditure
framework budget and the revision of the annual budget. Such target dates shall follow the
prescriptions of the Municipal Finance Management Act as well as the guidelines set by
National Treasury.

The Chief Financial Officer, and after consultation with the Portfolio Councillor of Finance
set the reasonable growth level of the operational budget based on the current financial
performance and the prevailing industry growth levels (i.e. CPIX). After the income has
been determined, an acceptable growth level for the operating expenditure (including
salary increases) is estimated.

In September of each year, the Chief Financial Officer shall prepare a Budget Strategy which
shall contain the principles, objectives and strategies that will apply during the forthcoming
budget preparation process. Such Budget Strategy shall take cognisance of the directives,
guidelines and economic factors prevailing at the time or circulated by National and
Provincial Government. The Budget Strategy shall give general direction to the budget
process and also indicate affordable budget growth and envisaged tariff increases as the
base line of the budget process

Thereafter, the Executive Mayor shall convene a strategic workshop with the mayoral
committee and senior managers in order to determine the IDP priorities which will form the
basis for the preparation of the MTREF budget taking into account the financial and political
pressures facing the municipality.



6.1.7. Before the end of October of each year, the Executive Mayor shall table the Budget Strategy
and IDP Priorities together with an outline draft budget to Council.

6.1.8. The Chief Financial Officer and senior managers undertake the technical preparation of the

budget.

6.1.9. 1.2.7 The budget tabled to Council for approval shall include the following supporting
documents —
6.1.10. The budget must be in the format prescribed by National Treasury and must be

divided into a capital and an operating budget.

6.1.11. The budget must be balanced and reflect the realistically anticipated revenues by

major revenue source for the budget year concerned.

6.1.12. The expenses reflected in the budget must be divided into different categories (for

operating budget) and different capital projects or services (for capital budget).

6.1.13. The budget must also contain the foregoing information for the two financial years

following the financial year to which the budget relates, as well as the actual
revenues and expenses for the year before the current year, and the estimated
revenues and expenses for the current year.

6.1.14. The budget shall include the following supporting documents —

6.1.14.1.

6.1.14.2.

6.1.14.3.

6.1.14.4.

6.1.14.5.

6.1.14.6.
6.1.14.7.

6.1.14.8.

6.1.14.9.

draft resolutions approving the budget and levying property rates, other taxes and
tariffs for the financial year concerned;

draft resolutions (where applicable) amending the IDP and the budget-related
policies;

measurable performance objectives for each budget vote, taking into account the
municipality’s IDP;

the projected cash flows for the financial year by revenue sources and expenditure
votes broken down per month;

any proposed amendments to the IDP;

any proposed amendments to the budget-related policies;

the cost to the municipality of the salaries, allowances and other benefits of its
political office bearers and other councillors, the Municipal Manager, the chief
financial officer, and other senior managers employed in terms of Section 57 of the
Municipal Systems Act;

particulars of any proposed allocations or grants to other municipalities, municipal
entities, external mechanisms assisting the municipality in service delivery, other
organs of state, and organisations such as NGOs, welfare institutions etc;

particulars of the municipality’s investments; and

6.1.14.10. various information in regard to municipal entities (if any) under the shared or sole

control of the municipality.

6.1.15. The Executive Mayor shall table the draft IDP, MTREF budget and supporting documents to
Council by 31 March (90 days before the start of the new budget year) together with the
draft resolutions and budget related policies.



6.2. Public participation process

6.2.1. Immediately after the annual budget has been tabled, the Municipal Manager must make
this budget and other budget-related documentation public, and invite the local community
to submit representations in regard to such budget. The public participation process must
be a formal process and must ensure adequate consultation as contemplated in the MFMA.

6.2.2. After considering all budget submissions, the Council must give the Executive Mayor an
opportunity to respond to the submissions; and if necessary, to revise the budget and table
amendments for consideration by the Council.

6.3. Approval of the budget

6.3.1. Council shall consider the next medium term expenditure framework budget for approval
not later than 31 May (30 days before the start of the budget year).

6.3.2. The council resolution, must contain budget policies and performance measures be adopted
(as per section 17 of the MFMA).

6.3.3. Should the municipality fail to approve the budget before the start of the budget year, the
Executive Mayor must inform the MEC for Finance that the budget has not been approved.

6.4. Publication of the budget

6.4.1. The Municipal Manager must within 14 days after approval of the budget submit the
approved budget and supporting documentation in both printed and electronic formats to
the National Treasury, the Provincial Treasury, and in either format to prescribed national
and provincial organs of state and other municipalities affected by the budget.

6.4.2. The Municipal Manager must publish the approved budget on the municipal website.

6.5. Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP)

6.5.1. The Executive Mayor must approve the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
not later than 28 days after the approval of the Budget by Council.
6.5.2. The SDBIP shall include the following components —
6.5.2.1. monthly projections of revenue to be collected for each source;



6.5.2.2. monthly projections of expenditure (operating and capital) and revenue for each

vote;

6.5.2.3. quarterly projections of service delivery targets and performance indicators for
each vote;

6.5.2.4. ward information for expenditure and service delivery; and

6.5.2.5. detailed capital works plan broken down by ward over three years.

7. CAPITAL BUDGET

7.1. Capital Budget Preparation

7.1.1.

7.1.2.

7.1.3.

7.1.4.

7.1.5.

7.1.6.

Expenditure of a project shall be included in the capital budget if it meets the asset
definition i.e. if it results in an asset being acquired or created and its value exceeds R10 000
and has a useful life in excess of one year.

Vehicle replacement shall be done in terms of Council’s vehicle replacement policy. The
budget for vehicles shall distinguish between replacement and new vehicles. No globular
amounts shall be budgeted for vehicle acquisition.

Except in so far as capital projects represent a contractual commitment to the Municipality
extending over more than one financial year, the annual capital budget shall be prepared
using a zero-based approach.

A municipality may spend money on a capital project only if the money for the project has
been appropriated in the capital budget.

Council shall approve the annual or adjustment capital budget only if it has been properly
balanced and fully funded.

Excess budget available on capital projects may not be used for purposes other than what
the expenditure was initially intended for.

7.2. Capital Budget Funding

7.2.1. The envisaged sources of funding for the capital budget must be properly considered and
the Council must be satisfied that this funding is available and has not been committed for
other purposes.

7.2.2. Before approving a capital project, the Council must consider —

7.2.2.1. the projected cost of the project over all the ensuing financial years until the project
becomes operational; and

7.2.2.2. any future operational costs and any revenues, which may arise in respect of such
project, including the likely future impact on operating budget (i.e. on property
rates and service tariffs).

7.2.3. Before approving the capital budget, the council shall consider —

7.2.3.1. the impact on the present and future operating budgets of the municipality in

relation to finance charges to be incurred on external loans,

7.2.3.2. depreciation of fixed assets,



7.2.3.3. maintenance of fixed assets, and
7.2.3.4. any other ordinary operational expenses associated with any item on such capital
budget.

7.2.4. The capital expenditure shall be funded from the following sources —
Internal sources

7.2.4.1. If any project is to be financed from revenue this financing must be included in the
cash budget to raise sufficient cash for the expenditure.
7.2.4.2. If the project is to be financed from surplus or from the Capital Development Fund

there must be sufficient cash available at time of execution of the project.
External loans

7.2.4.3. External loans can be raised only if it is linked to the financing of an asset;

7.2.4.4. A capital project to be financed from an external loan can only be included in the
budget if the loan has been secured or if can be reasonably assumed as being
secured;

7.2.45. The loan redemption period should not exceed the estimated life expectancy of the

asset. If this happens the interest payable on the excess redemption period shall be
declared as fruitless expenditure;
7.2.4.6. Interest payable on external loans shall be included as a cost in the revenue budget;
7.2.4.7. Finance charges relating to such loans shall be charged to or apportioned only
between the departments or votes to which the projects relate.

External sources

7.2.4.38. Grants and subsidies as allocated in the annual Division of Revenue of Act;

7.2.4.9. Grants and subsidies as allocated by Provincial government;

7.2.4.10. Private Contributions;

7.2.4.11. Contributions from the Capital Development Fund (developer’s contributions) and,
7.2.4.12.  Any other financing source secured by the municipality.

7.2.5. Borrowing is only permitted to fund capital investment in property, plant and equipment,
but assets deemed essential to the maintenance of public health and safety or that may
compromise the ability to deliver certain essential services may not be pledged as security
for such borrowings.

7.3. Capital Replacement Reserve

7.3.1. Council may establish a Capital Development Fund as a capital replacement reserve for the
purpose of financing capital projects and the acquisition of assets.

7.3.2. The Capital Development Fund may be funded from the following sources of revenue —
7.3.2.1. unappropriated cash-backed surpluses to the extent that such surpluses are not
required for operational purposes;



7.4.

7.3.2.2. interest on the investments of the Capital Development Fund, appropriated in

terms of the investments policy;

7.3.2.3. additional amounts appropriated as contributions in each annual or adjustments
budget;
7.3.2.4. sale of land and profit or loss on the sale of assets; and
7.3.2.5. proceeds from royalties and the exploration of minerals.
7.3.3. Before any asset can be financed from the Capital Development Fund the financing must be

7.3.4.

7.3.5.

available within the reserve and available as cash as this fund must be cash-backed.

If there is insufficient cash available to fund the Capital Development Fund this reserve fund
must then be adjusted to equal the available cash.

Transfers to the Capital Development Fund must be budgeted for in the cash budget.

Grant Funding

7.4.1.

7.4.2.

7.4.3.

Capital expenditure funded by grants must be budgeted for in the capital budget;

Interest earned on investments of Conditional Grant Funding shall be capitalised if the
conditions state that interest should accumulate in the fund. If there is no condition stated
the interest can then be allocated directly to the revenue accounts.

Grant funding does not need to be cash-backed but cash must be secured before spending
can take place.

8. OPERATING BUDGET

8.1.

The municipality shall budget in each annual and adjustments budget for the contribution to:

8.1.1.
8.1.2.
8.1.3.
8.1.4.
8.1.5.
8.1.6.

8.1.7.

provision for accrued leave entitlements equal to 100% of the accrued leave;

entitlement of officials as at 30 June of each financial year;

provision for bad debts in accordance with its rates and tariffs policies;

provision for the obsolescence and deterioration of stock in accordance with its Supply
Chain Management Policy;

depreciation and finance charges shall be charged to or apportioned only between the
departments or votes to which the projects relate;

at least 8% of the operating budget component of each annual and adjustments budget
shall be set aside for such maintenance;

the budget for salaries, allowances and salaries-related benefits shall not exceed 45% of the
aggregate operating budget component of each annual and adjustments budget (for
purposes of this item, the remuneration of political office bearers and other councillors
shall be excluded from this limit); and



8.1.8. at least 0.15% of the operating budget component of each annual budget shall be set aside
for skills development.

8.2. When considering the draft annual budget, council shall consider the impact, which the proposed
increases in rates and service tariffs will have on the monthly municipal accounts of households.
8.3. The impact of such increases shall be assessed on the basis of a fair sample of randomly selected
accounts.
8.4. The operating budget shall reflect the impact of the capital component on —
8.4.1. depreciation charges;
8.4.2. repairs and maintenance expenses;
8.4.3. interest payable on external borrowings; and
8.4.4. Other operating expenses.
8.5. The chief financial officer shall ensure that the cost of indigent relief is separately reflected in the
appropriate votes.
8.6. Operating expenditure funded from grants must be budgeted for as part of the revenue budget.
8.7. A zero-based approach shall be used in preparing the annual operating budget, except in cases
where a contractual commitment has been made that would span over more than one financial
year, in which case the zero based method will be followed.
8.8. The operational budget may be financed only from —
8.8.1. realistically expected revenues, based on current and previous collection levels; and
8.8.2. Cash-backed funds available from previous surpluses where such funds are not required for
other purposes.

UNSPENT FUNDS / ROLL-OVER OF BUDGET

9.1. The appropriation of funds in an annual or adjustments budget will lapse to the extent that they
are unspent by the end of the relevant budget year, but except for funds relating to capital
expenditure.

9.2. Only unspent grant (if the conditions for such grant funding allows that) or loan funded capital
budget may be rolled over to the next budget year.

9.3. Conditions of the grant fund shall be taken into account in applying for such roll over of funds.

9.4. Application for rollover of funds shall be forwarded to the budget office by the 15th of April each
year for inclusion in following year’s budget for adoption by Council in May of that year.

9.5. Adjustments to the rolled over budget shall be done during the 1st budget adjustment in the new
financial year after taking into account expenditure up to the end of the previous financial year.



9.6. No funding for projects funded from the Capital Development Fund shall be rolled over to the
next budget year except in cases where a commitment has been made 90 days (30 March each
year) prior the end of that particular financial year.

9.7. No unspent operating budget shall be rolled over to the next budget year.

. BUDGET TRANSFERS AND VIREMENTS

10.1. No budget transfers or virement shall be made to or from salaries except with the prior
approval of the Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the Director Corporate Services.

10.2. The budget for personnel expenditure may not be increased without prior approval of the Chief
Financial Officer.

10.3. Savings on allocations earmarked for specific operating and capital projects may not be used for
other purposes except with the approval of council.

10.4. The amount of a saving under a main expenditure category of a vote that may be transferred to
another main expenditure category may not exceed ten per cent of the amount appropriated
under that main expenditure category.

10.5. Savings in an amount appropriated for capital expenditure may not be used to defray
operational expenditure, except in the cases of grants whose conditions permit such a transfer.

10.6. Budget transfers or virements with respect to capital projects may only be undertaken in
accordance with section 31 of the MFMA.

10.7. Directors may utilize a saving in the amount appropriated under a main expenditure category
(e.g. Salaries, General Expenses, Repairs & Maintenance, etc.) within a vote which is under their
control towards the defrayment of excess expenditure under another main expenditure
category within the same vote, after obtaining approval of the Chief Financial Officer or such
senior delegated official in the Budget & Treasury Department.

10.8. Budget transfers within the same vote shall be recommended by the Director responsible for
that vote and approved by the Chief Financial Officer or such other senior delegated official in
the Department of Finance.



11.

10.9.

10.10.

10.11.

10.12.

The Municipal Manager must report to the Executive Mayor on a monthly basis on all virements
that have been approved during the preceding month, and to the Executive Mayoral Committee
on all virements of funds between votes (directorates) that have been approved during the
preceding month.

Virements between votes shall be included in the adjustment budget.

In the case of emergency or any other exceptional circumstances virements shall be submitted
by the Municipal Manager to the Executive Mayor to authorize any possible unforeseeable or
unavoidable expenditure for which no provision was made in an approved budget.

The Executive Mayor must report such expenditure to the Council at its next meeting which
should not be departed more than 60 (sixty) days from approval of expenditure.

ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

Each adjustments budget shall reflect realistic excess, however nominal, of current revenues
over expenses.

The chief financial officer shall ensure that the adjustments budgets comply with the
requirements of the National Treasury reflect the budget priorities determined by the Executive
Mayor, are aligned with the IDP, and comply with all budget-related policies, and shall make
recommendations to the Executive Mayor on the revision of the IDP and the budget-related
policies where these are indicated.

Council may revise its annual budget by means of an adjustments budget at most three times a
year or a regulated.

The Municipal Manager must promptly adjust its budgeted revenues and expenses if a material
under-collection of revenues arises or is apparent.

The Municipal Manager shall appropriate additional revenues, which have become available but
only to revise or accelerate spending programmes already budgeted for or any areas of critical
importance identified by Council.

The Council shall in such adjustments budget, and within the prescribed framework, confirm
unforeseen and unavoidable expenses on the recommendation of the Executive Mayor.



11.7. The Council should also authorise the spending of funds unspent at the end of the previous
financial year, where such under-spending could not reasonably have been foreseen at the time
the annual budget was approved by the Council.

11.8. Only the Executive Mayor shall table an adjustments budget.

11.9. Adjustments budget shall be tabled at most three times a year after the end of each quarter
and be submitted to Council in the following months —
11.9.1. In October — to adjust funding rolled over from the previous financial year as well as to
include additional funding that has become available from external sources;
11.9.2. In February — to take into account recommendations from the mid-year budget and
performance report tabled to Council in January that affect the annual budget;
11.9.3. In May — to adjust current year’s budget in cases where there is a indication that there will
be rolling over of funding to the next financial year.
OR

11.10. Adjustment Budgets shall be done once per year and only during December of each year and be
submitted to Council before 25 January of each year.

11.11. An adjustments budget must contain all of the following —
11.11.1. an explanation of how the adjustments affect the approved annual budget;
11.11.2. appropriate motivations for material adjustments; and
11.11.3. an explanation of the impact of any increased spending on the current and future annual
budgets.

11.12. Any unappropriated surplus from previous financial years, even if fully cash-backed, shall not be
used to balance any adjustments budget, but shall be appropriated to the municipality’s Capital
Development Fund .

11.13. Municipal taxes and tariffs may not be increased during a financial year except if required in
terms of a financial recovery plan.

11.14. Unauthorised expenses may be authorised in an adjustments budget.

11.15. Inregard to unforeseen and unavoidable expenditure, the following apply —

11.15.1. the Executive Mayor may authorise such expenses in an emergency or other exceptional
circumstances;

11.15.2. the municipality may not exceed 3 % of the approved annual budget in respect of such
unforeseen and unavoidable expenses;

11.15.3. these expenses must be reported by the Executive Mayor to the next Council meeting;

11.15.4. the expenses must be appropriated in an adjustments budget; and

11.15.5. Council must pass the adjustments budget within sixty days after the expenses were
incurred.



12. BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION

12.1. Monitoring

12.1.1. The Municipal Manager with the assistance of the chief financial officer and other senior
managers is responsible for the implementation of the budget, and must take reasonable
steps to ensure that —

12.1.1.1.
12.1.1.2.
12.1.1.3.

funds are spent in accordance with the budget;
expenses are reduced if expected revenues are less than projected; and
revenues and expenses are properly monitored.

12.1.2. The Municipal Manager with the assistance of the chief financial officer must prepare any
adjustments budget when such budget is necessary and submit it to the Executive Mayor
for consideration and tabling to Council.

12.1.3. The M

unicipal Manager must report in writing to the Council any impending shortfalls in the

annual revenue budget, as well as any impending overspending, together with the steps
taken to prevent or rectify these problems.

12.2. Reporting

Monthly budget statements

12.2.1. The Municipal Manager with the assistance of the chief financial officer must, not later than
ten working days after the end of each calendar month, submit to the Executive Mayor and
Provincial and National Treasury a report in the prescribed format on the state of the
municipality’s budget for such calendar month, as well as on the state of the budget
cumulatively for the financial year to date. This report must reflect the following —

12.2.1.1.
12.2.1.2.
12.2.1.3.
12.2.1.4.

12.2.1.5.
12.2.1.6.

12.2.1.7.

12.2.1.8.

12.2.1.9.

actual revenues per source, compared with budgeted revenues;

actual expenses per vote, compared with budgeted expenses;

actual capital expenditure per vote, compared with budgeted expenses;

actual borrowings, compared with the borrowings envisaged to fund the capital
budget;

the amount of allocations received, compared with the budgeted amount;

actual expenses against allocations, but excluding expenses in respect of the
equitable share;

explanations of any material variances between the actual revenues and expenses as
indicated above and the projected revenues by source and expenses by vote as set
out in the service delivery and budget implementation plan;

the remedial or corrective steps to be taken to ensure that the relevant projections
remain within the approved or revised budget; and

Projections of the revenues and expenses for the remainder of the financial year,
together with an indication of how and where the original projections have been
revised.



12.2.2. The report to the National Treasury must be both in electronic format and in a signed
written document.

Quarterly Reports

12.2.3. The Executive Mayor must submit to Council within thirty days of the end of each quarter a
report on the implementation of the budget and the financial state of affairs of the
municipality.

Mid-year budget and performance assessment

12.2.4. The Municipal Manager must assess the budgetary performance of the municipality for the
first half of the financial year, taking into account all the monthly budget reports for the first
six months, the service delivery performance of the municipality as against the service
delivery targets and performance indicators which were set in the service delivery and
budget implementation plan.

12.2.5. The Municipal Manager must then submit a report on such assessment to the Executive
Mayor by 25 January each year and to Council, Provincial Treasury and National Treasury by
31 January each year.

12.2.6. The Municipal Manager may in such report make recommendations after considering the
recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer for adjusting the annual budget and for
revising the projections of revenues and expenses set out in the service delivery and budget
implementation plan.

Website Publishing

12.2.7. The Director Corporate Services must place on the municipality’s official website the
following —
12.2.7.1. the annual and adjustments budgets and all budget-related documents;
12.2.7.2. all budget-related policies;
12.2.7.3. theintegrated development plan;
12.2.7.4. the annual report;
12.2.7.5. all performance agreements;
12.2.7.6. all service delivery agreements;
12.2.7.7. all long-term borrowing contracts; and
12.2.7.8. all quarterly and mid-year reports submitted the Council on the implementation of
the budget and the financial state of affairs of the municipality.

Other Reports
12.2.8. The Chief Financial Officer must ensure that the financial information which is required for

the following annual, six-monthly, quarterly and monthly reports is provided within the
required deadlines —



Annual Reports

12.2.8.1. Asset Management

12.2.8.2. Budget Evaluation Checklist
12.2.8.3.  Financial Position

12.2.8.4.  Financial Position Audited
12.2.8.5. Capital Acquisition

12.2.8.6.  Capital Acquisition Audited
12.2.8.7.  Cash Flow Budget

12.2.8.8.  Grants and Subsidies Given
12.2.8.9. Grants and Subsidies Received
12.2.8.10. Financial Performance Audited
12.2.8.11. Financial Performance Budget
12.2.8.12. IDP to Budget

12.2.8.13. Mid-year budget and performance assessment
12.2.8.14. Annual Budget

Six-Monthly Reports

12.2.8.15. Mid-year Budget and Performance Assessment (Section 72 MFMA)
Quarterly Reports

12.2.8.16. Borrow Monitoring

12.2.8.17. Corporate Entity

12.2.8.18. Long Term Contracts

12.2.8.19. MFMA 12 Urgent Priorities

12.2.8.20. Public-Private Partnerships

12.2.8.21. Equitable Share

12.2.8.22. Withdrawals from Municipal Bank Accounts

12.2.8.23. Environment and Health — Allocations and Expenditure
12.2.8.24. Budget Review (Section 52 MFMA)

Monthly Reports

12.2.8.25. Aged Creditors

12.2.8.26. Aged Debtors

12.2.8.27. Capital Acquisitions Actual
12.2.8.28. Cash Flow Actuals

12.2.8.29. Finance Management Grant
12.2.8.30. Financial Performance Actuals
12.2.8.31. Restructuring Grant

12.2.8.32. Municipal Infrastructure Grant
12.2.8.33. MSIG - Project Consolidate
12.2.8.34. Budget Statement (Section 71 MFMA)
12.2.8.35. Supply Chain Management Awards



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

Water and Electricity Management Policy



3.

Introduction

This Water and Electricity Management Policy has been developed to meet legislative requirements.

The Chief Albert Luthuli Local Municipality will use this policy to direct the development of appropriate
strategies that can then be implemented as and when resources are available.

Legislative Framework

The Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations, 2008 were published by National Treasury as Notice
393 in the Government Gazette No. 32141 on 17 April 2009. Regulation 7(1) states that —

The municipal manager of a municipality must prepare, or take all reasonable steps to ensure
the preparation of the budget-related policies * of the municipality, or any necessary
amendments to such policies, in accordance with the legislation applicable to those policies for
tabling in the municipal council by the applicable deadline specified by the mayor in terms of
section 21 (1 )(b) of the Act.

The footnote * to this regulation lists a number of required policies including
(n) any policies related to managing electricity and water including —
(i) a policy related to the management of losses; and

(ii) a policy to promote conservation and efficiency;

This policy of the Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality has been developed to comply with the above
requirement.

Objective

In 2004, the then Department of Water Affairs and Forestry issued the Guidelines for Water
Conservation and Water Demand Management in Water Management Areas and in the Water Services
Sector as part of its Integrated Water Resources Management Strategy.



In June 2009, the then Department of Minerals and Energy issued the National Energy Efficiency

Strategy, which was reviewed and updated in October 2008. However, this strategy does not provide

any guidance to municipalities.

The objectives of the policy of the Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality are to adhere to the above water

guideline and to follow best-practice polices with regard to electricity management. The timing of the

implementation may be affected by practical considerations as well the extent of resources that are

available.

4. Water losses

Minimizing water loss will be achieved through an effective distribution management strategy that will

incorporate the following elements:

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.
4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

A system of flow measurement throughout the bulk distribution system that allows regular
measurements to be monitored, thereby allowing for timeous identification of losses;

An effective management system that optimizes flow rates and pressures, monitors water quality
and is able to identify and rectify problems appropriately;

A proactive maintenance program that reduces the probability of leaks occurring in the first place;
A suitably resourced maintenance unit that can ensure that leaks or blockages are repaired without
undue delays — either through internal capacity or through competent contractors;

An effective asset management program that ensures that the installed infrastructure is designed
to meet present and future needs, that plans are developed timeously for refurbishments and/or
replacements, and that suitable training is provided to operators; and

An appropriate rationing system that, in the case of severe drought or other inflow impediment,
ensures that supplies to emergency services are not affected, ensures that a basic service is
provided to all, yet is still able to ration supply as required.

5. Water conservation and efficiency

Maximizing water conservation and efficiency will be achieved through influencing consumer demand,

controlling return flows and social awareness strategies that will incorporate the following elements:

Consumer Demand Management

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

Water efficient appliances should be promoted through LED programs that will encourage their
local manufacture, installation, wholesaling and retailing;

Municipal building regulations should be updated to incorporate best practice in terms of water
usage efficiency, especially in commercial and public buildings; and

Water tariffs should be determined in a manner that does not just maximize revenue to the
municipality, but also influences (i.e. reduces) unnecessary water usage.



Return Flow Management

5.4. Monitoring sewerage flows is essential to minimize unwanted inflows and leakages will reduce
operating costs while also reducing environmental & health risks;

5.5. Dual water systems (potable and grey) that promote water re-use should be installed wherever
viable.

Social Awareness and Education

5.6. The fact that “water is a scarce resource” must be effectively communicated to all residents and
consumers, who should be encouraged to adopt water conservation habits and practices;

5.7. Campaigns should be targeted at identified groups and communicated in the most effective
manner available, as well as forming an integral component of the IDP process.

5.8. Awareness must also be raised and maintained within the municipality’s own staff and service
providers.



6.

7.

Electricity conservation and efficiency

Electricity shortages are likely to reoccur in future, and municipalities will have a major role to reduce
the impact upon users through influencing consumer demand through social awareness strategies that
will incorporate the following activities:

6.1. Access, and assist local businesses to access, funding from other sources (including CDM credits) to
improve electricity efficiency.

6.2. Develop programs in collaboration with Gert Sibande and other local municipalities to reduce
overheads in the roll-out of electricity conservation and communication initiatives.

6.3. Make full use of Eskom’s Demand Side Management (DSM) programme, including the CFL
exchange and solar water heater programs as well as the Residential Load Management program.

6.4. Establish working relationships with other entities such as the National Energy Efficiency Agency, in
order to develop best-practice strategies that are appropriate for the Chief Albert Luthuli
municipality

6.5. Develop an appropriate rationing system that, in the case of load shedding, ensures that supplies
to emergency and other essential services are not affected.

6.6. Where it is likely to generate meaningful cost savings, to tackle energy efficiency in municipal
buildings (as per the national program — which excludes municipalities)

6.7. Awareness of the need for electricity conservation must also be raised and maintained within the
municipality’s own staff and service providers.

Implementation & Monitoring

While the Council is ultimately responsible for the development, implementation, monitoring and
review of this policy, the Municipal Manager is the official responsible for its management while the
Director: Technical Services should be assigned responsibility for its day-to-day management. The
Department of Water Affairs and Forestry has published a number of Best Practice Guidelines and a
range of supporting material in its Integrated Environmental Management Series, which should be
used to support the development of strategies to drive the implementation of water-related aspects of
this policy.

Other departments and public entities have developed a range of strategies, frameworks and
programs, with a number of implementable projects, which should be used wherever practical. It is
also important to monitor and review actual performance against the planned, even for
communications and awareness strategies. Whenever the municipality undertakes any projects that
incur capital expenditure, then detailed monitoring is essential, and a full assessment of the benefits (if
any) conducted at appropriate intervals — as any returns on investments may take several years to
achieve.



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

Overtime Policy



1.

2.

3.

Introduction

1.1. The demand for service delivery often necessitates that employees should perform work outside
the normal working hours. It is therefore necessary that such overtime duty be carefully
regulated.

1.2. Therefore, the Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality hereby adopts this policy to give effect to the
implementation of the overtime policy.

Objectives

2.1. The objectives of these policies are.

2.1.1. To provide guidance in the performance of overtime work by council employees as provided

for in the Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act no. 75 of 1997 and the collective
agreement.

2.1.2. This policy will prescribe the overtime rates to be used to compensate council employees

who performed overtime work.

2.1.3. To provide control mechanisms on the performance of overtime by Council employees.

Scope of Application

3.1. The policy applies to all full time employees of the Municipality except those employees excluded
by earning more than the threshold amount as published by the Minister of Labour currently
R205 433.30 per annum, unless otherwise agreed. (Government Gazette No.18491 of July 2014)

3.2. In the event of any inconsistency between this policy and any National and other Local
Government related legislation, such legislation prevails.

3.3. No overtime will be paid for attendance of functions/prize giving event etc. by personal invitation
except in the cases of compulsory attendance as official representative of Chief Albert Luthuli
Municipality and provided that such overtime is authorised in advance by the Municipal
Manager.

Definitions

Deductions: means income tax, pension, medical fund etc.

Earnings: means gross pay before deductions;

Overtime: means the time that a qualifying employee works during a day of a week in
excess of the ordinary hours of work;

Emergency work: refers to work that must be done without delay because of circumstances
for which the employer could not reasonably have been expected to make
provision and which cannot be performed by employees during their
ordinary hours of work. Emergency work excludes the performance of
routine maintenance work outside normal working hours.

Structured overtime: refers to planned overtime over which the employer has control that

continue or take place after normal working hours and will include Council
committee meetings.



5.

Remuneration: compensation in money or time off for overtime worked

Wage:

means the amount of money paid or payable to an employee in respect of
ordinary hours of work

Responsibilities

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

General

5.1.1.

5.1.2.

5.1.3.

5.1.4.
5.1.5.

5.1.6.

The employer and employees both have the responsibility to ensure that the whole process
surrounding overtime is underlined with fairness, equity, honesty, transparency, integrity
and openness.

Each manager is accountable and responsible to constantly monitor and review the
provision for overtime on his/her budget and ensure that trends are noted early, funds are
adequate, over expenditure is noted, justified and provided for timeously.

Every manager/divisional manager has a responsibility for the implementation,
maintenance and management of the overtime system.

The salary office is responsible for the calculation and paying out of overtime worked.
Designated managers and supervisors are responsible for co-ordinating and controlling
system implementation and maintenance at operational level.

It is the responsibility of each Directorate to keep documented records in respect of all staff
who qualify for time off and the appropriate application form should be completed by the
employee when requesting time off.

Principle

Employees may not work overtime unless prior approval has been obtained from the Head of the

Department concerned and the work in question cannot be done during working hours. In other

words circumstances must be dictating.

Limitations

5.3.1.

If an employee agrees to work overtime, the employee may not work:

5.3.1.1 Overtime except in accordance with a written agreement from the Head of the
Department concerned;

5.3.1.2 More than 10 hours overtime per week;

5.3.1.3 More than 3 hours per day; and

5.3.1.4 Overtime only commences after completion of ordinary daily or weekly working hours.

Prior Approval



No employee will be remunerated for overtime worked unless such overtime has been budgeted for
and authorized by the Departmental Head.

6. Authorisation
Basic Conditions of Employment Act, No 75 of 1997

7. Regulatory Framework
7.1.1. These conditions of service are guided by the following legislation:

7.1.1.1. Labour Relations Act;

7.1.1.2. Municipal Financial Management Act;

7.1.1.3. Government Gazette; and

7.1.1.4. Basic Conditions of Employment Act No. 75 Of 1997
7.1.1.5. Collective Agreement.

8. Overtime Worked During The Week
8.1.1. Employees will be:
8.1.1.1. Paid one and a half times the employee’s hourly wage for overtime worked; or;
8.1.1.2. Paid his/her ordinary wage for overtime worked and be granted 30 minutes time off
on full pay for every hour of overtime worked during weekdays: or
8.1.1.3. Granted 90 minutes paid time off for each hour of overtime worked during week
(Monday - Friday).

9. Time Off

e The employee will be granted paid time off within one month of the employee becoming
entitled to it.

e The employee will be remunerated for overtime worked on the employee’s normal payday.

e The taking of time off by an employee will be forfeited if not taken within one month’s time
but may for operational reasons, be extended to a maximum of six months by the
employees Directors.

e Time-off cannot be en-cashed and upon termination of service this specific leave can also
not be en-cashed.

10. Operational Requirement
e Due to the business and operational requirements of the Municipality, employees will be
required to work overtime on occasions.
e  The employer may not require or permit an employee to work overtime or to work on
Sundays or Public Holidays except in accordance with an agreement.

11. Overtime Worked on Sunday and Public Holidays

Employees, who normally work five days a week, will be:

e Paid double the employee’s hourly wage for overtime worked; or



e Paid his/her ordinary wage for overtime worked and be granted 60 minutes time off on full
pay for every hour of overtime worked; or

e Granted at least 120 minutes paid time off for each hour of overtime worked during the
week (Monday - Friday).

12. Exemptions

The following five job categories are exempted from the threshold and may be remunerated in terms of
section 10 of the Basic Conditions of Employment act of 1997:

e Traffic Law Enforcement and Security Services: from rank of Superintendent and lower
e Fire and Rescue Services: from rank of Leading Fire Fighter and lower

e Water and Sanitation: from Special Worksmen and lower

e Electrical Engineering: from Electrician and lower

NOTE: All other principles and procedures of the Overtime Policy remain in place for the
above exempted job categories and must be adhered to at all times

Prior approvals of Emergency calls are not necessary but approval form shall contain the following
additional motivation and detail:

= |ncident
=  Date
= Time

=  Employee on standby or not; if not reason why he/she was called out
=  Duration of call out

All other staff members not covered by this policy (i.e. people earning more than R 205 433.30, 00) shall
be entitled to take time off on full pay for overtime hours worked which was duly approved by the
immediate Head. This category of officials will be entitled to accumulate up to a maximum of 30 days
per annum. Time off must be taken within six months of overtime hours worked, and any extensions
must be approved by the Departmental head concerned. Failure to take time off within six months of
such accumulation will result in the forfeiture of the days in question, unless such failure is due to
operational requirements. Overtime for these employees will be calculated on 90 minutes for each
overtime hour worked during normal working days, and 120 minutes for each overtime hour worked on
Public Holidays and Sundays.



SUBSISTENCE AND TRAVELLING POLICY



1. DEFINITIONS

“Council” means-

“Council Owned”

“Council Business”

“Privately Owned”

“Councillor”

“Contract Staff”

“Travel Expense”

“Traditional Leader”

2. PURPOSE

The municipal council of Chief Albert Luthuli Local Municipality
established by Provisional Notice No.229 of 2000 dated 1 October
2000, as amended, or its successor in title and committee or person
to which or to whom an instruction has been given or any power been
delegated in terms of or as contemplated in department 59 of the
Local Government Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No.32 of 2000).

means a vehicle acquired under bona fide agreement or sale of

exchange registered in the name of the Council official.

means activities carried out by Councillors and Council Officials on
behalf of the Council in discharging its mandate in terms of the Local
Government Municipal Systems Act; 2000 (Act No.32 of 2000),
Municipal Finance Management Act, Valuation Act and any other
applicable legislation.

means a vehicle acquired under a bona fide agreement or sale of
exchange finance under a Council motor vehicle scheme registered in
the name of a Council official before the implementation of the

Municipal Finance Management Act.
means a member of a Municipal Council.

means staff employed in terms of contract staff (section 57) and any

other appointed in terms of similar appointment contract.
includes Toll gate fees, Parking fees, etc.

as defined in the Government Gazette number

To provide guidelines for business travelling by Councillors, officials, Ward Committee

Members, Audit Committee Members and Traditional Leaders on behalf of the Council and

the compensation thereof.

3. OBJECTIVES



3.1 To regulate travelling expense claims by Councillors, Officials, Ward Committee
Members and Audit Committee Members and Traditional Leaders travelling
3.2 on behalf of the Council;

3.3 To identify Council business travel and travelling which is not related to Council
business.
APPLICATION

Applicable to all Councillors, Council Officials, Ward Committee Members, Audit Committee
Members and Traditional Leaders including contract staff and permanent employees subject

to prior approval by the Senior Manager in that department.

POLICY GUIDELINES
5.1 Travelling on Council business
5.1.1 The Municipal Manager or the delegated person shall approve travelling on
Council business by officials of the Council. Such request for travel
shall be on the Council prescribed form;
5.1.2 The Executive Mayor or the Speaker / Chief Whip or Municipal
Manager shall approve travelling on Council business
by Council.
5.1.2.1 Destination;
5.1.2.2 Reason for travelling (where applicable) proof must be
attached to the form e.g. invitation or agenda of

conference or meeting or the attendance register

5.1.2.3 Method of travelling;
5.1.24 Whether privately or Council owned vehicle will be
used; and
5.1.2.5 Date of departure and return.
5.2 Usage of privately owned vehicle for Council business
5.2.1. Councillors, Officials, Ward Committee Members and Audit

Committee Members and Traditional Leaders travelling on approved

Council business using privately owned motor vehicle shall be



5.3

5.2.2.

reimbursed at a rate as prescribed by the department of transport
from time to time.
Councillors and contract officials will claim as from 0 kilometres after

they have travelled.

The prescribed form shall be completed after a business trip has

been undertaken and submitted monthly to finance department;

5.2.3.

The total number of kilometres travelled on Council business shall be

provided and finance department shall process all approved travel

expense once per month and make payments on the 15" of every

5.2.4.

month or closest working day.
There shall be limitation to kilometres travelled monthly to all officials

as follows:

5.24.1.

5.24.2.

5.2.4.3.

5.24.4,

5.2.4.5.

5.2.4.6.

5.24.7

Municipal Manager will limited to 3000 km per month
Directors will be limited to 2500 km per month;

Managers will be limited to 2000 km per month;

Other staff members will be limited to 1500 km per month;

Staff receiving car allowances as per council policy will be limited to
travel kilometres prescribed by the policy of Council on travelling

allowance;

Should any of the employees of Council exceed the prescribed
kilometres as mentioned above the kilometres be carried over in the
following month; (the Municipal Manager in the case of Directors will
give prior approval of extension of kilometres for that month. In the case
of other employees including Assistant Directors the Director of the
affected Department shall give prior approval. In the case of employees
receiving car allowances as per Council policy prior approval shall be

obtained from the Municipal Manager or Delegated Officials.)

Councillors will not be limited.

Usage of Council owned vehicle



5.4

531

5.3.2

5.3.3

5.3.4

Travel
54.1

5.4.2

No Council or official qualifying for a Council subsidized motor vehicle will
be allowed to use Council owned vehicle for business (or private
purposes);

Councillors and Official using Council motor vehicle or Council rented
vehicle, shall not claim traveling expenses as in 4.2.1 above provided
Council incurred petrol expenses.

Councillors and Officials authorized to use Council owned vehicle for
business purpose shall be reimbursed petrol expenses provided such
official has incurred the expenditure and prove of expenditure is
produced.

A logbook and trip authorization form shall be kept for all Council owned

vehicles.

Air travel

5.4.1.1 The Executive Mayor may travel on Business or Economy class;

5.4.1.2 Councillors and Officials required to use air travel to attend to
Council business matters shall book economy class for such
travel.

5.4.1.3 Indicate distance that permit for air travel,

5.4.1.4 Get quotations for flight.

Road travel
5.4.2.1 Permitted to claim for kilometres travelled (own vehicle);
5.4.2.2 Officials is using her/his own vehicle or private transport, then a

travel claim can be submitted;

5.4.2.3 If a Ward Committee Member, Traditional Leader and Audit
Committee Member is using her/his own vehicle or private
transport for council business, then a travel claim can be

submitted and payable similar to officials and councillors;



5.4.2.4 If a person travels within Albert Luthuli Municipality and an
overnight stay is necessary then the municipality will pay for the
accommodation and the kilometres travelled,;

5.4.2.5 When making use of public transport then claiming of the taxi
fee is permitted;

5.4.2.6 If a ward committee member or traditional leader use a public
transport then a taxi fee is claimable.

5.4.3 Car hire
5.4.3.1 Category A and B cars
5.4.3.2 The Executive Mayor is not limited to have above two
categories.

55 Subsistence allowance

5.5.1 A day allowance of R75.00 is claimable if an official travel outside
Albert Luthuli Municipality for more than four hours.

5.5.2  For an overnight stay an inconvenience allowance of R150.00 will be
paid.

5.5.3 For Councillors’ and Officials attending classes inconvenience
allowance is not applicable.

5.5.4 If accommodation only includes bed and breakfast, then an allowance
of maximum of R150.00 (one hundred and fifty rands) is claimable for
dinner.

5.5.5 In an event of a member going overseas then a daily allowance is
permitted. The allowance will be determined depending on the
exchange rate applicable at that stage. All must be approved by

Council

5.6 Accommodation- Hotel:

5.6.1 Maximum Rates (bed, breakfast, lunch and dinner):

o Peak times ( R1500-).
o Off peak times (maximum R21300).



5.6.2

5.6.3

If accommodation is booked for a person and the person take another
person with, then the cost of the second person must be paid by the
person and is not the responsibility of the municipality ((except the

Executive Mayor).)

If booking for accommodation has not been done, then can officials,
Councillors, Ward Committee member or Audit Committee member

and Traditional Leader can claim R200 plus R150 in terms of the

policy.

5.7 Approval of claims (authorization of trips)

5.7.1 For Councillors/Ward Committee Members/Traditional Leaders:

5.7.2

5.7.3

5.7.4

5.7.5

5.7.6

Executive Mayor or Speaker and Municipal Manager.

For Directors, Audit Committee Members; Ward Committee Members
and Traditional Leaders: Municipal Manager or Acting Municipal
Manager;

Other staff: Head of Department in consultation with the Municipal
Manager (according to the delegation register).

Municipal Manager: Executive Mayor or Speaker and Director
Corporate Services

Speaker and Executive Mayor: Chief Whip and the Municipal

Manager

5.8 Interviews (claiming of travel)

5.8.1

5.8.2

Director Corporate Services will recommend the claim for the
interviewee and the Municipal Manager will approve it.

The Maximum rates for candidates attending interviews shall be the
rate as prescribed by the department of transport from time to time.

5.9 Cancellation of bookings

591

In case accommodation is booked and the person does not attend the
function/event and neglected to inform the municipality/hotel, then the

person is responsible for the cost;



5.9.2 If a booking is made and the function is cancelled, then the

municipality will incur the cost.

6 WHO HAS WHAT RESPONSIBILITIES?
6.1 Executive Mayor / Councll
6.1.1 Oversee and monitor:
6.1.1.1 The implementation and enforcement of the
municipality policy;
6.1.1.2 The performance of the Municipal Manager in
implementing the policy.
6.1.2 Evaluate the effectiveness of the policy and review it, present it for
Council approval to Control the traveling and subsistence expenditure
payable by the Council;
6.1.3 At such intervals as may be determined by the Council report to a
meeting of the Council on the effectiveness of the travel and

subsistence allowance policy.

6.2 Municipal Manager

6.2.1 Improvement and enforcement of the travel and subsistence
allowance policy adopted by the Council;

6.2.2 In accordance with the travel and subsistence allowance policy and
any such by-laws, establish effective administrative mechanisms,
processes and procedures to control the traveling and subsistence
expenditure;

6.2.3 At such interval as may be determined by the Council, table a report
on the status of municipal finances to a meeting of the Mayoral

Committee.



7 REFERENCES
7.1 Local Government Municipal Systems Act, 2000;
7.2 Income Tax Act No.58 of 1962;
7.3 Financial reporting by municipalities Regulation R1536;
7.4 Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003.
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COUNCIL RESOLUTION AND QUALITY CERTIFICATE



Quality Certificate

QUALITY CERTIFICATE
2015/2016 —2017/2018

I, Vusumuzi Nelson Mpila Municipal Manager of CHIEF ALBERT LUTHULI MUNICIPALITY, hereby
certify that the tabled budget and supporting documentation have been prepared in accordance
with the Municipal Finance Management Act and the regulations made under the Act, and that the
annual budget and supporting documents are consistent with the integrated development plan of
the municipality.

VN Mpila

MUNICIPAL MANAGER of

CHIEF ALBERT LUTHULI MUNICIPALITY
MP301

~77SIGNATURE

DATE 28 March 2015



Chief Albert Luthuli Municipality

The tr and tal that improves the quality of life of its people
OFFICES ALSO AT

HEAD OFFICE

P.O Box 24
Carolina
1185
Mpumalanga

Emanzana +27 (0) 17 0011 530
Empuluzi +27 (0) 17 0011 560

Elukwatini +27 (0) 17 0011 540 Telephone +27 (0) 17 843 4000

Ekulindeni +27 (0) 17 0011 521 Fax +27 (0) 17 843 4001
E-mail mm@albertiuthuli.gov.za
Our Ref :
Your Ref: Address all correspondence to
Enquiries: Mr. PJ NHLABATHI THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER

017 843 4028

EXTRACT
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN
Taken from the minutes of the Special meeting of Council (08/2015) held at the
Carolina Town Hall on 28 May 2015.
CERTIFIED AS A TRUE EXTRACT FROM THE ORIGINAL MINUTES

FINANCE: CHIEF ALBERT LUTHULI MUNICIPALITY MULTI-YEAR
BUDGET FOR 2015/18 FINANCIAL YEARS (5/8/1)

Resolved
That

1. In terms of S24 of the MFMA No. 56 of 2003, the Consolidated
Operational and Capital Multi-year Budget for 2015/18 financial years be
approved.

2. The proposed tariffs for 2015/16 be approved for implementation
effective from 1 July 2015.

3. The electricity tariffs be implemented once approved by NERSA.

4. The following reviewed Budget related policies be approved for
implementation

e Supply Chain Management Policy

Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy
e Overtime Policy

e Subsistence and Travel Allowance Policy



SIGNED,

- Free Basic Service Policy

=, Coundcil takes Note that other Budget related policies were Nnot reviewed .

L= The multi-year budget for 201518 financial years be submitted (o
National and Prowvincial Treasury in the prescribed format.

. Servitudes such as Nooitgedagte water pipeline, Eskom power lines and
Sasol gas pipeline be valued, tariffs be determined and be billed as per
the assessment rates._

T < ROLINA OMN THIS 047 DAY OF JUNE 2015



